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+The information in this prospectus supplementis n ot complete and may be  +
+changed. We will deliver a final prospectus supple ment and prospectusto  +
+purchasers of these securities. This prospectus su pplement and the +
+accompanying prospectus are not an offer to sell t hese securities norare  +
+they seeking an offer to buy these securities in a ny jurisdiction where the +
+offer or sale is not permitted. +
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SUBJECT TO COMPLETION, DATED FEBRUARY 2, 2000

INTERNATIONAL PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT
(To Prospectus Dated December 10, 1999)

[LOGO OF LEVEL(3)]

15,000,000 Shares

Level 3 Communications, Inc.

Common Stock

We are selling 15,000,000 shares of our commorksidds prospectus supplement relates to an offesfr3,000,000 shares in an
international offering outside the United Statesadidition, 12,000,000 shares are being offereddriJnited States in a U.S. offering. The
international and the U.S. underwriters may, urtgéetain circumstances, purchase up to an addit®2al0,000 shares at the initial price to
the public less the underwriting discount.

Our common stock is quoted on the Nasdaq Natioraak®t under the symbol "LVLT." The last reportetegarice of our common stock on
the Nasdaq National Market on February 2, 2000$144.13 per share.

Investing in our common stock involves certain sisBee "Risk Factors" beginning on page S-8.

Neither the Securities Exchange Commission norsaéate securities commission has approved or disapdrthese securities or determine
this prospectus supplement or the related prospéstuuthful or complete. Any representation te tiontrary is a criminal offense.

Per
Share Total

Public Offering Price $ %
Underwriting Discount $ %
Proceeds to Level 3 (before expenses) $ $

The underwriters are offering the shares subjeeatmus conditions. The
underwriters expect to deliver the shares to puefsaon or about , 2000.

Global Coordinator & Sole Book-Running Manager
Salomon Smith Barney



Salomon Smith Barney International Goldman Sachs Iternational

J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd.

Morgan Stanley Dean Witter

Credit Suisse First Boston

Merrill Lynch International Chase H&Q

Credit Lyonnais Securities Dresdner Kleinwort Ben§gs Investment Banking , 20!
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS

OUR PROGRESS

- 27 U.S. markets served and London, Paris,
Amsterdam and Frankfurt

- Launched initial services to customers
over a leased network

- Completed facilities based local metropolitan
networks in 22 U.S. markets and 3
European markets

- Completed construction of 9,334 miles of North
American intercity network and 2,139 miles of
European intercity network

- Secured approximately 3.4 million square feet of
space for Gateway facilities

OUR SERVICES

- Transport Services
- Colocation

- Internet Access

- Managed Modem

- (3)Voice(/SM*/)

(/*/Long distance only

[LOGO OF LEVEL 3]

OUR NETWORK*

- An intercity network covering nearly
16,000 miles in North America

- Leased or owned local networks in 56 North
American markets

- An intercity network covering approximately
4,750 miles across Europe

- Leased or owned local networks in 21
European and Pacific Rim markets

- Approximately 6.5 million square feet of
Gateway facilities in North America, Europe
and the Pacific Rim

- Undersea capacity, including a 1.28 Thps
transatlantic cable system and a 2.56 Thps
Northern Asia cable system initally
connecting Hong Kong to Tokyo

(/*/) At completion

OUR STRATEGY

- Become the low cost provider of communi
services

- Combine latest generations of fiber
and electronics

- Offer comprehensive range of communicat
services

- Provide significant colocation faciliti

- Provide seamless interconnection to PST
- Accelerate market roll-out

- Target web centric customers

- Develop advanced business support syste

- Leverage existing information services
capabilities

- Attract and motivate high quality
employees
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[ARTWORK APPEARING ON INSIDE FRONT COVER OF PROSPEC TUS SUPPLEMENT)]
LEVEL 3 GATEWAYS

We created the term Gateway site to describe therrmammunications hubs of our network. Our gatesvane advanced technical facilities
which provide colocation space for customers' egeipt and facilities, link our networks to other aammications networks, and house our
own network equipment. Each of our Gateway faesitis served by redundant, fault tolerant connestio our network.

REPRESENTATIVE COLOCATION GATEWAY FACILI TY
Los Angeles [PICTURE OF TECHNICAL SPACE IN
Modem equipment is used for our Managed Modem LOS ANGELES GATEWAY FACILITY]
service. This equipment will also be used for
voice service.
London [PICTURE OF COLOCATION SPACE IN
Level 3's facilities have been designed to anticipa te LONDON GATEWAY FACILITY]
and embrace the rapid pace of technological advance S.
We have constructed our Gateway facilities to be
more readily upgradeable and capable of evolving as
technology changes and to meet customer demand.
Denver [PICTURE OF BACKUP POWER AND BATTERY
Level 3 Gateways provide climate-controlled SPACE IN DENVER GATEWAY FACILITY]

environments and managed power with UPS
battery and generator backup.



[ARTWORK APPEARING ON INSIDE FRONT COVER OF PROSPEC TUS SUPPLEMENT)]

MARKETS SERVED IN 2000
United States Europe Pacific Rim
Atlanta  El Paso* Manchester Orland 0 San Francisco ~ Amsterdam Hong Kong*
Austin*  Fort Worth* Memphis* Philad elphia San Jose Brussels* Tokyo*
Baltimore Houston Miami Phoeni X* San Luis Obispo* Dusseldorf*
Boston Indianapolis* Nashville* Prince ton*  Seattle Frankfurt
Charlotte* Jacksonville* New Orleans*  Provid ence St. Louis London
Chicago Jersey City New York City Raleig h* Stamford Munich*
Cincinnati Kansas City* Newark Richmo nd*  Tampa Paris
Dallas  Longlsland Oakland* Sacram ento* Washington, D.C.
Denver  Los Angeles Omaha* San An tonio* Wilmington*
Detroit  Louisville* Orange County* San Di ego

* Not in service; final market selection subjectcttange
[PICTURE OF TECHNICAL SPACE IN CHICAGO GATEWAY FACI LITY]
Chicago

Level 3 Gateway facilities house
sophisticated optical and electronic
equipment, bringing together all of

Level 3's technology.

[DIAGRAM OF LAYOUT
OF TYPICAL
GATEWAY FACILITY
(NOT TO SCALE.)]

[PICTURE OF TECHNICAL SPACE IN WASHINGTON, D.C.
GATEWAY FACILITY]

Washington, D.C.

Network surveillance equipment in our
Gateways is used by our Network
Operations Center in Denver to monitor
the network 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

[PICTURE OF COLOCATION SPACE IN NEW YORK
GATEWAY FACILITY]

New York

Level 3's Colocation facilities are among
the largest and most modern in the
industry, housing a state-of-the-art

network of telephone and web hosting
equipment. Colocation services from
Level 3 provide customers a quick,
cos-efficient way to launch their service



You should rely only on the information containadr incorporated by reference in this prospectmpement and the accompanying
prospectus. We have not authorized anyone to peoxad with different information. We are not makisg offer of these securities in any
state where the offer is not permitted. You shawltlassume that the information contained in ooliporated by reference in this prospectus
supplement or the accompanying prospectus is aecasaof any date other than the date on the éfothiis prospectus supplement.
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PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT SUMMARY

This summary contains a general summary of tharmétion contained in this prospectus supplememaly not include all the information
that is important to you. You should read the enpirospectus supplement, our prospectus dated dece@, 1999, and the documents
incorporated by reference before making an investrdecision.

Level 3 Communications, Inc. was known as "Petewii Sons', Inc." prior to the March 31, 1998 splfit of its construction and mining
management business from its other businessesBasmess--History." See "Risk Factors" for facttirat you should consider before
investing in shares of our common stock and "Infation Regarding Forward-Looking Statements" fooinfation relating to statements
contained in this prospectus supplement that aréistorical facts. Capitalized terms used butdeftned in this prospectus supplement have
the meaning given to them in "Glossary of Terms."

Level 3

We engage in the communications, information ses/&nd coal mining businesses through ownershipefating subsidiaries and
substantial equity positions in public companiedate 1997, we announced a business plan to ise#stantially our communications and
information services business and to expand thgerahservices we offer. This plan is referredntthis prospectus supplement as the
"Business Plan." We are implementing the Businéas By building an advanced, international, faieiitbased communications network
based on Internet Protocol technology.

As our Business Plan is implemented, our netwofkasimbine both local and long distance networkd emnnect customers end-to-end
across North America and in Europe and the PaRific. Over the next two to three years, our netwsmxpected to encompass:

. an intercity network covering nearly 16,000 mile$North America;

. leased or owned local networks in 56 North Arratimnarkets;

. an intercity network covering approximately 4, #hles across Europe;

. leased or owned local networks in 21 EuropeanRauific Rim markets;

. approximately 6.5 million square feet of gateviagilities in North America, Europe and the PacRitn; and

. undersea capacity, including a 1.28 Tbps traastit! cable system and a 2.56 Thps Northern Adifecgystem initially connecting Hong
Kong to Tokyo.

We expect to substantially complete the North Acwariintercity portion of our network by the endlod year 2000. In the interim, we have
leased a national network over which we beganfer skrvices in the third quarter of 1998. We a@sgpect to substantially complete the first
two rings of our three ring European intercity netlwby the end of the year 2000. In the interim,hage also leased a European intercity
network over which we began to offer services iyeB999. As of December 31, 1999, we had secu@®dd.of the rights-ofvay required fc
our planned North American intercity network, hadnpleted construction of 9,334 route miles of tleéwork and had approximately 6,200
route miles under construction. Also, as of Decan3ie 1999, we had secured substantially all ofrigjets-of-way required for the first two
rings of our planned European intercity networknpteted construction of 2,139 route miles of treswork and had approximately 3,400
route miles under construction.

In December 1999, we began carrying customer ¢rafiween Dallas and Houston on the first complatetllit sesgment of our North
American intercity network. We have operationallfaes based local metropolitan networks in 22 Lh#arkets and 3 European markets. We
have secured approximately 3.4 million
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square feet of space for our gateway facilitiedctvivary in size and the nature of services culyesftered. We have completed the buildout
of approximately 1.3 million square feet of thimep. Our gateways are advanced technical facilittégsh provide colocation space for our
customers' equipment and facilities, link our netgao other communications networks and houseoaur network equipment. We have
gateway facilities in 25 U.S. markets and in Lond®aris, Amsterdam and Frankfurt. We have annoutfedevelopment and construction
of a 1.28 Thps transatlantic undersea cable systemell as the development and construction o6& Zbps Northern Asia undersea cable
system initially connecting Hong Kong to Tokyo.

We believe that, as technology advances, a compseleerange of both consumer and business comntigrisaservices will be provided
over networks, such as ours, utilizing Internett®rol technology. These services will include ttadial voice services, as well as other data
services such as Internet access. We believettiithas begun, and over time should accelerategdinternet Protocol networks offer:

. more efficient use of network capacity than tiaglitional public switched telephone networks;
. an open protocol which allows for market driv@avelopment of new uses and applications;

. the prospect of technological advances thatawtiress problems currently associated with IntéPnatocol based applications that use the
public Internet; and

. an open architecture that enables new competiioong suppliers and should ultimately lead to lometwork costs.
Level 3's Strategy
Key elements of our strategy include:

. Become the Low Cost Provider of Communicationwi8es. Our network is designed to provide highliggaommunications services at a
lower cost by taking advantage of efficiencies éwrtechnologies such as packet- switching, usirenppon-proprietary interfaces in the
network design and by having an upgradable nettl@kcan more readily incorporate future technaakimprovements.

. Combine Latest Generations of Fiber and Eleatsorin order to achieve unit cost reductions fansmission capacity, we have designec
network with multiple conduits to deploy successypemerations of fiber to exploit improvements entsmission electronics. Optimizing
transmission electronics to exploit specific getiers of fiber optic technology currently provideansmission capacity on the new fiber n
cost effectively than deploying new electronicspoevious generations of fiber.

. Offer a Comprehensive Range of Communicationsi&ss. We provide a comprehensive range of comnatioits services over our
network, including private line, (3)VoiceSM longstince services, colocation, Internet access andgea modem. We expect to begin
commercial testing of some features associatedladtil voice services during the first quarter 60Q. We are also offering dark fiber and
conduits along our local metropolitan networks aridrcity networks on a long-term lease basis.

. Provide Significant Colocation Facilities. We kaween experiencing higher demand for our coloca@yvices from our web centric
customers than we anticipated in preparing ouriBass Plan. We believe that providing colocationises on our network attracts web
centric customers by allowing us to offer those@uers reduced bandwidth costs, rapid provisioningdditional bandwidth, interconnect
with other third-party networks and improved netwperformance. Therefore, we believe that contrglkignificant colocation facilities in
our gateways provides us with a competitive adygmntin addition, having significant colocation fdi@s in a gateway allows the intra-
facility exchange of traffic amongst a large numbkcustomers to occur at a substantially lowet tusn would be the case for traffic
transported to other locations.
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As of December 31, 1999, we had secured approxiyndi¢ million square feet of space for our gateviagjlities and had completed the
buildout of approximately 1.3 million square feétluis space. We believe we currently have moreaation space than any of our
competitors. In January 2000, we announced an sigraof our Business Plan to increase significatfityyaggregate amount of our global
gateway facilities to 6.5 million square feet otlee next two to three years.

. Provide Seamless Interconnection to the PublitcBed Telephone Network. In December 1999 we bégaffer (3)Voice long distance
service to allow the seamless interconnection @friret Protocol networks with the public switchelphone network for long distance voice
transmissions. Seamless interconnection allowomests to use our Internet Protocol based servid®uw modifying existing telephone
equipment or dialing procedures (that is, withdnat heed to dial access codes or follow other sirapacial procedures). Our managed
modem service uses similar softswitch technologse@mmlessly interconnect to the public switcheepiebne network.

. Accelerate Market Roll-out. To support the laun€lour services and develop a customer base iarsdvof completing our network build,
we offer services over a combination of leasedlland intercity facilities. Over time, these leasmdworks will be displaced by the networks
that we are constructing.

. Target Web Centric Customers. To increase revpnogucing traffic on our network more rapidly, we using a direct sales force focused
on communications intensive and web centric busieesThese businesses include ISPs, applicatigitsgroviders, content providers,
systems integrators, next generation carriers, gething companies, streaming media companies darchkt Protocol based storage
providers. Providing continually declining bandwhidtosts to these companies is at the core of otkehanabling strategy because bandw
generally represents a substantial portion of veeitric businesses' costs.

. Develop Advanced Business Support Systems. Wdergloping a substantial, scalable and web-endllsthess support system
infrastructure specifically designed to enableausfter services efficiently to targeted custom&ve believe that this system will reduce our
operating costs, give our customers direct comivel some of the services they buy from us andvalis to grow rapidly without redesigning
the architecture of the business support system.

. Leverage Existing Information Services CapaleiitiWe are expanding our existing capabilitiesoimjuter network systems integration,
consulting, outsourcing and software reengineeririth particular emphasis on the conversion of tggsoftware systems to systems that are
compatible with Internet Protocol networks and wetwser access.

. Attract and Motivate High Quality Employees. Wavh developed programs designed to attract anith extaployees with the technical sk
necessary to implement the Business Plan. The amogyinclude our Shareworks stock purchase plaman®utperform Stock Option
program.

Competitive Advantages

We believe that we have the following competitidwa@ntages that, together with our strategy, wiistus in implementing the Business
Plan:

. Experienced Management Team. We have assembheshagement team that we believe is well suitechfdement the Business Plan. M
of our senior management has been involved in hegitlie development and marketing of telecommurinatproducts and in designing,
constructing and managing intercity, metropolitad aternational networks.

. A More Readily Upgradable Network Infrastructudair network design strategy takes advantage ehtdonovations, incorporating many
features that are not present in older communicatieetworks, and provides us flexibility to takeastage of future developments and
innovations. We have designed the transmissionar&tto optimize all aspects of fiber and electragrsamultaneously
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as a system to deliver the lowest unit cost toomstomers. As fiber and transmission electronibrietogy changes, we expect to realize new
unit cost improvements by deploying the latestrfined transmission electronics technology in abtgl@mpty or spare conduit in our
multiple conduit network. We believe that the spawaduit design of our network will enable us tteef this deployment more quickly and at
lower cost than other carriers.

. Integrated End-to-End Network Platform with Sigrsint Colocation Facilities. We believe that théegration of our local and intercity
networks with our colocation facilities will expatite scope and reach of our on-net customer cogerag facilitate the uniform deployment
of technological innovations as we manage our &typgrade paths.

. Systems Integration Capabilities. We believe thatability to offer computer outsourcing and syss integration services, particularly
services relating to allowing a customer's lega®sfesns to be accessed with web browsers, will gevaidditional opportunities for selling «
products and services.

Our principal executive offices are located at 1&Xtorado Boulevard, Broomfield, Colorado 80021 andtelephone number is (720) 888-
1000.

S4



The Offering

The following information assumes no exercise efthderwriters' over- allotment option. See "Undémg." The number of shares
outstanding excludes an aggregate of 70,000,00@sk& common stock reserved for issuance unde®atperform Stock Option program
which includes our Shareworks stock purchase giha.number of shares outstanding also excludeggmegate of 12,620,455 shares of
common stock currently issuable upon conversioounf6% convertible subordinated notes due 200%araljgregate of shares of common
stock that would be issuable upon conversion ottresertible subordinated notes that we are coratlyr offering.

Common Stock:

U.S. offering.................. 12,000,000 shares
International offering......... 3,000,000 shares
Total......ccoovveennnn. 15,000,000 shares

Common stock to be outstanding
after this offering............
356,772,589 shares

Use of proceeds................. Our net proceeds (

be used for workin
expenditures, acqu
corporate purposes
implementation of

Nasdaqg National Market symbol... "LVLT"

Risk factors..........c...c..... Investing in share

involves a high de
Factors" beginning

prospectus supplem

certain matters th
before investing i
stock.

Other Offerings

estimated tobe $ ) will
g capital, capital

isitions and other general
in connection with the
our Business Plan.

s of our common stock
gree of risk. See "Risk
on page S-8 of this

ent for a discussion of
at you should consider
n shares of the common

We are also offering senior notes and senior discoates, which will generate aggregate gross mdsef $1,000,000,000, (Euro)
400,000,000 (approximately $391,000,000) of senates and $500,000,000 of convertible subordinatees, each in a separate offering
pursuant to a separate prospectus supplementasingffmemorandum. No offering is conditioned onclosing of any other. We may not

complete any of the other offerings. In additidre size of each of our other offerings is subjecatitange. This prospectus supplement relates

only to the offering of common stock and not to ditleer offerings. The senior notes and senior distootes and the euro- denominated

senior notes will not be registered under the SgesirAct of 1933 and may not be offered or soldhie United States absent registration or an

applicable exemption from registration requirements



Summary Financial Data

The summary financial data presented below as @famnthe fiscal years ended the last Saturdayandinber of 1995, 1996, 1997 and
December 31, 1998 have been derived from LevelBlited consolidated financial statements and thesrrelated to those financial
statements. The selected financial data presemiedvias of and for the fiscal year ended Decembel 399 have been derived from Level
3's unaudited financial statements. In the opimibmanagement, the unaudited financial statememts bheen prepared on the same basis as
the audited financial statements and include gllsichents, consisting of normal recurring adjusttaenecessary for a fair presentation of the
financial position and results of operations asuwfh dates and for such periods. The followingrinfation should be read in conjunction with
Level 3's audited consolidated financial statemantsthe notes related to those financial statesneititich are included in this prospectus
supplement. Since the Business Plan represenggificant expansion of Level 3's communications arfdrmation services business, Levt
does not believe that the following informationveer as a meaningful indicator of Level 3's futunarficial condition or results of operations.
Level 3 expects to incur substantial net operatisges for the foreseeable future, and Level 3 nodype able to achieve or sustain operating
profitability in the future.

Fiscal Ye ar Ended (1)
1999 1998 1997 1996 1995
( in millions)

Results of Operations:

Revenue..........ccoceeeinens $515 $ 392 $ 332% 652% 580
Income (loss) from continuing

operations(2)......cccccee..... (487) (128) 83 104 126
Net earnings (loss)(3)........... (487) 804 248 221 244
Financial Position:

Total assets............cuveee. 8,904 5,525 2,779 3,066 2,945
Current portion of long-term

debt......coiiiiiiiiiie, 6 5 3 57 40
Long-term debt, less current

portion(4).......cccoeveveennn. 3,989 2,641 137 320 361
Stockholders' equity(5).......... 3,405 2,165 2,230 1,819 1,607

(1) In October 1993, Level 3 acquired 35% of thestanding shares of C-TEC Corporation, which sharggled Level 3 to 57% of the
available voting rights of C-TEC Corporation. C-TE®Grporation is sometimes referred to in this peasps supplement as "C-TEC." At
December 28, 1996, Level 3 owned 48% of the oudstanshares and 62% of the voting rights of C-TEC.

As a result of the restructuring of C-TEC in 19B&yel 3 owned less than 50% of the outstandingeshand voting rights of each of the three
entities into which C-TEC was divided, and therefaccounted for each entity using the equity metieminning in 1997. Level 3
consolidated C- TEC in its financial statementsnfrb995 to 1996.

The financial position and results of operationshef construction and mining management busineddasvel 3 have been classified as
discontinued operations due to the March 31, 1988aff of Level 3's construction and mining maragent businesses from its other
businesses. Level 3's construction and mining mamagt businesses are referred to in this prospsafysement as the "Construction
Group.”

In 1995, Level 3 dividended its investment in dsnfier subsidiary, MFS Communications Company, im¢he holders of the Class D Stock.
MFS Communications Company, Inc. is sometimes redeto in this prospectus supplement as "MFS." MES&Ilts of operations have been
classified as a single line item on the stateménperations for 1995.

Level 3 sold its energy segment to MidAmerican ggefoldings Company (formerly known as CalEnergyrpany, Inc.) in 1998 and
classified it as discontinued operations withinfihancial statements. MidAmerican Energy Holdi@smpany is sometimes referred to in
this prospectus supplement as "MidAmerican."
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(2) Level 3 incurred significant expenses in coojion with the expansion of its communications afdrmation services businesses in 1998
and 1999.

During 1999, RCN Corporation, sometimes referreih tihis prospectus supplement as "RCN," issueckstoa public offering and for
certain transactions that diluted Level 3's ownigrefiRCN from 41% at December 31, 1998 to 35% etd&nber 31, 1999. The increase in
Level 3's proportionate share of RCN's net assetsrasult of these transactions resulted in dgpeerain of $117 million for Level 3 in 1999.
Level 3 recognized gains of $62 million in 1998 REN stock activity and $3 million in 1995 for MBBck activity.

In 1998, Level 3 acquired XCOM Technologies, Inud &s developing telephone-to-Internet Protocaoek bridge technology. XCOM
Technologies, Inc. is sometimes referred to in pnaspectus supplement as "XCOM." Level 3 recoa&30 million nondeductible charge
against earnings for the write-off of in-processei@ch and development acquired in the transaction.

In 1998, Cable Michigan, Inc. was acquired by Awalable of Michigan, Inc. Level 3 received approately $129 million for its shares of
Cable Michigan, Inc. in the acquisition and recagdia pre-tax gain of approximately $90 millioriP08.

(3) In 1998, Level 3 recognized a gain of $608 ignllequal to the difference between the carryingesaf the Construction Group and its 1
value. No taxes were provided on this gain du&éotax-free nature of the split-off.

Level 3 also recognized in 1998 an after-tax g&i$324 million on the sale of its energy segmeri¥lidAmerican.

(4) In 1998, Level 3 issued $2 billion of 9 1/8%iee notes due 2008 and $834 million principal amtaat maturity of 10 1/2% senior
discount notes due 2008. The issue price of th&/2% senior discount notes was approximately 60%heprincipal amount at maturity. In
1999, Level 3 issued $823 million of 6% convertibiordinated notes due 2009 and entered into3a $hillion senior secured credit
facility of which $475 million was outstanding aS@ecember 31, 1999.

(5) In March 1999, Level 3 received approximatelyShillion of net proceeds from the sale of 2817i8ion shares of its common stock.
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RISK FACTORS
Before you invest in shares of our common stock, stwould carefully consider the following risks.
We are dependent on our new Business Plan thasrfi Internet Protocol technology

The current status of our Business Plan makes atiauof its risks and rewards extremely difficaitd speculative. The Business Plan
depends upon a shift in providing communicationgises over Internet Protocol based networks imstédahe traditional public-switched
networks. Our strategy assumes that the techndlagywe and others have developed solves the pnsbteirrently associated with Internet
Protocol based applications and will scale for didployment, and that others will continue to depetew uses and applications for Internet
Protocol based networks. The success of our BusiPkes) depends on other assumptions as well, suctiraability to use open, non-
proprietary interfaces in our network software aaddware that allow us to buy equipment in therifoom multiple vendors. We must
generate substantial traffic volume at acceptabteg on our network in order to realize the apated operating efficiencies and cost ben
of the network.

Substantial operating losses are expected foroffeséeable future

The development of our Business Plan requiresfiigni capital expenditures. We expect to incuargé portion of these capital expenditt
before we receive any significant related reveritgra our Business Plan. Because of these capipareditures and the related early opere
expenses, we expect substantial negative opereasigflow and net losses for the foreseeable fukoe1999, we incurred a loss from
continuing operations of $487 million. We expect operating losses for the foreseeable future teubstantially higher. We may never
establish a significant customer base for our comioations and information services business, am éwe do, we may continue to sustain
substantial negative operating cash flow and retde as a result of low prices or higher costadttition, we will incur substantially higher
selling, general and administrative expenses adewvelop our Business Plan.

Since our Business Plan is a significant expansfaur communications and information services ibeis$, we believe that our historical
financial results will not provide investors withmaaningful indicator of our future financial cotidn or results of operations.

A failure to finance our substantial capital reguiients could adversely affect our Business Plan

The implementation of our Business Plan and ouityld meet our projected growth depends on olilitgtio secure substantial additional
financing. We estimate that the implementationwfBusiness Plan, as currently contemplated, requietween $13 and $14 billion over the
10-year period of the plan. However, the amouradtfitional financing we need could be higher thancwrrently estimate. The
implementation of our Business Plan and our fufim@ncial results could be adversely affected ifave unsuccessful in obtaining required
financing through:

. raising debt or equity capital at the times wechen terms that we consider acceptable;
. generating cash flow from our operations; and
. offering others fiber optic capacity on our netlwor access to our conduits.

If we fail to obtain the required financing, we miag required to delay or abandon some of our fugxpansion or spending plans. Our
existing level of debt and its terms may limit @nility to raise additional capital and otherwisstrict our activities. Additional equity
issuances would dilute your ownership interesaddition, if our operations do not produce positash flow in sufficient amounts to pay
financing obligations, our future financial resudisd our ability to implement our Business Plar bl materially and adversely affected.
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Difficulties in constructing our network could irease its estimated cost and delay its schedulegletion

The construction, operation and any upgrading ofnetwork is a significant undertaking. Adminisivat technical, operational and other
problems that could arise may be more difficulatliiress and solve due to the significant size antpbtexity of the planned network. We are
also dependent on timely performance by third-psuypliers and contractors. In addition, impor&syects of our network, such as voice
capability, will rely on technology that is in thlevelopment stage or that is largely commerciafigraven. This new technology also may
be compatible with existing technology. Many ofgédactors and problems are beyond our controa Aesult, the entire network may not be
completed as planned for the cost and in the tiamaé that we currently estimate. We may be matg@alversely affected as a result of any
significant increase in the estimated cost of thsvork or any significant delay in its anticipatmmpletion.

After its initial completion, future expansions aadaptations of our network's electronic and saw@mponents may be necessary in order
to respond to:

. a growing number of customers;

. increased demands by our customers to transrggdamounts of data;
. changes in our customers' service requirements; a

. technological advances by our competitors.

Any expansion or adaptation of our network willuegg substantial additional financial, operatioaatl managerial resources. If we are un
to expand or adapt our network to respond to tdeselopments on a timely basis and at a commeyadisonable cost, then our business
will be materially adversely affected.

Our business could be materially affected by pnoislarising from the commercial deployment of ourc&dechnology for Internet Protocol
networks

We and others have developed technology that weueelill avoid the need for customers on a privaternet Protocol based network to
dial access codes or follow other special procedigénitiate a voice call. We began to commergidiploy this technology for long distance
voice service in December 1999 and problems withay be discovered as it continues to be deploped efforts to commercially deploy
this technology in a timely manner and at an aa@ptcost may not be successful, and such a faihukl have a material adverse effect on
us. We are currently testing some features assakigith local voice service such as caller ID, eoiail and call forwarding. To date, Inter
Protocol voice telephony using the public Interim&$ had significant problems with quality, laten@liability and security. Until we more
fully commercially deploy our voice telephony sees, we cannot predict whether our plans for sgltirese problems will work.

The commercial deployment of our voice telephonyises also requires that we develop related bssisapport systems. Our failure to
develop these business support systems could Imeadvarse effect on the commercial deploymenteddtservices.

Our Business Plan requires the development of taflebusiness support systems to implement custonters and to provide and bill for
services

Our Business Plan depends on our ability to deveftgrtive business support systems. This is a tioatpd undertaking requiring significe
resources and expertise and support from third/pemndors. Business support systems are needed for:

. implementing customer orders for services;
. provisioning, installing and delivering thesevsees; and
. monthly billing for these services.
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Since our Business Plan provides for rapid growtthe number and volume of products and servicesfiee, we need to develop these
business support systems on a schedule suffi@eneet our proposed service rollout dates. In amditve will require these business supj
systems to expand and adapt with our rapid growtk. failure to develop effective business suppystesns could have a material adverse
effect on our ability to implement our BusinessrPla

We may be unable to hire and retain sufficient ifjeal personnel; the loss of any of our key exa@ubfficers could adversely affect us

We believe that our future success will dependiigé part on our ability to attract and retain higtkilled, knowledgeable, sophisticated and
qualified managerial, professional and technicas@enel. To implement our Business Plan, we neddte a substantial number of
additional employees. We have experienced sigmificampetition in attracting and retaining persdnwigo possess the skills that we are
seeking. As a result of this significant competitisve may experience a shortage of qualified pemlo®ur businesses are managed by a
small number of key executive officers, particyfatames Q. Crowe, Chief Executive Officer, R. DasdgBradbury, Chief Financial Officer,
Kevin J. O'Hara, Chief Operating Officer and ColirK. Williams, Executive Vice President. The logsaay of these key executive officers
could have a material adverse effect on us.

Inability to manage effectively our planned rapigh@nsion could adversely affect our operations

Our Business Plan contemplates rapid expansionrabasiness for the foreseeable future. This gramithincrease our operating complexity
and require that we, among other things, rapidly:

. expand our employee base with highly skilled pensl;

. develop, introduce and market new products andcsss;

. integrate any acquired operations and joint westu

. secure space suitable for colocation facilities;

. develop financial and management controls antéBys and
. control expenses related to our Business Plan.

The significant size and complexity of our planmetwork and planned rate of expansion will makaadre difficult to satisfy these
requirements. Our failure to satisfy any of themguirements, or otherwise manage our growth effelsti could have a material adverse ef
on us.

If we were to make strategic investments, acquoisgtior joint ventures, our resources and managetineacould be diverted and we may be
unable to integrate them successfully with ourtégsnetwork and services.

We must obtain and maintain permits and rights-af+to develop our network

The operation of our networks requires that we iolitgany local franchises and other permits. We aisst obtain rights to use underground
conduit and aerial pole space and other rights-af-and fiber capacity. The process of obtaining¢heanchises, permits and rights is time
consuming and burdensome. If we are unable, omptaitle terms and on a timely basis, to obtain aamhtain the franchises, permits and
rights needed to implement our Business Plan, tiiiddut of our network could be materially adveysaffected. In addition, the cancellation
or non-renewal of the franchises, permits or rigivsdo obtain, or the loss of the rights-of-wayveee obtained, could materially adversely
affect us.

Termination of relationships with key suppliers ltbcause delay and costs

Until we complete the company-owned portion of network, we will lease substantially all of ourdntity communications capacity in
North America, Europe and possibly elsewhere. Assalt, we will be dependent on the providers &f tdapacity. In addition, we intend
lease a significant amount of capacity

S-10



from local exchange carriers to connect our custsriteour gateway sites. We are also dependeritiahparty suppliers for substantial
amounts of fiber, conduit, computers, software tahés/routers and related components that we sskmble and integrate into our network.
If any of these relationships are terminated angp8er fails to provide reliable services or equgnt and we are unable to reach suitable
alternative arrangements quickly, we may experiaigeificant delays and additional costs. If thappens, we could be materially adversely
affected.

Our industry is highly competitive with participarthat have greater resources and existing cussomer

The communications and information services inguisthighly competitive. Many of our existing andtential competitors have financial,
personnel, marketing and other resources significgneater than ours. Many of these competitorsehthe added competitive advantage of
an existing customer base. In addition, significew competitors could arise as a result of:

. increased consolidation and strategic alliangdke industry resulting from recent Congressiamal FCC actions;
. allowing foreign carriers to compete in the Untarket;

. further technological advances; and

. further deregulation and other regulatory inities.

If we are unable to compete successfully, our lassircould be materially adversely affected.

Rapid technological changes can lead to furtherpstition

The communications and information services inguistisubject to rapid and significant changes ahntwlogy. In addition, the introduction
new products or technologies may reduce the cascogase the supply of certain services similahtse that we plan to provide. As a res
our most significant competitors in the future nt@ynew entrants to the communications and infoonaervices industry. These new
entrants may not be burdened by an installed blagetdated equipment. Technological changes andethidting competition on our
operations could have a material adverse effectson

Increased industry capacity and other factors ctmald to lower prices for our products and services

AT&T, MCI WorldCom, Sprint and Qwest currently omationwide long distance fiber optic networks. MEbrldCom has entered into an
agreement to acquire Sprint. In Europe, GTS, MCHd@om and Viatel currently own intercity network3west's network, as well as the
intercity networks being deployed by others, inahgdBroadwing and Williams Communications in theitdd States and KPNQwest, i-21
and Global Crossing in Europe, use advanced teabpdaimilar to that of our network. In additionetie are numerous local and regional
networks. Increased capacity may cause signifidaoteases in the prices for services. Prices nsaydacline due to capacity increases
resulting from technological advances and strateffji@nces, such as long distance capacity pumbasliances among regional Bell
operating companies. These price declines may tiieyarly severe if recent trends causing increademand for capacity, such as Internet
usage, change. Rapid growth in the use of therlatés a recent phenomenon, and may not continteeaame rate. Increased competition
has already led to a decline in rates chargedddous telecommunications services.

We are subject to significant regulation that cazlidnge in an adverse manner

Communications services are subject to significagtlation at the federal, state, local and intiéonal levels. These regulations affect us
our existing and potential competitors. Delaysdoeiving required regulatory approvals, completimigrconnection agreements with
incumbent local exchange carriers or the enactimfeméw and adverse regulations or regulatory requénts may have a material adverse
effect on us. In addition, future legislative, jcidi, and regulatory agency actions could have terah adverse effect on us.
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Recent federal legislation provides for a significderegulation of the U.S. telecommunications &tdy including the local exchange, long
distance and cable television industries. Thisslegion remains subject to judicial review and #ddal FCC rulemaking. As a result, we can
not predict the legislation's effect on our futoperations. Many regulatory actions are under waare being contemplated by federal and
state authorities regarding important items. Tte®ns could have a material adverse effect on us.

Canadian law currently does not permit us to afggwices in Canada

Ownership of facilities that originate or terminataffic in Canada is currently limited to Canadw@arriers. This restriction will block our
entry into the Canadian market unless appropriagmgements can be made to address it.

Potential regulation of Internet service provideosld adversely affect our operations

The FCC has to date treated Internet service peosids enhanced service providers. Enhanced s@nagilers are currently exempt from
federal and state regulations governing commornezarincluding the obligation to pay access chauysd contribute to the universal service
fund. The FCC is currently examining the statulntérnet service providers and the services theyide. If the FCC were to determine that
Internet service providers, or the services theyide, are subject to FCC regulation, including pagment of access charges and contribi
to the universal service funds, it could have aemial adverse effect on us.

The FCC has also been considering whether locekcsiare obligated to pay compensation to eackrdn the transport and termination of
calls to Internet service providers when a locéllisgplaced from an end user of one carrier tdraernet service provider served by a
competing local exchange carrier. Recently, the EE&termined that it had no rule addressing irtarrier compensation for these calls. In
absence of a federal rule, state commissions nezy ebt to require payment of reciprocal compensdir these calls. The FCC also relee
for comment alternative federal rules to govern pensation for these calls in the future. If statmmissions, the FCC or the courts
determine that inter-carrier compensation doesppty, carriers, including us, may be unable t@vec their costs or will be compensated at
a significantly lower rate and may be requiredefund compensation previously paid.

Network failure or delays and errors in transmissiexpose us to potential liabili

Our network will use a collection of communicatie@tuipment, software, operating protocols and petgy applications for the high speed
transportation of large quantities of data amondtipia locations. Given the complexity of our prageal network, it may be possible that data
will be lost or distorted. Delays in data delivemay cause significant losses to a customer using@work. Our network may also contain
undetected design faults and software bugs thapit@eour testing, may be discovered only aftemtggvork has been installed and is in use.
The failure of any equipment or facility on thewetk could result in the interruption of customensce until we effect necessary repairs or
install replacement equipment. Network failuredage and errors could also result from natural stiess, power losses, security breaches and
computer viruses. These failures, faults or ercordd cause delays, service interruptions, expege austomer liability or require expensive
modifications that could have a material advergeceébn our business.

Intellectual property and proprietary rights of &tk could prevent us from using necessary techgdtogrovide Internet Protocol voice
services

While we do not know of any technologies that aatepted by others that we believe are necessansftw provide Internet Protocol voice
services, this necessary technology may in fagtatented by other parties either now or in thertutif this technology were held under
patent by another person, we would have to negatidicense for the use of that technology. We nmaybe able to negotiate such a license at
a price that is acceptable to us. The existenseicti a patent, or our inability to negotiate arlgmfor any such technology on acceptable
terms, could force us to cease using the technaagyoffering products and services incorporativggtechnology.
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PKS Systems Integration LLC may have liability frits1Year 2000 customer projects

PKS Information Services, Inc. derived a substhptation of its revenue from projects that its sigliary, PKS Systems Integration LLC, or
PKSSI, conducted involving Year 2000 assessment@malvation services. These activities of PKSSlosgpus to potential risks that may
include problems with services provided by PKSSts@ustomers and the potential for claims arisinder PKSSI's customer contracts.
PKSSI's attempts to contractually limit its expesto liability for Year 2000 compliance issues nmay be effective. See "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebults of Operations--Year 2000--December 31, 1999

Foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations ortregieon could result in losses

Our international expansion will cause our resofteperations and the value of our assets to leetafl by the exchange rates between the
U.S. dollar and the currencies of the additionaintdes in which we have operations and assetsoiime of these countries, prices of our
products and services will be denominated in aetuay other than the U.S. dollar. As a result, wg merience economic losses solely as a
result of foreign currency exchange rate fluctuatidncluding a foreign currency's devaluation agaihe U.S. dollar. We may also in the
future acquire interests in companies that openateuntries where the removal or conversion ofeney is restricted. In addition, similar
restrictions could be imposed in countries wherecargduct business after we begin our operations.

Environmental liabilities from our historical op&mns could be material

Our operations and properties are subject to a wadiety of laws and regulations relating to enmirental protection, human health and
safety. These laws and regulations include thosearaing the use and management of hazardous anbazardous substances and wastes.
We have made and will continue to have to makeifsaggmt expenditures relating to our environmerm@mnpliance obligations. We may not
all times be in compliance with all these requiretse

In connection with certain historical operationg are a party to, or otherwise involved in, legalgeedings under state and federal law
involving investigation and remediation activit@sapproximately 110 contaminated properties. Wedcbe held liable, jointly and several
and without regard to our own fault, for such irtigetion and remediation. The discovery of addigloenvironmental liabilities related to our
historical operations or changes in existing emvinental requirements could have a material adwaffeet on us.

Significant future declines in cash flow from coglerations

Approximately 40% of our net revenues for 1999 wadtabutable to our coal mining operations. Theeleof cash flows generated in recent
periods by our coal operations will not continuteathe year 2000. These cash flow levels will dase because the delivery requirements
under our current long-term contracts decline $icguntly after that date. Moreover, without thosmtracts, our coal mining operations would
not be able to operate profitably by selling thEiwduction on the spot markets. A substantial niigjoff our coal mining revenues are
provided by three customer contracts.

Potential liabilities and claims arising from owat operations could be significant

Our coal operations are subject to extensive lawdsragulations that impose stringent operationaintenance, financial assurance,
environmental compliance, reclamation, restorasiod closure requirements. These requirements iachmkse governing air and water
emissions, waste disposal, worker health and safetyefits for current and retired coal miners, atiegér general permitting and licensing
requirements. We may not at all times be in comgkawith all of these requirements. Liabilitiesctaims associated with this non-
compliance could require us to incur material costsuspend production. Mine reclamation costseRaeed our reserves for these matters
also could require us to incur material costs.
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Anti-takeover provisions could limit our share griand delay a change of management

Our certificate of incorporation and by-laws contprovisions that could make it more difficult arem prevent a third party from acquiring
our company without the approval of our incumbesdrd of directors. These provisions, among othiagth

. divide our board of directors into three classdt) members of each class to be elected in staggaree-year terms;

. prohibit stockholder action by written consenplace of a meeting;

. limit the right of stockholders to call speciateatings of stockholders;

. limit the right of stockholders to present proglesor nominate directors for election at annuagtings of stockholders; and
. authorize our board of directors to issue prefitstock in one or more series without any actiothe part of stockholders.

If there is a change of control of Level 3, we nb@yrequired under the provisions of our indentaras senior secured credit facility to
repurchase or repay the debt outstanding undee thagieements.

These provisions could limit the price that investmight be willing to pay in the future for shamfour common stock and significantly
impede the ability of the holders of our commorcktto change management. In addition, we have adappoison pill rights plan, which t
anti-takeover effects. Our rights plan, if trigggrevill cause substantial dilution to a person mugp that attempts to acquire our company on
terms not approved by our board of directors. Riows and agreements that inhibit or discourageowadr attempts could reduce the market
value of our common stock.

Sales of a large number of shares by Level 3 atbgkholders could depress our stock price

The market price of our common stock could drop &ssult of sales of a large number of our shardise public market after the offering.
The perception that sales may occur could havedhe results. We will be subject to a 90-day blawukperiod following the date of this
prospectus supplement. During this black-out penaslare not allowed to issue additional commonlksty securities convertible into
common stock except in certain circumstances arasnbalomon Smith Barney consents. One exceptmmsalis to issue additional stock in
connection with acquisitions. A second exceptiopliag if we are included in a major market index.

Our officers and directors will not be subject ttydock-up provision. Additional shares are issealohder our benefit program depending on
the extent to which, if any, our stock outperfortims S&P 500 by either rising at a higher rate dinfiguat a lower rate. The number of such
shares that would be issued is based on a mulitigliated to how much our stock outperforms the S&B.

The trading value of our common stock may fluctisagmificantly

Since our common stock has been publicly tradednérket price has fluctuated significantly and roagtinue to do so in the future.
Significant fluctuations in the market price of m@mmon stock may occur in response to variousfaend events, including, among other
things:

. the depth and liquidity of the trading market éoir common stock;

. quarterly variations in actual or anticipated rpi@g results;

. changes in estimates by securities analysts;

. market conditions in the communications and imfation services industry;
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. announcements and performance by competitors;

. regulatory actions; and

. general economic conditions.

The terms of our debt agreements restrict us frakimg payments with respect to our common stock

We intend to retain future earnings for use inlouginess, and we do not anticipate paying any dastiends on our common stock in the
foreseeable future. In addition, our indentures serdor secured credit facility contain limitatioms our ability to declare and pay cash
dividends.

Certain foreign holders may be subject to adver&: féderal income tax consequences

We may be or may become a "United States real propelding corporation,” or a USRPHC, for U.S. éeal income tax purposes.
Generally, if we have been, are or become a USR&#tlOour common stock is considered to be "regutealyed” under applicable U.S.
Treasury Regulations, then a Non-U.S. Holder (dime@ in "Certain United States Federal Tax Consages to NorJnited States Holders
that owns or has owned, actually or constructivatygny time during the shorter of the holder'siingl period and the five year period ending
on the date of disposition, more than 5% of thaltfatir market value of the common stock outstagdiaring that period may be subject to
adverse U.S. federal income tax consequences hpatigposition of the common stock. See "CertaiitddriStates Federal Tax
Consequences to Non-United States Holders--Samofmon Stock."
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INFORMATION REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus supplement contains or incorpotatasference forward- looking statements. Thesedod-looking statements include,
among others, statements concerning:

. the Business Plan, its advantages and our syrédegmplementing the Business Plan;

. anticipated growth of the communications andrimf@tion services industry;

. plans to devote significant management time aital resources to our business;

. expectations as to our future revenues, margipenses and capital requirements;

. anticipated dates on which we will begin provgliertain services or reach specific milestondhérBusiness Plan; and

. other statements of expectations, beliefs, fubleas and strategies, anticipated development®t#ned matters that are not historical facts.

You should be aware that these forward-lookingestaints are subject to risks and uncertaintiesydieg) financial, regulatory,
environmental, industry growth and trend projecsiaihat could cause actual events or results terdifaterially from those expressed or

implied by the statements. The most important factioat could prevent us from achieving our stgals include, but are not limited to, our
failure to:

. achieve and sustain profitability based on tleation and implementation of our advanced, inténat, facilities based communications
network based on Internet Protocol technology;

. overcome significant early operating losses;

. produce sufficient capital to fund the BusineEnP

. develop financial and management controls, abagehdditional controls of operating expenseselsag other costs;
. attract and retain qualified management and gibesonnel;

. install on a timely basis the switches/routeisf optic cable and associated electronics redudoesuccessful implementation of the
Business Plan;

. successfully complete commercial testing of aftssvitch technology for voice transmission sersice

. hegotiate new and maintain existing peering agesgs; and

. develop and implement effective business suppatems for processing customer orders and praovigjo
For a discussion of certain of these factors, &gk'Factors."
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USE OF PROCEEDS

Our net proceeds from this offering are estimateldet $ , or $ if the underwriters' over-allotmeption is exercised in full. Our net proceeds
from this offering and the other offerings will beed for working capital, capital expenditures,uasitions and other general corporate
purposes in connection with the implementationwfBusiness Plan. Although we evaluate potentiquaitions from time to time, we
currently have no agreement or understanding withpeerson to effect any material acquisition.

Pending this utilization, we intend to invest thed proceeds of this offering in short-term investise
CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth the consolidateditzdization of the Company as of December 31, 1898 that capitalization as adjusted to
give effect to the net proceeds from this offeriagsuming no exercise of the underwriters' ovetiaknt option and as further adjusted to
give effect to the net proceeds from the otherrofés. These further adjustments assume thatelbther offerings are completed for the
amounts indicated below. The table also assumesoimversion of the euro-denominated senior notes @&xchange rate of euros per dollar,
the spot trading rate of the euro at the end of thelon business day on , 2000.

December 31, 1999

As
Further
Adjusted
As Adjusted for the
for this  Other

A ctual Offering Offerings

' " (dollars in millions)
Cash and marketable securities................... $ 3,446 % $
Current portion of long-term deb; ................ $ __g__ $ o $ o
Long-term debt, less current por;ion ............. $ 5_9_8_9_ $ o $ o

Senior Notes and Senior Discount Notes........... - -
Euro-denominated Senior Notes.................... -- --
Convertible Subordinated Notes................... -- --

Total long-term debt, less current portion..... 3,989
Stockholders' equity

Preferred Stock, $.01 par value; authorized

10,000,000 shares; no shares outstanding,

actual, as adjusted and as further adjusted... - - -

Common Stock, $.01 par value; authorized

1,500,000,000 shares; 341,396,727 shares

outstanding, actual and shares

outstanding as adjusted and as further

adjusted........ooooviiiiiiiiieeeen 3
Additional paid-in capital..................... 2,501
Accumulated other comprehensive loss........... (5)
Retained earnings.........c.ccocceeeeeninnen. 906
Total stockholders' equity................... 3,405
Total capitalization.............cccceeeveennrnns $ 7,394 3 $

We are also offering senior notes and senior discnates which will generate aggregate gross paseg$1,000,000,000, (Euro)
400,000,000 (approximately $391,000,000) of senates and $500,000,000 of convertible subordinatees, each in a separate offering
pursuant to a separate prospectus supplementasingffmemorandum. No offering is conditioned onclosing of any other. We may not
complete any of the other offerings. In additidre size of each of our other offerings is subjeaitange. This prospectus supplement relates
only to the offering of common stock and not to ttleer offerings. The senior notes and senior distaotes and the euro- denominated
senior notes will not be registered under the SeesirAct of 1933 and may not be offered or solthi@ United States absent registration or an
applicable exemption from registration requirements
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COMMON STOCK PRICE RANGE AND DIVIDENDS

Our common stock is quoted on the Nasdaq Natioraak®t under the symbol "LVLT." It began trading the Nasdaq National Market on
April 1, 1998, the day following the split-off dfi¢ Construction Group from our other businesses.t@hble below sets forth, for the calendar
quarters indicated, the high and low per shararaosale prices of our common stock as reportethbyNasdaq National Market. The prices
set forth in the table have been adjusted to reftextwo-for-one split of our common stock effettes a stock dividend in August 1998.

High Low
Year Ended December 31,1998 e e
Second Quarter (from April 1, 1998)........cccc... . L. $37.13 $24.00
Third Quarner.......ccoeccvviiiieeeeees 42.13 29.78
Fourth Quarter......ccccovcvvevvevveneeeeeeeeeees 43.13 24.00
Year Ended December 31, 1999
FirstQuarter......ccoovvvvveviiiiieeeeeees 72.81 39.75
Second QUArer.....ccccveeeeeveveiiiiieeeeee 93.06 60.06
Third Quarer ..o 65.50 46.88
Fourth Quarter.......cccovvvvevveeeeieeeeeeeiees 84.56 51.19
Year Ended December 31, 2000
First Quarter (through February 2, 2000)........... ... 119.56 73.81

On February 2, 2000, the closing price per shasmuotommon stock was $111.13. We urge you to plmiairent market quotations of our

common stock before making any decision with resfzean investment in our common stock.

We intend to retain future earnings for use inlouginess, and we do not anticipate paying any dastlends on our common stock in the
foreseeable future. In addition, our indentures semor secured credit facility contain limits aur @bility to declare and pay cash dividends.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This document contains forward looking statementbiaformation that are based on the beliefs ofagament as well as assumptions made
by and information currently available to the Compa/Nhen used in this document, the words "antteijdbelieve,"” "estimate" and "expe
and similar expressions, as they relate to the @Gomypr its management, are intended to identifwéwdlooking statements. Such statem
reflect the current views of the Company with rete future events and are subject to certairsrighcertainties and assumptions. Should
one or more of these risks or uncertainties mdizgizor should underlying assumptions prove inectiractual results may vary materially
from those described in this document. For a metaikkd description of these risks, please se&k"Régtors" and "Information Regarding
Forward-Looking Statements."

Recent Developments
BusinessNet Ltd. Acquisition

On January 5, 1999, Level 3 acquired BusinessNet htleading London- based Internet service pevid a largely stock-for-stock
transaction valued at $12 million and accountedafoa purchase. After completion of certain adjesiis, the Company agreed to issue
approximately 400,000 shares of common stock artigfamillion in cash in exchange for all of theugd and outstanding shares of
BusinessNet's capital stock. Of the approximatély,d00 shares Level 3 agreed to issue in connegdithrthe acquisition, approximately
150,000 shares of its common stock have been plietgieevel 3 to secure certain indemnification gations of the former BusinessNet
stockholders. In October 1999, Level 3 releasedaqmately 42,000 shares of the pledged sharesplédge of the remaining shares will
terminate in July 2000 unless otherwise extendedyaunt to the terms of the acquisition agreemeabilities exceeded assets acquired, and
goodwill of $16 million was recognized from therisaction which is being amortized over five years.

Common Stock Offering

On March 9, 1999, the Company closed the offerin28p750,000 shares of its common stock throughtdip offering. The net proceeds
from the offering of approximately $1.5 billion taf underwriting discounts and offering expenses being used for working capital, capital
expenditures, acquisitions and other general catpgrurposes in connection with the implementatiothhe Business Plan.

Increase in Authorized Shares Outstanding

On February 25, 1999, the Company's Board of Dorscipproved an increase in the number of autttbshares of common stock from 500
million to 1 billion. On April 12, 1999, the Boaxf Directors approved a further increase in the beinof authorized shares of common stock
by 500 million to 1.5 billion. The Company's stooktrers approved the increase in authorized shaiesE99 Annual Meeting held on May
27, 1999.

Transatlantic Undersea Cable System

On April 23, 1999, Level 3 announced that it hadtcacted with Tyco Submarine Systems Ltd. to deaigeh build a transatlantic 1.28 Thps
undersea cable system from Long Island, New YorKdah Cornwall, UK. The cable system is expectetid in service by September 2000
and is expected to cost between $600 to $800 millidne total cost will depend on how the cablepgraded over time. Level 3 has
prefunded the purchase of significant amounts deusea capacity as part of the Business Plan, bytreguire additional funding depending
on the cable's ultimate structure, pre-construcges and ownership.
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European Network

Level 3 announced on April 29, 1999 that it hadfimed contracts relating to construction of Ringflts European network in France,
Belgium, the Netherlands, Germany and the Unitetgom. Ring 1, which is approximately 1,800 miled| connect Paris, Frankfurt,
Amsterdam, Brussels and London. The network is egoeto be ready for service by September 200Q Riis part of the approximately
4,750 mile intercity network. This European netwaiik be linked to the Level 3 North American intély network by the Level 3
transatlantic 1.28 Tbhps cable system currently uddgelopment, also expected to be ready for seilwycSeptember 2000.

On July 26, 1999, the Company announced two impbdavelopments of its European network build aigneements with Eurotunnel and
Alcatel. Eurotunnel will install and supply Levela8th multiple cross-Channel cables between theddnKingdom and France through the
high-security service tunnel. The first of thesblea will be completed by the end of the first qaaof 2000. Subsequent cables will be
installed to upgrade and expand the network asndnash required or when new fiber technology becoaweslable. Alcatel will design,
develop and install an undersea cable to link el 3 network between the United Kingdom and BetgiThe cable system is already ur
development and will be completed by the end ofitisé half of 2000.

COLT Cost Sharing Agreement

On May 4, 1999, Level 3 and COLT Telecom Groupgioounced an agreement to share costs for thergotst of European networks.
The agreement calls for Level 3 to share constnatbsts of COLT's planned 1,600 mile intercity i@an network linking Berlin, Cologne,
Dusseldorf, Frankfurt, Hamburg, Munich and Stuttghr return, COLT will share construction costsRifig 1 of Level 3's planned European
network.

Lucent Agreement

On June 23, 1999, the Company announced a minirounyear, $250 million strategic agreement with énticTechnologies to purchase
Lucent systems, including new software switche*softswitches." The minimum purchase commitmerstisject to certain conditions and
has the potential to grow to $1 billion over fiveays.

Under this nonexclusive agreement, Lucent will atevLevel 3 its Lucent Technologies Softswitchpéwsare switch for Internet Protocol
networks that is intended to combine the reliabgihd features that customers expect from the pshlitched telephone network with the
cost effectiveness and flexibility of Internet Rrodl technology. With the Lucent Softswitch, Le@etxpects to provide a full range of
Internet Protocol based communications service#aiin quality and ease of use to services oniticathl circuit voice networks. In additio
the companies also agreed to collaborate on fetihancements of softswitches and gateway produstspport next-generation broadband
services for business and consumers that will coenbigh-quality voice and video communications witternet-style web data services.

6% Convertible Subordinated Notes

In September 1999, the Company closed the offafr&823 million aggregate principal amount of i# 6onvertible subordinated notes due
2009. The net proceeds from the offering of apprately $798 million, after underwriting discountsdaoffering expenses, are being usec
working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitiansl other general corporate purposes in connegfithrithe implementation of the Business
Plan.

Senior Secured Credit Facility

On September 30, 1999, the Company entered irgoiarssecured credit facility in the aggregate gpal amount of $1.375 billion. The
facility is comprised of a senior secured revolvangdit facility in the
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amount of $650 million and a two-tranche senioused term loan facility aggregating $725 milliort Becember 31, 1999 the Company had
$475 million in outstanding aggregate borrowingdenthe two-tranche secured term loan facility. Tawglity is sometimes referred to in this
prospectus supplement as the senior secured taetity.

(3)Voice/SM/

During December 1999, Level 3 commercially launct@® oice, its Internet Protocol long distance ssxywhich utilizes softswitch
technology. This long distance service is curreatigilable in 10 markets. The Company expects ¢inbeommercial testing of some featu
associated with local service, such as caller ticermail and call forwarding, during the first gigst of 2000. Customers access the (3)Voice
long distance service by using existing telephanémment and dialing procedures.

Northern Asia Undersea Cable System

On January 24, 2000, Level 3 announced its intanticdevelop and construct a 2.56 Thps Northeria Asdersea cable system initially
connecting Hong Kong and Tokyo. This connectioexgected to be in service by the end of the seqoader of 2001.

Expansion of Business Plan

On January 24, 2000, the Company announced thesixpeof its business plan to increase the amdugateway space it intends to secure
to approximately 6.5 million square feet. LevellBrently has secured approximately 3.4 million sguaet of gateway space. We have
completed the buildout of approximately 1.3 millisgquare feet of this space.

Recent Accounting Developments

Effective July 1, 1999, the Financial Accountingi&tards Board, or the FASB, issued Interpretation48, "Real Estate Sales, an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 66." Certaitesand long-term right-tase agreements of dark fiber and capacity entatedafter Jun:
30, 1999 are required to be accounted for in theesamanner as sales of real estate with propertyowepnents or integral equipment. Failure
to satisfy the requirements of the Interpretatiath nesult in the deferral of revenue recognitian these contracts. The adoption of this
Interpretation does not have a current effect enxGbmpany's cash flows. Accounting practice andange with respect to the accounting
treatment of these transactions is evolving. Argngjes in the accounting treatment could affectting the Company accounts for revenue
and expenses associated with these agreements furttine.

Results of Operations

In late 1997, the Company announced a plan to &sersubstantially its information services busiresbto expand the range of services it
offers by building an advanced, international, lfdes based communications network based on letéPnotocol technology. Since the
Business Plan represents a significant expansitimeo€ompany's communications and information ses/business, the Company does not
believe that the Company's financial condition eeglilts of operations for prior periods will seagea meaningful indication of the
Company's future financial condition or resultopérations. The Company expects to incur substargtaperating losses for the foresee:
future and it may not be able to achieve or susiperating profitability in the future.

Fourth Quarter Financial Highlights

Communications and Information Services Revenuen@onications and information services revenuetserthree months ended December
31, 1999 was $121 million, a 188 percent increase the $42 million of revenue for the three morehded December 31, 1998. The year-
over-year increase was a result of
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significant growth in the communications busingssof December 31, 1999, the Company was offeramgraunications services in 27 U.S.
markets and four European markets.

On October 21, 1999, Level 3 announced that itreadhed an agreement with Bell Atlantic Corporathuat established new reciprocal
compensation rates between the two local cariiieciided in communications revenue for the quasias $16 million attributable to
reciprocal compensation. This includes revenueldfillion from the settlement of all outstandirggiprocal compensation billing issues
through September 1999 together with paymentsifiedtminutes during the quarter.

Also included in communications revenue for thertpravas $26 million of revenue from both intercityd local dark fiber contracts.
Approximately 800 miles of intercity dark fiber veedelivered to customers during the quarter, aleitiy portions of several metropolitan
networks.

Other Revenue. Other revenue of $52 million forftheth quarter included $49 million from coal nmigj a slight decrease from fourth
quarter 1998 coal mining revenue of $50 million.pkeviously disclosed, 1999 coal revenue was apmately 10 percent less than 1998 «
annual revenue due to reduced shipments undenéngeoal contracts in 1999. Full year 1999 coeéneie was $207 million versus $228
million in 1998.

Cost of Revenue. The cost of revenue for the foguttrter 1999 was $117 million. This represent aércent increase over the fourth
quarter 1998 cost of revenue of $61 million. Thisrease was primarily due to the continued expareial acceleration of the Business Plan
for the communications business.

Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and eimation expenses for the fourth quarter were §iflBon, a 109 percent increase over
the fourth quarter 1998 depreciation and amortiratixpenses of $35 million. These charges reflecsignificant increase in capital spenc
for growth of the communications business.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. 8gllgeneral and administrative (SG&A) expensesHeruarter were $168 million. This
represents a 44 percent increase over the fouettiegquL998 SG&A expenses of $117 million. The Conypadded over 300 employees to the
communications business during the quarter. Trad tmtmber of all Level 3 employees at the end efgharter was approximately 3,850.

The Company recognized $40 million in stock basadmensation expense during the quarter. The mgjofrithis expense is due to Level 3's
Outperform Stock Option program (OSO). Under thésmpOSOs are issued to all employees quarterli thie exercise price indexed to the
performance of the Standard & Poors (S&P) 500 Indéis program directly aligns management's anck$tolders' interests by basing stock
option value on the Company's ability to outperfahm S&P 500. This is a non-cash expense, accotiotéa accordance with SFAS No.
123, "Accounting For Stock-Based Compensation.”

Capital Expenditures. Capital expenditures for prop plant and equipment were $1.3 billion for therter. The majority of the spending
was for construction of the U.S. and European aitienetworks, certain local networks in the U.8d&urope, and the transatlantic cable
network. Capital expenditures for 1999 were $3l4obi This acceleration in spending is a resulfasfter than expected completion of
network construction.

Third Quarter 1999 vs. Third Quarter 1998

The following discussion should be read in conjiorctvith the Company's consolidated condensed fimhistatements (including the notes
thereto) included elsewhere herein.
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Revenue. Revenue for the quarters ended Septefipisr@immarized as follows (in millions):

1999 1998
Communications and Information Services............ ... $69$37
Coal MiNING .ovvviiiiiiiiiiee e i, 60 63
(1 T 5 6

$134 $106

Communications and information services revenudhferthree months ended September 30, 1999 inct&886 compared to the same pe

in 1998. New products which the Company began ioiflein late 1998 and early 1999, including priviéae, colocation and managed modem
services, provided $36 million of revenue for tlenenunications segment in 1999. In 1998, commurdnatrevenue of $8 million was
directly attributable to XCOM which was acquiredAipril 1998. A significant portion of XCOM's reveaus attributable to reciprocal
compensation agreements with Bell Atlantic. Thege@ments require the company originating a calbtopensate the company terminating
the call. The Federal Communication Commission RBE, has been considering whether local carrierghbligated to pay compensation to
each other for the transport and termination didal Internet service providers when a local safilaced from an end-user of one carrier to
an Internet service provider served by the compdtinal exchange carrier. In 1999, the FCC deteshihat it had no rule addressing inter-
carrier compensation for these calls. The FCC r@kmsed for comment alternative federal rulesotcegh compensation for these calls in the
future. If state commissions, the FCC or the codetermine that inter-carrier compensation doesappty, carriers, including the Company,
may be unable to recover their costs or will be pensated at a significantly lower rate and mayeeiired to refund amounts previously
received. In May 1999, the Massachusetts Departofd@Ptiblic Utilities ruled that Bell Atlantic wasrlonger required to pay the established
reciprocal compensation rates for certain servidesa result, Level 3 elected, effective at theiteigg of the second quarter of 1999, not to
recognize this revenue source until these unceiktaimere resolved. Bell Atlantic also notified tiempany that it would escrow all amounts
due the Company under the reciprocal compensatjigeaents until the issue was resolved. The Compzathed a tentative agreement
Bell Atlantic in October 1999. The agreement esshlels new inter-carrier or reciprocal compensatites between the two carriers and
assures that the Company will be paid for theitrétfterminates from Bell Atlantic. As part of tlegreement, the Company and Bell Atlantic
have also settled past disputes over reciprocapeosation billing issues. The implementation ofribes rate structure and the reciprocal
compensation billing settlements are contingennugartain conditions including approval by releveegulatory authorities. Revenue
attributable to the Bell Atlantic settlement agrestwill not be recognized until the uncertaintiekated to the regulatory approvals have |
resolved.

Revenue for the computer outsourcing and systetagration businesses increased 6% and 23% to $lidmand $16 million, respectively.
The growth for the computer outsourcing businesdtifoutable to additional services provided tgsgmng customers while the increase in
system integration revenue is due to applicatiasaurcing work performed for new clients.

Coal mining revenue decreased $3 million, or 5% éthird quarter of 1999 compared to the samegdeni 1998. This decrease is primarily
due to the expiration of a long-term coal continct998. The expiration of these contracts are ebgukto result in a 10% decline in coal
revenues in 1999. Partially offsetting this declivees an increase in shipments taken by CommonwEdigon Company. Commonwealth is
obligated to purchase annually, minimum amounisoal; however, it is Commonwealth's option as temwthe coal will be purchased.

If current market conditions continue, the Compuwiilyexperience a significant decline in coal reuerand earnings beginning in 2001 as
delivery requirements under long-term contractdide@s additional long-term contracts begin toiexp

Other revenue is primarily attributable to a pramtowned toll road in Southern California.
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Cost of Revenue. Cost of revenue increased 113P898 to $100 million from $47 million in 1998. Thiscrease was primarily due to the
continued expansion of the communications and im&tion services businesses. Cost of revenue fardhmemunications business is expected
to increase substantially in the future as the Camgontinues to increase the number of marketsioh it offers services and the products
available in each of those markets. The cost afmae for the information services business wasistam with the corresponding increase in
revenue. The cost of revenue for the coal busirsssa,percentage of revenue, increased approxinZ#edue to the expiration of the higher
margin long-term contract in 1998.

Depreciation and Amortization Expense. Depreciasinod amortization expense increased to $63 millick099 from $15 million in 1998.
The commencement of operations in 26 U.S. and 4fg&an markets and the completion of the initiaaittestion of 17 local networks in the
second half of 1998 and 1999 resulted in the higeereciation expense in 1999. In addition, theréimadion of goodwill attributable to the
acquisitions of GeoNet, BusinessNet and othersittéd to the higher depreciation and amortizaéigpense in 1999.

Selling, General, and Administrative Expenses.iggligeneral and administrative expenses incresigmdficantly in 1999 to $178 million
from $96 million in 1998 primarily due to the castactivities associated with the expanding comrmaitidns business. The Company
incurred incremental compensation and travel dostthe substantial number of new employees thet ieeen hired to implement the
Business Plan. The total number of employees o€tirapany increased to approximately 3,600 at Sdme0, 1999. Professional fees and
other development costs associated with the Con'palgns to expand services offered in the U.Sgfi@iand Asia, consulting fees to
develop and implement the Company's business sugystems, and advertising, marketing and othdéingatosts for the Company's new
Internet Protocol products and services also irsa@aelling, general and administrative expenseaddition to the costs to expand the
communications and information services busineshesCompany recorded $39 million of non- cash cemsation expense in the third
quarter of 1999 under SFAS No. 123 related to grahstock options and warrants. General and adinittive costs are expected to increase
significantly in future periods as the Company amms to implement the Business Plan.

EBITDA. EBITDA, as defined by the Company, consist®arnings (losses) before interest, income tad@sreciation, amortization, non-
cash operating expenses (including stock-based ensation and in-process research and developmarges) and other non-operating
income or expenses. EBITDA was $(25) million in 82hd $(105) million in 1999. The primary reasontfee decrease between periods is
the significant increase in cost of revenue anlihgglgeneral and administrative expenses, dest@beve, incurred in connection with the
implementation of the Company's Business Plan. ERITs commonly used in the communications industranalyze companies on the
basis of operating performance. EBITDA, howeveguth not be considered an alternative to operaiinget income as an indicator of the
performance of the Company's businesses, or aseainadive to cash flows from operating activitesa measure of liquidity, in each case
determined in accordance with generally acceptedwating principles. See "Consolidated Condensate®ients of Cash Flows."

Interest Income. Interest income decreased 4% % 1® $51 million from $53 million in 1998. The Cpany's average cash, cash equiva
and marketable securities balance increased gliffotih approximately $3.7 billion during the thigdiarter of 1998 to approximately $3.9
billion during the third quarter of 1999. Howevdre weighted average yield for the Company's pliotfitecreased by approximately 50 basis
points in 1999 primarily due to the funds beingdsted in shorter term treasury securities. Penditigation of the cash equivalents and
marketable securities in implementing the Busiitas, the Company intends to invest the funds pilynim government and governmental
agency securities. This investment strategy wilate lower yields on the funds, but is expectetketiuce the risk to principal in the short
term prior to using the funds in implementing thesBiess Plan.

Interest Expense, Net. Interest expense, net degddeom $46 million in 1998 to $34 million in 199bhis decrease is a direct result of
capitalized interest for network construction andibhess support systems increasing from $5 miftoorthe three months ended September
30, 1998 to $35 million for the corresponding

S-24



period in 1999. Interest costs on the Company'stanting debt increased due to the issuance inrileael1998 of $834 million aggregate
principal amount at maturity of 10.5% senior distomotes due 2008 and the $823 million of 6% sulnaetdd convertible notes due 2009
issued in September 1999. The amortization of dsliance costs associated with the senior disecmias and 6% convertible subordinated
notes also increased interest expense in 199%9ektteosts will continue to increase due to théosesecured credit facility entered into by the
Company on September 30, 1999.

Gain on Equity Investee Stock Transactions. Gaieauity investee stock transactions was $5 miliioh999. In the third quarters of 1998
and 1999 RCN issued stock for certain acquisitishih diluted the Company's ownership of RCN buetéased its proportionate share of
RCN's net assets. The increase in the Company®egiionate share of RCN's net assets resultegim-sax gain of $5 million for the
Company in the third quarter of 1999. In 1998, @wmpany recognized a $4 million gain in the thitcuder related to RCN stock activity.

Other Expense, Net. Other expense, net increast@dia to $35 million from $31 million. Other expensonsists primarily of the Company's
share of losses incurred by the Company's equithodenvestees, principally RCN. RCN is incurringrsficant costs in developing its
business plan including the acquisitions of seviertarnet service providers. The Company recordtrdillion of equity losses attributable

to RCN in the third quarter of 1999, as compare$i2® million in the third quarter of 1998. In 1998e Company elected to discontinue its
funding of Gateway Opportunity Fund, LP, or Gatewalich provided venture capital to developing bhesses. The Company recorded
losses of $11 million in the third quarter of 198&eflect Level 3's equity in losses of the ungied businesses of Gateway. Also included in
other expense are equity earnings in Commonwealdphone Enterprises, Inc., and realized gaindaase's on the sale of other assets each
not individually significant to the Company's rdswf operations.

Income Tax (Provision) Benefit. Income tax bengfil 998 and 1999 differs from the statutory rat@%% primarily due to losses incurred by
the Company's international subsidiaries which oabe included in the consolidated U.S. federalrretnon-deductible goodwill
amortization expense and state income taxes.

Nine Months 1999 vs. Nine Months 1998

Revenue. Revenue for the nine months ended Sept&@pis summarized as follows (in millions):

1999 1998
Communications and Information Services............ ... $168 $102
Coal MiNING. . e, 158 178
(1 =T 16 16

$342 $296

Communications and information services revenuecgeed from $102 million for the nine months en8egdtember 30, 1998 to $168 milli
for the nine months ended September 30, 1999. 1989 the Massachusetts Department of Publictidslruled that Bell Atlantic was no
longer required to pay the established reciprocaimensation rates for certain services. As a reselel 3 elected not to recognize additic
revenue, beginning in the second quarter, frometlagseements until the uncertainties are resolviee.Company reached a tentative
agreement with Bell Atlantic in October 1999. Tligeement establishes new inter-carrier or recipromapensation rates between the two
carriers and assures that the Company will be foaithe traffic it terminates from Bell Atlantic.9%part of the agreement, the Company and
Bell Atlantic have also settled past disputes aeeiprocal compensation billing issues. The impletagon of the new rate structure and
reciprocal compensation billing settlement are i@@nt upon certain conditions including approwarélevant regulatory authorities.
Revenue attributable to the Bell Atlantic settletne@greement will not be recognized until the uraiaties related to the regulatory approvals
have been resolved.

Systems integration revenue increased 14% to $#@®min 1999. Revenue for the computer outsourdinginess increased 11% to $51
million in 1999. Revenue attributable to new custosrand additional services for existing custontext¢o the increase in computer
outsourcing and systems integration revenue.
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Mining revenue in 1999 decreased to $158 milli@mfr$178 million in 1998 due to timing of shipmetgken by Commonwealth. The
purchase agreement with Commonwealth requiresriranum amounts of coal must be purchased; howéveoges not stipulate when the
coal must be purchased. In addition, the expiratioa long-term contract in late 1998 will resuitan approximate 10% decline in 1999 coal
sales from 1998 levels.

Other revenue was consistent with 1998, and isaniynattributable to a privately owned toll road$outhern California.

Cost of Revenue. Cost of revenue increased $10Bmdr 76% to $243 million in 1999 as a resultldé expanding communications
business. In 1999 network expenses were $107 mélsocompared to $4 million in the prior year. Th@ease in costs is primarily
attributable to the XCOM and GeoNet acquisitiohg, ¢osts associated with our leased intercity nisvieases and costs attributable to the
development and introduction of products the Corgmeygan offering in late 1998 and 1999. The cosewénue, as a percentage of revenue,
for the information services business increasegh#ii for the nine months ended September 30, T@®ared to the same period in 1998.
The increase is primarily due to the costs inculngethe systems integration segment to transitiomfYear 2000 services to systems and
software reengineering for Internet Protocol ralapplications. The cost of revenue for the coalrmss as a percentage of revenue,
increased due to the expiration of the high malamg-term contract in 1998.

Depreciation and Amortization Expense. Depreciaéiopense increased from $31 million in 1998 to $dfiion in 1999. The significant
increase in the amount of assets placed in seduidag the last half of 1998 and first nine monthd 999 for the communications business
resulted in the increase in depreciation expenise.atquisitions of XCOM, GeoNet and BusinessNd9i®8 and 1999 resulted in goodwill
amortization increasing to $26 million in 1999.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Sglligeneral and administrative expenses increageifisantly to $460 million in 1999
from $199 million in 1998 primarily due to the cadtactivities associated with the expanding comicefions business. Compensation, tr:
and facilities costs increased substantially duf¢cadditional employees that have been hirethpdeément the Business Plan. The total
number of employees of the Company increased tooappately 3,600 at September 30, 1999. Profeskiera, including legal costs
associated with obtaining licenses, agreementsemimhical facilities and other development costoaiated with the Company's plans to
expand services offered in U.S., European and Asiarkets, consulting fees incurred to develop amalément the Company's business
support systems, and advertising, marketing anerathlling costs contributed to higher selling, gra@hand administrative expenses. In
addition, the Company recorded $86 million of nastt compensation in the first nine months of 19®%®kpenses recognized under SFAS
No. 123 related to grants of stock options and avgs;, up from $23 million in 1998. As the Compaowptinues to implement the Busine
Plan, general and administrative costs are expégatedntinue to increase significantly.

Write-off of In-Process Research and DevelopmenitéAdff of in-process research and developmer&3sf million in 1998 was the portion
of the purchase price allocated to the telephoh&ark-to-Internet Protocol network bridge technolarquired by the Company in the
XCOM transaction and was estimated through formahiation. In accordance with generally accepte@daaing principles, the $30 million
was taken as a nondeductible charge against earininige second quarter of 1998.

EBITDA. EBITDA decreased from $(18) million in 1998 $(275) million in 1999. The primary reason foe decrease between periods i<
significant increase in cost of revenue and sellggneral and administrative expenses, describedeaincurred in connection with the
implementation of the Business Plan.

Interest Income. Interest income increased subatyrfrom $124 million in 1998 to $158 million ih999 primarily as a function of the
Company's increasing average cash, cash equivaledtsarketable securities balances. The averaebadance increased from
approximately $2.9 billion during the first nine nmths of 1998 to approximately $4 billion during first nine months of 1999. Yields on the
portfolio, however, have
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declined slightly from 1998. The accelerating Bes# Plan has required the Company to shorten #rage term of treasury securities in
which it invests in 1999. Pending utilization oétbash equivalents and marketable securities ifeimgnting the Business Plan, the Comg
intends to invest the funds primarily in governmand governmental agency securities. This investistesitegy will provide lower yields on
the funds, but is expected to reduce the riskitcgral in the short term prior to using the furidsmplementing the Business Plan.

Interest Expense, Net. Interest expense, net isece$46 million to $132 million in 1999 due to twmpletion of the offering of $2 billion
aggregate principal amount of 9.125% senior notres2008 in April 1998, $834 million aggregate pijrad amount at maturity of 10.5%
senior discount notes due 2008 offered in the Foguarter of 1998 and the 6% convertible subordohabtes due 2009 issued in September
1999. The amortization of the related debt issu@osts also contributed to the increased intergmrese in 1999. The Company capitalized
$65 million and $6 million of interest expense @twork construction and business support systertieifirst nine months of 1999 and 19
respectively.

Gain on Equity Investee Stock Transactions. Gaieauity investee stock transactions increased 16 $dillion during the first nine months
of 1999. RCN issued stock in a public offering #mdcertain transactions which diluted the Compsuayinership of RCN from 41% at
December 31, 1998 to 35% at September 30, 1999inthease in the Company's proportionate shareGN'Rnet assets as a result of these
transactions resulted in a pre-tax gain of $11@ionifrom subsidiary stock sales for the Companthiafirst nine months of 1999. The
Company recognized $25 million of gains for sima#wck transactions of RCN in 1998.

Other Expense, Net. Other expense, net decreagg&btaillion in 1999 from $78 million in 1998. Othexpense consists of the Company's
share of losses incurred by the Company's equithadenvestees, primarily RCN. RCN is incurringrsfgcant costs in developing its
business plan including the acquisitions of seviertarnet service providers. The Company recorddrdillion of equity losses attributable
to RCN in the first nine months of 1999, as com@dadce$75 million in the first nine months of 199e Company also sold 1.2 million
shares of Burlington Resources common stock, ieguh a pre-tax gain of $17 million for the Compan 1999. In 1998, the Company
elected to discontinue its funding of Gateway, wpcovided venture capital to developing businesEee Company recorded losses of $18
million in 1998 to reflect Level 3's equity in lessof the underlying businesses of Gateway. Eaatpings of Commonwealth Telephone
Enterprises, Inc. and gains on the dispositiontloéinassets were not individually significant ie first nine months of 1999 or 1998.

Income Tax (Provision) Benefit. Income tax benefil 998 and 1999 differs from the statutory rat@s% primarily due to losses incurred by
the Company's international subsidiaries which oabe included in the consolidated U.S. federalrretnon-deductible goodwiill
amortization expense and state income taxes. Toene tax benefit in 1998 also differs from thegiaty rate due to the $30 million non-
deductible write-off of the research and developneessts acquired in the XCOM acquisition.

Discontinued Operations. Discontinued operatioshithes the one-time gain of $608 million recognimpdn the distribution of the
Construction Group to former Class C stockholder$farch 31, 1998. Also included in discontinuedmagiens is the gain, net of tax, of $:
million from the Company's sale of its energy as$etMidAmerican on January 2, 1998.

1998 vs. 1997

In 1998 the Company's Board of Directors changegtL®'s fiscal year end from the last Saturday @c@mnber to a calendar year end. The
additional five days in the 1998 fiscal year aftected in the period ended December 31, 1998.8tere 52 weeks in fiscal years 1997 and
1996.

S-27



Revenue. Revenue for the years ended DecembeB88,ahd December 27, 1997 is summarized as fol{owsillions):

1998 1997
Communications and Information Services............ ... $144 $ 95
Coal MiNING. v 228 222
(1 T 20 15

$392 $332

Communications and Information Services revenueeamed 52% in 1998. The Internet Protocol busigessrated revenues of
approximately $24 million in 1998, of which $22 hah is attributable to the acquisition of XCOM. pyximately 87% of XCOM's revenue
is attributable to reciprocal compensation agregseith Bell Atlantic. These agreements requiredbmpany originating a call to
compensate the company terminating the call. Th@ R&s been considering whether local carriers bligaied to pay compensation to each
other for the transport and termination of call$rti@rnet service providers when a local call ecpgld from an end user of one carrier to an
Internet service provider served by the competingll exchange carrier. Recently, the FCC determiin&git had no rule addressing inter-
carrier compensation for these calls. In the alesefia federal rule, the FCC determined that itldawt be unreasonable for a state
commission, in some circumstances, to require paywfecompensation for these calls. The FCC allaesed for comment alternative fed
rules to govern compensation for these calls irfuhgre. If state commissions, the FCC or the cdddtermine that integarrier compensatic
does not apply, carriers, including us, may be lenabrecover their costs or will be compensatea significantly lower rate and may be
required to refund amounts previously received! Baantic has notified the Company that it will lscrowing all amounts due the Company
under the reciprocal compensation agreementsthetissue is resolved. An unfavorable resolutiothisf matter may have a material adverse
effect on the Company's communications revenues.

The computer outsourcing business experiencedfigigni revenue growth in 1998. The inclusion otilh year of revenue from customers

which began service in 1997 and an increase imrevéom the existing customer base, resulted?f% increase in outsourcing revenue.
The systems integration business experienced ai2di%ase in revenue in 1998. This increase is pifynattributable to new acquisitions a
a strong demand for Year 2000 renovation durinditeesix months of 1998 and other systems reegging services.

Revenue from coal mines increased slightly in 19g8increase in alternate source coal sales to Camarealth was partially offset by the
expiration of a long-term contract also with Commvealth. In 1998 the Company and Commonwealth antetigegr contract to allow
Commonwealth to accelerate delivery of coal. Thermaed contract requires Commonwealth to take dgliekits year 2001 coal
commitments in 1998, 1999 and 2000. Of the 2001nsidments, 50% was taken in 1998 and 25% will betaik both 1999 and 2000. The
expiration of the long-term contract was partiaffset by contracts with new customers in 199&uifrent market conditions continue, the
Company will experience a significant decline imlo@venue and earnings over the next several wsadglivery requirements under long-
term contracts decline as these long-term contlagm to expire.

Other revenue is primarily attributable to CPT@ twner operator of the SR91 toll road in south&atifornia. Revenues increased in 1998
primarily due to higher traffic counts and increasetoll rates.

Cost of Revenue. Operating expenses increased 2286#163 million in 1997 to $199 million in 1998imiarily due to expenses incurred in
connection with the Business Plan to expand thenwonications and information services businessesrading expenses related to
communications and information services revenued®B were $98 million up from $62 million in 1997osts attributable to the XCOM and
GeoNet acquisitions as well as costs associatddtit Frontier lease are responsible for an $1llomilncrease in operating expenses.
Operating expenses for the computer outsourcingsgsigms integration business increased $5 mitliamh$20 million in 1998, respectively.
The increase in the computer outsourcing operating
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expenses is primarily attributable to the startapemses associated with the second data centemipd, Arizona. Higher than expected costs
for Year 2000 work resulted in the significant isase in systems integration operating expense398. The Company also incurred expel

to refocus its efforts away from Year 2000 servigesystems and software reengineering for IntePnetocol related applications. Operating
expenses related to coal mining were consisteiit thié prior year.

Depreciation and Amortization Expense. Depreciasind amortization expense has increased $46 mili@n $20 million in 1997. The
primary reason for this increase is the $910 nmillod capital expenditures in 1998, of which appnasdely $481 million was placed in service
in 1998. The majority of the assets placed in seraire associated with 15 gateway sites constréictéde expansion of the communications
business. Also contributing to the increase wasid@eciation and amortization on equipment purethdsr computer outsourcing contracts,
assets acquired through business acquisitionsd8 afd the amortization of goodwill related to thasquisitions. Depreciation and
amortization will continue to increase in 1999 dditional facilities are placed in service.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Sgllgeneral and administrative expenses increaz2@l illion to $332 million in 1998.
This increase of 213% from 1997 is primarily attitdble to the implementation of the Business Rtaiuding additional communications
and information services personnel. The total nunsbeommunications and information services emeksyat December 31, 1998 was
approximately 2,200 as compared to approximat€l9d at December 27, 1997. Cash compensation imtlmdexpense increased from $14
million in 1997 to $51 million in 1998. In additiop$39 million of non-cash stock based compensatiqrense was recorded in 1998, of which
$24 million was related to the Company's Outperf@taock Option program introduced in the second tguaf 1998. These costs are
accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 123.dagibnal fees increased $74 million in 1998 primdor legal costs associated with
obtaining licenses, agreements and technical fiasiland other development costs associated veittirgy to offer services in U.S. cities. Also
included in professional fees is third party sofevand associated development costs incurred ieloi@wng integrated business support
systems. These expenses were recorded in accondghabe AICPA Statement of Position 98-1, "Accting for the Costs of Computer
Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Usdiijol specifically identifies those costs that skldu expensed or capitalized for intern
developed software. Selling, general and admirtisg@xpenses are expected to increase significanfuture periods as the Company
continues to implement the Business Plan.

Write-off of In-process Research and Developmentit@Abff of in process research and development$@smillion in 1998. On April 23,
1998 the Company completed the acquisition of XC@Mrivately held company that developed certammmnents necessary for the
Company to develop an interface between its IntéPnatocol based network and the existing publitgved telephone network.

The Company accounted for this transaction, vaatekl 54 million, as a purchase. Of the total puseharice, $115 million was originally
allocated to acquired in-process research and oewadnt, and was taken as a nondeductible charggrbings in the second quarter of 1998.
In October 1998, the SEC issued new guidelinegdbring acquired research and development whiclappéed retroactively. Consequently,
the Company has reduced the charge by $85 millibich also increases goodwill by a correspondingam Goodwill associated with the
XCOM transaction is being amortized over a 5 yeaiqul.

The Company believes that its resulting chargeéguired research and development conforms toE@EsSexpressed guideline and
methodologies. However, no assurances can be thaethe SEC will not require additional adjustnsent

EBITDA. EBITDA, as defined by the Company, consist®arnings (losses) before interest, income tad@gsreciation, amortization, non-
cash operating expenses (including stock-based ensapion and in process research and developmarged) and other non-operating
income or expenses. The Company excludes non-caspensation due to its adoption of the expensegrétion provisions of SFAS No.
123. EBITDA decreased from $84 million in 1997 {@@0) million in 1998 primarily due to the signifiot increase

S-29



in general and administrative expenses, describedea incurred in connection with the implementatid the Company's Business Plan.
EBITDA is commonly used in the communications irtdyi$o analyze companies on the basis of opergé@rprmance. EBITDA is not
intended to represent cash flow for the periods."@®nsolidated Statements of Cash Flows."

Interest Income. Interest income increased sigifly in 1998 to $173 million from $33 million iMMA7 as the Company's cash, cash
equivalents and marketable securities balancesased to $3.7 billion at December 31, 1998 fronb#nélion at December 27, 1997 as a
result of the two debt offerings and the proceedsifthe sale of its energy business. Pending atitn of the cash equivalents and market
securities in implementing the Business Plan, tbmgany intends to continue investing the funds grilyin government and governmental
agency securities. This investment strategy wilate lower yields on the funds, but is expectetketiuce the risk to principal in the short
term prior to using the funds in implementing thesBiess Plan.

Interest Expense, Net. Interest expense, net isecesignificantly from $15 million in 1997 to $184#llion in 1998 due to the completion of
the offering of $2 billion aggregate principal ambof 9 1/8% senior notes due 2008 issued on 2&;l1998 and $834 million aggregate
principal amount at maturity of 10 1/2% senior disat notes due 2008 issued on December 2, 1998aribetization of a portion of the $79
million of debt issuance costs associated withs#r@or notes and senior discount notes also inedeiaserest expense in 1998. The Company
capitalized $15 million of interest expense on r@kaconstruction and business support systems deweint projects in 1998.

Equity Losses in Unconsolidated Subsidiaries. Bgoises in unconsolidated subsidiaries increas&d 32 million in 1998 primarily due to
the equity losses attributable to RCN. RCN is #rgest single source, facilities based provideramfimunications services to the residential
markets primarily in the Northeast and the largegtonal Internet service provider in the NortheB&EN is also incurring significant costs in
developing its business plan including the acqoisét of several Internet service providers. RCbsés increased from $52 million in 199
$205 million in 1998. The Company's proportiondtars of these losses, including goodwill amort@ativas $92 million and $26 million in
1998 and 1997, respectively. In 1998, the Compéauted to discontinue its funding of Gateway, whichvided venture capital to
developing businesses. The Company recorded lo$&28 million and $15 million in 1998 and 1997spectively, to reflect Level 3's equity
in losses of the underlying businesses of Gatewky included in equity losses are equity earniog€ommonwealth, a Pennsylvania public
utility providing telephone services, and equitgdes of Cable Michigan prior to its sale in 1998akle television operator in the State of
Michigan.

Gain on Equity Investee Stock Transactions. Gaieauity investee stock transactions was $62 miiiioh998. During 1998, RCN issued
stock in a public offering and for certain acquisis. These transactions decreased the Compangérsip in RCN from 48% in 1997 to
41% in 1998, but increased its proportionate shaRCN's net assets. The Company recorded a prgaiaxof approximately $62 million to
reflect this increase in value.

Gains on Sale of Assets. Gains on sale of assatsaised significantly in 1998 due to the sale dil€Michigan to Avalon Cable of Michige
Inc. in November 1998. The Company recognized a gaapproximately $90 million from the cash fooat transaction. Also included in
gains on the disposal of assets are $8 million&inrhillion of gains on the disposal of propertyamtiand equipment in 1998 and 1997
respectively, and $9 million of gains on the sdlenarketable securities in both periods.

Income Tax (Provision) Benefit. Income tax (prowisi benefit differs from the expected statutore raft 35% primarily due to the
nondeductible writesff of the in process research and developmens@kicated in the XCOM transaction, losses in@ibg the Company
international subsidiaries which cannot be incluthethe consolidated U.S. federal income tax reaurd state income taxes. In 1997 the
effective rate was less than the expected statuseyprimarily due to prior year tax adjustmeptstially offset by the effect of nondeducti
compensation expense associated with the conves$itie information services option and SAR planthe Level 3 Stock Plan.
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Discontinued Operations. Discontinued operatioshithes the one-time gain of $608 million recognimpdn the distribution of the
Construction Group to former Class C stockholder$farch 31, 1998. Also included in discontinuedmagiens is the gain, net of tax, of $:
million from the Company's sale of its energy assetMidAmerican on January 2, 1998.

Financial Condition--December 31, 1999

The Company's working capital decreased approximn&@7 billion during 1999 from $3.5 billion at Pember 31, 1998 to $2.8 billion at
December 31, 1999. The decrease was primarily atheetcapital expenditures and operating expemsesred to implement the Business
Plan. Partially offsetting these expenditures vibesproceeds from the $1.5 billion equity offercampleted in March 1999, the $823 million
offering of 6% convertible subordinated notes drel$475 million proceeds from the $1.375 billionise secured credit facility. Both the €
convertible subordinated note offering and the@esécured credit facility were completed in Sefteni999.

Cash provided by continuing operations increaseih fapproximately $170 million in 1998 to approxielgt$450 million in 1999 primarily
due to the changes in components of working cagitdlan increase in interest income. Interest icimtreased in 1999 as a result of the
proceeds received from the 9 1/8% senior note4/2% senior discount notes, 6% convertible subaitdith notes, senior secured credit
facility and the March 1999 equity offering. Theigase in cash provided by interest income wasafigroffset by the semi- annual payment
of interest on the 9 1/8% senior notes. The initikdrest payment on the 6% convertible subordahatges is due in 2000. Interest payments
on amounts outstanding under the senior securelit &aeility are due periodically based on the Camys selection of alternative base rate
and LIBOR loans. A commitment fee on the unusediquus of the senior secured credit facility is palgaon the last business day of each
calendar quarter. Interest payments on the 10 &&ior discount notes are deferred until 2004.nengase in the costs paid to implement
Business Plan also reduced cash provided by congjraperations.

Investing activities include the purchase and ebkgpproximately $4.6 billion and $5.2 billion, pextively, of marketable securities. The
Company also incurred costs of $3.4 billion foritapexpenditures, primarily for the expanding coumitations business.

Financing sources in 1999 consisted primarily efitlet proceeds of $451 million from the senior sedweredit facility, net proceeds of $798
million from the offering of $823 million aggregapeincipal amount of 6% convertible subordinatetesalue 2009, net proceeds of $1.5
billion from the issuance of 28.75 million sharégommon stock and the exercise of Company stotibpfor $22 million. The Company
also repaid long-term debt of approximately $6 ionllduring 1999.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Since late 1997, the Company has substantiallyased the emphasis it places on and the resowreesed to its communications and
information services business. The Company has amed the implementation of a plan to become éitfasibased provider (that is, a
provider that owns or leases a substantial podfahe property, plant and equipment necessaryduige its services) of a broad range of
integrated communications services. To reach thid, ghe Company is expanding substantially thénmss of its subsidiary, PKS
Information Services, Inc. to create, through a liration of construction, purchase and leasingofiities and other assets, an advanced,
international, facilities based communications reetev The Company is designing its network basethternet Protocol technology in order
to leverage the efficiencies of this technologyptovide lower cost communications services.

The development of the Business Plan will requigaificant capital expenditures, a substantial jporof which will be incurred before any
significant related revenues from the Business Biarexpected to be realized. These expenditgsttter with the associated early opere
expenses, may result in substantial negative dpgreash flow and substantial net operating logsethe Company for the foreseeable
future.
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Although the Company believes that its cost es@sniand build-out schedule are reasonable, theladnstruction costs or the timing of the
expenditures may deviate from current estimates.Gbmpany's capital expenditures in connection thighBusiness Plan were
approximately $3.4 billion in 1999. The Companyirastes that its capital expenditures in connectigh the Business Plan will approximate
$3.5 billion in 2000. The Company's current ligtydand the agreement with INTERNEXT should be sigfit to fund the currently
committed portions of the Business Plan.

The Company currently estimates that the implentiemtaf the Business Plan, as currently contemglakeéll require between $13 and $14
billion over the 10-year period of the BusinessnPlEhe Company's ability to implement the Busirelser and meet its projected growth is
dependent upon its ability to secure substantiditadal financing in the future. The Company exgseo meet its additional capital needs
with the proceeds from credit facilities and otherrowings, including the senior secured creditlifgeentered into on September 30, 1999,
and sales or issuance of additional equity seesrii additional debt securities, including thifeohg and the other offerings. The 9 1/8%
senior notes and the 10 1/2% senior discount veées issued under indentures which permit the Compad its subsidiaries to incur
substantial amounts of debt. The senior securaditdeeility also permits the Company to incur stalmsial amounts of unsecured debt.

In addition, the Company may sell or dispose o#xg businesses or investments to fund portiotk@Business Plan. The Company may
sell or lease fiber optic capacity, or accessgednduits. The Company may not be successfuladyming sufficient cash flow, raising
sufficient debt or equity capital on terms thawill consider acceptable, or selling or leasingefiloptic capacity or access to its conduits. In
addition, proceeds from dispositions of the Compmagsets may not reflect the assets' intrinsigevéiurther, expenses may exceed the
Company's estimates and the financing needed mhigher than estimated. Failure to generate sefiiciunds may require the Company to
delay or abandon some of its future expansion peweditures, which could have a material adversecetin the implementation of the
Business Plan.

The Company may not be able to obtain such fingniéiand when it is needed and, if available, sfichncing may not be on terms
acceptable to the Company. If the Company is un@abddbtain additional financing when needed, it rhayrequired to scale back significar
its Business Plan and, depending upon cash flom ft® existing businesses, reduce the scope pfdtss and operations.

In connection with implementing the Business Plaanagement will continue reviewing the existingibesses of the Company to determine
how those businesses will complement the Compdogiss on communications and information servicet.i$ decided that an existing
business is not compatible with the communicatemms information services business and if a suithbiesr can be found, the Company may
dispose of that business.

Year 2000--December 31, 1999

Level 3 Communications, LLC. Level 3's wholly owrsubsidiary, Level 3 Communications, LLC, is a memnpany that is implementing
new technologies to provide Internal Protocol tedtbgy-based communications services to its custenidre expenses associated with Level
3 Communications, LLC's Year 2000 remediation paogdid not have a material effect on the operatisglts or financial condition of

Level 3 Communications, LLC through December 3899 here can be no assurance, however, that the20€0 problem, and any loss
incurred by any customers of Level 3 as a resulh@fYear 2000 problem, will not have a materialeade effect on Level 3 Communicatio
LLC's financial condition or results of operatianghe future.

PKSIS. PKS Information Services, Inc., or PKSISyides a wide variety of information technologywseges. PKSIS has two main lines of
business: computer outsourcing and systems integrdthe computer outsourcing business is managd®kis Computer Services LLC, or
PKSCS. The systems integration is managed by Pks&8s Integration LLC, or PKSSI.
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PKSIS derived a substantial portion of its reverinek999 from projects that its subsidiary, PKS®Inducted involving Year 2000
assessment and renovation services. This exposeSIR& potential risks that may include problemthwgiervices provided by PKSSI to its
customers and the potential claims arising unde8®lIs customer contracts. PKSSI attempts to camtbg limit its exposure to liability for
Year 2000 compliance issues. However, these cdotblimitations may not be effective.

The expenses associated with PKSIS' Year 2000tgfftid not, and the related potential effect orBPK earnings are not expected to, have a
material effect on the future operating resultfimancial condition of Level

3. There can be no assurance, however, that the2088 problem, and any loss incurred by any custerof PKSIS as a result of the Year
2000 problem, will not have a material adverseaféam Level 3's financial condition or results giesations in the future.

Costs of Year 2000 Issues. Level 3 incurred appraieély $2 million of costs in 1999. These costsarilly arise from direct costs of Level 3
employees verifying equipment and software as 2880 ready. However, Level 3 does not separatabktthe internal employee costs
incurred for its Year 2000 projects. Level 3 daesk all material costs incurred for its Year 2@00jects as well as all costs incurred by the
Year 2000 program office. Level 3 estimated theetand effort expended by its employees on Year po0jects based on an analysis of \
2000 project plans.

PKSIS incurred approximately $4 million of costsrtgplement its Year 2000 program through 1998, iandrred an additional approximat:
$4 million of costs in 1999. These costs primaaitise from direct costs of PKSCS employees workingipgrades per vendor specifications
of operating system software for PKSCS outsourcimfomers and the cost of vendor supplied operatistgms software upgrades and the
cost of additional hardware. However, PKSIS dodsseparately track the internal costs incurredtfolrear 2000 projects and does not track
the cost and time its employees spend on Year gffjects. PKSCS has estimated the time and efkpereded by its employees on Year
2000 projects based on an analysis of Year 200@girplans. Labor costs for PKSCS' Year 2000 ptsjaere estimated to be $2 million for
1998 and $1 million in 1999. Costs for software nauigs, additional equipment costs and a test syfsieRKSCS' Year 2000 projects were
estimated to be $2 million for 1998 and $3 milliarl999. Such costs are not available for PKSSkEbeitnot believed to be material. Year
2000 costs for PKSSI are believed to be substinteds than PKSCS and focus primarily on the obstvaluating and, if necessary,
upgrading network and desktop hardware and softWdre costs incurred by PKSSI for performing Ye@®@ services for its customers are
included within PKSSI's pricing for such services.

Market Risk--December 31, 1999

Level 3 is subject to market risks arising frommdes in interest rates, equity prices and foreiginange rates. The Company's exposure to
interest rate risk increased due to the $1.37®bibenior secured credit facility entered intothy Company in September 1999. As of
December 31, 1999, the Company had borrowed $4llldminder the senior secured credit facility. Amns drawn on the term loan and
revolving credit facilities bear interest at theeahate base rate or LIBOR rate plus applicableginar As the alternate base rate and LIBOR
rate fluctuate, so too will the interest expensemounts borrowed under the facilities. The Compamttinues to evaluate alternatives to
limit interest rate risk.

Level 3 continues to hold positions in certain ficlpltraded entities, primarily Commonwealth Telepke and RCN. The Company accounts
for these two investments using the equity metfid@. market value of these investments is approxitydtl.866 billion as of December 31,
1999, which is significantly higher than their géng value of $292 million. The Company does natently have plans to dispose of these
investments; however, if any such transaction cgecijthe value received for the investments woeldtfected by the market value of the
underlying stock at the time of any such transactf®20% decrease in the price of Commonwealthpgfedae and RCN stock would result in
approximately a $373 million decrease in fair masadue of these investments. The Company doesuregntly utilize financial instruments
to minimize its exposure to price fluctuations quity securities.
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The Company's Business Plan includes developingansitructing networks in Europe and Asia. As of@®aber 31, 1999, the Company |
invested significant amounts of capital in Europd will continue to expand its presence in Europe Asia in 2000. As of December 31,
1999, the Company had not utilized financial instemts to minimize its exposure to foreign currefiggtuations. The Company will
continue to analyze risk management strategiesdoae foreign currency exchange risk in the future.

The change in equity security prices is based qothetical movements and is not necessarily intlieaf the actual results that may occur.
Future earnings and losses will be affected byaadhuctuations in interest rates, equity priced &reign currency rates.
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW
History and Industry Development

Telecommunications Industry. Prior to its courtenetl breakup in 1984 (the "Divestiture"), AT&T latg monopolized the
telecommunications services in the United States ¢lvough technological developments had beguratcerit economically possible for
companies (primarily entrepreneurial enterprisegampete for segments of the communications bsisine

The present structure of the U.S. telecommunicatioarket is largely the result of the Divestituks.part of the Divestiture, seven local
exchange holding companies were created to offgicgs in geographically defined areas called LATAlse RBOCs were separated from
the long distance provider, AT&T, resulting in ttreation of two distinct market segments: localhextge and long distance. The Divestiture
provided for direct, open competition in the lorigtance segment.

The Divestiture did not provide for competitiontire local exchange market. However, several fag@nged to promote competition in the
local exchange market, including: (i) customer ge&ir an alternative to the RBOCS, also referoeds the ILECS; (ii) technological advan
in the transmission of data and video requiringagecapacity and reliability than ILEC networksrevable to accommodate; (iii) a monop
position and rate of return-based pricing structnéch provided little incentive for the ILECs tpgrade their networks; and (iv) the
significant fees, called "access charges," thaj liistance carriers were required to pay to thed& o access the ILECs' networks.

The first competitors in the local exchange mar#esignated as CAPs by the FCC, were establishi imid1980s. Most of the early CA
were entrepreneurial enterprises that operatedeldhrietworks in the central business districts afamcities in the United States where the
highest concentration of voice and data traffifoisnd. Since most states prohibited competitioridoal switched services, early CAP
services primarily consisted of providing dedicat@aswitched connections to long distance caraaslarge businesses. These connections
allowed high-volume users to avoid the relativalyhhprices charged by ILECs for dedicated, unswitcbonnections.

As CAPs proliferated during the latter part of 880s, certain federal and state regulators isauedys which favored competition and
promised to open local markets to new entrantss@elings allowed CAPs to offer a number of newises, including, in certain states, a
broad range of local exchange services, includiegllswitched services. Companies providing a coatlin of CAP and switched local
services are sometimes referred to as CLECs. Thisgmpetitive trend continued with the passagtefTelecommunications Act of 1996
(the "Telecom Act"), which provided a legal frametwdor introducing competition to local telecommeaaiions services throughout the
United States.

Over the last three years, several significantsiations have been announced representing cortsmtiad the U.S. telecom industry. Among
the ILECs, Bell Atlantic and NYNEX merged in Augu€97, Pacific Telesis Group and SBC Communicatioasged in April 1997, SBC
Communications and Ameritech merged in October 1@J%E and Bell Atlantic have proposed a merger @ WorldCom has agreed to
acquire Sprint. Long distance providers have sot@bkhhance their positions in local markets, thhotransactions such as AT&T's
acquisition of Teleport Communications Group and efe-Communications, Inc., WorldCom's mergers WS and Brooks Fiber
Properties and Qwest's proposed acquisition of WStWIrhey have also sought to otherwise improvie toepetitive positions, through
transactions such as WorldCom's merger with MCI.

Many international markets resemble that of thetéthBtates prior to the Divestiture. In many caiestrtraditional telecommunications
services have been provided through a monopolyigeovfrequently controlled by the national goveemt; such as a Post, Telegraph and
Telephone Company. In recent years, there hasd&end toward liberalization of many of these netgskparticularly in Europe. Led by the
introduction of competition in the United Kingdothe European Union mandated open competition darmiary 1998. Similar trends are
emerging, albeit more slowly, in Asia.
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Internet Industry. The Internet is a global coliectof interconnected computer networks that alloassimercial organizations, educational
institutions, government agencies and individualsdmmunicate electronically, access and sharenr#tion and conduct business. The
Internet originated with the ARPAnNet, a restrictedwork that was created in 1969 by the UnitedeStBtepartment of Defense Advanced
Research Projects Agency to provide efficient alidiole long distance data communications amongligparate computer systems used by
government-funded researchers and academic orgianizalhe networks that comprise the Internetcaraected in a variety of ways,
including by the public switched telephone netwanki by high speed, dedicated leased lines. Comiatinns on the Internet are enabled by
Internet Protocol, an inter-networking standard #reables communication across the Internet regssdif the hardware and software used.

Over time, as businesses have begun to utilizeigitetransfer and, more recently, intranet axranet services, commercial usage has
become a major component of Internet traffic. I89,%he U.S. government effectively ceased direfethding any part of the Internet
backbone. In the mid-1990s, contemporaneous wilintrease in commercial usage of the Interne¢vatgpe of provider called an ISP
became more prevalent. ISPs offer access, e- cugilpmized content and other specialized servicdgeoducts aimed at allowing both
commercial and residential customers to obtainrimédion from, transmit information to, and utilimesources available on the Internet.

ISPs generally operate networks composed of detidiates leased from ILECs, CLECs and ISPs usiteyhet Protocol based switching and
routing equipment and server-based applicationdatabases. Customers are connected to the ISP'®y{acilities obtained by the
customer or the ISP from either ILECs or CLECs tigto a dedicated access line or the placement iofaite switched local telephone call to
the ISP.

Internet Protocol Communications Technology. Thaeetwo widely used switching technologies in catisedeployed communications
networks: circuit- switching systems and packetisiing systems. Circuit-switch based communicateystems establish a dedicated
channel for each communication (such as a telepbalhéor voice or fax), maintain the channel fhetduration of the call, and disconnect
channel at the conclusion of the call. Packet-dwitased communications systems format the infoondt be transmitted, such as e-mail,
voice, fax and data into a series of shorter digiassages called "packets." Each packet condistportion of the complete message plus
addressing information to identify the destinatiord return address.

Packet-switch based systems offer several advastage circuit-switch based systems, particuldrgy ability to commingle packets from
several communications sources together simultasthgonto a single channel. For most communicatipasgticularly those with bursts of
information followed by periods of "silence," thiility to commingle packets provides for superietwork utilization and efficiency,
resulting in more information being transmittedotigh a given communication channel. There are, keweertain disadvantages to packet-
switch based systems as currently implemented.dRaisicreasing demands for data, in part driveritgyinternet traffic volumes, are
straining capacity and contributing to latency &ys) and interruptions in communications transroissi

On June 23, 1999, Level 3 announced a minimumyear, $250 million strategic agreement with LucBethnologies to purchase Lucent
systems, including software switches or "softswéth The minimum purchase commitment is subjecettain conditions and has the
potential to grow to $1 billion over five years.

Under this nonexclusive agreement, Lucent will atevLevel 3 its Lucent Technologies Softswitchpésare switch for Internet Protocol
networks that is intended to combine the reliabgihd features that customers expect from the pghlitched telephone network with the
cost effectiveness and flexibility of Internet Rrosl technology. With the Lucent Softswitch, Le@etxpects to provide a full range of
Internet Protocol based communications service#aiin quality and ease of use to services oniticathl circuit voice networks. In additio
the companies also agreed to collaborate on f@ninancements of softswitches and gateway produstispport next-generation broadband
services for business and consumers that will coenbigh-quality voice and video communications wvitternet-style web data services.
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Telecommunications Services Market

Overview of U.S. Market. The traditional U.S. marfa telecommunications services can be dividéd ihree basic sectors: long distance
services, local exchange services and Internesa@mvices. It has been estimated that in 1928 éochange services accounted for
revenues of $96.8 billion, long distance servicesegated revenues of $110.5 billion and Interne¢sg revenues totaled $8.3 billion.
Revenues for both local exchange and long distaecdces include amounts charged by long distaaméecs and subsequently paid to ILE
(or, where applicable, CLECSs) for long distanceeasc

Long Distance Services. A long distance telephatlecan be envisioned as consisting of three setgn&tarting with the originating
customer, the call travels along an ILEC or CLE@waek to a long distance carrier's POP. At the P call is combined with other calls
and sent along a long distance network to a POfRetong distance carrier's network near where#fiewill terminate. The call is then sent
from this POP along an ILEC or CLEC network to theminating customer. Long distance carriers prewdly the connection between the
two local networks, and pay access charges to lfBGsriginating and terminating calls.

The following diagram is a simplified illustratiaf a typical long distance call:
[GRAPHIC OF TYPICAL LONG DISTANCE CALL]

Local Exchange Services. A local call is one theginot require the services of a long distancgecan general, the local exchange carrier
connects end user customers within a LATA and piswides the local portion of most long distancksca
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The following diagram is a simplified illustratiaf a typical local call:
[GRAPHIC OF TYPICAL LOCAL CALL]

Internet Service. Internet services are generatlyiged in at least two distinct segments. A laealwork connection is required from the ISP
customer to the ISP's local facilities. For larggmmunication-intensive users and for content plend, these connections are typically
unswitched, dedicated connections provided by ILBOSLECS, either as independent service providersy some cases, by a company
which is both a CLEC and an ISP. For residentidl small/medium business users, these connectiergeserally PSTN connections
obtained on a dial-up access basis as a local egehalephone call. Once a local connection is niadee ISP's local facilities, information
can be transmitted and obtained over a packet{sadttnternet Protocol data network, which may csinsdi segments provided by many
interconnected networks operated by a number of.1SRis collection of interconnected networks makeshe Internet. A key feature of
Internet architecture and packet-switching is thaingle dedicated channel between communicationsis never established, which
distinguishes Internet-based services from the RSTN

The following diagram is a simplified illustratiaf a typical Internet access service:
[GRAPHIC OF TYPICAL INTERNET ACCESS SERVICE]

Overview of International Market. The traditionahrket for telecommunications services outside eflinited States can also be divided into
three basic sectors: long distance services, Badiange services and Internet access servidess lteen estimated that in 1998 local
exchange services accounted for revenues of $1llldh, long distance services generated revenfi®d 99.6 billion and Internet access
revenues totaled $7.1 billion.
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Internet Protocol Network and Interconnection. TQmmpany designed the Level 3 network to be optichfpe Internet Protocol based
communications, rather than circuit-switch basemrmminications such as that utilized by the PSTN. fétevork was designed with the goal
of providing the Company with the ability to adétgtfacilities, hardware and software to futurehtealogy developments in packet-switch
based communications systems.

There are many Internet Protocol networks currentlyperation. While generally adequate for daaagmission needs, these networks us
are not configured to provide the voice qualityl#me communications requirements of a traditioeréphone call. With current technolo
this quality can only be achieved by providing astantial cushion of communications capacity. Idi&oh, existing voice-over Internet
Protocol services generally require either custechignd-user equipment or the dialing of "accesssbar the following of other similar
special procedures to initiate a call. There ase abncerns about the reliability and security>a$ting Internet Protocol voice networks.

The Company has developed its Internet Protocaevservices so that customers will not be requieatial access codes or follow other
special procedures to initiate a call. The Compamy other technology providers have developedyandre commercially testing, softswit
technology to enable the transmission of traff@anskessly between a router-based Internet Protatelark and the circuit-based PSTN.
When commercially deployed, this technology wilbpide the Level 3 network with the same ubiquitytted PSTN. Specifically, this
technology will provide Level 3 with (1) the abjlito originate PSTN telephone traffic from an ILEGWwitch (when the origination point is
not on the Level 3 network), (2) route the trafiicer the Level 3 network and (3) deliver the tia#ither (a) directly to its destination (if the
destination is on the Level 3 network) or (b) toimerconnection point where the traffic is tramsfe back to the PSTN (the routing of traffic
to this interconnection point will be determinedé&d on a least-cost routing criteria). Level 3 exp#o be able to obtain the benefits of
packetswitch based communications protocols on its nekywhile allowing its customers to use their exigtequipment, telephone numkt
and dialing procedures, without additional accestes, for routing the call to the Level 3 netwdrkvel 3 believes that by building its own
network with significant excess capacity, expanlitgand the latest technological advances in nekvad@sign and equipment and having the
ability to route calls over the PSTN in the evehs@rvice disruptions, the other significant issassociated with Internet Protocol voice
transmission (quality, latency, reliability and ggty) will have been satisfactorily addressed. TQ@mmpany commercially launched its
Internet Protocol long distance voice transmissiervices in December 1999. The Company expectsdimltommercial testing of some
features associated with local service, such dsrdal, voice mail and call forwarding, during tfiest quarter of 2000. See "Risk Facto@u
business could be materially affected by problerisrg from the commercial deployment of our voieehnology for Internet Protocol
networks."

On November 16, 1998, Level 3 and Bell CommunicetiBesearch Inc. announced the merger of theiecéisp specifications for a new
protocol designed to bridge between the currentitibased PSTN and emerging Internet Protocoldasevorks. The merged specification,
called the Media Gateway Control Protocol, or MG&presents a combination of the Internet ProtBenlice Control, or IPDC,
specification developed by a consortium formed bydl 3 and made up of leading communications hamelaad software companies, and
the Simple Gateway Control protocol, developed bt Bommunications Research and Cisco SystemsMBEP specification is available
without a fee to service providers and hardwaresarftivare vendors interested in implementing thigir networks and equipment.

The significance of MGCP is that when implementadlill provide customers with a seamless intercatioa between traditional PSTN and
the newer Internet Protocol technology networksdl& believes that this integration will enablesimmers to benefit from the lower cost of
Internet Protocol network services, including vaaeel fax, without modifying existing telephone dax equipment or dialing access codes.
Level 3 plans to use MGCP in the development abvts network.
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On May 13, 1999, a group of leading telecommuniceticompanies announced the formation of the latemmal Softswitch Consortium, or
the "Consortium." Level 3 was one of the foundingmibers of this Consortium. The Consortium currehély approximately 100 members.
The purpose of the organization is to promote gziandards and protocols and new application dewaop for the distributed set of
hardware and software platforms that are refeweabstsoftswitches and can seamlessly interconne®$TN with information and
applications currently available only over the intt. The Consortium is the first group to focuslesively on interconnection between
Internet Protocol networks and the PSTN, and isnoting worldwide compatibility and interoperabiliof these networks. The Consortium's
charter also calls for it to act as a catalystiimglating independent software vendors to devetmpe-added services for service providers
and network users of Internet Protocol networks.
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BUSINESS

Level 3 engages in the communications, informasiervices and coal mining businesses through owipeo$loperating subsidiaries and
substantial equity positions in public companiedate 1997, the Company announced the Businesst®lacrease substantially its
information services business and to expand thgerahservices it offers by building an advancatgrinational facilities based
communications network based on Internet Protaadirology.

History

The Company was incorporated as Peter Kiewit Soms'jn Delaware in 1941 to continue a constructiosiness founded in Omaha,
Nebraska in 1884. In subsequent years, the Comipaagted a portion of the cash flow generated gdnstruction activities in a variety
other businesses. The Company entered the coahgninisiness in 1943, the telecommunications busifemsisting of MFS and, more
recently, an investment in C-TEC Corporation asasitccessors RCN, Commonwealth Telephone and Ghtiégan, Inc.) in 1988, the
information services business in 1990 and therwteére energy business, through an investment ohA¥herican, in 1991. Level 3 also has
made investments in several development-stage nemtu

In 1995, the Company distributed to the holder€laiss D Stock all of its shares of MFS. In the seyears from 1988 to 1995, the Company
invested approximately $500 million in MFS; at tivee of the distribution to stockholders in 199% Company's holdings in MFS had a
market value of approximately $1.75 billion. In RBewber 1996, MFS was purchased by WorldCom in aaetion valued at $14.3 billion.

In December 1997, the Company's stockholdersedtifie decision of the Board to effect the spiitseparating the Construction Group. A
result of the split-off, which was completed on kfaB1, 1998, the Company no longer owns any intémgbe Construction Group. In
conjunction with the split-off, the Company changschame to "Level 3 Communications, Inc.," anel @onstruction Group changed its
name to "Peter Kiewit Sons', Inc.”

In January 1998, the Company completed the sallidémerican of its energy investments, consistimignarily of a 24% equity interest in
MidAmerican. The Company received proceeds of apprately $1.16 billion from this sale, and as autesecognized an after-tax gain of
approximately $324 million in 1998.

In November 1998, Avalon Cable of Michigan, Incqaiced all the outstanding stock of Cable Michigia@vel 3 received approximately
$129 million in cash for its interest in Cable Migan and recognized a pre-tax gain of approxim&key million.

Business Plan

Since late 1997, the Company has substantiallyased the emphasis it places on and the resowreeted to its communications and
information services business. Since that timeQbmpany has become a facilities based providat {$ha provider that owns or leases a
substantial portion of the plant, property and pment necessary to provide its services) of a braage of integrated communications
services. The Company has expanded substantiallyukiness of its subsidiary PKSIS and is creathmgugh a combination of construction,
purchase and leasing of facilities and other asaatadvanced, international, facilities based camioations network. The Company desig
the Level 3 network based on Internet Protocolnetdgy in order to leverage the efficiencies ofttachnology to provide lower cost
communications services.
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Market and Technology Opportunity. The Companydwas that, as technology advances, a comprehenasige of both consumer and
business communications and information servicdseiprovided over networks utilizing Internet Rycol technology. These services will
include traditional voice services, as well as othata services such as Internet access and vitivate networks. The Company believes
shift has begun, and over time should acceleratahé following reasons:

. Efficiency. As a packet-switched technology, intt Protocol technology generally uses networlacayp more efficiently than the
traditional circuit-switched PSTN. This is becagapacity in a packet switched network is shared/&en end points only when they are
communicating at any given time, whereas in cirsuiitched networks, capacity is reserved betweemuonicating end points even when no
information is actually being transmitted. Therefaservices including voice, e-mail and file tramnsfan be provided for lower cost over a
network using Internet Protocol technology.

. Open Protocol. Internet Protocol technology i®pan protocol (a non- proprietary standard) whiltbws for market driven development of
new services and applications for Internet Protoetivorks. In contrast, the PSTN is based on petgmy protocols, which are governed and
maintained by international standards bodies tteaganerally controlled by government-affiliatedites and slower to accept change.

. Improving Technologies. The Company and othemetbgy companies have developed solutions to adgreoblems associated with
certain Internet Protocol based applications tisatthe public Internet. For example, typical vawer Internet Protocol solutions are
characterized by cumbersome two-stage dialing reménts, latency (delay through the network whieh eegatively affect timing sensitive
communications such as voice), quality and concabosit adequate security and reliability. During&aber 1999, Level 3 commercially
launched (3)Voice long distance service in 10 migtkbe first voice service to utilize softswit@thnology. Level 3 expects to begin
commercial testing of some features associatedladl service, such as caller ID, voice mail aall orwarding, during the first quarter of
2000. Level 3's Internet Protocol voice technolpgyvides a seamless interconnection with the PSSibgusoftswitch architecture.

. Open Architecture. The open architecture of L&distributed network enables new competitiomagnsuppliers for the individual
components of the Internet Protocol voice switchipgtem. The Company believes that this competéimongst vendors will enable more
rapid improvement in the price/performance ratiénaividual network components and thereby lowdmoek cost.

Level 3's Strategy. The Company is seeking to alipit on the benefits of Internet Protocol techgglby pursuing the Business Plan. Key
elements of the Company's strategy include:

. Become the Low Cost Provider of Communicationwi8es. Our network is designed to provide highliggaommunications services at a
lower cost. For example, the Level 3 network ismbeionstructed using multiple conduits to allow @@mpany to cost-effectively deploy
future generations of optical networking componemtd thereby expand capacity and reduce unit dosésldition, the Company's strategy is
to maximize the use of open, non-proprietary iegt in the design of its network software andwward. This approach is intended to
provide Level 3 with the ability to purchase thesinecost-effective network equipment from multipendors. New technologies such as
packet- switching will also enhance the efficiesad our network.

. Combine Latest Generations of Fiber and Eleatsorin order to achieve unit cost reductions fansmission capacity, Level 3 has designed
its network with multiple conduits to deploy sucsige generations of fiber to exploit improvememtsransmission electronics. Optimizing
transmission electronics to exploit specific getiers of fiber optic technology currently provideansmission capacity on the new fiber n
cost effectively than deploying new electronicspoevious generations of fiber.

. Offer a Comprehensive Range of Communicationsi&es. The Company provides a comprehensive rahgenomunications services over
the Level 3 network, including private line, (3)¥eilong distance services, colocation, Interneésg€and managed modem.
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Level 3 expects to begin commercial testing of séea¢ures associated with local service, such kerdB, voice mail and call forwarding,
during the first quarter of 2000. Level 3 is al$fenng dark fiber and conduits along its local antercity networks on a longerm lease bas

. Provide Significant Colocation Facilities. Lex&has been experiencing higher demand for its atilme services from its web centric
customers than was anticipated in preparing thénBas Plan. Level 3 believes that providing colimraservices on its network attracts web
centric customers by allowing Level 3 to offer ta@sistomers reduced bandwidth costs, rapid praviggoof additional bandwidth,
interconnection with other third-party networks amghroved network performance. Therefore, LevekBdves that controlling significant
colocation facilities in its gateways provides ittwa competitive advantage. In addition, significaolocation facilities in a gateway allow
Level 3 to price the exchange of traffic betwesrciistomers that are colocated in the same faatligygnificantly lower cost than the
exchange of traffic between a customer locatedaeithe facility and a customer located within theility.

As of December 31, 1999, Level 3 had secured afpairly 3.4 million square feet of space for it¢éegeay facilities and had completed the
buildout of approximately 1.3 million square feétlus space. Level 3 believes it currently has enmolocation space than any of its
competitors. In January 2000, Level 3 announceexaansion of its Business Plan to increase sigmiflg the aggregate amount of its global
gateway facilities to 6.5 million square feet otlee next two to three years.

. Provide Seamless Interconnection to the PSTNinDubecember 1999, the Company launched its (3/lmng distance service that allows
the seamless interconnection of the Level 3 netwaitk the PSTN for long distance voice transmissiddeamless interconnection allows
customers to use Level 3's Internet Protocol basedces without modifying existing telephone equémt or dialing procedures (that is,
without the need to dial access codes or folloveotfimilar special procedures). The Company's methagpdem service uses similar
softswitch technology to seamlessly interconne¢h&PSTN.

. Accelerate Market Rolbut. To support the launch of its services and ligve customer base in advance of completing thstoaction of it:
network, Level 3 offers services over a combinatibleased local and intercity facilities. Over &nthese leased networks will be displaced
by the networks that the Company is constructing.

. Target Web Centric Customers. The Company'siloigion strategy is to utilize a direct sales fofceused on communications intensive
web centric businesses. These businesses inclide &pplication service providers, content pro\adsystems integrators, next generation
carriers, web-hosting companies, streaming medigpamies and Internet Protocol based storage praviBeoviding continually declining
bandwidth costs to these companies is at the dafeedCompany's market enabling strategy becausévidth generally represents a
substantial portion of web centric businesses'scost

. Develop Advanced Business Support Systems. Thep@noy is developing a substantial, scalable andenalbled business support system
infrastructure specifically designed to enable@enpany to offer services efficiently to its tamgtustomers. The Company believes that
this system will reduce its operating costs, gitsecustomers direct control over some of the sesvibey buy from the Company and allow
Company to grow rapidly without redesigning theh@ecture of its business support system.

. Leverage Existing Information Services CapaleiitiThe Company is expanding its existing cap&slin computer network systems
integration, consulting, outsourcing and softwaengineering, with particular emphasis on the crsioe of legacy software systems to
systems that are compatible with Internet Protoetivorks and web browser access.
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. Attract and Motivate High Quality Employees. Thempany has developed programs designed to adindatetain employees with the
technical skills necessary to implement the Busiidlan. The programs include the Company's Shaksvetock purchase plan and its
Outperform Stock Option program.

Competitive Advantages. The Company believes thas the following competitive advantages thajetber with its strategy, will assist it
implementing the Business Plan:

. Experienced Management Team. Level 3 has assdrabliteanagement team that it believes is well sudechplement the Business Plan.
Most of Level 3's senior management was involvel@aaling the development and marketing of telecomoations products and in
designing, constructing and managing intercity,ropailitan and international networks.

. A More Readily Upgradable Network Infrastructurevel 3's network design takes advantage of reoeotvations, incorporating many of
the features that are not present in older comnatinit networks, and provides Level 3 flexibilityteke advantage of future developments
and innovations. Level 3 has designed the trangonmisgetwork to optimize all aspects of fiber andadlonics simultaneously as a system to
deliver the lowest unit cost to its customers. iderf and transmission electronic technology chanigesel 3 expects to realize new unit cost
improvements by deploying the latest fiber andgmission electronics technology in available engstgpare conduit in the multiple conduit
Level 3 network. The Company believes that theespanduit design of the Level 3 network will enabével 3 to effect this deployment
more quickly and at lower cost than other carriers.

. Integrated End-to-End Network Platform. LevelSimtegy is to deploy network infrastructure injonanetropolitan areas and to link these
networks with significant intercity networks in NbrAmerica and Europe. The Company believes tlairttegration of its local and intercity
networks with its colocation facilities will exparide scope and reach of its nat customer coverage, and facilitate the unifoeplayment ¢
technological innovations as the Company managdatiire upgrade paths.

. Systems Integration Capabilities. The Companiebes that its ability to offer computer outsourcend systems integration services,
particularly services relating to allowing a custsta legacy systems to be accessed with web brews#irprovide additional opportunities
for selling the Company's products and services.

The Level 3 Network

An important element of the Business Plan is theeigment of the Level 3 network, an advanced iratonal, facilities based
communications network optimized for Internet Pooldechnology. Today, the Company is primarilyeoiifig its communications services
using local and intercity facilities that are led$em third parties. This enables the Companyfterservices during the construction of its
own facilities. Over time, the portion of the Comga network that is owned by the Company will @ase and the portion of the facilities
leased will decrease. Over the next two to thregsyghe Company's network is expected to encompass

. an intercity network covering nearly 16,000 mile®North America;

. leased or owned local networks in 56 North Anenicarkets;

. an intercity network covering approximately 4, #hles across Europe;

. leased or owned local networks in 21 EuropeanRauific Rim markets;

. approximately 6.5 million square feet of gateviagilities in North America, Europe and the PacRitn; and

. undersea capacity, including a 1.28 Tbps traastit! cable system and a 2.56 Thps Northern Adifecgystem initially connecting Hong
Kong to Tokyo.

See "Risk Factors--Difficulties in constructing awetwork could increase its estimated cost andydtdascheduled completion.”
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Intercity Networks. The Company's nearly 16,00Cerfitber optic intercity network in North Americallwg¢onsist of the following:

. Rights-of-way ("ROW") from a number of third pag including railroads, highway commissions arilities. The Company has procured
these rights from sources that maximize the sgcant quality of the Company's installed networke TCompany has secured 100% of the
ROW required for the planned North American intigroietwork. It has obtained these rights pursuamigreements with railroads, state and
local departments of transportation, utilities,gbipe companies and others.

. Multiple conduits connecting local networks impagximately 200 North American cities. In genetadyel 3 will install groups of 10 to 12
conduits in its intercity network. The Company beés that the availability of spare conduit wilbal it to deploy future technological
innovations in optical networking components ad &glproviding Level 3 with the flexibility to offeconduit to other entities.

. Initial installation of optical fiber strands dgised to accommodate dense wave division multiplgxiansmission technology. This fiber
allows deployment of equipment which transmits algron 32 or more individual wavelengths of light ptrand, thereby significantly
increasing the capacity of the Company's netwdgkixe to older networks which generally use ogtfdzer strands that transmit fewer
wavelengths of light per strand. In addition, thentpany believes that the installation of neweragbtiibers will allow a combination of
greater wavelengths of light per strand, higheitaligransmission speeds and greater spacing afanktelectronics. The Company also
believes that each new generation of optical fitidrallow increases in the performance of theggeass of the fiber and will result in lower
unit costs.

. High speed SONET transmission equipment emplogaifyhealing protection switching and designedhigh quality and reliable
transmission.

. A design that maximizes the use of open, non+jetary hardware and software interfaces to allessIcostly upgrades as hardware and
software technology improves.

In December 1999, Level 3 began carrying custonaéfi¢ between Dallas and Houston on the first ctatgal and lit segment of its North
American intercity network.

To support the launch of its services in the tlgindrter of 1998, the Company leased intercity dap&om two providers. This leased
capacity will be displaced over time by Level 3artid American intercity network.

On July 20, 1998, Level 3 entered into a networkstaction cost-sharing agreement with INTERNEXT(, a subsidiary of NEXTLINK
Communications, Inc. The agreement, which is vakte®i700 million, calls for INTERNEXT to acquireethight to use 24 fibers and certain
associated facilities installed along the entingtemf Level 3's North American intercity networkthe United States. INTERNEXT will pay
Level 3 as segments of the intercity network amameted which will reduce the overall cost of tteswork to the Company. The network as
provided to INTERNEXT will not include the necesgatectronics that allow the fiber to carry commuations transmissions. Also, under
terms of the agreement, INTERNEXT has the rigtarniadditional conduit for its exclusive use andhare costs and capacity in certain
future fiber cable installations in Level 3 conduit
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The following diagram depicts the currently planidatth American intercity network when fully constted:
[GRAPHIC OF CURRENTLY PLANNED NORTH AMERICAN INTERC ITY NETWORK]

The Company expects to substantially complete @tliNAmerican intercity network by the end of theay 2000. Deployment of the North
American intercity network will be accomplisheddhgh simultaneous construction efforts in multipleations, with different portions being
completed at different times. As of December 3B9,9he Company had completed 9,334 route miléseointercity network and had
approximately 6,200 route miles under construction.

In Europe, the Company is deploying an approxingadel50 mile fiber optic intercity network with afeeteristics similar to those of the
North American intercity network. As in North Ames, the Company will provide initial service in Bpe over a leased network that will
displaced over time by the intercity network owtgdhe Company.

On April 29, 1999, Level 3 announced that it hahfized contracts relating to construction of Ringf its European network in France,
Belgium, the Netherlands, Germany and the Unitetgom. Ring 1, which is approximately 1,800 miled| connect Paris, Frankfurt,
Amsterdam, Brussels and London. The network is egoeto be ready for service by September 200Q Riis part of the approximately
4,750 mile intercity network. This European netwaiik be linked to the Level 3 North American intély network by the Level 3
transatlantic 1.28 Tbhps cable system currently uddeelopment, also expected to be ready for setwcSeptember 2000.

On July 26, 1999, the Company announced two impbdeavelopments of its European network build vaigheements with Eurotunnel and
Alcatel. Eurotunnel will install and supply Levela8th multiple cross-Channel cables between thdddnKingdom and France through the
high-security service tunnel. The first of thesblea will be completed by the end of the first qaaof 2000. Subsequent cables will be
installed to upgrade and expand the network asdresh required or when new fiber technology becoavedlable. Alcatel will design,
develop and install an undersea cable to link el 3 network between the United Kingdom and BetgiThe cable system is already ur
development and will be completed by the end ofitisé half of 2000.
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In addition, on May 4, 1999, Level 3 and COLT TealecGroup plc announced an agreement to sharefooste construction of European
networks. The agreement calls for Level 3 to skarestruction costs of COLT's planned 1,600 milericity German network linking Berlin,
Cologne, Dusseldorf, Frankfurt, Hamburg, Munich &bdttgart. In return, COLT will share constructicosts of Ring 1 of Level 3's planned
European network.

The Company has entered into transoceanic capagigements that will link Level 3's North Americ&uropean and Pacific Rim intercity

networks. One agreement provides for Level 3'dqpation in the construction of an undersea calktem that will connect Japan and the
United States by the end of the year 2000. The iréntpagreements relate to the Company's trangatleapacity. These agreements are in
addition to the agreement relating to the Compahy8 Thps transatlantic undersea cable system.

In the Pacific Rim, the Company currently intenalgtovide service over a leased line intercity retnand long-term leases of submarine

cable capacity. In 1999, Level 3 opened its AsiaifRaheadquarters in Hong Kong. On January 24020@vel 3 announced two important

developments of its Asian network with the plangedstruction of a 2.56 Tbps undersea cable injt@dinnecting Hong Kong to Tokyo and
gateway facilities in each city. This connectiotvilen Hong Kong and Tokyo is intended to be that ftage in the construction by Level 3
of an undersea network in the region and is sclegidigr completion in the second quarter of 2001.

Local Market Infrastructure. The Company's locailfbes include fiber optic networks, in a SONERg configuration, connecting Level 3's
intercity network gateway sites to ILEC and CLEQ®itcal offices, long distance carrier POPs, buildihgusing communication-intensive end
users and Internet peering and transit facilities.

The Company had secured approximately 3.4 millgprase feet of space for its gateway facilities aBecember 31, 1999 and had comple
the buildout of approximately 1.3 million squareffef this space. The Company's gateway faciléresbeing designed to house local sales
staff, operational staff, the Company's transmissiod Internet Protocol routing/switching facil#iand technical space to accommodate
colocation of equipment by higislume Level 3 customers, such as ISPs, in an @mvientally controlled, secure site with direct asc® th
Level 3 network through dual, fault tolerant contiwats. The Company is offering private line, (3)¥®;j colocation services, Internet access
and managed modem at its gateway sites. The alidylalf these services varies by location.

As of December 31, 1999, the Company had operdtfaoéities based local metropolitan networks &12.S. markets and 3 European
markets. Also, as of December 31, 1999, the Compadyentered into interconnection agreements WB®8s covering 49 markets.

The Company has negotiated master leases withae&veECs and ILECs to obtain leased capacity froosé providers so that the Company
can provide its clients with local transmission alifities before its own local networks are comglaind in locations not directly accessed by
the Company's owned facilities.

The launches of services in London and Frankfuibfied the Company's acquisitions of BusinessNatitad, a leading UK ISP, in January
1999 and miknet Internet Based Services GmbH,dirlgaGerman ISP, in September 1998. In additioduime 1999, the Company comple
the construction of its metropolitan network in gy of London. The Company launched its interoradil gateway in London in January
1999 and Paris, Amsterdam and Frankfurt in Jun®.1BBe 75,000 square foot office and operationsitiat London is the hub of Europei
operations and houses the operational center anrieequipment, along with additional space fopa&xsion and colocation services. In
addition, in July 1999, Level 3 acquired a buildimigh an additional approximately 263,000 squaet & space to serve as colocation
technical space in London. The Company is curresffigring services in and among London, Paris, AmtEm and Frankfurt.
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Communications and Information Services

In connection with the Business Plan, the Comparsubstantially increasing the emphasis it placesnal the resources devoted to its
communications and information services businelBs. Gompany is building on the strengths of itsrimfation services business and the
benefits of the Level 3 network to offer a broadga of other services to business and other end.use

As the Business Plan is being implemented, the Gomfs offering a comprehensive range of commuitinatservices, including the
following:

. Transport Services. The Company's transport@esvionsist of private line and special accesscgsand longerm leases of dark fiber a
conduits.

[_] Private Line and Special Access. Private lind apecial access services are established asnampent physical connection between
locations for the exclusive use of the customee Tompany is offering the following types of prigdine and special access services:

. Private Line. This type of link is a dedicateakliconnecting two end-user locations for voice daa applications, including ISPs.

. Carrier-toCarrier Special Access. This type of link conneetsiers (long distance providers, wireless pronddd.ECs and CLECS) to oth
carriers.

. End-user to Long Distance Provider Special Accébis type of link connects an end-user, suchlasge business, with the local POP of its
chosen long distance provider.

The Company is currently offering its special ascasd private line services with available transinis speeds from T1 to OC3 and OC48.

[ ] Dark Fiber and Conduits. The Company is offgritark fiber and conduit along its local and initgroetworks on a long-term lease basis.
Customers can lease dark fiber and conduit in amybination of three ways: (1) segment by segmentfu(l ring or (3) the entire Level 3
network. Level 3 offers colocation space in itsegedy and intercity retransmission facilities togheustomers for their transmission
electronics. Although Level 3 will not be responsifor the management of the transmission eleatsyriievel 3 is contemplating providing
installation and maintenance services for this gmeint on a fee for service basis.

. Colocation. The Company is offering its custonserd other service providers the ability to lodar communications and networking
equipment at Level 3's gateway sites in a safesandre technical operating environment. The derm@mithese colocation services has
increased as companies expand into geographic iaredsch they do not have appropriate space drrteal personnel to support their
equipment and operations. At its operational cdloossites, the Company is offering customers ACix@er, optional UPS power,
emergency back-up generator power, HVAC, fire grtid@ and security. Level 3 is also offering higipeed, reliable connectivity to the Le

3 leased network and other networks, including athal and wide area networks, the PSTN and Intefirfeese sites are being monitored and
maintained 24 hours a day, seven days a week.

Level 3 is offering customers, including ISPs, tpportunity to colocate their web-server compusrthe Company's larger gateway sites,
enabling them to take advantage of the marketingtotner service, internal company information neksd"intranets") and other benefits
offered by such web presence. By colocating its-s@&tver in a Level 3 facility, a customer has thiitg to deploy a high-quality, high-
reliability Internet presence without investing itapin data center space, multiple high-speed eotians or other capital intensive
infrastructure. Although the customer is respomsibl maintaining the content and performances$drver, the Company's technicians will
be available to monitor basic server operation. Chenpany will also offer redundant infrastructuomsisting of multiple routers and
connections to Internet backbones.
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. Internet Access. The Company is offering Inteawtess to business customers, other carrierssirsl These services include high-capacity
Internet connections ranging from 45 Mbps to 1,00ps.

. Managed Modem. The Company is offering to its@uers an outsourced, turn-key infrastructure smiufior the management of dial up
access to either the public Internet or a corpatata network that may include access to the puiiégrnet (“Managed Modem"). This serv
was the first offered by the Company that usedssafth technology to seamlessly interconnect taR8&N. While ISPs are provided a fully
managed dial-up network infrastructure for accegbé¢ public Internet, corporate customers thatipase Managed Modem services receive
connectivity for remote users to support data apfibns such as telecommuting, e-mail retrievad, @ient/server applications. For Managed
Modem customers, Level 3 arranges for the provisfdocal network coverage, dedicated local teleghoumbers (which the Managed
Modem customer distributes to its customers inctse of an ISP or to its employees in the casecoforate customer), racks and modems
as well as dedicated connectivity from the custsriecation to the Level 3 gateway facility. Ledealso provides monitoring of this
infrastructure 24 hours a day, seven days a wegkrd®viding a turn- key infrastructure modem saatiLevel 3 believes that this product
allows its customers to save both capital and dipgraosts.

. Voice. During December 1999, Level 3 commercidiynched (3)Voice, its Internet Protocol basedyldistance service, which uses
softswitch technology. This long distance servicedrrently available in 10 markets. The Compameess to begin commercial testing of
some features associated with local service, ssdaker ID, voice mail and call forwarding, duritige first quarter of 2000. Customers ac

(3)Voice long distance service by using existiriggbone equipment and dialing procedures. The Cagnpalieves that (3)Voice long
distance service is offered at a quality level étm#hat of the PSTN.

Level 3 currently offers, through its subsidiary $I&, computer operations outsourcing and systetagration services to customers located
throughout the United States as well as abroad Cldmapany's systems integration services help cistdefine, develop and implement
cost-effective information services. The computgisourcing services offered by the Company incluekvorking and computing services
necessary for older mainframe-based systems andrredient/server-based systems. The Company previsi@utsourcing services to clients
that want to focus their resources on core busasesather than expend capital and incur overhests$ ¢to operate their own computing
environments. PKSIS believes that it is able tbzatiits expertise and experience, as well as dipgrafficiencies, to provide its outsourcing
customers with levels of service equal to or bdttan those achievable by the customers themseliéle at the same time reducing the
customers' cost for such services. This servipaigcularly useful for those customers moving froltler computing platforms to more
modern client/server networks.

PKSIS offers reengineering services that allow canigs to convert older legacy software systemsdadem networked computing systems,
with a focus on reengineering software to enalderosoftware application and data repositoriestadressed by web browsers over the
Internet or over private or limited access IntefPettocol networks. PKSIS also provides customéiis ascombination of workbench tools
and methodologies that provide a complete strateggyonverting mainframe-based application systemdient/server architecture.

Distribution Strategy

Level 3's distribution strategy is to utilize aetit sales force focused on communications interesieweb centric businesses. These
businesses include ISPs, application service pepgjccontent providers, systems integrators, neméation carriers, wetesting companie:
streaming media companies and Internet Protocol
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based storage providers. Level 3 believes thaethempanies are the most significant drivers oflladth demand. The past distinctions
between retail and wholesale have been blurredesetcommunications intensive and web centric lbases purchase Level 3 services, add
value to our services and then remarket the sex¥acend-users. Bandwidth constitutes a signifipantion of these companies' cost structure
and their needs for bandwidth in many cases angiggoat an exponential rate. Providing continualéclining bandwidth costs to these
companies is at the core of Level 3's market englstrategy.

Level 3 expects that approximately 85% of its saldisbe to web centric customers that package caminations services into value added
services and directly sell into the residential Bodiness markets. The remaining approximately ab%evel 3's sales will be to other
customers that are communications intensive and hagh growth in communications and informationveas consumption. Level 3 has
segmented its sales organization into four chartodlaplement this distribution strategy. Thesdude a Regional/Account Sales Group, a
Carrier Sales Group and a Dark Fiber Sales Group.

Business Support System

In order to pursue its sales and distribution sgis, the Company is developing a set of intedratétware applications designed to autor
the Company's operational processes. Through trelajament of a robust, scalable business suppstesy the Company believes that it has
the opportunity to develop a competitive advantagdative to traditional telecommunications compan@hereas traditional
telecommunications companies operate extensiveyegasiness support systems with compartmentadirelitectures that limit their ability

to scale rapidly and introduce enhanced servicddeatures, the Company has developed a businppsrsisystem architecture intended to
maximize both reliability and scalability. See "RBactors--Our Business Plan requires the develapofeeffective business support systems
to implement customer orders and to provide arlddrilservices."

Key design aspects of the business support systeslabment program are:
. integrated modular applications to allow the Campto upgrade specific applications as new pradaic available;

. a scalable architecture that allows certain fiomstthat would otherwise have to be performed éydl 3 employees to be performed by the
Company's alternative distribution channel partaits;

. phased completion of software releases designatiow the Company to test functionality on arnr@mental basis;

. "web-enabled" applications so that on-line actesdl order entry, network operations, billingidacustomer care functions is available to all
authorized users, including Level 3's customersrasdllers;

. use of a three-tiered, client/server architectoat is designed to separate data and applicamusis expected to enable continued
improvement of software functionality at minimumsgoand

. maximum use of pre-developed or "shrink wrappaapilications, which will interface to Level 3's ergrise resource planning suites.

The first four releases of the business suppotesyfiave been delivered and contain functionaktyessary to support the set of services
presently offered. See "--Communications and Inftiam Services."

Interconnection and Peering

As a result of the Telecom Act, properly certifdicompanies may, as a matter of law, interconmitkatiLECs on terms designed to help
ensure economic, technical and administrative éguaétween the interconnected parties. The TeleBotprovides, among other things, t
ILECs must offer competitors the services and itéesdl necessary to offer local switched services ‘S-Regulation."”
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As of December 31, 1999, the Company had entetedriterconnection agreements covering 49 marRéts.Company may be required to
negotiate new or renegotiate existing interconnectigreements as Level 3 expands its operationigriant and additional markets in the
future and as existing agreements expire or anginated.

Peering agreements between the Company and ISRe@essary in order for the Company to exchandféctveith those ISPs without having
to pay transit costs. The Company has peering geraents with approximately 90 domestic ISPs andcequpately 50 international ISPs a
is currently purchasing transit from one major I$Re basis on which the large national ISPs makeipg available or impose settlement
charges is evolving as the provision of Interneeas and related services has expanded. Recantipanies that have previously offered
peering have cut back or eliminated peering ratatiips and are establishing new, more restrictiieri@a for peering. In order to maintain
certain of its peering relationships, Level 3 vaidlve to meet these more restrictive criteria.

Employee Recruiting and Retention

As of December 31, 1999, Level 3 had 3,175 empkyethe communications portion of its business BH&IS had approximately 681
employees, for a total of 3,856 employees. The Gombelieves that its ability to implement the Bgsis Plan will depend in large part ot
ability to attract and retain substantial numbéradulitional qualified employees. In order to attrand retain highly qualified employees, the
Company believes that it is important to provigea(ivork environment that encourages each indivittuperform to his or her potential, (ii;
work environment that facilitates cooperation todgashared goals and (iii) a compensation prograsigded to attract the kinds of
individuals the Company seeks and to align emplsyiaterests with the Company's. The Company bedi¢kie Business Plan and its
relocation to new facilities in the Denver metraf@ai area help provide such a work environmenthwéispect to compensation programs,
while the Company believes financial rewards alareenot sufficient to attract and retain qualifeedployees, the Company believes a
properly designed compensation program is a negessmponent of employee recruitment and retentiothis regard the Company's
philosophy is to pay annual cash compensation wiifithe Company's annual goals are met, is modiragteater than the cash compense
paid by competitors. The Company's non-cash bepefgrams (including medical and health insuratifeejinsurance, disability insurance,
etc.) are designed to be comparable to those dffeyéts competitors. See "Risk Factors--We mayieble to hire and retain sufficient
qualified personnel; the loss of any of our keyoenive officers could adversely affect us."

The Company believes that the qualified candiditeseks place particular emphasis on equity-baseglterm incentive ("LTI") programs.
The Company currently has two complementary progrdinthe equity-based "Shareworks" program, wihielps ensure that all employees
have an ownership interest in the Company andrazeugaged to invest risk capital in the Companigsks and (ii) an innovative Outperform
Stock Option ("OSO") program applicable to the Camys employees. The Shareworks program currenéliples employees to contribute
up to 7% of their compensation toward the purcludisestricted common stock. If an employee remaimgployed by the Company for three
years from the date of purchase, the shares vatl ared be matched by the Company with a grant efgaal number of shares of its comn
stock. The Shareworks program also provides thigfest to satisfactory Company performance, the @ow's employees will be eligible
annually for grants by the Company of its restdatemmon stock of up to 3% of the employees' corsation, which shares will vest three
years from the employee's initial grant d:

The Company has adopted the OSO program, whicérdiffom LTI programs generally adopted by the Canyfs competitors that make
employees eligible for conventional non-qualifiédck options ("NQSOs"). While widely adopted, themdpany believes such NQSO
programs reward employees when company stock pedermance is inferior to investments of similisks, dilute public stockholders in a
manner not directly proportional to performance #aildto provide a preferred return on stockholtlargested capital over the return to opt
holders. The Company believes that the OSO proisauperior to an NQSO-based program with respettidse issues while, at the same
time, providing employees a success-based rewdadding the associated risk.
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The OSO program was designed by the Company sdadhsibckholders receive a market related returtheir investment before OSO
holders receive any return on their options. ThenGany believes that the OSO program aligns direntiployees' and stockholders' interests
by basing stock option value on the Company'stghii outperform the market in general, as meashyetthe S&P 500 Index. The value
received for options under the OSO plan is basea fmnmula involving a multiplier related to how ofuour common stock outperforms the
S&P 500 Index. Participants in the OSO programator@alize any value from options unless our comstonk price outperforms the S&P
500 Index. To the extent that our common stock erfigpms the S&P 500, the value of OSOs to an ogtmder may exceed the value of
NQSOs.

Subsequent to the split-off of the Construction@prérom its other businesses, the Company adoptedstognition provisions of SFAS No.
123. Under SFAS No. 123, the fair value of an O8©domputed in accordance with accepted optioratialumodels) on the date of grant is
amortized over the vesting period of the OSO. Huegnition provisions of SFAS No. 123 are appliemspectively upon adoption. As a
result, they are applied to all stock awards gidirighe year of adoption and are not applied tard® granted in previous years unless those
awards are modified or settled in cash after adapf the recognition provisions. The adoption BAS No. 123 resulted in notash charge

to operations of $126 million in 1999 and $39 roitlin 1998 and will continue to result in non-caklarges to operations for future periods
that the Company believes will also be materiak @mount of the non- cash charge will be depenggoh a number of factors, including the
number of options granted and the fair value eséthat the time of grant.

Competition

The communications and information services inguisthighly competitive. Many of the Company's ¢ixig and potential competitors in the
communications and information services industiyehfnancial, personnel, marketing and other resmmsignificantly greater than those of
the Company, as well as other competitive advastagsuding existing customer bases. Increasedatiolagion and strategic alliances in the
industry resulting from the Telecom Act, the openaf the U.S. market to foreign carriers, techn@abadvances and further deregulation
could give rise to significant new competitorstie Company.

In the special access and private line servicegehathe Company's primary competitors are IXC&Qs and CLECs. Most of these
competitors have a significant base of customers/fmm they are currently providing colocation seeg. Due to the high costs to CLECs of
switching colocation sites, the Company may hawerapetitive disadvantage relative to these conggstiiThe market for the colocation of
web-servers is extremely competitive. In this mgritee Company competes with ISPs and many otheaisiding Exodus, GlobalCenter and
Qwest.

For voice services, the Company will compete prilpavith national and regional network providersT&T, Sprint, MCI WorldCom and
Qwest currently own nationwide long distance fibptic networks. Significant new competitors coul@as a result of increased
consolidation and strategic alliances in the inqusgsulting from recent Congressional and FCCoasti MCl WorldCom has entered into an
agreement to acquire Sprint. In Europe, GTS, MCHd@om and Viatel currently own intercity networlkdwest's network as well as the
intercity networks being deployed by others, inahgdBroadwing and Williams Communications in theitdd States and KPNQwest, i-21
and Global Crossing in Europe, use advanced tecgpdalimilar to that of the Level 3 network and ofégynificantly more capacity to the
marketplace. Increased capacity may cause signifaecreases in the prices for services. The wlofithe Company to compete effectivel
this market will depend upon its ability to maimtdiigh quality services at prices equal to or belloase charged by its competitors.
Interexchange Carriers and certain CLECs with ex@iesr optic strands may be competitors in thd diaer business. In the long distance
market, the Company's primary competitors will i AT&T, MCIl WorldCom, Sprint and Qwest, all of e have extensive experience in
the long distance market. In addition, the Teledarhwill allow the RBOCs and others to enter thedalistance market. Bell Atlantic was
recently authorized to conduct in- region longatiste service in New York. SBC has filed an applicato conduct such service in Texas.
These providers are also competitors in the pronisi internet access. In local markets the Compatiyompete with ILECs and CLECS,
many of whom have extensive experience in the lozaket.

S-52



The communications and information services inguistsubject to rapid and significant changes ant®logy. For instance, recent
technological advances permit substantial increfmseansmission capacity of both new and exisfibgr, and the introduction of new
products or emergence of new technologies may eetheccost or increase the supply of certain sesvsimilar to those which the Company
plans on providing. Accordingly, in the future tGempany's most significant competitors may be netraets to the communications and
information services industry, which are not buettby an installed base of outmoded equipment.

Regulation

The Company's communications and information ses/lusiness will be subject to varying degreesaérfal, state, local and international
regulation.

Federal Regulation

The FCC regulates interstate and internationatéalemunications services. The FCC imposes extemsgi@ations on common carriers such
as ILECs that have some degree of market powerFO@imposes less regulation on common carriefsownitmarket power, such as the
Company. The FCC permits these nondominant catagrsovide domestic interstate services (includony distance and access services)
without prior authorization; but it requires cargeo receive an authorization to construct andatpeelecommunications facilities, and to
provide or resell telecommunications services, betwthe United States and international points.d¢mpany has recently obtained FCC
approval to land its transatlantic cable in the.OI$e Company has obtained FCC authorization teigeonternational services on a facilities
and resale basis. The Company has filed tariffé¢$anterstate and international long distanceises with the FCC.

Under the Telecom Act, any entity, including catglievision companies, and electric and gas uslititeay enter any telecommunications
market, subject to reasonable state regulatioafety quality and consumer protection. Becausdampntation of the Telecom Act is subj
to numerous federal and state policy rulemaking@edings and judicial review, there is still unaety as to what impact it will have on the
Company. The Telecom Act is intended to increasepadition. The Telecom Act opens the local servivesket by requiring ILECs to
permit interconnection to their networks and esshirg ILEC obligations with respect to:

. Reciprocal Compensation. Requires all ILECs ahB@s to complete calls originated by competingieasrunder reciprocal arrangement
prices based on a reasonable approximation ofrimenéal cost or through mutual exchange of traffieut explicit payment.

. Resale. Requires all ILECs and CLECs to pernsiile=of their telecommunications services withautasonable restrictions or conditions.
In addition, ILECs are required to offer wholesadgsions of all retail services to other telecomioations carriers for resale at discounted
rates, based on the costs avoided by the ILECeimtiplesale offering.

. Interconnection. Requires all ILECs and CLECpéanit their competitors to interconnect with thiaicilities. Requires all ILECs to permit
interconnection at any technically feasible poiithin their networks, on nondiscriminatory termslaat prices based on cost (which may
include a reasonable profit). At the option of taerier seeking interconnection, colocation ofréaguesting carrier's equipment in an ILEC's
premises must be offered, except where the ILECdeamonstrate space limitations or other techniogkidiments to colocation.

. Unbundled Access. Requires all ILECs to providadiscriminatory access to specified unbundled agkwlements (including certain
network facilities, equipment, features, functioasd capabilities) at any technically feasible paiithin their networks, on nondiscriminatc
terms and at prices based on cost (which may iecdugkasonable profit).
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. Number Portability. Requires all ILECs and CLEG®ermit, to the extent technically feasible, asartelecommunications services to
retain existing telephone numbers without impairhwdrguality, reliability or convenience when switng from one telecommunications
carrier to another.

. Dialing Parity. Requires all ILECs and CLECs toyide "1+" equal access to competing providerel@phone exchange service and toll
service, and to provide nondiscriminatory accedslephone numbers, operator services, directaigtasce, and directory listing, with no
unreasonable dialing delays.

. Access to Rights-of-Way. Requires all ILECs andECs to permit competing carriers access to palests, conduits and rights-of-way at
regulated prices.

ILECs are required to negotiate in good faith va#tiriers requesting any or all of the above arreraggs. If the negotiating carriers cannot
reach agreement within a prescribed time, eitheiezamay request binding arbitration of the digulissues by the state regulatory
commission. Even when an agreement has not beehe@aLECs remain subject to interconnection alans established by the FCC and
state telecommunications regulatory commissions.

In August 1996, the FCC released a decision (theftonnection Decision") establishing rules impdatng the above-listed requirements
and providing guidelines for review of interconnentagreements by state public utility commissiartse United States Court of Appeals for
the Eighth Circuit (the "Eighth Circuit") vacatedrtain portions of the Interconnection Decision. fanuary 25, 1999, the Supreme Court
reversed the Eighth Circuit with respect to the EJ@risdiction to issue regulations governing langerconnection pricing (including
regulations governing reciprocal compensation). $hpreme Court also found that the FCC had authtaripromulgate a "pick and choose"
rule and upheld most of the FCC's rules governaugss to unbundled network elements. The Supremg,@owever, remanded to the FCC
the standard by which the FCC identified the neknadements that must be made available on an uhedibasis.

On November 5, 1999, the FCC released an ordegliargtaining its list of unbundled network elengehtt eliminating the requirement that
ILECs provide unbundled access to local switchimgclistomers with four or more lines in the denpestion of the top 50 Metropolitan
Statistical Areas, and the requirement to unbuogbrator services and directory assistance.

The Eighth Circuit decisions and their recent reakby the Supreme Court continue to cause unogrtabout the rules governing the prici
terms and conditions of interconnection agreemditts.Supreme Court's action in particular may nexjor trigger the renegotiation of
existing agreements. Although state public utgitt®mmissions have continued to conduct arbitratiand to implement and enforce
interconnection agreements during the pendendyeEtghth Circuit proceedings, the Supreme Coretent ruling and further proceedings
on remand (either at the Eighth Circuit or the F@@) affect the scope of state commissions' authtariconduct such proceedings or to
implement or enforce interconnection agreementsyTould also result in new or additional rulesnggiromulgated by the FCC. Given the
general uncertainty surrounding the effect of tighth Circuit decisions and the recent decisiothefSupreme Court reversing them, the
Company may not be able to continue to obtain ésrea interconnection terms that are acceptabiiedothat are consistent with its business
plans.

The Telecom Act also codifies the ILECs' equal as@nd nondiscrimination obligations and preemmptsnsistent state regulation. The
Telecom Act contains special provisions that mogifgvious court decrees that prevented RBOCs frawigting long distance services and
engaging in telecommunications equipment manufamumhese provisions permit a RBOC to enter timg ldistance market in its traditional
service area if it satisfies several procedural sutzbtantive requirements, including obtaining F@@roval upon a showing that the RBOC
has entered into interconnection agreements (olensome circumstances, has offered to enter utlo agreements) in those states in which
it seeks long distance relief, the interconnectigreements satisfy a 14-point "checklist" of coritiyetrequirements, and the FCC is satisfied
that the RBOC's entry into long distance markets the public interest. Recently, the FCC approBedl Atlantic's
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petition to offer long distance service in New Yo8BC has filed an application to conduct suchiserin Texas. The Telecom Act permitted
the RBOCs to enter the out-of-region long distameeket immediately upon its enactment.

In October 1996, the FCC adopted an order in whieliminated the requirement that non-dominantieas such as the Company maintain
tariffs on file with the FCC for domestic interstegervices. This order applies to all non-dominaterstate carriers, including AT&T. The
order does not apply to the RBOCs or other locaharge providers. The FCC order was issued pursoauithority granted to the FCC in
the Telecom Act to "forbear” from regulating anjetmmmunications services provider if the FCC detees that the public interest will be
served. On February 13, 1997, the United Statest@béppeals for the District of Columbia Circigtayed the implementation of the FCC
order pending its review of the order on the me@isrrently, that temporary stay remains in effect.

If the stay is lifted and the FCC order becomesatife, telecommunications carriers such as thef@omwill no longer be able to rely on
filing of tariffs with the FCC as a means of prawig notice to customers of prices, terms and c@riton which they offer their interstate
services. The obligation to provide non-discrimamgf just and reasonable prices remains unchangeerthe Communications Act of 1934.
While tariffs provided a means of providing notifeprices, terms and conditions, the Company irgendely primarily on its sales force and
direct marketing to provide such information todtstomers.

The Company's costs of providing long distanceisesy as well as its revenues from providing l@ealices, will both be affected by
changes in the "access charge" rates imposed b@dlda long distance carriers for origination arrchieation of calls over local facilities.
The FCC has made major changes in the interstagsacharge structure. In a December 24, 1996,ddeFCC removed restrictions on
ILECs' ability to lower access prices and relaxeairegulation of new switched access servicesasettmarkets where there are other
providers of access services. On August 5, 199¢@fe adopted an order granting price cap LECs ik pricing flexibility, implementing
certain access charge reforms and seeking commemthers. The order provides certain immediateleggry relief to price cap carriers and
sets a framework of "triggers"” to provide those pamies with greater pricing flexibility to set intéate access rates as competition increases
The order also initiated a rulemaking to determvitether the FCC should regulate the access chaf@@sECs. If this increased pricing
flexibility is not effectively monitored by federaégulators, it could have a material adverse etiadhe Company's ability to price its
interstate access services competitively. A MaylB®7 order substantially increased the amountdlitEs subject to the FCC's price cap
rules ("price cap LECs") recover through monthbt-flate charges and substantially decreased thardmthat these LECs recover through
traffic sensitive (per-minute) access charges. @éyparties appealed the May 16th order. On Au@@st1998, the Eighth Circuit upheld the
FCC's access charge reform rules.

Beginning in June 1997, every RBOC advised CLE@sttiey did not consider calls in the same lochincparea from their customers to
CLEC customers, who are ISPs, to be local callgeuotite interconnection agreements between the REXDE&she CLECs. The RBOCs claim
that these calls are exchange access calls fohvelxichange access charges would be owed. The RB@i@®d, however, that the FCC
exempted these calls from access charges so tltatnmpensation is owed to the CLECs for transpouwing terminating such calls. As a
result, the RBOCs threatened to withhold, and imyr@ases did withhold, reciprocal compensatiorttiertransport and termination of such
calls. To date, thirty-six state commissions haued on this issue in the context of state commisarbitration proceedings or enforcement
proceedings. In thirty- three states, to date state commission has determined that reciprocapeosation is owed for such calls. Several of
these cases are presently on appeal. Reviewingsdwave upheld the state commissions in eight decisendered to date on appeal. App
from these decisions are pending in the FourthFaftld U.S. Circuit Courts of Appeal. The SeventlmdDit upheld the lllinois Commerce
Commission decision on June 18, 1999. On Februart 299, the FCC issued a Declaratory Ruling orishee of inter-carrier compensation
for calls bound to ISPs. The FCC ruled that thésaake largely jurisdictionally interstate call@thocal calls. The FCC, however, determined
that this issue was not dispositive of whetherristarier compensation is owed. The FCC noted abaurof factors which would allow the
state commissions to leave their decisions requitie payment of compensation undisturbed. The @ompannot predict the effect of the
FCC's
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ruling on existing state decisions, or the outcahpending appeals or of additional pending casks.Ninth Circuit dismissed an appeal of a
Washington decision on the ground that it congtdw collateral attack on the FCC's ruling. The B0 issued proposed rules to address
inter-carrier compensation in the future.

The Company recently entered into an agreementBéthAtlantic which establishes rates for transsioa of local and Internet bound traffic.

The FCC has to date treated ISPs as "enhancedas@naviders," exempt from federal and state rdgula governing common carriers,
including the obligation to pay access chargescamdribute to the universal service fund. Neveghs] regulations governing disclosure of
confidential communications, copyright, excise g other requirements may apply to the Compammg\gsion of Internet access services.
The Company cannot predict the likelihood thatestetderal or foreign governments will impose add#l regulation on the Company's
Internet business, nor can it predict the impaat thture regulation will have on the Company'sratiens.

In December 1996, the FCC initiated a Notice oliingiregarding whether to impose regulations ockarges upon providers of Internet
access and information services (the "Internet NAdlhe Internet NOI sought public comment upon \ubeto impose or continue to foreb:
from regulation of Internet and other packet-swétmetwork service providers. The Internet NOI #jmdly identifies Internet telephony as
a subject for FCC consideration. On April 10, 199@, FCC issued a Report to Congress on its impitatien of the universal service
provisions of the Telecom Act. In that Report, H&C stated, among other things, that the provisidransmission capacity to ISPs
constitutes the provision of telecommunications sntherefore, subject to common carrier reguitetid’he FCC indicated that it would
reexamine its policy of not requiring an ISP to trifute to the universal service mechanisms wher 3 provides its own transmission
facilities and engages in data transport over tifi@siéities in order to provide an information siee. Any such contribution by a facilities
based ISP would be related to the ISP's provisidheounderlying telecommunications services. mReport, the FCC also indicated that it
would examine the question of whether certain foofiiphone-to-phone Internet Protocol telephony' iaformation services or
telecommunications services. It noted that the B@hot have an adequate record on which to magelafinitive pronouncements on that
issue at this time, but that the record the FCCrhakwed suggests that certain forms of phonphtone Internet Protocol telephony appe:
have similar functionality to nomternet Protocol telecommunications services acHl the characteristics that would render themrinfdion
services. If the FCC were to determine that cefta@iernet Protocol telephony services are sub@&QC regulations as telecommunications
services, the FCC noted it may find it reasonaté the ISPs pay access charges and make unigersale contributions similar to non-
Internet Protocol based telecommunications semiogiders. The FCC also noted that other formstdrhet Protocol telephony appear to be
information services. The Company cannot predietdhtcome of these proceedings or other FCC pratgethat may effect the Company's
operations or impose additional requirements, guns or charges upon the Company's provisiontefhet access services.

On May 8, 1997, the FCC issued an order establishisignificantly expanded federal universal sergobsidy regime. For example, the F
established new universal service funds to sugptetommunications and information services pradittequalifying schools and libraries
(with an annual cap of $2.25 billion) and to rumehlth care providers (with an annual cap of $400om). The FCC also expanded the
federal subsidies for local exchange telephoneces\provided to low-income consumers and recefdlybled the size of the high cost fund
for non-rural LECs. Providers of interstate teleconmications service, such as the Company, as wekdain other entities, must pay for
these programs. The Company's contribution to thasersal service funds will be based on its ehemunications service end-user
revenues. The extent to which the Company's senoe viewed as telecommunications services orfasmation services will impact the
amount of the Company's contributions, if any. Adi¢ated in the preceding paragraph, that issuabtalseen resolved. Currently, the FCC
assesses such payments on the basis of a proviertsue for the previous year. The Company iseatiliy unable to quantify the amount of
subsidy payments that it will be required to make the effect that these required payments wilehav its financial condition because of
uncertainties concerning the size of the univeisad and uncertainties concerning the classificatibits services. The
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Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals recently upheld th€C in most respects, but rejected the FCC's dffdsaise contributions on intrastate
revenues. The FCC's universal service program hsaybe altered as a result of the agency's receratidn of its policies, or by future
Congressional action.

The FCC recently adopted new rules designed to nt&easier and less expensive for CLECs to obtaiacation at ILEC central offices by,
among other things, restricting the ILEC's abitiyprevent certain types of equipment from beingcated and requiring ILECs to offer
alternative colocation arrangements which will &ssl costly.

On November 18, 1999, the FCC adopted a new oedgiining ILECs to provide line sharing, which wallow CLECs to offer data services
over the same line the consumer uses for voicécasrwithout the CLECs being required to offer ¢bée services. State commissions have
been authorized to establish the prices to the GLf6€such services. The decision has been appealed

State Regulation

The Telecom Act is intended to increase competiticthe telecommunications industry, especiallyhia local exchange market. With respect
to local services, ILECs are required to allow iotanection to their networks and to provide unbeddccess to network facilities, as wel

a number of other procompetitive measures. Becthgsinplementation of the Telecom Act is subjeattionerous state rulemaking
proceedings on these issues, it is currently diffito predict how quickly full competition for lat services, including local dial tone, will be
introduced.

State regulatory agencies have jurisdiction whemgany facilities and services are used to provittastate services. A portion of the
Company's traffic may be classified as intrastatitherefore subject to state regulation. The Camgxpects that it will offer more
intrastate services (including intrastate switchediices) as its business and product lines exgangrovide intrastate services, the Comp
generally must obtain a certificate of public comeace and necessity from the state regulatory@gend comply with state requirements
telecommunications utilities, including state tfni§ requirements. The Company currently is auttestito provide telecommunications
services in all fifty states and the District ofl@mbia, other than Alaska.

The Company has a pending application for authdoifgrovide telecommunications services in Alaskaddition, the Company has filed an
application with the California Public Utilities @omission to expand the Company's network within sit@te. While approval of the
application is expected by mid-2000, the Compamnogapredict how quickly the Commission will acdamhether any such delays will
affect its ability to complete the network.

States also often require prior approvals or regttfons for certain transfers of assets, custowreosvnership of certificated carriers and for
issuances by certified carriers of equity or debt.

Local Regulation

The Company's networks will be subject to numetoaal regulations such as building codes and licgnsSuch regulations vary on a city-
by-city, county- by-county and state-by-state habisinstall its own fiber optic transmission fatiéls, the Company will need to obtain rights-
of-way over privately and publicly owned land. Rigiof-way that are not already secured may notaédable to the Company on
economically reasonable or advantageous terms.

Canadian Regulation

The Canadian Radio-television and Telecommunicat@ommission (the "CRTC") generally regulates Idiggance telecommunications
services in Canada. Regulatory developments oeepdlst several years
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have terminated the historic monopolies of theaeai telephone companies, bringing significant cetitipn to this industry for both
domestic and international long distance servioasalso lessening regulation of domestic longatisé companies. Resellers, which, as well
as facilities-based carriers, now have interconaecaights, but which are not obligated to fileiffs; may not only provide transborder
services to the U.S. by reselling the servicesigaxl’by the regional companies and other entitigslso may resell the services of the for
monopoly international carrier, Teleglobe Canadalgglobe"), including offering international swited services provisioned over leased
lines. Although the CRTC formerly restricted thagtice of "switched hubbing" over leased lines tigtointermediate countries to or from a
third country, the CRTC recently lifted this restidn. The Teleglobe monopoly on international &% and submarine cable landing rights
terminated as of October 1, 1998, although theipi@mv of Canadian international transmission féiei-based services remains restricted to
"Canadian carriers" with majority ownership by Cdiaas. Ownership of non- international transmisdaailities are limited to Canadian
carriers but the Company can own international sarime cables landing in Canada. The Company caondgr current or foreseen law,
enter the Canadian market as a provider of trarsomdacilities-based domestic services. Recent CRIlings address issues such as the
framework for international contribution chargeyglale to the local exchange carriers to offset sofrthe capital and operating costs of the
provision of switched local access services ofitikembent regional telephone companies, in thedacay as ILECs, and the new entrant
CLECs.

While competition is permitted in virtually all athCanadian telecommunications market segment&dhgany believes that the regional
companies continue to retain a substantial majofityre local and calling card markets. Beginnimd/iay 1997, the CRTC released a number
of decisions opening to competition the Canadi@alltelecommunications services market, which detgswere made applicable in the
territories of all of the regional telephone comiparexcept SaskTel (although Saskatchewan hascudrstty allowed local service
competition in that province). As a result, netwoodperated by CLECs may now be interconnected tvimetworks of the ILECs.
Transmission facilities-based CLECs are subjethiéosame majority Canadian ownership "Canadianecarequirements as transmission
facilities-based long distance carriers. CLECs hhgesame status as ILECs, but they do not hawersal service or customer tariff-filing
obligations. CLECs are subject to certain consypnetection safeguards and other CRTC regulatorysiylet requirements. CLECs must file
interconnection tariffs for services to interexcharservice providers and wireless service provideestain ILEC services must be provided
to CLECs on an unbundled basis and subject to ntandgricing, including central office codes, sutiger listings, and local loops in small
urban and rural areas. For a five-year periodagedther important CLEC services must be proviole@n unbundled basis at mandated
prices, notably unbundled local loops in large amrlareas. ILECs, which, unlike CLECs, remained/ftélgulated, will be subject to price cap
regulation in respect of their utility services #or initial four-year period beginning May 1, 199nd these services must not be priced below
cost. Interexchange contribution payments are noo¥gal and distributed among ILECs and CLECs acaogrth a formula based on their
respective proportions of residential lines, withexplicit contribution payable from local businesshange or directory revenues. CLECs
must pay an annual telecommunications fee basdleimproportion of total CLEC operating revenu&li bundled and unbundled local
services (including residential lines and otheklkadrvices) may now be resold, but ILECs need nmtige these services to resellers at
wholesale prices. Transmission facilities-basedllaod long distance carriers (but not resellems)eatitled to colocate equipment in ILEC
central offices pursuant to terms and conditiontanffs and intercarrier agreements. Certain l@cahpetition issues are still to be resolved.
The CRTC has ruled that resellers cannot be cladsis CLECs, and thus are not entitled to CLE€raannection terms and conditions.

The Company's Other Businesses

The Company's other businesses include its invedtineéhe C-TEC Companies (as defined), coal minihg SR91 Tollroad (as defined) and
certain other assets. In 1998, the Company contpbtbtesale of its interests in United Infrastruet@ompany, MidAmerican and Kiewit
Investment Management Corp.
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C-TEC Companies

On September 30, 1997, C-TEC completed a tax-&steucturing, which divided C-TEC into three puldampanies (the "C-TEC
Companies"): C-TEC, which changed its name to Conwealth Telephone, RCN and Cable Michigan. The Comjs interests in the C-
TEC Companies are held through a holding compdre/'(€-TEC Holding Company"). The Company owns 9G%e common stock of the
C-TEC Holding Company, and preferred stock of tR€EIC Holding Company with a liquidation value ofpapximately $499 million as of
December 31, 1999. The remaining 10% of the comstock of the C-TEC Holding Company is held by Da@idVicCourt, a director of the
Company who was formerly the Chairman of C-TECthkm event of a liquidation of the C-TEC Holding Qmamy, the Company would first
receive the liquidation value of the preferred ktddny excess of the value of the C-TEC Holding @amy above the liquidation value of the
preferred stock would be split according to the exghip of the common stock.

Commonwealth Telephone. Commonwealth Telephonésnmsylvania public utility providing local telepie service to a 19-county, 5,191
square mile service territory in Pennsylvania. Cammealth Telephone services approximately 291,081 mccess lines. Commonwealth
Telephone also provides network access and logntis services to IXCs. Commonwealth Telephonesgibas customer base is diverse in
size as well as industry, with very little concation. A subsidiary, Commonwealth Communicatiores provides telecommunications
engineering and technical services to large cotpanéents, hospitals and universities in the nesidtern United States. Another subsidiary,
Commonwealth Long Distance operates principalliyémnsylvania, providing switched services and eesbbeveral types of services, using
the networks of several long distance providera erholesale basis. As of December 31, 1999, th&C-Holding Company owned
approximately 47.9% of the outstanding common stdfdRommonwealth Telephone.

On October 23, 1998, Commonwealth Telephone coexletrights offering of 3.7 million shares of itenemon stock. In the offering, Leve
exercised all rights it received and purchased@pprately 1.8 million additional shares of Commoralitie Telephone common stock for an
aggregate subscription price of $37.7 million.

RCN. RCN is a full service provider of local, lodggtance, Internet and cable television servicaaaily to residential users in densely
populated areas in the Northeast. RCN operatecaspetitive telecommunications service provideNaw York City and Boston. RCN al
owns cable television operations in New York, N@rsdy and Pennsylvania; a 40% interest in Megac8bte de C.V., Mexico's second
largest cable television operator; and has longudée operations (other than the operations imiceareas of Pennsylvania). RCN is
developing advanced fiber optic networks to provdadeide range of telecommunications services, gioly local and long distance telepha
video programming and data services (including Isigled Internet access), primarily to residentiast@amers in selected markets in the
Boston to Washington, D.C. and San Francisco to[8eago corridors. During the first quarter of 1988CN acquired Ultranet
Communications, Inc. and Erols Internet, Inc., t8Bs with operations in the Boston to Washingtoi@.zorridor. As of December 31, 19!
the C-TEC Holding Company owned approximately 34dfhe outstanding common stock of RCN.

Cable Michigan. Cable Michigan was a cable telewvisiperator in the State of Michigan which, as eE@mber 31, 1997, served
approximately 204,000 subscribers including apprately 39,400 subscribers served by Mercom. Cledtprimarily around the Michigan
communities of Grand Rapids, Traverse City, Lapeel Monroe (Mercom), Cable Michigan's systems sangtal of approximately 400
municipalities in suburban markets and small tov@s.June 4, 1998, Cable Michigan announced thetdtagreed to be acquired by Avalon
Cable. Level 3 received approximately $129 milliorcash when the transaction closed on Novemb#9%3.

Coal Mining

The Company is engaged in coal mining throughutsgliary, KCP, Inc. ("KCP"). KCP has a 50% inte¢ieshree mines, which are operated
by a subsidiary of Peter Kiewit Sons', Inc. ("Nel¢3®). Decker
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Coal Company ("Decker") is a joint venture with \Weea Minerals, Inc., a subsidiary of The RTZ Cogtmn PLC. Black Butte Coal
Company ("Black Butte") is a joint venture with it Creek Coal Company, a subsidiary of Union Fa&iesources Group Inc. Walnut
Creek Mining Company ("Walnut Creek") is a gen@aitnership with Phillips Coal Company, a subsidi@Phillips Petroleum Company.
The Decker mine is located in southeastern Montidw@aBlack Butte mine is in southwestern Wyominyg ¢he Walnut Creek mine is in east-
central Texas. The coal mines use the surface mimgthod. For a discussion of certain risks assetiaith the coal mining business, see
"Risk Factors--Environmental liabilities from ouistorical operations could be material," "--Sigecdnt future declines in cash flow from coal
operations" and "--Potential liabilities and claiarssing from our coal operations could be sigmific"

The coal produced from the KCP mines is sold pripéw electric utilities, which burn coal in ordés produce steam to generate electricity.
Approximately 95% of sales are made under long-tawniracts, and the remainder are made on thetspdtet. Approximately 75%, 77%
and 79% of KCP's revenues in 1999, 1998 and 19entively, were derived from long-term contracihwCommonwealth Edison
Company (with Decker and Black Butte) and The Dietdison Company (with Decker). The primary cuséorof Walnut Creek is the
Texas-New Mexico Power Company ("TNP"). KCP alss bther sales commitments, including those withr&iPacific, Idaho Power,
Solvay Minerals, Pacific Power & Light, Minnesotavi®er, and Mississippi Power, that provide for tleéivibry of approximately 13 million
tons through 2005. The level of cash flows gendrateecent periods by the Company's coal operstiaiti not continue after the year 2000
because the delivery requirements under the Con'gangrent long-term contracts decline significantl

Under a mine management agreement, KCP pays adg@arysif New PKS an annual fee equal to 30% of ksGRjusted operating income.
The fee for 1999 was $33 million.

The coal industry is highly competitive. KCP comgsehot only with other domestic and foreign coaldiers, some of whom are larger and
have greater capital resources than KCP, but atboalternative methods of generating electricitg alternative energy sources. In 1997,
KCP's production represented 1.4% of total U.SI pozduction. Demand for KCP's coal is affectedelspnomic, political and regulatory
factors. For example, recent "clean air" laws ntagdate demand for low sulfur coal. KCP's westernal reserves generally have a low
sulfur content (less than one percent) and areentiyruseful principally as fuel for coal-firedesim-electric generating units.

KCP's sales of its western coal, like sales byraotfestern coal producers, typically provide forigely to customers at the mine. A signific
portion of the customer's delivered cost of coaltisbutable to transportation costs. Most of¢bal sold from KCP's western mines is
currently shipped by rail to utilities outside Mana and Wyoming. The Decker and Black Butte mimesach served by a single railroad.
Many of their western coal competitors are serveti railroads and such competitors' customemnafienefit from lower transportation
costs because of competition between railroadsdal hauling business. Other western coal produparsicularly those in the Powder River
Basin of Wyoming, have lower stripping ratios (tlgtthe amount of overburden that must be remavgdoportion to the amount of minable
coal) than the Black Butte and Decker mines, ofesulting in lower comparative costs of productids.a result, KCP's production costs per
ton of coal at the Black Butte and Decker mineskaas much as four and five times greater thadyston costs of certain competitors.
KCP's production cost disadvantage has contribatétd agreement to amend its long-term contratit @ommonwealth Edison Company to
provide for delivery of coal from alternate sournmes rather than from Black Butte. Because ofdleest disadvantages, KCP does not
expect that it will be able to enter into long-tecoal purchase contracts for Black Butte and Depkeduction as the current long-term
contracts expire. In addition, these cost disachgag may adversely affect KCP's ability to compatapot sales in the future.

The Company is required to comply with various fedlestate and local laws and regulations concgrpiotection of the environment. KCP's
share of land reclamation expenses for the yeazdeBdcember 31, 1999 was approximately $7 milliki@P's share of accrued estimated
reclamation costs was $100 million at Decemberl®989. The Company did not make significant caggdenditures for environmental
compliance
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with respect to the coal business in 1999. The Guyelieves its compliance with environmental @ctibn and land restoration laws will
not affect its competitive position since its cotioes in the mining industry are similarly affedtby such laws. However, failure to comply
with environmental protection and land restorateoms, or actual reclamation costs in excess ofCtimpany's accruals, could have an
adverse effect on the Company's business, redudisenations, and financial condition.

SR91 Tollroad

The Company has invested $12.9 million for a 65%4itgdnterest and lent $6.4 million to Californigivate Transportation Company L.P.
("CPTC"), which developed, financed, and currepfierates the 91 Express Lanes, a ten mile, foertlairoad in Orange County, California
(the "SR91 Tollroad"). The fully automated highwages an electronic toll collection system and \@eipricing to adjust tolls to demand.
Capital costs at completion were $130 million, $ii0ion of which was funded with debt that was go@aranteed by Level 3. However,
certain defaults by Level 3 on its outstanding deit certain judgments against Level 3 can resudefault under this debt of CPTC.
Revenue collected over the 35-year franchise pasioded for operating expenses, debt repaymetitpiariit distributions. The SR91
Tollroad opened in December 1995 and achieved tipgrareak-even in 1996. Approximately 93,900 custos have registered to use the
tollroad as of December 31, 1999, and weekday vetutypically exceed 21,600 vehicles per day duibegember 1999.

Legal Proceedings

In August 1999, the Company was named as a defemd&chweizer vs. Level 3 Communications, Incaleta purported national class
action, filed in the District Court, County of Baldr, State of Colorado which involves the Companigtst to install its fiber optic cable
network in easements and right-of-ways crossingthimtiffs' land. In general, the Company obtaitigel rights to construct its network from
railroads, utilities, and others, and is installitegnetwork along the rights-of-way so granteaiftiffs in the purported class action assert that
they are the owners of lands over which the Comigdityer optic cable network passes, and thatalieads, utilities, and others who grar
the Company the right to construct and maintainétsvork did not have the legal ability to do sheTaction purports to be on behalf of a
national class of owners of land over which the @any's network passes or will pass. The complaieks damages on theories of trespass,
unjust enrichment and slander of title and propexsywell as punitive damages. Although the Compampt aware of any additional similar
claims, the Company may in the future receive ctaimd demands related to rights-of- way issuedasita the issues in the Schweizer
litigation that may be based on similar or diffaresgal theories. Although it is too early for tBempany to reach a conclusion as to the
ultimate outcome of this litigation, managemenidads that the Company has substantial defendée taims asserted in the Schweizer
action (and any similar claims which may be nanmetheé future), and intends to defend them vigorousl

The Company and its subsidiaries are parties toyrottrer legal proceedings. Management believesaitmatesulting liabilities for these legal
proceedings, beyond amounts reserved, will not nadlieaffect the Company's financial conditionfute results of operations, or future cash
flows.
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MANAGEMENT

Directors and Executive Officers

Set forth below is information as of February 10@@&bout each director and each executive offitdt@@Company. The executive officers of
the Company have been determined in accordancehgtiules of the SEC.

Name Age Position
Walter Scott, Jr........ 68 Chairman of the Board
James Q. Crowe.......... 50 President, Chief Execu tive Officer and Director
R. Douglas Bradbury..... 49 Executive Vice Preside nt, Chief Financial Officer and Director
Kevin J. O'Hara......... 39 Executive Vice Preside nt and Chief Operating Officer
Colin V.K. Williams..... 60 Executive Vice Preside nt
Stephen C. Liddell...... 38 Group Vice President
Kathleen A. Perone...... 46 Group Vice President
Gail P. Smith........... 40 Group Vice President

Philip B. Fletcher...... 66 Director
William L. Grewcock..... 74 Director

Richard R. Jaros........ 47 Director
Robert E. Julian........ 60 Director
David C. McCourt........ 43 Director

Kenneth E. Stinson...... 57 Director
Michael B. Yanney....... 66 Director

Other Management

Set forth below is information as of February 10@0about the following members of senior managérmtthe Company.

Name Age Position
Jimmy D. Byrd........... 39 President and Chief Ex ecutive Officer of PKSIS
Linda J. Adams.......... 43 Group Vice President
Daniel P. Caruso........ 36 Group Vice President
Sureel A. Choksi........ 27 Group Vice President a nd Treasurer
Donald H. Gips.......... 40 Group Vice President
Joseph M. Howell, ... 53 Group Vice President
Michael D. Jones........ 42 Group Vice President
Thomas C. Stortz........ 48 Group Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary
Ronald J. Vidal......... 39 Group Vice President

John F. Waters, Jr...... 34 Group Vice President

Walter Scott, Jr. has been the Chairman of the oathe Company since September 1979, and a diretthe Company since April 1964.
Mr. Scott has been Chairman Emeritus of New PK8esthe split-off. Mr. Scott is also a director of\W PKS, Berkshire Hathaway Inc.,
Burlington Resources Inc., MidAmerican, ConAgra;.JrCommonwealth Telephone, RCN, U.S. Bancorp aalddnt Industries, Inc.

James Q. Crowe has been the President and Chietiise Officer of the Company since August 1994 ardirector of the Company since
June 1993. Mr. Crowe was President and Chief Exex@fficer of MFS from June 1993 to June 1997. Mirowe also served as Chairmal
the Board of WorldCom from January 1997 until JI®97, and as Chairman of the Board of MFS from 188&ugh 1996. Mr. Crowe is
presently a director of New PKS, Commonwealth Tetee, RCN and InaCom Communications, Inc.

R. Douglas Bradbury has been Executive Vice Presigied Chief Financial Officer of the Company sikagyust 1997, and a director of the
Company since March 1998. Mr. Bradbury served dsfGinancial Officer of MFS from 1992 to 1996, $mrVice President of MFS from
1992 to 1995, and Executive Vice President of Miegnf1995 to 1996.

Kevin J. O'Hara has been Executive Vice PresidetiteoCompany since August 1997, and Chief Opegdiifficer of the Company since
March 1998. Prior to that, Mr. O'Hara served asident and Chief
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Executive Officer of MFS Global Network Servicescl from 1995 to 1997, and as Senior Vice PresideMFS and President of MFS
Development, Inc. from October 1992 to August 1995m 1990 to 1992, he was a Vice President of NIel&écom, Inc. ("MFS Telecom").

Colin V.K. Williams has been Executive Vice Presitlef the Company since July 1998 and Presidehewél 3 International, Inc. since July
1998. Prior to joining the company, Mr. Williams ss@hairman of WorldCom International, Inc., wheeawas responsible for the
international communications business and the dpweént and operation of WorldCom's fiber networksreeas. In 1993 Mr. Williams
initiated and built the international operationd#S. Prior to joining MFS, Mr. Williams was Corgte Director, Business Development at
British Telecom from 1988 until 1992.

Stephen C. Liddell has been the Group Vice Presiofethe Company since February 1, 2000. Mr Lidgetesponsible for the Company's
Asian operations. Prior to that, Mr. Liddell was®e Vice President of the Company from May 199%é&bruary 1, 2000. Prior to that, Mr.
Liddell was President, Asia- Pacific Region at M@BrldCom from January 1996 to April 1999 and wasé/President and General
Manager, International Networks at MFS Communicegitrom July 1994 to January 1996. Mr. Liddell vzammercial Director and Direci
of Planning and Business Development at Syncoglidigh Telecom) from November 1991 to July 1994 &usiness Development
Executive at British Telecom from April 1989 to Nowber 1991.

Kathleen A. Perone has been Group Vice Presidetteo€ompany since February 1, 2000. Ms. Peroresimonsible for the Company's Nc¢
American operations. Prior to that, Ms. Perone Wias President, Sales of the Company from 1998etarfrary 1, 2000. Prior to that, Ms.
Perone was President, Global Services and Teleast) & MFS/WorldCom, from 1990 to 1998 and Vicedfdent, National Accounts at
Cable & Wireless from 1989 to 1990.

Gail P. Smith has been Group Vice President ofXbepany since February 1, 2000. Prior to that, $#sith served as Senior Vice President,
International Sales and Marketing of the CompanynfDecember 1998 to February 1, 2000. Prior tq tiat Smith was Vice President and
General Manager of WorldCom International Netwdrksn November 1994 to July 1997 and European Margddirector during the start-
up phase of MFS International.

Philip B. Fletcher has been a director of the Camymnce February 1999. Mr. Fletcher was Chairnfah@Board of ConAgra, Inc. from
May 1993 until September 1998. Mr. Fletcher wase€hixecutive Officer of ConAgra, Inc. from Septemh892 to September 1997. Mr.
Fletcher is a director of ConAgra, Inc. and chaimroéits executive committee.

William L. Grewcock has been a director of the Campsince January 1968. Prior to the split-off, Mrewcock was Vice Chairman of the
Company for more than five years. He is presentjrector of New PKS.

Richard R. Jaros has been a director of the Comgpiacg June 1993 and served as President of thg&uonirom 1996 to 1997. Mr. Jaros
served as Executive Vice President of the Compeony 11993 to 1996 and Chief Financial Officer of @@mpany from 1995 to 1996. He
also served as President and Chief Operating @fit€alEnergy from 1992 to 1993, and is preseattlirector of MidAmerican,
Commonwealth Telephone and RCN.

Robert E. Julian has been a director of the Comparoe March 31, 1998. Mr. Julian has also beerir@iaa of the Board of PKSIS since
1995. From 1992 to 1995 Mr. Julian served as Exexiice President and Chief Financial Officer loé tCompany.

David C. McCourt has been a director of the Compsinge March 31, 1998. Mr. McCourt has also seage&hairman and Chief Executive
Officer of Commonwealth Telephone and RCN sinceoBet 1997. From 1993 to 1997 Mr. McCourt serve@laairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer of C-TEC.
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Kenneth E. Stinson has been a director of the Cagnpice January 1987. Mr. Stinson has been Chaiohthe Board and Chief Executive
Officer of New PKS since the Split-Off. Prior tcettsplit-Off, Mr. Stinson was Executive Vice President af tbompany for more than the |
five years. Mr. Stinson is also a director of Condygnc. and Valmont Industries, Inc.

Michael B. Yanney has been a director of the Comzamce March 31, 1998. He has served as Chairtre @Board, President and Chief
Executive Officer of America First Companies L.Lf6r more than the last five years. Mr. Yanneylgé®a director of Burlington Northern
Santa Fe Corporation, RCN, Forest Oil Corporatiod lid-America Apartment Communities, Inc.

Jimmy D. Byrd has been the President and Chief lkex Officer of PKSIS since March 1999. Mr. ByrésvPresident and General Manager
of the New South Wales Office of Corporate Expréss, and Chief Information Officer of CorporateEgss, Inc. Australia/New Zealand
from 1997 to 1999. From 1993 to 1997 he was Viasident and CIO for Temple-Inland, Inc., was a di@l Sales Manager for Visual
Information Technologies from 1990 to 1993 and aafdvisory Marketing Representative for IBM fro@®8P to 1990.

Linda J. Adams has been Group Vice President HURemources of the Company since February 1, 20@dr. tBrthat, Ms. Adams was Vice
President Human Resources of the Company from Nbee®98 to February 1, 2000. Prior to that, Msard was initially Vice President
of Human Resources Rent-A-Center, a subsidiaryhofi Americas, Inc., and then Senior Vice Presidéituman Resources for Thorn
Americas, Inc. from August 1995 until August 1988ior to that, Ms. Adams was Vice President of Waitle Compensation & Benefits for
PepsiCo, Inc. from August 1994 to August 1995.

Daniel P. Caruso has been Group Vice Presidentab@bstomer Operations of the Company since Fepria2000. Prior to that, Mr.
Caruso served as Senior Vice President, Netwonki&ear of the Company from October 1997 to Febrda000. Prior to that, Mr. Caruso
was Senior Vice President, Local Service Deliver\worldCom from December 1992 to September 1997veasla member of the senior
management of Ameritech from June 1986 to Noverhbep.

Sureel A. Choksi has been Group Vice President @atp Development and Treasurer of the Company $tebruary 1, 2000. Prior to that,
Mr. Choksi served as Vice President and TreasudrdreoCompany from January 1999 to February 1, 2B0@r to that, Mr. Choksi was a
Director of Finance at the Company from 1997 to8 @ Associate at TeleSoft Management, LLC in 1893 an Analyst at Gleacher
Natwest from 1995 to 199

Donald H. Gips has been Group Vice President SalddMarketing of the Company since February 1, 280@r to that, Mr. Gips served as
Senior Vice President, Corporate Development ofGbmpany from November 1998 to February 1, 200i@r Bo that, Mr. Gips served in the
White House as Chief Domestic Policy Advisor to &Rresident Gore from April 1997 to April 1998. Bef working at the White House,
Mr. Gips was at the Federal Communications Comimiisas the International Bureau Chief and Direcid@toategic Policy from January
1994 to April 1997. Prior to his government seryige. Gips was a management consultant at McKisselyCompany.

Joseph M. Howell, 11l has been Group Vice Presidemtporate Marketing of the Company since FebrdaB000. Prior to that, Mr. Howell
served as Senior Vice President, Corporate Margetirthe Company from October 1997 to February0ODQ2 Prior to that, Mr. Howell was
Senior Vice President of MFS/WorldCom from 1993 897.

Michael D. Jones has served as Group Vice PresaehChief Information Officer of the Company siregbruary 1, 2000. Prior to that, Mr.
Jones served as Senior Vice President and Chfnation Officer of the Company from December 189&ebruary 1, 2000. Prior to that,
Mr. Jones was Vice President and Chief Informa@dficer of Corporate Express, Inc. from May 1994vay 1998.
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Thomas C. Stortz has been Group Vice Presidente@e@ounsel and Secretary of the Company sinceuggbl, 2000. Prior to that, Mr.
Stortz served as Senior Vice President, Generah§®and Secretary of the Company from Septemi#8 i®February 1, 2000. Prior to tf
he served as Vice President and General Coungwdtef Kiewit Sons', Inc. and Kiewit ConstructioroGp, Inc. from April 1991 to
September 1998. He has served as a director aof Rieteit Sons', Inc., RCN, C-TEC, Kiewit DiversifiecGroup Inc. and CCL Industries, Inc.

Ronald J. Vidal has been Group Vice President Newtites and Investor Relations of the Company dietuary 1, 2000. Prior to that, I
Vidal served as Senior Vice President, New Ventofdhe Company from October 1997 to February D2®rior to that, Mr. Vidal was a
Vice President of MFS/WorldCom from September 189@ctober 1997. Mr. Vidal joined the Company imstuction project management
in July 1983.

John F. Waters, Jr. has been Group Vice PresitehCaief Technology Officer of the Company sincéreary 1, 2000. Prior to that, Mr.
Waters was Vice President, Engineering of the Caomfiaoam November 1997 until February 1, 2000. Ptithat, Mr. Waters was an
executive staff member of MCI Communications fro894 to November 1997.

The Board is divided into three classes, design@teds I, Class Il and Class lll, each class ctingisas nearly as may be possible, of one-
third of the total number of directors constitutithg Board. The Class | Directors consist of Walteott, Jr., James Q. Crowe and Philip B.
Fletcher; the Class Il Directors consist of WilliamGrewcock, Richard R. Jaros, Robert E. Juliash@avid C. McCourt; and the Class llI
Directors consist of R. Douglas Bradbury, Kennetl$tinson and Michael B. Yanney. There is one vagamong the Class | Directors. The
term of the Class | Directors will terminate on ttete of the 2001 annual meeting of stockholdéesterm of the Class Il Directors will
terminate on the date of the 2002 annual meetirggoakholders; and the term of the Class Il Divestwill terminate on the date of the 2000
annual meeting of stockholders. At each annual imgetf stockholders, successors to the class etttirs whose term expires at that annual
meeting will be elected for three-year terms. Tloenpany's officers are elected annually to servi eath successor is elected and qualified
or until his death, resignation or removal.
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth certain informatiaith respect to the beneficial ownership of our aoon stock, as of February 1, 2000 and as
adjusted to reflect the sale of shares in thisrioffe(without giving effect to the underwriters'arallotment option), by the Company's
directors, executive officers, and directors anelceive officers as a group, and the only persawknby the Company to beneficially own
more than 5% of the outstanding common stock.

Percent of common stock
beneficially owned

Number of shares of Before this After this
Name common stock+ offering is offering is
Walter Scott, Jr.(1).............. 33,333,958 9.8% 9.3%
James Q. Crowe(2)..........ce..... 11,006,382 3.2 3.1
R. Douglas Bradbury(3)............ 3,276,055 * *
Kevin J. O'Hara(4)................ 1,975,793 * *
Colin V.K. Williams............... 409,344 * *
Michael D. Jones (5).............. 259,311 * *
Philip B. Fletcher................ 5,000 * *
William L. Grewcock(6)............ 11,530,166 3.4 3.2
Richard R. Jaros(7)............... 3,502,236 1.0 1.0
Robert E. Julian(8)............... 3,998,434 1.2 1.1
David C. McCourt(9)............... 119,738 * *
Kenneth E. Stinson(10)............ 729,231 * *
Michael B. Yanney(11)............. 114,599 * *
Directors and Executive Officers
as a Group (16 persons)(12)...... 70,732,152 20.6 19.9
Donald L. Sturm(13)............... 18,373,750 5.4 5.1

* Less than 1%.

+ Included in this table are the number of shafemmon stock issuable upon exercise of Outperfétaotk Options, which are exercisable
within 60 days. The value of the Outperform Stoqki@ns is dependent upon the extent to which thegamy's common stock has
outperformed the results of the S&P

500. The number of shares of common stock issugia exercise of an Outperform Stock Option has loa¢culated based upon the closing
price of the Company's common stock on Februa0@0. The number of shares issuable upon exertee Outperform Stock Option is
therefore subject to changes in the extent to wtiielCompany's common stock has outperformed thétseof the S&P 500 and the
Company's common stock closing price.

(1) Includes 99,700 shares of common stock helthbySuzanne Scott Irrevocable Trust as to whichSdott shares voting and investment
powers and 383,502 shares of common stock issugble conversion of $25 million in principal amowfitour 6% convertible subordinated
notes that Mr. Scott holds.

(2) In May 1999, Mr. Crowe announced that he hadrdouted 1,000,000 shares of common stock tost tiwhich he is the sole beneficie
and that, beginning on May 10, 1999, the trust @l 4,000 shares each trading day until alktheres held by the trust were sold. The
information in the above table includes the remmajr292,000 shares of common stock held by that. trududes 386,768 shares of common
stock subject to vested Outperform Stock Options.

(3) Includes 500,000 shares of common stock subjeatsted non-qualified stock options and 120 &t&res of common stock subject to
vested Outperform Stock Options.

(4) Includes 46,000 shares of common stock helldwin J. O'Hara Family LTD Partnership. Include® Z®0 shares of common stock
subject to vested non- qualified stock options 420,865 shares of common stock subject to vestépetform Stock Options.

(5) Includes 170,000 shares of common stock subjeatsted non-qualified stock options and 84,6@6eas of common stock subject to
vested Outperform Stock Options.
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(6) Includes 1,154,640 shares of common stock Ingl@rewcock Family Limited Partnership. Included 230 shares of common stock held
by the Bill & Berniece Grewcock Foundation as toathMr. Grewcock shares voting and investment pewiercludes 4,738 shares of
common stock subject to vested Outperform StockoDpt

(7) Includes 370,000 shares of common stock helthéyaros Family Limited Partnership. Includes88,3hares of common stock subject to
vested Outperform Stock Options. Includes 1,269&G0es of common stock held by Mr. Jaros and ©80sbares of common stock subject
to options held by a grantor trust, of which Mmakais the residual beneficiary. See "Certain Taatisns and Relationships."

(8) Includes 4,854 shares of common stock subjeeested Outperform Stock Options.

(9) Includes 4,738 shares of common stock subjeeested Outperform Stock Options.

(10) Includes 4,738 shares of common stock subjeetsted Outperform Stock Options.

(11) Includes 4,854 shares of common stock sulbjeetsted Outperform Stock Options.

(12) Includes 771,971 shares of common stock stijaested non-qualified stock options and 661 di@éres of common stock subject to
vested Outperform Stock Options. (13) Mr. Sturmisibess address is 3033 East First Avenue, De@wodoyado 80206. Based solely on Mr.
Sturm's Schedule 13D dated May 5, 1998, adjusted $mbsequent stock dividend, Mr. Sturm owns X580 shares of common stock, and
has voting and investment power with respect ta2#40 shares held by trusts and partnershipslissiadh for family members and
beneficially owns 150,000 shares as a member didhed of directors of the University of Denver.
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CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS AND RELATIONSHIPS
Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
All share information has been adjusted to refileetCompany's 2-for-1 stock split, effected asoakstividend in August 1998.

In connection with his retention as Chief Executdféicer of the Company, Mr. Crowe entered intoesigagement agreement (the
"Engagement Agreement") with the Company. UndeiBhgagement Agreement, the Company acquired fronCvtiwe, Mr. Bradbury and
an additional individual, Broadband Capital Group,.C., a company formed to develop investment opputies, for a purchase price of
$68,523, the owners' cash investment in that cosnfaursuant to the Engagement Agreement, the Coyrgrzid 10,000,000 shares of the
Company's former Class D Diversified Group ConbéetExchangeable Common Stock, par value $.0625hzee (the "Class D Stock") to
Mr. Crowe and 2,500,000 shares of Class D StodkrtdBradbury, in each case at $5.425 per share EFlgggement Agreement also
provided that the Company would make availablestde, from time to time prior to the consummatiéthe Splitoff, to certain employees
the Company designated by Mr. Crowe in connectiiih the implementation of the Business Plan, uart@ggregate of 10,500,000 share
Class D Stock.

During 1999, Mr. Crowe entered into an agreementte period October 1999 to October 2000 to psehpersonal use of the Company's
aircraft. Mr. Crowe has agreed that the Companychidrge him the cost to operate the aircraft lsvald by Part 91 of the U.S. Federal
Aviation Administration regulations for personakus corporate aircraft. The Company expects thebimount to be paid by Mr. Crowe for
the one-year period will be approximately $100,000.

In October 1999, Mr. Crowe paid the Company an egate of $74,905 for personal use of the Compaiggaft during the preceding 12
months. This payment was calculated based upod.BeFederal Aviation Administration regulations fbis type of use as adjusted purst
to Internal Revenue Service regulations.

In January 1999, the Company repurchased a pasfithre stock of the C-TEC Holding Company held tgvidl C. McCourt, a director of the
Company, for a total purchase price of approxinya$&l.6 million. Concurrently with this repurchaseportion of the Company's interest in
the C-TEC Holding Company was redeemed so thatdCourt's percentage ownership of the outstandin@EC Holding Company
common stock remains at 10%. The C-TEC Holding Caamgps Level 3's subsidiary, which holds LeveliBtsrests in both RCN and
Commonwealth Telephone.

On September 30, 1999, a subsidiary of the Compatsred into an agreement to purchase a 15% ibtarag-alcon 900 aircraft from Elk
Mountain Ventures, Inc., a company owned by Weabewtt, Jr., the Company's Chairman. The purchdse paid for the interest in the
aircraft was $2.7 million.

On July 1, 1998, the Company issued 187,706 sludiiescommon stock to Mr. Colin V.K. Williams, d&xecutive Vice President of the
Company, in connection with the Company's acqoisitf UltraLine (Bermuda) Limited, a company owrm®dMr. Williams. The value of tf
transaction, based upon the trading price of itarnon stock on that date, was approximately $5 onilli

On June 18, 1998, Level 3 entered into a contribt Reter Kiewit Sons', Inc. for the constructidrLevel 3's nearly 16,000 mile North
American intercity network. Construction of the MbAmerican intercity network is currently expectectost an estimated $3 billion and be
completed by the end of the year 2000. Level 3dtss entered into various other agreements with KI8ding for construction activities
relating to its local networks, gateway facilitesd headquarters facility in Broomfield, ColoraBor the year ended December 31, 1999, the
Company incurred the following expenses under thgseements to PKS: $918 million relating to camgtion of intercity and local networks
as well as gateway construction; $102 million fonstruction of the Company's headquarters faciibd $4 million for miscellaneous
construction projects. PKS has the opportunityaime significant award fee with respect to thestruetion of the intercity network, the
amount of which will be based on cost and speemboétruction, quality, safety and program
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management. The award fee will be determined byl 8¢ assessment of PKS' performance in eacleséthreas. In 1999, the Company
accrued approximately $35 million toward the awfael which is included in the $918 million indicdtabove.

In connection with the Split-off, Level 3 and PK&tered into various agreements intended to implethenSplit-off, including a separation
agreement and a tax-sharing agreement.

Separation Agreement. Level 3 and PKS enteredairsigparation agreement (the "Separation Agreemeaditing to the allocation of certain
risks and responsibilities between PKS and Le\adfté& the Split-off and certain other matters. Beparation Agreement provides that each
of PKS and Level 3 will indemnify the other withspect to the activities of its subsidiary busingisaips, except as specifically provided
under other agreements between the companies.rége-indemnities are intended to allocate finan@aponsibility to PKS for liabilities
arising out of the construction businesses formeolyducted by Level 3, and to allocate to Levaharicial responsibility for liabilities arisir
out of the non-construction businesses conductddelbgl 3. The Separation Agreement also allocagtwden PKS and Level 3 certain
corporate-level risk exposures not readily alloeableither the construction businesses or thecomstruction businesses.

The Separation Agreement provides that each ofllaed PKS will be granted access to certain ixand information in the possessiol
the other company, and requires that each of L&@egld PKS retain all such information in its poss@sfor a period of ten years following
the Split- off. Under the Separation Agreementhea@mpany is required to give the other compangrprotice of any intention to dispose of
any such information.

The Separation Agreement provides that, exceptreswise set forth therein or in any related agre@icosts and expenses in connection
with the Split-off will be paid 82.5% by Level 3@i17.5% by PKS. On March 18, 1998, Level 3 and RKtered into an amendment to the
Separation Agreement that provides that PKS walrlseibstantially all of those expenses if the L&/Bbard determined to force conversion
of all outstanding Class R Stock of Level 3 on efdoe July 15, 1998 (a "Forced Conversion Detertiong).

The Level 3 Board made such a determination arahrdingly, substantially all of those expenses tlborne by PKS.

Tax Sharing Agreement. Level 3 and PKS have entatedh tax sharing agreement (the "Tax Sharinge@grent") that defines each
company's rights and obligations with respect fiicéancies and refunds of federal, state and atdres relating to operations for tax years
portions thereof) ending prior to the Split-off anih respect to certain tax attributes of Level@l PKS after the Split-off. Under the Tax
Sharing Agreement, with respect to periods (oripostthereof) ending on or before the Split-offyee3 and PKS generally will be
responsible for paying the taxes relating to sethrns (including any subsequent adjustments iaguttom the redetermination of such tax
liabilities by the applicable taxing authoritiebpat are allocable to the non-construction busiaesisthe construction business, respectively.

The Tax Sharing Agreement also provides that L8weid PKS will indemnify the other from certainéaxand expenses that would be
assessed on PKS and Level 3, respectively, if thie- & were determined to be taxable, but solelyhe extent that such determination arose
out of the breach by Level 3 or PKS, respectivefycertain representations made to the InternabReg Service in connection with the
private letter ruling issued with respect to thditSgf. Under the Tax Sharing Agreement, if theliSpff were determined to be taxable for
any other reason, those taxes and certain othes @ssociated with the Split-off (together, "SpfitTaxes") would be allocated 82.5% to
Level 3 and 17.5% to PKS. The Tax Sharing Agreentewever, provides that Split-off Taxes will béoahted one-half to each of Level 3
and PKS if a Forced Conversion Determination isendd a result of the Forced Conversion Determamatihe Split-off Taxes would be so
allocated. Finally, the Tax Sharing Agreement pilegi under certain circumstances, for certaindigigid damage payments from Level 3 to
PKS if the Split-off were determined to be taxallbjch are intended to compensate stockholder«K&f iRdirectly for taxes assessed upon
them in that event. Those liquidated damage paysneoivever, are reduced because of the Forced &iornédetermination.
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Mine Management Agreement. In 1992, PKS and Lewsit8red into a mine management agreement (thee"Memagement Agreement”)
pursuant to which a subsidiary of PKS, Kiewit MigiGroup Inc. ("KMG"), provides mine management agldted services for Level 3's coal
mining properties. In consideration of the provisaf such services, KMG receives a fee equal ytpeercent of the adjusted operating
income of the coal mining properties. The termhaf Mine Management Agreement expires on Janu&@1.

In connection with the Splibff, the Mine Management Agreement was amendedawige KMG with a right of offer in the event thiaével 3
were to determine to sell any or all of its coahing properties. Under the right of offer, Levan8uld be required to offer to sell those
properties to KMG at the price that Level 3 woudebls to sell the properties to a third party. If KM@re to decline to purchase the properties
at that price, Level 3 would be free to sell thenatthird party for an amount greater than or etpuétat price. If Level 3 were to sell the
properties to a third party, thus terminating theé&Management Agreement, it would be requiredayp MG an amount equal to the
discounted present value to KMG of the Mine ManagenAgreement, determined, if necessary, by anaégadprocess.
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CERTAIN UNITED STATES FEDERAL TAX CONSEQUENCES
TO NON-UNITED STATES HOLDERS

A general discussion of certain United States f@ldacome and estate tax consequences of the @@uiswnership and disposition of
common stock applicable to Non-U.S. Holders (aineel) of common stock is set forth below. In gehex@dNon-U.S. Holder" is a person
other than: (i) a citizen or resident (as definedUnited States federal income or estate tax mpapaas the case may be) of the United States
(i) a corporation or other entity taxable as apowation organized in or under the laws of the ethibtates or a political subdivision thereof;
(iii) an estate the income of which is subject tuteld States federal income taxation regardle#ts sburce, or (iv) a trust if and only if (A) a
court within the United States is able to exerpismary supervision over the administration of thest and (B) one or more United States
trustees have the authority to control all subghdecisions of the trust. The discussion is basedurrent law and is provided for general
information only. The discussion does not addreseets of United States federal taxation other themme and estate taxation and does not
address all aspects of federal income and este#ida. The discussion does not consider any spdaifts or circumstances that may appl

a particular Non-U.S. Holder and does not addrésspects of United States federal income andeetia laws that may be relevant to Non-
U.S. Holders that may be subject to a specialrtrieat under such laws (for example, insurance corapataxexempt organizations, financ
institutions or broker-dealers). This discussiobdsed on the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, asdadeTreasury Regulations promulgated
thereunder and administrative and judicial inteiqtiens thereof, all of which are subject to chammessibly with retroactive effect.
ACCORDINGLY, PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS ARE URGED TO CONLT THEIR TAX ADVISORS REGARDING THE UNITED
STATES FEDERAL, STATE, LOCAL AND FOREIGN INCOME ANDTHER TAX CONSEQUENCES OF ACQUIRING, HOLDING
AND DISPOSING OF COMMON STOCK.

Dividends

In general, the gross amount of dividends paidXwoa-U.S. Holder will be subject to United Statdthivolding tax at a 30% rate (or any
lower rate prescribed by an applicable tax treahgss the dividends are (i) effectively connectétth a trade or business carried on by the
Non-U.S. Holder within the United States and a ForrB4B filed with the withholding agent or (ii) iftax treaty applies, are attributable to a
United States permanent establishment of the N&-Holder. If either exception applies, the dividemill be taxed at ordinary U.S. federal
income tax rates. A Non- U.S. Holder may be reqlicesatisfy certain certification requirementoider to claim the benefit of an applicable
treaty rate or otherwise claim a reduction of, xareption from, the withholding obligation pursuamthe above described rules. In the ca:

a Non-U.S. Holder that is a corporation, effectivebnnected income may also be subject to the hrprafits tax, except to the extent that an
applicable tax treaty provides otherwise.

Sale of Common Stock

Generally, a Non-U.S. Holder will not be subjectinited States federal income tax on any gainzedlupon the disposition of such Non-
U.S. Holder's common stock unless: (i) the Compzas/been, is, or becomes a "U.S. real propertyifglbrporation” for federal income t
purposes, such Non-U.S. Holder owned more than S#teaccommon stock sold during a specified perad] certain other requirements are
met; (ii) the gain is effectively connected witlirade or business carried on by the Ndi$. Holder within the United States; (iii) the common
stock is disposed of by an individual Non-U.S. Hald/ho holds the common stock as a capital asskisgiresent in the United States for
183 days or more in the taxable year of the disjposior (iv) the NonW.S. Holder is an individual who lost his U.S. o#hship within the la:
10 years and such loss had, as one of its prinpirploses, the avoidance of taxes, and the gagnsomsidered derived from sources within
the United States. The Company may be or may beeodwted States real property holding corporation-U.S. Holders should consult
applicable treaties, which may exempt from Unitéatés taxation gains realized upon the dispos@farommon stock in certain cases.
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Estate Tax

Common stock owned or treated as owned by an ita@iNont.S. Holder at the time of his or her death willibeludible in the individual
gross estate for United States federal estateugpopes, unless an applicable treaty provideswtberand may be subject to United States
federal estate tax.

Backup Withholding and Information Reporting Requir ements

On October 14, 1997, the IRS issued final regutatielating to withholding, information reportingdabackup withholding that unify current
certification procedures and forms and clarifyaetie standards (the "Final Regulations"). The HRegulations were intended to be effective
with respect to payments made after December 33.1Rursuant to an IRS notice, however, such Reglulations will not be effective until
January 1, 2001.

Except as provided below, this section describksrapplicable to payments made before the FingllRR&ons take effect. Backup
withholding (which generally is a withholding taxposed at the rate of 31% on certain paymentsrsppe that fail to furnish the informati
required under the United States information reépgrand backup withholding rules) generally willtrapply to (i) dividends paid to Nod-S.
Holders that are subject to the 30% withholdingdésed above (or that are not so subject becaaseaty applies that reduces or
eliminates such 30% withholding) or (ii) dividengisid on the common stock to a Non-U.S. Holder address outside the United States.
The Company will be required to report annuallytte IRS and to each Ndu-S. Holder the amount of dividends paid to, araedttx withhelc
with respect to, such holder, regardless of whedhgrtax was actually withheld. This informationyredso be made available to the tax
authorities in the Non-U.S. Holder's country ofidesice.

In the case of a NobkS. Holder that sells common stock to or throuddnéed States office of a broker, the broker nhatkup withhold at
rate of 31% and report the sale to the IRS, untes$older certifies its non-U.S. status under figseof perjury or otherwise establishes an
exemption. In the case of a Non-U.S. Holder thi$ semmon stock to or through the foreign offideadJnited States broker, or a foreign
broker with certain types of relationships to thaited States, the broker must report the salegdRI$ (but not backup withhold) unless the
broker has documentary evidence in its files thatseller is a Non-U.S. Holder or certain otherdittons are met, or the holder otherwise
establishes an exemption. A Non-U.S. Holder withgrally not be subject to information reportingoackup withholding if such Non-U.S.
Holder sells the common stock to or through a fpreiffice of a non- United States broker.

Any amount withheld under the backup withholdingesufrom a payment to a Non-U.S. Holder is allowadd a credit against the holder's
U.S. federal income tax, which may entitle the N&u$-. Holder to a refund, provided that the holdenishes the required information to the
IRS. In addition, certain penalties may be impdsgthe IRS on a Non-U.S. Holder who is requiredupply information but does not do so
in the proper manner.

Among other things, the Final Regulations elimirth® general current law presumption that dividgrald to an address in a foreign country
are paid to a resident of that country. In addititve Final Regulations impose certain certificattmd documentation requirements on Non-
U.S. Holders claiming the benefit of a reduced hatlling rate with respect to dividends under attaaty.

Prospective purchasers of common stock are urgednsult their tax advisors as to the applicatibthe current rules regarding backup
withholding and information reporting and as to éfiect, if any, of the Final Regulations on thaiquisition, ownership and disposition of
the common stock.
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UNDERWRITING

Subject to the terms and conditions stated in tideowriting agreement between Level 3 and the Un8erwriters, each of the U.S.
underwriters named below, for whom Salomon SmitmBg Inc. is acting as the global coordinator avid §ook-running manager and,
together with Goldman, Sachs & Co., J.P. MorgaruBges Inc., Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated aSé Securities Inc., Credit Suisse
First Boston Corporation and Merrill Lynch, Pierégnner & Smith Incorporated, as the U.S. represiees, has severally agreed to
purchase, and Level 3 has agreed to sell to eath$15. underwriter, the number of shares set foptiosite the name of such U.S.
underwriter.

Number
Name of shares

Salomon Smith Barney INC.........cccccceevuveeenn.
Goldman, Sachs & Co.................

J.P. Morgan Securities Inc
Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated..................
Chase Securities INC. ......cccceovveeeeniiinen.

Credit Suisse First Boston Corporation.............
Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated.

Subject to the terms and conditions stated in tideowriting agreement between Level 3 and the matteonal underwriters, each of the
international underwriters named below, for whorto8eon Brothers International Limited is acting he global coordinator and sole book-
running manager and, together with Goldman Sadesrational, J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd., Morgaan&ty & Co. International Limited,
Credit Suisse First Boston (Europe) Limited, Métriinch International, Chase Securities Inc., Crégibnnais Securities, Kleinwort Benson
Limited and Societe Generale, as the internatiogyaesentatives, has severally agreed to purchadd,evel 3 has agreed to sell to each such
international underwriter, the number of sharedah opposite the name of such international mwdéer.

Number

Name of shares
Salomon Brothers International Limited.............
Goldman Sachs International........................
J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd..............cccvveeee
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Limited.........
Credit Suisse First Boston (Europe) Limited........
Merrill Lynch International........................
Chase Securities Inc. ..............
Credit Lyonnais Securities..............
Kleinwort Benson Limited
Societe Generale.........c.cccceeeveeiiiciiinnnns
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The underwriting agreements provide that the olibga of the several underwriters to purchase tizees offered hereby are subject to
approval of certain legal matters by counsel anckttain other conditions. The underwriting agreetai@rovide that the obligations of the
underwriters are such that if any of the shareparehased by the underwriters pursuant to themwniting agreements, all the shares agreed
to be purchased by the underwriters (other thasetltovered by the over-allotment option descritedvi)) must be so purchased. The price
to public and underwriting discount per share Far offerings will be identical. The closing of timernational offering is a condition to the
closing of the U.S. offering, and the closing d th.S. offering is a condition to the closing of ihternational offering.

The underwriters propose to offer part of the shéoehe public at the public offering price setlicon the cover page of this prospectus
supplement and part of the shares to certain deatex price less a concession not in excess ef $tyare under the public offering price. The
underwriters may allow, and such dealers may @aglh concession not in excess of $ per sharertaicasther dealers. After the initial
offering of the shares to the public, the publifedhg price and such concessions may be changdetyepresentatives.

Level 3 has granted to the underwriters an opgarycisable for 30 days from the date of this pecss supplement, to purchase up to
2,250,000 additional shares from Level 3 at thegotd public less the underwriting discount. Thdamvriters may exercise such option
solely for the purpose of over-allotments, if aimgurred in connection with the offering of the sdmoffered hereby. To the extent that the
U.S. underwriters and the international underwsigtercise such option, each of the U.S. undemsréted the international underwriters, as
the case may be, will become obligated, subjecettain conditions, to purchase an additional nurobeption shares proportionate to such
U.S. underwriter's or international underwritenial commitment.

Each U.S. underwriter has severally agreed thaiaesof the distribution of the 12,000,000 shaffered by the U.S. underwriters, (i) it is |
purchasing any of the U.S. securities for the antofianyone other than a United States Persorfiarnidhas not offered or sold, and will not
offer or sell, directly or indirectly, any of the.8l securities or distribute any U.S. prospectgplament to any person outside the United
States or to anyone other than a United State®ReEsich international underwriter has severallyged that, as part of the distribution of the
3,000,000 shares offered by the international umdgars, (x) it is not purchasing any of the intational securities for the account of any
United States Person and (y) it has not offeresbit, and will not offer or sell, directly or indictly, any of the international securities or
distribute any international prospectus supplen@any person in the United States or to any Urfitedes Person.

The foregoing limitations do not apply to stabitina transactions or to certain other transactgpecified in the U.S. underwriting agreem
the international underwriting agreement and theagent between U.S. underwriters and internationdérwriters, including: (1) certain
purchases and sales between the U.S. underwritdrtha international underwriters; (2) certain offesales, resales, deliveries or
distributions to or through investment advisorsthrer persons exercising investment discretionp(@thases, offers or sales by a U.S.
underwriter who is also acting as an internatiamalerwriter or by an international underwriter wh@lso acting as a U.S. underwriter; and
(4) other transactions specifically approved byrdpresentatives. "United States Person” shall rmagperson who is a national or resident
of the United States, any corporation, partnershipther entity created or organized in or underlétws of the United States or of any
political subdivision thereof, and any estate astthe income of which is subject to United Stdtederal income taxation, regardless of its
source (other than any ndmited States branch of any United States Persol) shall include any United States branch of agreother tha
a United States Person.

Pursuant to the agreement between U.S. underwaitetsnternational underwriters, sales may be nheti@een the U.S. underwriters and the
international underwriters of such number of shasemay be mutually agreed. The price of any staresld shall be the public offering
price, less an amount not greater than the coraressisecurities dealers. To the extent that theresales between the U.S. underwriters and
the international underwriters pursuant to the egrent between U.S. underwriters and internationdéowriters, the number of shares
initially available for sale by the U.S. underwrger by the international underwriters may be nwrkess than the amount specified on the
cover page of this prospectus supplement.
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Each international underwriter has severally regamg=d and agreed that (1) it has not offered at, sold, prior to the expiration of six months
from the closing date, will not offer or sell inethunited Kingdom any international securities offtrean to persons whose ordinary activities
involve them in acquiring, holding, managing omising of investments (whether as principal or 8gfen the purpose of their business or in
circumstances which constitute an offer to the jguhlthe United Kingdom for the purposes of théoRuOffers of Securities Regulations
1995, (2) has complied and will comply with all &ipgble provisions of the Financial Services Ac8&vith respect to anything done by it in
relation to the international securities in, fromotherwise involving the United Kingdom and (3has only issued or passed on and will only
issue or pass on to any person in the United Kingdoy document received by it in connection with idsue of the international securities if
that person is of a kind described in Article 11¢8)jhe Financial Services Act 1986 (Investment ddigements) (Exemptions) Order 1996
(as amended) or is a person to whom the documenbtharwise lawfully be issued or passed on.

No action has been or will be taken in any juridit by Level 3 or the underwriters that would péramy offering to the general public of |
shares offered hereby in any jurisdiction othenttiee United States.

Purchasers of the shares offered hereby may baeddo pay stamp taxes and other charges in aanoedwith the laws and practices of the
country of purchase in addition to the offeringcprset forth on the cover page hereof.

Level 3 has agreed that, for a period of 90 daysifthe date of this prospectus supplement, itvatl without the prior written consent of
Salomon Smith Barney, offer, sell, contract to,d9s8ue, announce the offering or issuance ofstegicause to be registered or announce the
registration or intended registration of, in angeéor its own account, any shares of common stbtlevel 3, including any such shares
beneficially or indirectly owned or controlled bytel 3, or any securities convertible into or exadeable for common stock, except for: (1)
up to 3,000,000 shares of common stock issuednnexiion with acquisitions, provided that this linmay be exceeded if the purchaser of
such shares agrees to be bound for any remainitigpof the 90-day "black-out" period, (2) comm&tock issued pursuant to any employee
benefit plan, stock ownership or stock option pawividend reinvestment plan in effect on the degeeof, or options granted pursuant to
such plan in effect on the date hereof providetl shah options cannot be exercised for any remgiportion of the 90-day "black-out"

period, (3) common stock issued in connection Withinclusion of Level 3's common stock in any Majtarket Index (as defined in the
underwriting agreement), (4) maintaining the effemiess of any registration statement in placenerdate hereof or otherwise permitted t
filed under this paragraph, (5) common stock issnamnnection with the exercise of any warrantstanding on the date hereof, (6)
common stock issued to prospective employees inaxtion with such employees being hired by LevérBcommon stock issued in this
offering, the convertible notes being concurrenffigred, and the common stock issuable upon coioreds such convertible notes and upon
conversion of Level 3's existing 6% convertibleesotiue 2009 and (8) the filing, announcing or armendf a shelf registration for up to $5
billion of securities, provided that this clausé¢ $8all not permit the actual offering ("take-doynt any such securities during this "black-
out" period. Salomon Smith Barney, in its sole dition, may release any of the securities subgetitése "black-out" agreements at any time
without notice.

The common stock is quoted on the Nasdaq Natiorzak&t under the symbol "LVLT."

The U.S. underwriting agreement and the internatianderwriting agreement provide that Level 3 widemnify the several underwriters
against certain liabilities, including liabilitiesder the Securities Act, or to contribute to pagtaehe underwriters may be required to make
in respect thereof.

In connection with the offering, Salomon Smith Baynon behalf of the underwriters, may over-adotengage in syndicate covering
transactions, stabilizing transactions and peraftg. Over-allotment involves syndicate sales ahomn stock in excess of the number of
shares to be purchased by the underwriters inffeerg, which creates a syndicate short posit®yndicate covering transactions involve
purchases of the common stock in the open martetthife distribution has been completed in ordexoier syndicate short
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positions. Stabilizing transactions consist of @erbids or purchases of common stock made foptinpose of preventing or retarding a
decline in the market price of the common stocklevtiie offering is in progress. Penalty bids petimt underwriters to reclaim a selling
concession from a syndicate member when Salomoth®arney Inc., in covering syndicate short possier making stabilizing purchases,
repurchases shares originally sold by that syneliscegmber. These activities may cause the prideeo€dmmon stock to be higher than the
price that otherwise would exist in the open mankehe absence of such transactions. These trémssienay be effected on the Nasdaq
National Market or in the ov-the-counter market, or otherwise and, if commeno®aly be discontinued at any time.

In addition, in connection with this offering, cain of the underwriters (and selling group membperay engage in passive market making
transactions in Level 3's common stock on the Nadthtional Market, prior to the pricing and comjaatof the offering. Passive market
making consists of displaying bids on the NasdatjioNal Market no higher than the bid prices of ipdedent market makers and making
purchases at prices no higher than those indepebatnand effective in response to order flow. pletchases by a passive market maker on
each day are limited to a specified percentagh@phssive market maker's average daily tradingnvelin the common stock during a
specified period and must be discontinued when Bothis reached. Passive market making may c#lus@rice of Level 3's common stock
to be higher than the price that otherwise wouidtéx the open market in the absence of such acimns. If passive market making is
commenced, it may be discontinued at any time.

The following table shows the underwriting discauahd commissions that we will pay to the undeessiin connection with this offering.
These amounts are shown assuming both no exeraistihexercise of the underwriters' option to ghase additional shares of common
stock.

No Full
Exercise Exercise
PErshare.....cccoevviveeceicceeeceeeeee $ $
Lo 2= U $ $

Level 3 estimates that its total expenses of tfiesiog will be $1.1 million.

The representatives and the other underwriters bage retained to perform certain investment bapkimd advisory services for Level 3
from time to time for which they have received ousary fees and expenses. The underwriters may, tiroento time, engage in transactions
with and perform services for Level 3 in the ordineourse of their business. Some of the underwgraee acting as lead underwriters for,
initial purchasers in, the other Level 3 offeriragel are lenders under Level 3's credit facility.
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LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the common stock offered by thisgpectus supplement will be passed upon for thepaagnby Willkie Farr & Gallagher,
New York, New York. Certain legal matters relatioghis offering will be passed upon for the unddtevs by Cravath, Swaine & Moor
New York, New York.

EXPERTS

The consolidated financial statements of Level &gn@mnications, Inc. as of December 31, 1998 andhi®ear then ended, included in this
prospectus supplement have been audited by Arthdesen LLP, independent public accountants, dsdtedl in their report with respect
thereto, and are included herein in reliance uperauthority of said firm as experts in giving saggort.

The consolidated balance sheet of Level 3 Commtiaits Inc. as of December 27, 1997, and the mtlsti@tements of earnings, cash flows,
comprehensive income, and changes in stockholelguity for each of the two years in the period ehBecember 27, 1997 included in this
prospectus supplement, as well as the consolidetieshce sheets of RCN Corporation and Subsidiased December 31, 1997 and 1998
the related statements of operations, cash flomrepeehensive income, and changes in stockholdgugtyefor each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 1998, incorporated eyente in this prospectus supplement, have be&mdagt or incorporated herein in
reliance on the reports of PricewaterhouseCoopkelRs Independent accountants, given on the authofitlgat firm as experts in accounting
and auditing.
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS

ACCESS....oevevevrnreienes Telecommunications se
carriers to use local
and/or terminate long

access charges.............. The fees paid by long
originating and termi
LECs' local networks.

backbone................... A centralized high-sp
smaller, independent
of a transmission net
branch off the throug

CAP....eiiiiiiiieee Competitive Access Pr
customers with an alt
company for local tra
access telecommunicat

Ccapacity.......cccoeeuveen. The information carry
facility.
Carrier.....cccoouvecnnnne A provider of communi

fiber, wire or radio.

Central Office.............. Telephone company fac
joined to switching e
subscribers to each o

CLEC.....ccooivvieeeenn. Competitive Local Exc
competes with LECs in

common carrier.............. A government-defined
telecommunications se
public on a non-discr

conduit.......cceeerunee. A pipe, usually made
protects buried cable

dark fiber.................. Fiber optic strands t
transmission equipmen

dedicated lines............. Telecommunications li
customers.

dialing parity.............. The ability of a comp

to provide telecommun
that customers have t
without the use of an
telecommunications to
customers' designatio

equal access................ The basis upon which
are able to obtain ac
Carriers' (PIC) long
dialing "1", thus eli
digits and an authori

facilities based carriers... Carriers that own and
equipment.

fiber optics................ A technology in which
information from one
are thin filaments of
transmitted over long
of data. Modulating |
produces major benefi
relatively low cost,
needs and total insen
interference.

S-78

rvices that permit long distance
exchange facilities to originate
distance service.

distance carriers to LECs for
nating long distance calls on the

eed network that interconnects
networks. It is the through-portion
work, as opposed to spurs which
h-portions.

ovider. A company that provides its
ernative to the local exchange
nsport of private line and special
ions services.

ing ability of a telecommunications

cations transmission services by

ility where subscribers' lines are
quipment for connecting other
ther, locally and long distance.

hange Carrier. A company that
the local services market.

group of private companies offering
rvices or facilities to the general
iminatory basis.

of metal, ceramic or plastic, that
S.

hat are not connected to
t.

nes reserved for use by particular

eting local or toll service provider
ications services in such a manner
he ability to route automatically,

y access code, their

the service provider of the

n.

customers of interexchange carriers
cess to their Primary Interexchange
distance telephone network by
minating the need to dial additional
zation code to obtain such access.

operate their own network and

light is used to transport

point to another. Fiber optic cables
glass through which light beams are
distances carrying enormous amounts
ight on thin strands of glass

ts including high bandwidth,

low power consumption, small space
sitivity to electromagnetic



Gbps...coocieieeeiee Gigabits per second.
equals 1.024 billion

ILEC.....cooiiiiiiees Incumbent Local Excha
providing local telep
the Regional Bell Ope
referred to as "LEC"

interconnection............. Interconnection of fa
exchange carriers, in
colocation of one car
carrier's premises to

InterLATA.......coooenne Telecommunications se
terminating outside o

Internet.......cccee....... A global collection o
which use a specific

IntraLATA...........cce. Telecommunications se
in the same LATA.

(5575 \ Integrated Services D
transfer standard for
over telephone lines

ISPS . Internet Service Prov
access to the Interne
customers via local n

IXCorriioiiieiiee Interexchange Carrier
provides telecommunic
exchanges on an inter

(0] oL T Kilobits per second.
equals 1,024 bits of

LATA. .o Local Access and Tran
composed of contiguou
always within a singl
LATAs in the United S

leased line................. Telecommunications li
customer along predet

LEC....ooiiiiiieees Local Exchange Carrie
provides telecommunic
in which calls genera
charges. LECs include

local exchange.............. A geographic area det
regulatory authority
transmitted without t

party.

local loop.......ccceee.. A circuit that connec
office within a LATA.

long distance carriers

(interexchange carriers)... Long distance carrier
exchanges on an inter
distance carrier may
another carrier's fac

MDPS...coiiiiiiieiiiien. Megabits per second.
equals 1.024 million

A transmission rate. One gigabit
bits of information.

nge Carrier. A company historically
hone service. Often refers to one of
rating Companies (RBOCs). Often
(Local Exchange Carrier).

cilities between or among local
cluding potential physical

rier's equipment in the other
facilitate such interconnection.

rvices originating in a LATA and
f that LATA.

f interconnected computer networks
communications protocol.

rvices originating and terminating

igital Network. An information
transmitting digital voice and data
at speeds up to 128 Kbps.

iders. Companies formed to provide
t to consumers and business
etworks.

. A telecommunications company that
ations services between local
state or intrastate basis.

A transmission rate. One kilobit
information.

sport Area. A geographic area

s local exchanges, usually but not

e state. There are approximately 200
tates.

ne dedicated to a particular
ermined routes.

r. A telecommunications company that
ations services in a geographic area
lly are transmitted without toll

both ILECs and CLECs.

ermined by the appropriate state
in which calls generally are
oll charges to the calling or called

ts an end user to the LEC central

s provide services between local
state or intrastate basis. A long
offer services over its own or
ilities.

A transmission rate. One megabit
bits of information.



................ An electronic or opti

number of lower speed
speed line by splitti
into narrower bands (
a common channel to s
devices, one at a tim

......................... Network Access Point.

each other's traffic.

......................... A data communications

capable of transmitti

........................ A data communications

DS3s capable of trans
Gbps.

..................... The commercial practi

other's traffic witho
charges. Peering occu
exchange points.

......................... Point of Presence. Te

communications provid
connect customers to

................ A dedicated telecommu

user locations.

........................ Public Switched Telep

local exchange compan
generally on a shared
particular user). Tra
network is generally
company's central off

....................... Regional Bell Operati

local telephone compa
established as a resu
Currently consists of
result of the mergers
with Pacific Telesis

reciprocal compensation..... The compensation of a

call by the ILEC on t
as the compensation t
termination of local

...................... Resale by a provider

as a LEC) of such ser
on awholesale orar

...................... Equipment placed betw

those networks based
in the data packets b

....................... Synchronous Optical N

architecture for vari
enables transmission
(multimedia) at very
provides for virtuall
service in the event
rerouting traffic in
ring.

cal process that combines a large
transmission lines into one high
ng the total available bandwidth
frequency division), or by allotting
everal different transmitting

e in sequence (time division).

A location at which ISPs exchange

circuit consisting of three DS3s
ng data at 155 Mbps.

circuit consisting of forty-eight
mitting data at approximately 2.45

ce under which ISPs exchange each
ut the payment of settlement
rs at both public and private

lecommunications facility where a
er locates network equipment used to
its network backbone.

nications connection between end

hone Network. That portion of a
y's network available to all users
basis (i.e., not dedicated to a
ffic along the public switched
switched at the local exchange
ices.

ng Companies. Originally, the seven
nies (formerly part of AT&T)

It of the AT&T Divestiture.

four local telephone companies as a
of Bell Atlantic with NYNEX and SBC
and Ameritech.

CLEC for termination of a local

he CLEC's network, which is the same
hat the CLEC pays the ILEC for

calls on the ILEC's network.

of telecommunications services (such
vices to other providers or carriers
etail basis.

een networks that relays data to
upon a destination address contained
eing routed.

etwork. An electronics and network
able bandwidth products which

of voice, data and video

high speeds. SONET ring architecture
y instantaneous restoration of

of a fiber cut by automatically

the opposite direction around the



special access services..... The lease of private,

unbundled............

unbundled access

web site................

wireless................

world wide web or

or "circuits" along t
company or a CAP, whi
the long distance car
access services are t
between POPs of a sin
long distance carrier
distance carrier or f
carrier POP.

... A device that selects
for transmission of i
connection. Switching
circuits to form a tr
also captures informa

... Terabits per second.
equals 1.024 trillion

. A data communications
data at 1.544 Mbps.

....... Services, programs, s
from the hardware.

............ Access to unbundled e
services provider's n
equipment, features,
technically feasible

... A server connected to
users can obtain info

... A communications syst
Cellular service is a

web....... A collection of compu
communications protoc
presentation of infor

... Atterm referring to a
Line technologies. So
asymmetric with diffe
and upstream directio
speeds range from 384
("ADSL").
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gle long distance carrier, from one
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rom an end user to a long distance

the paths or circuits to be used
nformation and establishes a

is the process of interconnecting
ansmission path between users and it
tion for billing purposes.

A transmission rate. One terabit
bits of information.

circuit capable of transmitting

oftware and training sold separately

lements of a telecommunications
etwork including network facilities,
functions and capabilities, at any
point within such network.

the Internet from which Internet
rmation.

em that operates without wires.
n example.

ter systems supporting a
ol that permits multimedia
mation over the Internet.

variety of new Digital Subscriber

me of these new varieties are

rent data rates in the downstream
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Kbps (or "SDSL") to 1.5 to 8 Mbps



LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(formerly, Peter Kiewit Sons', Inc.)

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Financial Statements as of September 30, 1999 and f or the three months
and nine months ended September 30, 1999 and Septe mber 30, 1998
(unaudited):

Consolidated Condensed Statements of Operations..
Consolidated Condensed Balance Sheets............
Consolidated Condensed Statements of Cash Flows..
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders
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for the three years ended December 31, 1998:
Reports of Independent Public Accountants
Consolidated Statements of Earnings
Consolidated Balance Sheets......................
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Schedules not indicated above have been omittealisef the absence of the conditions under whiey are required or because the
information called for is shown in the consolidafedncial statements or in the notes thereto.
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

REVENUE......oiiveiieieee e $

Costs and Expenses:
Cost of revenue..........ccceeeeeeiieeeenne
Depreciation and amortization
Selling, general and administrative
EXPENSES. ...oeiririiainieniieerireesieens
Write-off of in-process research &
development..........coccveeiiiiiineennne

Total costs and expenses...................

Loss from Operations............ccccceeeueee. (
Other Income (Expense):
Interest income.........ccccoevvvevenninns
Interest expense, Net........cccccuvenene
Gain on equity investee stock transactions...
Other, Net.......cooccvveiiiiiiieeeins

Total other income (expense)...............
Loss Before Income Taxes and Discontinued
Operations .......ccccvvvveeeieeieeeeeennnnnns
Income Tax Benefit....

Loss from Continuing Operations................ (
Discontinued Operations:
Gain on split-off of Construction Group......
Gain on disposition of energy business, net
of income tax expense of $175...............

Earnings from discontinued operations........

Net Earnings (LOSS)........cccoveeevveenns $(

Earnings (Loss) Per Share (Basic and Diluted):

Continuing operations

(unaudited)

See accompanying notes to consolidated condensaucial statements.
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ee Months  Nine Months
Ended Ended
tember 30, September 30,

(dollars in millions,
except share data)
134 $ 106 $ 342 $ 296

100 47 243 138
63 15 155 31

178 96 460 199

207) (52) (516) (102)

51 53 158 124
(34) (46) (132) (86)
5 4 116 25
(35) (31) (65) (78)

220) (72) (439) (117)
73 23 143 28

147) (49) (296) (89)

- - -~ 608

147) $ (49) $ (296) $ 843

43) $ (.16) $ (.89) $ (.30)

- $- 8- $311

43) $ (.16) $ (.89) $ 2.81

43)$(.16) $ (.89) $ .78




LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

(unaudited)
September 30, December 31,
1999 1998
(dollars in millions)

Assets
Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents................c....... .. $1,486 $ 842

Marketable securities................ . . 2,732 2,863

Restricted cash and securities................... . 528 32

Accounts receivable, net........... . . 118 57

Income taxes receivable..............c........... . 163 54

Other. i 43 29
Total Current ASSetS......cevvveeeeiiiiiininennns .. 5,070 3,877
Property, Plant and Equipment, net................. . 3,072 1,061
Investments.........cceeeeeveeiiieieeeeiiiin, . 363 323
Other Assets, Net......ccccveveeeeiiiiiiiiiiines . 330 261

See accompanying notes to consolidated condensucial statements.
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

(unaudited)

September 30, December 31,
1999 1998
(dollars in millions,

except share data)
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable

........................... . $ 653 $ 276
Current portion of long-term debt .

6 5
Accrued payroll and employee benefits............ . 62 16
Accrued interest........cccocveeeeiiiiiieeenne . 81 33
Deferred revenue . 84 1
Other......ocoiviiiie s 53 39
Total Current Liabilities............cccccoeueee. 939 370
Long-Term Debt, less current portion............... 3,977 2,641
Deferred Income Taxes...........ccccevennee 40 86
Accrued Reclamation Costs 97 96
Other Liabilities..........ccocveriiiiieeiinnns 251 164
Commitments and Contingencies
Stockholders' Equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value, authorized
10,000,000 shares;
no shares outstanding in 1999 and 1998........... - -
Common Stock:
Common Stock, $.01 par value, authorized
1,500,000,000 shares;
340,689,116 shares outstanding in 1999
and 307,874,706 outstanding in 1998............. 3 3
Class R, $.01 par value, authorized
8,500,000 shares; no shares outstanding in 1999
and 1998........ccooviiiiiiiiiee e - -
Additional paid-in capital......................... 2,435 765
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income...... 4) 4

Retained earnings

Total Stockholders' Equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated condensucial statements.
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(unaudited)

Cash flows from continuing operations:
Net cash provided by continuing operations.......
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales and maturities of marketable
SECUNMTIES...evveieiiieee e
Purchases of marketable securities...............
Capital expenditures...........ccccceeevuveennn.
INVeStMENtS.........vvvieeiiieiieeiiiiiie
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipme
other investments...........cccooeeveveinnns

Net cash used in investing activities............

Cash flows from financing activities:
Issuance of long-term debt, net of issuance costs
Payments on long-term debt including current port
Increase in cash and restricted securities.......
Issuances of common stocK...........ccccceeveeee
Proceeds from exercise of stock options..........

Exchange of Class C Stock for Common Stock, net..

Net cash provided by financing activities........
Cash flows from discontinued operations:

Proceeds from sale of energy operations, net of i

payments of $144 million...............c.coe...

Net cash provided by discontinued operations.....

Net change in cash and cash equivalents............
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year.....

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period.........

Nine Months
Ended
September 30,

1999 1998

(dollars in
millions)

.......... $ 408 $ 128

.......... 4,369 2,882
.......... (4,254) (5,132)
.......... (2,154)  (409)
.......... (B)  (24)

ion....... B @

The activities of the Construction & Mining Groupve been removed from the consolidated condenatahstnts of cash flows in 1998. The
Construction Group had cash flows of ($62) millfonthe three months ended March 31, 1998.

See accompanying notes to consolidated condensaucfal statements.
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

For the nine months ended September 30, 1999

(unaudited)
Accumulated
Additional Other
Common Paid-in C omprehensive Retained
Stock Capital | ncome (Loss) Earnings Total
(dolla rs in millions)
Balance at December 31, 1998.. $ 3 $ 765 $4  $1,393 $2,165
Common Stock:
Issuances, net.............. -- 1,504 -- - 1,504
Stock options exercised..... - 18 - - 18
Stock option grants......... -- 88 -- -- 88
Income tax benefit from
exercise of options........ - 60 -- - 60
Net LOSS......ccceeeviuvnenn. - - -- (296) (296)
Other Comprehensive Loss...... -- -- (8) -- (8)
Balance at September 30,
1999, $3 $2,435 $ (4) $1,097 $3,531

See accompanying notes to consolidated condensaucfal statements.
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)

(unaudited)
Three Months  Nine Months
En ded Ended
Septem ber 30, September 30,
1999 1998 1999 1998
(d ollars in millions)
Net (Loss) Earnings............cccveene... $ (14 7)$ (49)$ (296) $ 843
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Before
Tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustments.. 9 - 1 1
Unrealized holding loss arising during
01 [0 To -- 4) 2 @
Reclassification adjustment for gains
included in net (loss) earnings.......... - - (12) (8)

Income Tax (Expense) Benefit Related to
Items of Other Comprehensive Income

(oSS RS ( 3) 1 5 3
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Net of

TAXES .o 6 (3) (@B (B
Comprehensive (Loss) Income................. $ (14 1)$ (52) $ (304) $ 838

See accompanying notes to consolidated condensautcial statements.
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENT S--(Unaudited)
1. Basis of Presentation

The consolidated condensed balance sheet of Le@ehBnunications, Inc. and subsidiaries ("Level B8the "Company"), at December 31,
1998 has been condensed from the Company's alwditedce sheet as of that date. All other finarat@lements contained herein are
unaudited and, in the opinion of management, corgtiadjustments (consisting only of normal remgraccruals) necessary for a fair
presentation of financial position, results of @iiems and cash flows for the periods presented.démpany's accounting policies and ce
other disclosures are set forth in the notes tetimsolidated financial statements contained elsesvherein. These financial statements
should be read in conjunction with the Companytfitad consolidated financial statements and nditeieto. The preparation of the
consolidated condensed financial statements inoconify with generally accepted accounting princiiequires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the repartemint of assets and liabilities, disclosure ofticgent assets and liabilities and the
reported amount of revenue and expenses duringfoeted period. Actual results could differ fronese estimates.

The Company has embarked on a plan to becomelii¢aebased provider (that is, a provider that ewan leases a substantial portion of the
property, plant and equipment necessary to pratsdgervices) of a broad range of integrated comaoations services in the United States,
Europe and Asia. To reach this goal, the Compaexpgnding substantially the business of its PK8rination Services, Inc. subsidiary and
creating, through a combination of constructiorrchase and leasing of facilities and other asaetiternational, end-to-end, facilitibasec
communications network (the "Business Plan"). Then@any is building the network based on Internetdiol technology in order to
leverage the efficiencies of this technology tovidle lower cost communications services.

In 1997, the Company agreed to sell its energytassdidAmerican Energy Holding Company, Inc. (#lCalEnergy Company, Inc.)
("MidAmerican") and to separate the constructioprations ("Construction Group") from the Company. January 2, 1998, the Company
completed the sale of its energy assets to MidAcaariOn March 31, 1998, the Company completedgliecff of the Construction Group
stockholders that held Class C Stock. Thereforeréisults of operations of both businesses have dlassified as discontinued operations on
the consolidated condensed statements of operdtiod998.

On May 1, 1998, the Company's Board of Directo@mngfed Level 3's fiscal year end from the last Satyiin December to a calendar year
end. The additional four days for the period enddegptember 30, 1998, were not material to the dvesults of operations and cash flows.

The results of operations for the nine months er@atember 30, 1999, are not necessarily indicafitiee results expected for the full year.

Where appropriate, items within the consolidatendemsed financial statements have been reclas#ifiedthe previous periods to conform
to current period presentation.

2. Reorganization--Discontinued Construction Openat

Prior to March 31, 1998, the Company had a twosctapital structure. The Company's Class C Stdtdcted the performance of the
Construction Group and the Class D Stock refletitecberformance of the other businesses, includamgmunications, information services
and coal mining. In 1997 the Board of Directord efel 3 approved a proposal for the separatiom@®iQonstruction Group from the other
operations of the Company through a split-off @& @onstruction Group (the "Split-off"). In Decemld®97, the Company's stockholders
approved the Split-off and in March 1998, the Comypi@ceived a ruling from the Internal Revenue ®erthat stated the Split-off would be
tax-free to U.S. stockholders. The Split-off was
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENT S--(Continued)

effected on March 31, 1998. As a result of thetSyfi the Company no longer owns any intereshim €onstruction Group. Accordingly, the
separate financial statements and managementissdiesn and analysis of financial condition and itssef operations of Peter Kiewit Sons',
Inc. should be obtained to review the results @rapons of the Construction Group for the threethe ended March 31, 1998.

On March 31, 1998, the Company reflected the falue of the Construction Group as a distributiotheClass C stockholders because the
distribution was considered non-pro rata as contpréhe Company's previous two-class capital sshekcture. The Company recognized a
gain of $608 million within discontinued operatioesjual to the difference between the carryingealithe Construction Group and its fair
value in accordance with Financial Accounting Stadd Board Emerging Issues Task Force Issue 98eg¢ounting for Reorganizations
Involving a Non-Pro Rata Split-off of Certain Nonnadary Assets to Owners". No taxes were providethisgain due to the tax-free nature
of the Split-off.

In connection with the Splitff, the Class D Stock became the common stockesEL3 Communications, Inc. ("Common Stock"), ahdrdy
thereafter, began trading on the Nasdaq Nationak&lainder the symbol "LVLT".

3. Discontinued Energy Operations

On January 2, 1998, the Company completed theo$itte energy assets to MidAmerican. These aseetsded approximately 20.2 million
shares of MidAmerican common stock (assuming tleeatse of 1 million options held by Level 3), Lex3% 30% interest in CE Electric and
Level 3's investments in international power prtgea Indonesia and the Philippines. Level 3 reéogphan after-tax gain on the disposition
of $324 million and the aftetax proceeds of approximately $967 million frore thransaction are being used in part to fund tharigss Plar
Results of operations for the period through Jan@af 998 were not considered significant and #ia gn disposition was calculated using
the carrying amount of the energy assets as of Deee27, 1997.

4. Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Basic earnings (loss) per share have been compsied the weighted average number of shares dednf period. The Company had a loss
from continuing operations for the three and nirenth periods ended September 30, 1999 and 1998efbine, the dilutive impact of the
Convertible Subordinated Notes and the 21,534,48®8ms and warrants outstanding at September 39 aad 19,690,144 options and
warrants outstanding at September 30, 1998 haveawsst included in the computation of diluted eagsifioss) per share because the
resulting computation would have been anti-dilutive

Effective August 10, 1998, the Company issued &ldivd of one share of Level 3 Common Stock for esk@re of Level 3 Common Stock
outstanding. All share information and per shate thave been restated to reflect the stock dividend
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENT S--(Continued)

The following details the earnings (loss) per stealeulations for Level 3 Common Stock:

Three Mon ths Nine Months
Ended Ended
September 30, September 30,
1999 1998 1999 1998
( in millions)
Loss From Continuing Operations........ $ (147)$ (49) $ (296) $ (89)

Discontinued Operations:
Gain on Split-off of Construction

GroUP...cveveiiieieieeeeeeeieeee -- - - 608
Earnings from Discontinued Energy
Operations.........cccceeeeveerenn.. - - -- 324

Earnings from Discontinued
Operations - - - 932

Net Earnings (Loss) (49)$ (296) $ 843

Outstanding Used to Compute Basic and
Diluted Earnings per Share (in
thousands).........ccceeveeeiinene 340,298 3 06,515 332,039 300,151

Diluted):

Continuing operations (.116) $ (.89) $ (.30)

- $ - $311

(16)$ (.89) $ 2.81

(16)$ (.89)$ .78

5. Acquisitions

On January 5, 1999, Level 3 acquired BusinessNet(LBusinessNet"), a leading London-based Inteseetice provider in a largely stock-
for-stock transaction valued at $12 million andaated for as a purchase. After completion of ceadjustments, the Company agreed to
issue approximately 400,000 shares of Common Stodkpaid $1 million in cash in exchange for altte# issued and outstanding shares of
BusinessNet's capital stock. Of the approximat@ly,d00 shares Level 3 agreed to issue in connegfithrthe acquisition, approximately
150,000 shares of Level 3 Common Stock have besigptl to Level 3 to secure certain indemnificatibhigations of the former
BusinessNet stockholders. In October 1999, Levelé&ased approximately 42,000 shares pursuanetadfuisition agreement. The pledg
the remaining shares will terminate approximatedyrionths from the acquisition date, unless otheneigended pursuant to the terms of the
acquisition agreement. Liabilities exceeded assaisired, and goodwill of $16 million was recogmiZeom the transaction which is being
amortized over five years.

On April 23, 1998, the Company acquired XCOM Tedbgi@s, Inc. ("XCOM"), a privately held company theas developed technology
which provides certain key components necessarthtoCompany to develop an interface between itsriet Protocobased network and t
existing public switched telephone network. The @any issued approximately 5.3 million shares ofdlé/Common Stock and 0.7 million
options and warrants to purchase Level 3 CommocokStoexchange for all the stock, options and wagaf XCOM.

The Company accounted for this transaction, vaatell 54 million, as a purchase. Of the total puseharice, $115 million was originally
allocated to in-process research and developmehivas taken as a non-deductible charge to earmirthe second quarter of 1998. The
purchase price exceeded the fair value of the sesta acquired by $30 million which was recognagdoodwill.
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In October 1998, the Securities and Exchange Cogiomig"SEC") issued new guidelines for valuing dcepliresearch and development
which are applied retroactively. The Company belgeits accounting for the acquisition was madecocoedance with generally accepted
accounting principles and established appraisatioes at the time of the acquisition. However, tuthe significance of the charge relative
to the total value of the acquisition, the Compeawiewed the facts with the SEC. Consequently,giie revised guidelines and
assumptions, the Company reduced the charge famicess research and development from $115 milid80 million, and increased the
related goodwill by $85 million. The goodwill assated with the XCOM transaction is being amortipe@r a five year period. The results
the three and nine months ended September 30,H:&8been restated to reflect the reduced charde-frocess research and development
and increased amortization expense.

The Company believes that its resulting chargeéguired research and development conforms toE@EsSexpressed guidelines and
methodologies. However, no assurances can be thaethe SEC will not require additional adjustnsent

The cumulative operating results of BusinessNetOXCand other 1998 acquisitions were not significadtive to the Company's 1999 and
1998 results.

For the Company's acquisitions, the excess purgbraseover the fair market value of the underlyasgets was allocated to goodwill and
other intangible assets and property based updimimary estimates of fair value. The final purcégsice allocation for XCOM did not vary
significantly from preliminary estimates. The Compaloes not believe that the final purchase priloeation will vary significantly from the
preliminary estimates for the entities acquire@raBeptember 30, 1998.

6. Property, Plant and Equipment, net
Construction in Progress

The Company is currently constructing its commuitiices network. Costs associated directly with theampleted network and interest
expense incurred during construction are capitdlizEsed on the weighted average accumulated cotistrexpenditures and the interest
rates related to borrowings associated with thetroation. Certain gateway facilities, local netk®and operating equipment have been
placed in service during 1999. These assets ang loepreciated over their useful lives, primardpnging from 3-25 years. As other segments
of the network are placed in service, the assdtdwidepreciated over their useful lives.

The Company is currently developing business sumystems required for its Business Plan. The patefirect costs of software, materials
and services, payroll and payroll related expefaesmployees directly associated with the progeat interest costs incurred when
developing the business support systems are dapdalJpon completion of the projects, the totatsmf the business support systems are
amortized over their useful lives of 3 years.

For the nine months ended September 30, 1999,dhg@ény invested $2,021 million in its communicasidusiness, including $825 million
on the U.S. intercity network, $464 million on imational networks, $144 million on transoceanitwagks and $419 million on gateway
facilities and local networks.
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Capitalized business support systems and netwarktieaction costs that have not been placed in gehave been classified as construction-
in- progress within Property, Plant and Equipmezibt.

Accumulated Book
Cost Depreciation Value
(dollars in millions)
September 30, 1999

Land and Mineral Properties...............cc....... .$ 41 $(16) $ 25
Facility and Leasehold Improvements:

ComMUNICALIONS.....cccvvveeeeiiieee e . 162 4) 158
Information Services..........cccccvvvveeerennn.. . 26 ) 23
Coal MiNiNg........cuvvieierieeeeneiiiiiiiiieiens . 73 (63) 10
CPTC ittt .91 (8) 83
Operating Equipment:

CommuUNICAtIONS......ccvvevieeeeeeiiiiiiiiiines . 369 (64) 305
Information Services..........cccccvvvveeenennnn. . 59 (36) 23
Coal Mining.........ccoeviiiiieiiiiiieeeee. . 115 (104) 11
CPTC ittt .17 (6) 11
Network Construction Equipment..................... . 91 7 84
Furniture and Office Equipment.................... . 103 (33) 70
Other...ccoiiiiiii et . 126 (31) 95
Construction-in-Progress..........ccccccceevveeen. . 2,174 -- 2,174

$3,447 $(375) $3,072

December 31, 1998
Land and Mineral Properties $ 37 $(16) $ 21
Facility and Leasehold Improvements:

CommUNICAtIONS......cevveveeeeeeeieiiieiiiies 80 Q) 79
24 ) 22
74 (61) 13
91 (5) 86
Operating Equipment:
ComMUNICALIONS.....cccviveeeeiiiieee e 245  (18) 227
Information Services..........cccceviieeeeannns 53 (30) 23
Coal MiNiNg.......ccuvveeieiieeeeneniiiiiiiiniens 119 (104) 15
CPTC. e 17 4) 13
Network Construction Equipment..................... 46 Q) 45
Furniture and Office Equipment.................... 67 (10) 57
Other....ooiiiiieceeeeeee e 72 ) 70
Construction-in-Progress.........cccccccvveeeenn.. 390 - 390

$1,315 $(254) $1,061

7. Investments

The Company holds significant equity positionsvio fpublicly traded companies; RCN Corporation ("RTCahd Commonwealth Telephone
Enterprises, Inc. ("Commonwealth Telephone"). REM facilities-based provider of communicationyisess to the residential market
primarily in the northeastern United States andf@alia. RCN provides local and long distance phaable television and Internet services
in several markets; including Boston, New York, Wagton, D.C., and California's San Francisco to Bago corridor.

Commonwealth Telephone holds Commonwealth Telepmmepany, an incumbent local exchange carrier d¢ipgran various rural
Pennsylvania markets, and CTSI, Inc., a competitieal exchange carrier which commenced operaiioi997.

On September 30, 1999, Level 3 owned approxim@®dg and 48% of the outstanding shares of RCN amdn@mnwealth Telephone,
respectively, and accounts for each entity usiegetiuity method. The market value of the Company&sstment in the two entities was
$1,092 million and $468 million, respectively, oapffember 30, 1999.
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The Company recognizes gains from the sale, isguand repurchase of stock by its subsidiaries godyemethod investees in its statement
of operations. During 1999, RCN issued stock iuhlip offering and for certain transactions whichuttd the Company's ownership of RCN
from 41% at December 31, 1998 to 35% at Septenbet®9. The increase in the Company's proport@share of RCN's net assets as a
result of these transactions resulted in a preggan of $5 million and $116 million for the Compafy the three and nine months ended
September 30, 1999. The Company also recognizeghaof$4 million and $25 million for the three anithe months ended September 30,
1998 related to stock transactions of RCN.

In October 1999, RCN announced that Vulcan Ventures had agreed to invest $1.65 billion in RCNisTtransaction, expected to close
during the first quarter of 2000, is in the formpoéferred stock convertible to 26.6 million shasé®RCN common stock. The preferred shi
must be converted to common shares within a tlrseven year period at $62 per share. Level 3do@seurrent market conditions, expects
to recognize a significant gain when Vulcan Vensutac. converts its RCN preferred stock to RCN gmmn stock.
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The following is summarized financial informatiohRCN and Commonwealth Telephone for the threerand months ended September 30,
1999 and 1998, and as of September 30, 1999 anehiiber 31, 1998:

Th

Operations

RCN Corporation:
REeVENUE.........ccocveeecieccee e $
Net loss available to common shareholders.....
Level 3's share:
NetloSS....ccovvviiiiiieeeeeeee
Goodwill amortization...............cce..

Equity in net 10SS........cccoeveierennne. $

Commonwealth Telephone Enterprises:
REVENUE........eeiiiiieiiieeie e $

Net income available to common shareholders...

Level 3's share:
Netincome......cccceeeeviveiiiiciiiiienes
Goodwill amortization........................

Equity in netincome.............c.......... $

Financial Position

Current assets........cceeeveevveeieveeennnn. $1
Other assets......ccocvveevieieeeeeeieeieinn, 1
Total assets.....ccccceeeevvveiciiiiiiinenns 2

Current liabilities............cccccvvveveennns
Other liabilities.....
Minority interest....

Total liabilities and preferred stock......... 2
Common EqUity.......ccceeevveevneeennen. $
Level 3's share:
Equity in net assets.........ccocoeeeeeenne $
GOOAWIll....ooiiiiiiciiiec e
$

Investments at September 30, 1999 and Decembé@©998,also include $23 million for the Company'saistiment in the Pavilion Towers

office buildings in Aurora, Colorado.

ree Months  Nine Months
Ended Ended
ptember 30, September 30,

999 1998 1999 1998

(in millions)

70 $ 58 $ 204 $ 148
(96) (53) (232) (170)

37) (22) (89) (75)
- - -

(37)% (22)$ (90) $ (75)

68 $ 58 $ 192 $ 167
6 3 17 12

Commonwealth
RCN Telephone
orporation  Enterprises

999 1998 1999 1998

,704 $1,093 $ 85 $ 79
, 150 815 403 354
,854 1,908 488 433
192 178 84 85

, 766 1,282 262 223

336 1,537 346 308

518 $ 371 $ 142 $ 125

184 $ 150 $ 68 $ 60
26 34 54 56

210 $ 184 $ 122 $ 116




LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENT S--(Continued)
8. Other Assets, net

At September 30, 1999 and December 31, 1998 offsetsconsisted of the following:

1999 1998
(in
millions)
Goodwill:
XCOM, net of accumulated amortization of $32 and $15............... $ 80 $100
GeoNet, net of accumulated amortization of $3 and $1..s 18 20
BusinessNet, net of accumulated amortization of $ 3and $--......... 13 --
Other, net of accumulated amortization of $5 and $1.. 15 19
Prepaid Network ASSetS......cccccvvvvvveenneceees e 51 --
Debt Issuance COStS......cccccvvvviiieiiineneees e 106 67
Deferred Development and Financing Costs........... s 15 15
Unrecovered Mine Development COStS.......cccccceeee. i, 14 15
LEASES. oot e 6 9
Timberlands.......cccoovvviiviiiees e 3 3
L1 T 9 13
Total other assets.......cccccoevvvveeeeeeeeees e, $330 $261

9. Long-Term Debt
6% Convertible Subordinated Notes

On September 14, 1999, the Company received $78i8mof proceeds, after transaction costs, fronoHaring of $823 million aggregate
principal amount of its 6% Convertible Subordinaimtes Due 2009 ("Subordinated Notes"). The Sulbatdid Notes are unsecured and
subordinated to all existing and future senior biddness of the Company. Interest on the notesi@set 6% per year and is payable each
year in cash on March 15 and September 15. Theipaghamount of the notes will be due on SeptemiBe2009. The Subordinated No
may be converted into shares of common stock o€tirapany at any time prior to maturity, unless@umpany has caused the conversion
rights to expire. The conversion rate is 15.34Hreh per each $1,000 principal amount of Suborelihbiotes, subject to adjustment in cel
circumstances. On or after September 15, 2002,Il3\a its option, may cause the conversion rightsxpire. Level 3 may exercise this
option only if the current market price exceedsrapimately $91.27 (which represents 140% of theveosion price) for 20 trading days
within any period of 30 consecutive trading dayduding the last day of that period.

Debt issuance costs of $25 million were capitaliaed are being amortized as interest expense lbgdetm of the Subordinated Notes.
Senior Secured Credit Facilities

On September 30, 1999, certain Level 3 subsidiarésred into $1.375 billion of secured creditliies ("Senior Secured Credit Facilities").
The facilities are comprised of a senior securedlving credit facility in the amount of $650 mdl and a two-tranche senior secured term
loan facility aggregating $725 million. The secutedn loan facility consists of a $450 million tcdre A and a $275 million tranche B term
loan facility.

On September 30, 1999, Level 3 borrowed $475 millinder the secured term loan facility. The $47lioniand prepaid interest have been
placed in an interest bearing escrow account thilCompany receives the remaining state regul@ppyovals necessary to close this
financing. The Company expects to receive all theessary regulatory approvals during the fourthteuaf 1999.
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The obligations under the revolving credit facilétse secured by substantially all the assets oélL&and, subject to certain exceptions, its
wholly owned domestic subsidiaries (other thanlibeower under the term loan facilities). Such tsgéll also secure a portion of the term
loan facilities. Additionally, all obligations undthe term loan facilities will be secured by tlgigpment that is purchased with the proceeds
of the term loan facilities.

Amounts drawn under the secured credit facility béar interest, at the option of the Companyhatdaiternate base rate or reserve-adjusted
LIBOR plus applicable margins. The applicable masdor the revolving credit facility and trancheékm loan facility range from 50 to 175
basis points over the alternate base rate and f&6to 275 basis points over LIBOR and are fixedlfe tranche B term loan facility at 2.5%
over the alternate base rate and 3.5% over LIBORrést and commitment fees on the revolving cifeditity and the term loan facilities are
payable quarterly with specific rates determinechbial borrowings under each facility.

The revolving credit facility provides for auton@atind permanent quarterly reductions of the amawvailable for borrowing under that
facility, commencing at $17.25 million on March 2D04, and increasing to approximately $61 millp@n quarter. The tranche A term loan
facility amortizes in consecutive quarterly paynsdmé¢ginning on March 31, 2004, commencing at $8aniper quarter and increasing to
$58.5 million per quarter. The revolving creditifiig and tranche A term loan facility mature onpember 30, 2007. The tranche B term |
facility amortizes with substantially all of thehsmluled payments due in equal amounts from Mar¢cR@17 to January 15, 2008.

The Senior Secured Credit Facilities contain certavenants, which among other things, limit addiil indebtedness, dividend payments,
certain investments and transactions with affiateevel 3 and the borrowers must also comply sjitecific financial and operational tests
and maintain certain financial ratios.

Debt Issuance costs of $23 million were capitalizad will be amortized as interest expense oveteitmas of the Senior Secured Credit
Facilities.

Level 3 currently intends to use the proceeds fiteenSenior Secured Credit Facilities and Subordahatotes for working capital, capital
expenditures and other general corporate purpasasinection with the implementation of its busspkan, including the acquisition of
telecommunications assets.

9.125% Senior Notes

On April 28, 1998, the Company received $1.94 dmllof net proceeds from an offering of $2 billiaggeegate principal amount 9.125%
Senior Notes Due 2008 ("Senior Notes"). Interesth@nnotes accrues at 9.125% per year and is pagalbWiay 1 and November 1 each year
in cash.

Debt issuance costs of $65 million were capitalized are being amortized as interest expense bedetm of the Senior Notes.
10.5% Senior Discount Notes

On December 2, 1998, the Company sold $834 milliggregate principal amount at maturity of 10.5%i@eDiscount Notes Due 2008
("Senior Discount Notes"). The sales proceeds 60$5illion, excluding debt issuance costs, weremed as long term debt. Interest on
Senior Discount Notes accretes at a rate of 10.80&apnum, compounded semiannually, to an aggregaapal amount of $834 million by
December 1, 2003. Cash interest will not accrutherSenior Discount Notes prior to December 1, 2008/ever, the Company may elect to
commence the accrual of cash interest on all audgtg Senior Discount Notes on or after Decemb@00,1. Accrued interest expense for
nine months ended September 30, 1999 on the S@isioount Notes of $40 million was added to longrtatebt.
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Debt issuance costs of $14 million have been dag@thand are being amortized as interest expewvesetbe term of the Senior Discount
Notes.

The Company capitalized $35 and $65 million of iegt expense and amortized debt issuance costsdétanetwork construction and
business systems development projects for the tmdeine months ended September 30, 1999 andIB&nnaind $6 million for the three a
nine months ended September 30, 1998.

10. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company adopted the recognition provisionsFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock Based Compeisét{"SFAS No. 123") in 1998.
Under SFAS No. 123, the fair value of an optiond@siputed in accordance with accepted option viamamhodels) on the date of grant is
amortized over the vesting periods of the optidie recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 are egapprospectively upon adoption. As a
result, the recognition provisions are applieditetack awards granted in the year of adoption arednot applied to awards granted in
previous years unless those awards are modifisdttied in cash after adoption of the recognitimvisions. Although the recognition of the
value of the stock awards results in compensatigrafessional expenses in an entity's financetieshents, the expense differs from other
compensation and professional expenses in that ttemges will not be settled in cash, but rathenerally, through issuance of common
stock.

The Company believes that the adoption of SFASI28.will result in material non-cash charges torapens in 1999 and thereafter. The
amount of the non-cash charges will be dependemt amumber of factors, including the number ohtgand the fair value of each grant
estimated at the time of its award.

Non-Qualified Stock Options and Warrants

The Company granted 55,100 nonqualified stock optisith a fair value of $1 million ("NQSQ") to engylees during the nine months ended
September 30, 1999. The expense recognized fahtbe and nine months ended September 30, 1999G&O0s and warrants outstanding at
September 30, 1999 in accordance with SFAS Nowi#3$1 million and $5 million, respectively. In #@ilth to the expense recognized, the
Company capitalized less than $1 million and $liomlof non-cash compensation costs for the threerdne months ended September 30,
1999, respectively, related to NQSOs and warramtemployees directly involved in the constructadrihe Internet Protocol network and the
development of the business support systems. Sgpfember 30, 1999, the Company had not recogfizaxillion of compensation costs
for NQSOs and warrants granted in 1998 and 1998.(dmpany recognized $3 million and $9 million rpense for the three and nine
months ended September 30, 1998 for NQSOs andntsugeanted during the nine months ended SepteBihdr998. In addition to the
expense recognized, the Company capitalized $lomitif non- cash compensation costs for the thnelenine months ended September 30,
1998.

Outperform Stock Option Plan

In April 1998, the Company adopted an outperforatistoption ("*OSO") program that was designed sotttmCompany's stockholders
would receive a market return on their investmegfibte OSO holders receive any return on their ogtidhe Company believes that the C
program aligns directly management's and stockinglldeerests by basing stock option value on tam@any's ability to outperfom the
market in general, as measured by the Standardo&P@FS&P") 500 Index. Participants in the OSOgream do not realize any value from
awards unless the Common Stock price outperformS&P 500 Index. When the stock price gain is gretiat the corresponding gain on
the S&P 500 Index, the value received for awardteuthe OSO plan is based on a formula involvimgugtiplier related to the level by whi
the Common
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Stock outperforms the S&P 500 Index. To the extieat the Common Stock outperforms the S&P 500y#iee of OSOs to a holder may
exceed the value of non-qualified stock options.

OSO grants are made quarterly to participants eyeplon the date of the grant. Each award vestgualequarterly installments over two
years and has a fc-year life. Each award typically has a two-year atorium on exercising from the date of grant. Assult, once a
participant is 100% vested in the grant, the twaryaoratorium expires. Therefore, each grant hasxarcise window of two years.

The fair value recognized under SFAS No. 123 feral809,247 OSOs granted to employees for serpedsrmed for the nine months enc
September 30, 1999 was $139 million. The Compaoggeized $35 million and $74 million of compensatexpense for the three and nine
months ended September 30, 1999 for OSOs grantE2bid and 1998. In addition to the expense receghni2 million and $5 million of
non-cash compensation was capitalized for the thinelenine months ended September 30, 1999 for geqsadirectly involved in the
construction of the Internet Protocol network aegielopment of business support systems. As of 8dqae30, 1999, the Company had not
recognized $99 million of compensation costs fold@granted in 1998 and 1999. The Company recogii@edillion and $14 million of
expense for the three and nine months ended Septe88h1998 for OSOs outstanding at September®i8.1n addition to the expense
recognized the Company capitalized $1 million ofihcash compensation for the three and nine manttisd September 30, 1998.

Shareworks and Restricted Stock

The Company recorded $3 million and $7 million ohrcash compensation expense for the three andmonéhs ended September 30, 1999
related to the Shareworks and restricted stockrarog adopted in the third quarter of 1998. As gqft&mber 30, 1999, the Company had not
recognized $9 million of compensation costs forr8harks and restricted stock granted in 1998 arg®1%he non-cash compensation
expense for the Shareworks and restricted stodiranes was less than $1 million for the three ané months ended September 30, 1998.

11. Stockholders' Equity

On March 9, 1999 the Company closed the offering&7¥5 million shares of its Common Stock througtuaderwritten public offering. The
net proceeds from the offering of approximately5$dillion after underwriting discounts and offeriagpenses will be used for working
capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions an&iotgeneral corporate purposes in connection wihrtiplementation of the Company's
Business Plan.

12. Industry Data

In 1998, the Company adopted SFAS No. 131 "Discesabout Segments of an Enterprise and Relatedhafion”. SFAS No. 131
establishes standards for reporting informatioruélbperating segments in annual financial statesn@mtl requires selected information ak
operating segments in interim financial reportsiéssto stockholders. Operating segments are compgooéan enterprise for which separate
financial information is available and which is Biated regularly by the Company's chief operatiagision maker, or decision making gra
in deciding how to allocate resources and assefsrpmnce. Operating segments are managed sepaaatélepresent strategic business
units that offer different products and serve défe markets.

The Company's reportable segments include: commtioits and information services (including commatians, computer outsourcing and
systems integration segments), and coal miningeQgtimarily
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENT S--(Continued)

includes California Private Transportation Comparf. ("CPTC"), a privately owned tollroad in south€alifornia, equity investments and

other corporate assets and overhead not attriteutalal specific segment.

Industry data for the Company's discontinued coititn and energy operations are not included.

EBITDA, as defined by the Company, consists of i@ (loss) before interest, income taxes, deptiecizamortization, non-cash operating
expenses (including stock-based compensation aptbitess research and development charges) andnmth@perating income or expense.
The Company excludes noncash compensation dug addiption of the expense recognition provisionSIEAS No. 123. EBITDA is
commonly used in the communications industry tdy@eacompanies on the basis of operating perfor@aBBITDA is not intended to

represent cash flow for the periods.

The information presented in the table below inekighformation for the three and nine month perieided September 30, 1999 and 1998
for all income statement and cash flow informatiwesented and as of September 30, 1999 and Dec&hb&998 for all balance sheet

information presented.

Communications & Informati

Computer
Communications Outsourcing

1999

Three Months Ended
September 30, 1999
Revenue.................

Capital Expenditures....

Depreciation and
Amortization...........
Nine Months Ended
September 30, 1999
Revenue.................

Capital Expenditures....

Depreciation and
Amortization...........
1998

Three Months Ended
September 30, 1998
Revenue.................

Capital Expenditures....

Depreciation and
Amortization...........
Nine Months Ended
September 30, 1998
Revenue.................

Capital Expenditures....

Depreciation and
Amortization...........
Identifiable Assets....
September 30, 1999
December 31, 1998.

(dollar

$ 36  $17
(105) 4
903 2

51 3

$ 69 $51

(272) 11
2,021 7

111 7

$ 8 $16
(39) 3
243 1

$ 14 $46
(68) 11
350 10

14 6

..... $3,119 $63
..... 1,072 59

on Services

Systems Coal
Integration Mining Other Total

s in millions)

$16 $60$ 5% 134
(4) 25 (25) (105)
- 1 33 939

1 2 6 63

$48 $158 $ 16 $ 342
(7 64 (71) (275)
1 1 124 2,154

4 4 29 155

$13 $63$ 6 $ 106
(4 27 (12) (25)

— -~ 21 265

- 1 3 15

$42  $178 $ 16 $ 296
(7 73 (27) (18)

3 1 45 409

1 4 6 31

$51  $347 $5,255 $8,835
42 362 3,987 5,522
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENT S--(Continued)

EBITDA $

Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Non-Cash Compensation Expense

Write-off of In-Process Research and Development

Loss from Operations
Other (Expense) Income
Income Tax Benefit

The following information provides a reconciliatiohEBITDA to loss from continuing operations fowetthree and nine months ended
September 30, 1999 and 1998:

Three Nine
Months Months
Ended Ended

eptember September
30, 30,

(in millions)
(105) $(25) $(275) $(18)
(63) (15) (155) (31)
(39) (12) (86) (23)

- = - (30
(207) (52) (516) (102)
(13) (20) 77 (15)
73 23 143 28

Loss from Continuing Operations $

13. Related Party Transactions

Peter Kiewit Sons', Inc. ("Kiewit") acted as thengeal contractor on several significant projectstii@ Company in 1999 and 1998. These
projects include the intercity network, local loaggsd gateway sites, the Company's new corporatégnesters in Colorado and a new data
center in Tempe, Arizona. Kiewit provided approxieta $592 million and $37 million of constructioarsices related to these projects in the
first nine months of 1999 and 1998, respectively.

Level 3 also receives certain mine managementcasfrom Kiewit. The expense for these services$@amillion and $23 million for the
three and nine months ended September 30, 199@atésely, and $10 million and $27 million for ttl@ee and nine months ended
September 30, 1998, respectively, and is recomisdlling, general and administrative expenses.

14. Other Matters

Prior to the Split-off, as of January 1 of eachrydalders of Class C Stock had the right to con@aiss C Stock into Class D Stock, subject
to certain conditions. In January 1998, holder€laks C Stock converted 2.3 million shares, witademption value of $122 million, into 21
million shares of Class D Stock (now known as Com8tock).

In August 1999 the Company was named as a defemd&chweizer vs. Level 3 Communications, Incakt.a purported national class
action, filed in the District Court, County of Baldr, State of Colorado which involves the Companiglst to install its fiber optic cable
network in easements and right-of-ways crossingthimtiffs' land. In general, the Company obtaitigel rights to construct its network from
railroads, utilities, and others, and is installitegnetwork along the rights-of-way so granteaifiiffs in the purported class action assert that
they are the owners of lands over which the Comigdityer optic cable network passes, and thatalieads, utilities, and others who grar
the Company the right to construct and maintaimétsvork did not have the legal ability to do sheTaction purports to be on behalf of a
national class of owners of land over which the @any's network passes or will pass. The complaieks damages on theories of trespass,
unjust enrichment and slander of title and propexsywell as punitive damages. Although the Compampt aware of any additional similar
claims, the Company may in the future receive ctaammd demands related to the rights- of-way issimefiar to the issues in the Schweizer
litigation that may be based on similar or diffdrkesgal theories. Although it is too early for tBempany to reach a conclusion as to
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the ultimate outcome of this litigation, managemntegiteves that the Company has substantial deféaghe claims asserted in the Schweizer
action (and any similar claims which may be nanmetheé future), and intends to defend them vigorausl

The Company is involved in various other lawsuitaims and regulatory proceedings incidental toitsiness. Management believes that
resulting liability for legal proceedings beyonatiprovided should not materially affect the Compafinancial position, future results of
operations or future cash flows.

Level 3 filed with the Securities and Exchange Cassion a "universal” shelf registration statementering up to $3.5 billion of common
stock, preferred stock, debt securities and degrysghares that became effective February 17, 108March 9, 1999 the Company received
approximately $1.5 billion from the sale of 28.78lion shares of Common Stock and on Septembef289 the Company sold $823 million
aggregate principal amount of its 6% Convertible@dinated Notes under the "universal" shelf regiin statement.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Le&/€lommunications, Inc.:

We have audited the consolidated balance sheet\afl[3 Communications, Inc. and subsidiaries (a®ate corporation) as of December
1998 and the related consolidated statements nirggy;, cash flows, changes in stockholders' equity comprehensive income for the year
then ended. These consolidated financial statenaeatthe responsibility of the Company's managen@unt responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based omuodit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generadbepted auditing standards. Those standardsedtyat we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whethemthedial statements are free of material misstaterdenaudit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and digeesn the financial statements. An audit alsoudek assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by managememtell as evaluating the overall financial statetpeesentation. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referedlbove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢consolidated financial position of Level 3
Communications, Inc. and subsidiaries as of Dece®bge1998 and the consolidated results of thedrajons and their cash flows for the
year then ended in conformity with generally acedmccounting principle

Arthur Andersen LLP

Denver, Colorado
March 29, 1999
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Level 3 Communications, Inc. and Subsidiaries
(formerly, Peter Kiewit Sons', Inc.)

We have audited the consolidated balance sheed\a|[3 Communications, Inc. and Subsidiaries (folyn®eter Kiewit Sons', Inc.) as of
December 27, 1997 and the related consolidateeinstatts of earnings, cash flows, changes in stodkhsllequity and comprehensive incc
for each of the two years in the period ended Déegrd7, 1997. These financial statements are gporesibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these financial statements based on outsaud

We conducted our audits in accordance with geneaaltepted auditing standards. Those standardgeedhat we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whethenthedial statements are free of material misstatemd@naudit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and digelesn the financial statements. An audit alsoudek assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by managememtell as evaluating the overall financial statetpeesentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referealove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢onsolidated financial position of Level 3
Communications, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of Dece®bgel997 and the consolidated results of thegrajions and their cash flows for each
of the two years in the period ended December 297 In conformity with generally accepted accougfiminciples.

Coopers & Lybrand L.L.P.

Omaha, Nebraska
March 30, 1998
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

For the three years ended December 31, 1998

REVENUE........eiiiiiiiiiiiiii
Cost and Expenses:
Operating expenses.................
Depreciation and amortization
General and administrative expenses..............
Write-off of in process research and development.

Total costs and expenses............ccceveees

Earnings (Loss) from Operations
Other Income (Expense):
Interest iNCOmMe.........cccccceiiiiiiiinens
Interest expense, Net.........ccccevevevvrennne
Equity losses in unconsolidated subsidiaries.....
Gain on equity investee stock transactions.......
Gain on sale of assets
Other, net

Total other income (expense)...................
Earnings (Loss) Before Income Taxes and Discontinue

OPerationsS........cuueeeeiiieeees e e
Income Tax Benefit (Provision).....................

Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations...........
Discontinued Operations:
Gain on Split-off of Construction Group..........
Construction operations net of income tax expense
($107) and (B72)..eecveereeeierreenernenes
Gain on disposition of energy business net of inc
tax expense of ($175)......ccccccvevviiiennnn.
Energy, net of income tax benefit (expense) of $1

Net EarningS......ccceeveeeeeeeenienciiiinieneenns
Earnings (Loss) Per Share of Level 3 Common Stock
(Basic and Diluted):
Continuing operations............cccveveevee...
Discontinued operations excluding construction
OPErationsS.........coeevveeeeiiiiiieeee e

Net earnings excluding construction operations...

Net earnings excluding gain on Split-off of
Construction Group

See accompanying notes to consolidated financssients.
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1998 1997 1996
(dollars in
millions, except
per share data)
...... $ 392 $332 $652

...... (199) (163) (268)

...... (66) (20) (124)
...... (332) (106) (173)

...... 62 - -
...... 107 10 10
...... 4 7 2
...... 82 (8) 20

d

...... (153) 35 107
...... 48 (3)
...... (128) 83 104
...... 608 -- -

of

...... -- 155 108
ome

...... 324 - -
and
...... - 10 9
...... 932 165 117

...... $(43)$.33 $.45

...... $3.09 $.04 $.03

...... $266 $.37 $.48

...... $ .64 $.37 $.48




LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, 1998 and December 27, 1997

Assets

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents..............c.c.......
Marketable securities..
Restricted securities....
Receivables, net..........ccccccvvvivvvenennnnn.
Investment in discontinued operations--energy....
Income taxes receivable..............c...........

Total Current ASSets..........ccccveeeeeiniieeenn.

Net Property, Plant and Equipment..................
INVESIMENTS....ovviiieiiiieiiiiees

Investments in Discontinued Operations--Constructio
Other Assets, Net........ccccevvivieeeriiineeenne

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable..........ccccccevevinienennnn.
Current portion of long-term debt................
Accrued reclamation and other mining costs.......
Accrued interest.............
Deferred income taxes...

Total Current Liabilities.............ccccoeuueee.
Long-Term Debt, less current portion.
Deferred Income Taxes........ccocvvvevrivnneenne
Accrued Reclamation CoStS.........ccccoccvvveeene
Other Liabilities..........ccocveriiiiieiinnns
Commitments and Contingencies
Stockholders' Equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value, authorized 10,000
in 1998, 250,000 shares in 1997: no shares outsta
and 1997......ocooviiiiieie e
Common stock:
Common stock, $.01 par value in 1998 and $.0625
1997, authorized 500,000,000 shares: 307,874,70
in 1998 and 271,034,280 outstanding in 1997....
Class B, no shares outstanding in 1997..........
Class C, 10,132,343 shares outstanding in 1997..
Class R, $.01 par value, authorized 8,500,000 sh
shares outstanding in 1998 and 1997............
Additional paid-in capital........................
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).....
Retained earnings.........cccoccovveeeiiiieeenne

Total Stockholders' Equity............cccvvvvene.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ#tsients.
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1998 1997
(dollars in
millions)

$ 848 87
. 2,863 678
26 22
57 42
-~ 643

............. 3,877 1,494

. 1,061 184

323 383
- 652

,000 shares
nding in 1998
par value in
6 outstanding
3 8
- 1
765 427
4 (5
1,393 1,799
............. 2,165 2,230



LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the three years ended December 31, 1998

1998 1997 1996

(dollars in
millions)
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net EarningS....ccoocveveeviieeiieeieeeeeee $ 804 $248 $221
Less: Income from Discontinued Operations........ ... (932) (165) (117)
Income (loss) from continuing operations.......... ... (128) 83 104
Adjustments to reconcile income (loss) from
continuing operations to net cash provided by
continuing operations:
Write-off in process research and development ... 30 - -
Equity losses, net.......cccccvvvvveeeen. L 132 43 9
Depreciation and amortization................ ... 66 20 124
Amortization of discounts on marketable
SECUMEIES..cceevevvviiiieeeeeeeeee 24) - -
Amortization of debt issuances costs......... .. 3 - -
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment and
other assets......ccccccovvvvvevnccoeeees L (17) (10) (10)
Gain on equity investee's stock transactions. ... 62) -- -
Gain on sale of Cable Michigan................. ... 90) -- -
Compensation expense attributable to stock
AWATAS. ..ot 39 21 -
Federal income tax refunds........ccoeeeee.. . L 46 146 --
Deferred income taxes.........ccccovvvveeeeee. L (50) (103) (68)
Accrued interest on marketable securities.... ... @9 - -
Change in working capital items:
Receivables......cccccccoevvvvvvvcvccceee L @ 9O @
Other current assets........coeevvveeeee L (10) (@) 6
Payables.................. —“— 239 (3 9
Other liabilities........cccooeveevvceeee. L 39 (5 13
Other. oo 3) - 3
Net Cash Provided by Continuing Operations........ ... 170 182 189
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Proceeds from sales and maturities of marketable
SECUNMIES . .ovvvee i 3,214 167 378
Purchases of marketable securities............... .~ ... (5,334) (452) (311)
Purchases of restricted securities........cc..... .. 2 2 @
Capital expenditureS.......cccceveveeeeeeeveeeeee L (910) (26) (117)
Investments and acquisitions, net of cash acquire d... (67) (42) (59)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipme nt,
and other investments........ccccccovvceeeee. L 27 1 14
Proceeds from sale of Cable Michigan.............. ... 129 - -
Other..ciiieeeee L - 3 (8)
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities............... ... $(2,943) $(351) $(105)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ#tsients.
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS--(Continued)

For the three years ended December 31, 1998

The activities of the Construction Group have besnoved from the consolidated statements of castsflThe Construction Group had cash
flows of ($62) million, $59 million and $79 milliofor the three months ended March 31, 1998 (the dfithe Split-off) and fiscal 1997 and

1996, respectively.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Long-term debt borrowings, net of issuance costs.
Payments on long-term debt, including current por
Issuances of common StocK...........ccccceenueee
Exchange of Class C Stock for Class D Stock, net.
Stock options exercised.........cccccceveeeenn.
Issuances of subsidiaries' stock..
Repurchases of common stock...
Dividends paid...........cccocvvviriiienennennn.

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Discontinued Operations:
Proceeds from sale of discontinued energy operati
net of income tax payments of $192 million......
Discontinued energy operations...................
Investments in discontinued energy operations....

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Discontinued Operati
Cash and Cash Equivalents of C-TEC at the Beginning

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents............
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year.....

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year...........

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Income taxes paid.........ccceecveeeeiiinnnnn.
Interest paid.........ccccvvvevieeiireneennnnnn.
Noncash Investing and Financing Activities:
Issuances of stock for acquisitions:
XCOM Technologies, InC. .......ccceeeevunnnne.
GeoNet Communications, InC. ...................

Conversion of MidAmerican convertible debentures
€ommonN StOCK...........ccoeeviviiiiiiiiiieees

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ#tsients.
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1998 1997 1996

(dollars in
millions)

$2,426 $ 17 $ 38
. (12) (2) (60)
21 117 -
122 72 20

761 (60) (216)
87 147 363

$ 848 $ 87 $147

$ 246 $ 62 $ 55

104 13 38
$ 154 $-- $--
19 - -
10 - -
$-- $-- $ 66



LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
For the three years ended December 31, 1998

Accumulated

Class B&C Additiona | Other
Common Common Paid-in Comprehensive Retained
Stock Stock Capital Income (Loss) Earnings Total
(dollars in millions)

Balance at December 30,

1995. . $1 $1 %210 $11 $1,384 $1,607
Common Stock:

Issuances.............. - -- - -- -- --
Repurchases... - - Q) - (100 (11
Dividends (a).......... - - - - 12) (@12
Class C Stock:

Issuances.............. - - 27 -- - 27
Repurchases............ - - 1) - 4) 5)
Dividends (a).......... - - - - (13) (13)
Net Earnings............ - - -- -- 221 221
Other Comprehensive

Income................. -- - - 5 -- 5
Balance at December 28,

1996.....cccivunnnnnnn 1 1 235 16 1,566 1,819
Common Stock:

Issuances.............. - -- 117 -- -- 117
Stock options

exercised............. - - 21 -- - 21
Stock dividend......... - 7 ©) - - --
Stock option grants.... - -- 27 - - 27
Class C Stock:

Issuances.............. - - 33 -- - 33
Repurchases... - - - - ) 2)
Dividends (b).......... - - - - (13) (13)
Conversion of

debentures............ - - 1 -- - 1
Net Earnings - - - - 248 248
Other Comprehensive

LOSS..cccvvriirenns - - - (21) -- (21)
Balance at December 27,

1997 .. 1 8 427 5) 1,799 2,230
Common Stock:

Issuances.............. - 1 203 -- - 204
Stock options

exercised............. - 1 10 - Q) 10
Designation of par

value to $.01......... - (8) 8 - - -
Stock dividend......... - 1 (2) - - --
Stock plan grants...... - - 44 - - 44
Income tax benefit from

exercise of options... - - 19 -- -- 19
Class R Stock:

Issuance and forced

conversion............ - - 164 - (164) -
Class C Stock:

Repurchases............ - - (25) -- -- (25)
Conversion of

debentures............ - - 10 - - 10
Net Earnings..... - - -- -- 804 804

LOSS...eeeivieeniiianne - - - (6) - (6)
Split-off of the

Construction & Mining

Group.......ceevueeen. ) - (94) 15 (1,045) (1,125)

1998......cccvvene $-- $3 $765 $4 $1,393 $2,165

(@) Includes $.70 and $.05 per share for dividemd€lass C and Common Stock, respectively, decliaré896 but paid in January 1997.

(b) Includes $.80 per share for dividends on Casteclared in 1997 but paid in January 1¢



See accompanying notes to consolidated financ#tsients.
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the three years ended December 31, 1998

Net EarningS.......ceeeveveeeeeesieniiiiiiieneenns

Other Comprehensive Income Before Tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustments.........
Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during
Reclassification adjustment for gains included in
CAIMNINGS....uvveiereeiieeeeeeeeeee i s

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Before Tax......
Income Tax Benefit (Expense) Related to Unrealized
Gains (LOSSES).....ccovcuvvvveriiieieeieeeeeeeennn

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Net of Taxes.....

Comprehensive INnCOMe.............coeeevvvvvinnnnns

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ#tsients.
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1998 1997 1996

(dollars in
millions)
......... $804 $248 $221

......... 1

=~ (1)
period... (2) (23) 12
net

Holding



LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(1) Reorganization--Discontinued Construction Ofiers

In October 1996, the Board of Directors (the "Bdaaf Level 3 Communications, Inc. ("Level 3" oretHiCompany"), directed managemer
the Company to pursue a listing of the Companys€£D Diversified Group Convertible Exchangeablen@mn Stock, par value $.0625 per
share (the "Class D Stock"), as a way to addresaicéssues created by the Company's then twssdapital stock structure and the need to
attract and retain the best management for the @oyp businesses. During the course of its exanmat the consequences of a listing of
the Class D Stock, management concluded thatiaglief the Class D Stock would not adequately asklteese issues, and instead began to
study a separation of the construction operatit@sr{struction Group") from the other businessethefCompany (the "Diversified Group"),
thereby forming two independent companies. At imetthe performance of the Diversified Group weftected by the Class D Stock. The
performance of the Construction Group was reflebiethe Company's Class C Construction & Mining @rd&estricted Redeemable
Convertible Exchangeable Common Stock, par val0é2k per share (the "Class C Stock"). At the raguleeting of the Board on July 23,
1997, management submitted to the Board for coreida a proposal for the separation of the Corsitn Group and the Diversified Group
through a split-off of the Construction Group (t8plit- off"). At a special meeting on August 14997, the Board approved the Split- off.

The separation of the Construction Group and theiBified Group was contingent upon a number ofi@é@ns, including the favorable
ratification by a majority of the holders of bottetCompany's Class C and the Class D Stock, ané¢k@t by the Company of an Internal
Revenue Service ruling or other assurance acceptalthe Board that the separation would be tasiveJ.S. stockholders. On December 8,
1997, the holders of Class C Stock and Class DkStpproved the Split-off and on March 5, 1998, @lmnpany received a favorable private
letter ruling from the Internal Revenue Servicee Bplit- off was effected on March 31, 1998. Inmection with the Split-off, (i) the
Company exchanged each outstanding share of Cl&ssdk for one share of Common Stock of PKS Holsliigc. ("New PKS"), the
Company formed to hold the Construction Group, kicl eight-tenths of a share of the Company's Gka€snvertible Common Stock, par
value $.01 per share (the "Class R Stock"), wash#d to replace certain conversion features ilCtaes C Stock which would terminate
upon the Split-off (i) New PKS was renamed "Pé&@wit Sons', Inc." (iii) the Company was renamé@vel 3 Communications, Inc.", and
(iv) the Class D Stock was designated as commark spar value $.01 per share (the "Common Stode)a result of the Split-off, the
Company no longer owns any interest in New PKS$erGonstruction Group. Accordingly, the separatarftial statements and
management's discussion and analysis of finaneiadition and results of operations of Peter Kig®ans', Inc. should be obtained to review
the financial position of the Construction Grouppd®ecember 27, 1997, and the results of operationthe two years ended December 27,
1997.

On March 31, 1998, the Company reflected the falue of the Construction Group as a distributiotheClass C stockholders because the
distribution was considered non-pro rata as contpréhe Company's previous two-class capital sshekcture. The Company recognized, a
gain of $608 million within discontinued operatioesjual to the difference between the carryingealithe Construction Group and its fair
value in accordance with Financial Accounting Stadd Board Emerging Issues Task Force Issue 98e¢ounting for Reorganizations
Involving a Non-Pro Rata Split-off of Certain Nonnetary Assets to Owners". No taxes were providethisgain due to the tax-free nature
of the Split-off.

In connection with the Split-off, Level 3 and therGtruction Group entered into various agreemertisiding a Separation Agreement, a Tax
Sharing Agreement and an amended Mine ManagemeaeeAgent.

The Separation Agreement, as amended, providebdallocation of certain risks and responsibsititween Level 3 and the Construction
Group and for crosBxdemnifications that are intended to allocateriirial responsibility to the Construction Group fiabilities arising out o
the construction business and to allocate to L8J&lancial responsibility for liabilities arisingut of the non-construction businesses. The
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(Contin ued)

Separation Agreement also allocates certain corpdeael risk exposures not readily allocable tbei the construction business or the non-
construction businesses.

Under the Tax Sharing Agreement, with respect togs, or portions thereof, ending on or before $ipét-off, Level 3 and the Construction
Group generally will be responsible for paying taeges relating to such returns, including any sqbeat adjustments resulting from the
redetermination of such tax liabilities by the agglble taxing authorities, that are allocable ® tloneonstruction businesses and construc
businesses, respectively. The Tax Sharing Agreeaisotprovides that Level 3 and the Constructioou@rwill indemnify the other from
certain taxes and expenses that would be asséthedSplitoff were determined to be taxable, but solely dktent that such determinat
arose out of the breach by Level 3 or the Consbmdsroup, respectively, of certain representatimasle to the Internal Revenue Service in
connection with the private letter ruling issuedhaiespect to the Split- off. If the Split-off wdstermined to be taxable for any other reason,
those taxes would be allocated equally to Leval@the Construction Group. Finally, under certainwmstances, Level 3 would make
certain liquidated damage payments to the Constru@roup if the Split-off was determined to beahbe, in order to indirectly compensate
Class C stockholders for taxes assessed upon thématievent.

In connection with the Split-off, the Mine Managamégreement, pursuant to which the Constructioauprprovides mine management and
related services to Level 3's coal mining operajovas amended to provide the Construction Grotip aviight of offer in the event that
Level 3 were to determine to sell any or all ofdt&l mining properties. Under the right of offeevel 3 would be required to offer to sell
those properties to the Construction Group. IfG@loastruction Group were to decline to purchaseptbeerties at that price, Level 3 would be
free to sell them to a third party for an amourager than or equal to that price. If Level 3 wiersell the properties to a third party, thus
terminating the Mine Management Agreement, it wdaddrequired to pay the Construction Group an amegual to the discounted present
value of the Mine Management Agreement determiiiggicessary, by an appraisal process.

Following the Split-off, the Company's common stbelgan trading on The Nasdaq National Market orl ApA 998, under the symbol
"LVLT". In connection with the Split-off, the corsiction business was renamed "Peter Kiewit Sons., ind the Class D Stock became the
common stock of Level 3 Communications, Inc. ("CoamStock™). Summarized financial information foetBonstruction Group is
presented below; however, the separate financtdrsients of Peter Kiewit Sons', Inc. should beinbthto review the financial position of
the Construction Group as of December 27, 199 tlamdesults of operations for each of the two yeaded December 27, 1997.
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The following is summarized financial informatiofithe Construction Group:

Operations
1997 1996
(in millions)
REVENUE.......oiiiiieiieeie it e, $2,764 $2,303
Net Earnings....cccccvvviiiieniiiieeeiiees e, 155 108
Financial Position
1997
(in millions)
CUITENt ASSEES..cviivieiieeeiieeeieeneeee e, $1,057
Other ASSetS.....cccocveviiiiiieiieeeeeeee s 284
Total @SSetS....cccvveviiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee 1,341
Current Liabilities........ccoocvvvvcicenneeeee 579
Other LiabilitieS.......cccovvvvvieiiiiiceeeee 99
Minority Interest........ccccveeivnceeeneeeee . 11
Total liabilities.......cccccvvviveveeiiceeee. . 689
NEt ASSELS....coiiieiiii e e, $ 652
The following details the earnings per share cakiohs for Class C Stock:
Class C Stock 1997 1996
Net Income Available to Common Shareholders (in mil lions).... $ 155% 108
Add: Interest Expense, Net of Tax Effect Associated with
Convertible Debentures........c.ccccvvveevveeeeee L 1 -
Net Income for Diluted Shares........ccccccoeeeeeee. L $ 156$% 108
Total Number of Weighted Average Shares Outstanding Used to
Compute Basic Earnings per Share (in thousands)... ... 9,728 10,656
Additional Dilutive Shares Assuming Conversion of C onvertible
Debentures.......ccccovvvviiicvciiicieeeeee 441 437
Total Number of Shares Used to Compute Diluted Earn ings Per
Share...ocociiiiiiiee 10,169 11,093
Net Income
Basic earnings per share..........ccoccceeeeeee. $15.99 $10.13
Diluted earnings per share.........ccocceeeeeeee. . $15.35% 9.76

* Interest expense attributable to convertible déties was less than $1 million in 1996.

The Company's certificate of incorporation gavelsholders the right to exchange their Class C Stocklass D Stock under a set
conversion formula. That right was eliminated assalt of the Split-off. To replace that conversi@ht, Class C stockholders received 6.5
million shares of a new Class R Stock in JanuaB81%hich was convertible into Common Stock in adeace with terms ratified by
stockholders in December 1997. The Company reflieict¢he equity accounts the exchange of the caimeright and issuance of the Class
R Stock at its fair value of $92 million at the elaf the Split-off.

On May 1, 1998, the Board of Directors of Level @@nunications, Inc. determined to force conversiball shares of the Company's Class
R Stock into shares of Common Stock, effective NMiay1998. The Class R Stock was converted into Com&tock in accordance with the
formula set forth in the certificate of incorpomatiof the Company. The formula provided for a cosian ratio equal to $25, divided by the
average of the midpoints between the high and kEessprices for Common Stock on each of the fiftieading days during the period
beginning April 9, 1998 and ending April 30, 1998.e average for that period was $32.14, adjustethéostock dividend issued August 10,
1998.
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Accordingly, each holder of Class R Stock receivét¥8 of a share of Common Stock for each sha@asfs R Stock held. In total 6.5
million shares of Class R Stock were converted ffomillion shares of Common Stock. The valuehef €lass R Stock at the time of the
forced conversion was $25 times the 6.5 millionrebautstanding, or $164 million. The Company redzed the additional $72 million of
value upon conversion of the Class R Stock to Com8tock in the equity accounts. As a result offtiieed conversion, certain adjustments
were made to the cost sharing and risk allocatrorigions of the Separation Agreement and Tax 8bakgreement between the Company
and Peter Kiewit Sons', Inc. that were executezbimection with the Split-off. The effect of themdjustments was to reduce certain Split-off
costs and risks allocated to the Company.

The Company has embarked on a plan to becomeliiéaebased provider (that is, a provider that even leases a substantial portion of the
plant, property and equipment necessary to pratsdgervices) of a broad range of integrated comaoations services in the United States,
Europe and Asia. To reach this goal, the Compaagpto expand substantially the business of its PiK@mation Services, Inc. subsidiary
and to create, through a combination of constraciurchase and leasing of facilities and otheetassin international, end-to-end, facilities-
based communications network (the "Business PIdimg.Company is designing the network based omrlatdrotocol technology in ordet
leverage the efficiencies of this technology tovidle lower cost communications services.

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include tto®ants of Level 3 Communications, Inc. and subsiés in which it has control, which are
engaged in enterprises primarily related to comueations and information services, and coal minfifly-percent-owned mining joint
ventures are consolidated on a pro rata basissiments in other companies in which the Companycéses significant influence over
operating and financial policies are accountedijothe equity method. All significant intercompaagcounts and transactions have been
eliminated.

In 1997, the Company agreed to sell its energytassdvlidAmerican Energy Holding Company (f/k/a Eaérgy Company, Inc.)
("MidAmerican") and to split- off the Constructi@roup. Therefore, the assets and liabilities, asdlts of operations, of these businesses
have been classified as discontinued operatiorieenonsolidated balance sheet, statements ofnggraind cash flows. (See notes 1 and 3)

In 1997, C-TEC Corporation ("C-TEC") announced fkeboard of directors had approved the plannettueturing of C-TEC into three
publicly traded companies. The transaction was#ffe September 30, 1997. As a result of the resiring plan, the Company owned less
than 50% of the outstanding shares and votingsigheach entity, and therefore has accountedafoh entity using the equity method as of
the beginning of 1997. In accordance with generatigepted accounting principles, C-TEC's finanptaition, results of operations and cash
flows are consolidated in the 1996 financial staets.

Communications and Information Services Revenue

Information services revenue is primarily deriveahfi the computer outsourcing business and thersgsitgegration business. Level 3
provides outsourcing service, typically throughtcacts ranging from 3-5 years, to firms that deiréocus their resources on their core
businesses. Under these contracts, Level 3 reaaginéxenue in the month the service is provided. shistems integration business helps
customers define, develop and implement cost-éffeatformation systems. Revenue from these sesvigeecognized on a time and
materials basis or percentage of completion bagemding on the extent of the services provided.

Revenue from communications services is recogmaeutthly as the services are provided. Amountsditkeadvance of the service month
are recorded as deferred revenue, however thatrarmooot material.
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Concentration of credit risk with respect to acdsueceivable are limited due to the dispersiooustomer base among geographic areas anc
remedies provided by terms of contracts and sttute

As noted previously, the investments in the thmeenEr CTEC companies have been accounted for using théyegathod in 1998 and 19¢
Coal Sales Contracts

Level 3's coal is sold primarily under long-terrmtracts with electric utilities, which burn coalander to generate steam to produce
electricity. A substantial portion of Level 3's tsales were made under long-term contracts durg®$, 1997 and 1996. The remainder of
Level 3's sales are made on the spot market whiespare substantially lower than those in thgiterm contracts. As the long-term
contracts expire, a higher proportion of Levelszikes will occur on the spot market.

The coal industry is highly competitive. Level 3hmeetes not only with other domestic and foreign sogpliers, some of whom are larger
and have greater capital resources than Levelt3lbo with alternative methods of generating eleity and alternative energy sources. M
of Level 3's competitors are served by two railadd, due to the competition, often benefit fromdr transportation costs than Level 3
which is served by a single railroad. Additionallyany competitors have more favorable geologicatitmns than Level 3, often resulting in
lower comparative costs of production.

Level 3 is also required to comply with variousdeal, state and local laws concerning protectiothefenvironment. Level 3 believes its
compliance with environmental protection and laestaration laws will not affect its competitive fia@n since its competitors are similarly
affected by such laws.

Level 3 and its mining ventures have entered iatdous agreements with its customers which stipudalivery and payment terms on the
of coal. Prior to 1993, one of the primary custosrseferred receipt of certain commitments by pwsittaundivided fractional interest in cc
reserves of Level 3 and the mining ventures. Utlteagreements, revenue was recognized when casteegived. The agreements with 1
customer were renegotiated in 1992. In accordariitetiae renegotiated agreements, there were ne shiaterest in coal reserves subseq
to January 1, 1993. Level 3 has delivered andlasbligation to deliver the coal reserves to tigt@mer in the future if the customer
exercises its option to take delivery of the ctfahe option is exercised, Level 3 presently intemo deliver coal from unaffiliated mines. In
the opinion of the management, Level 3 has suffici@al reserves to cover the above sales commitmen

Level 3's coal sales contracts are with severatriteutility and industrial companies. In the evémat these customers do not fulfill
contractual responsibilities, Level 3 would pursiue available legal remedies.

Depreciation and Amortization

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at Baegireciation and amortization for the majoritytteéd Company's property, plant and
equipment are computed on accelerated and strightrethods based on the following useful lives:

Facility and Leasehold Improvements.......ccc....... ... 35 - 40 years
Operating Equipment......cccccccevvveeeeeenneneee 3-7years
Network Construction Equipment..........ccoeeeee.. L 5 -7 years
Furniture and Office Equipment.........ccccccceeee.. L 3 -7 years
Other. i 2 - 10 years
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Depletion of mineral properties is provided prinhadn an units-of- extraction basis determinedelation to coal committed under sales
contracts.

Software Development Costs

On March 4, 1998, the American Institute of CeetifiPublic Accountants ("AICPA") issued StatemenRosition 98-1, "Accounting for the
Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtainedifternal Use" ("SOP 98-1"). The effective datdri$ pronouncement is for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 1998, howekerCompany has elected to account for internahvso#t development costs incurrec
developing its integrated business support systerascordance with SOP 98-1 in 1998. The Compacggeized $27 million of expense for
the development of operating support systems i3 188t would have previously been capitalized piaoadoption of SOP 98-1.

Start-Up Costs

On April 3, 1998, the AICPA issued Statement ofiffas 98-5, "Reporting on the Costs of Start-Up idities”, ("SOP 985"), which provide:
guidance on the financial reporting for start-up anganization costs. It requires costs of star&ciivities and organization costs to be
expensed as incurred. SOP®& effective for financial statements for fisgakrs beginning after December 15, 1998, howekerCompan
elected to adopt SOP 98-5 in 1998. The adoptidh@® 98-5 did not result in a significant chargedmings in 1998.

Subsidiary and Investee Stock Activity

The Company recognizes gains and losses from tegissuance and repurchase of stock by its swrgdiand equity method investees in
statements of earnings.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share have been computed Usngdighted average number of shares during eaadp®iluted earnings per share is
computed by including stock options and other sgéearconsidered to be dilutive.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets primarily include amounts alledaipon acquisitions of businesses, franchisesalnskcriber lists. These assets are
amortized on a straight-line basis over the exgkeperiod of benefit.

For intangibles originating from Internet Protooolother information services related acquisitidhe, Company is amortizing these assets
over a five year period. Intangibles attributalle@ther acquisitions and investments are amortized periods which do not exceed 40 years.

Long Lived Assets

The Company reviews the carrying amount of longdiassets for impairment whenever events or changisumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Measurewfeanty impairment would include a comparison dineated future operating cash
flows anticipated to be generated during the remgilife of the asset to the net carrying valu¢haf asset.

Reserves for Reclamation

The Company follows the policy of providing an aerfor reclamation of mined properties, basednendstimated total cost of restoration of
such properties to meet compliance with laws gawgratrip mining, by applying per-ton reclamatia@tes to coal mined. These reclamation
rates are determined using the remaining
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estimated reclamation costs and tons of coal coradnitnder sales contracts. The Company reviewsdtamation cost estimates annually
and revises the reclamation rates on a prospedutisis, as necessary.

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are provided for the temyaddferences between the financial reporting andliases of the Company's assets and
liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect tog fear in which the differences are expectedverse.

Comprehensive Income

In June 1997, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@¢'FASB") issued Statement of Financial AccoogtStandards ("SFAS") No. 130,
"Reporting Comprehensive Income", which requires tihanges in comprehensive income be shown imaadial statement that is displayed
with the same prominence as other financial statesn&@he Company has adopted this statement in 4998 Company has unrealized g
and losses on marketable securities classifieda&ikahle for sale and has operations in foreigméoess and restated 1997 and 1996 to pre
information on a comparable basis.

Foreign Currencies

Generally, local currencies of foreign subsidiades the functional currencies for financial rep@tpurposes. Assets and liabilities are
translated into U.S. dollars at year-end exchaatgsr Revenue and expenses are translated usiraga\exchange rates prevailing during the
year. Gains or losses resulting from currency tedion are recorded as a component of accumuldtext comprehensive income (loss’
stockholders' equity and in the statements of cetmgsive income.

Stock Dividend

Effective August 10, 1998 and December 26, 199 Gbmpany issued dividends of one and four shegspectively, of Common Stock
(previously Class D Stock) for each share of L&v€ommon Stock outstanding. All share informatiod ger share data have been restated
to reflect these stock dividends.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith generally accepted accounting principleguiees management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amourdss#ts and liabilities and disclosure of contingesets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amountsvefmges and expenses during the reporting periodiahcesults could differ from those
estimates.

Segment Disclosures

In 1997, the FASB issued SFAS No. 131, "Disclosatasut Segments of an Enterprise and Related l@fiont' ("SFAS No. 131"), which
changes the way public companies report informadioout segments. SFAS No. 131, which is basede@mtnagement approach to segment
reporting, includes requirements to report selestggiment information quarterly, and entity widecltisures about products and services,
major customers, and geographic data. The Compasipifovided the information required by SFAS Ndl &BNote 14.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

On June 15, 1998, the FASB issued SFAS No. 133;dieting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgingiities" ("SFAS No. 133"). SFAS
No. 133 is effective for fiscal years beginningeafiune 15, 199
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(January 1, 2000 for the Company). SFAS No. 138ireq that all derivative instruments be recordedh® balance sheet at the fair value.
Changes in the fair value of derivatives are reedrelach period in current earnings or other congumrgile income, depending on whether a
derivative is designated as part of a hedge trdiosaand, if it is, the type of hedge transactibhe Company currently makes minimal use of
derivative instruments as defined by SFAS No. 13Bie Company does not increase the utilizatiotheke derivative instruments by the
effective date of SFAS No. 133, the adoption of gtandard is not expected to have a significdatedn the Company's results of operati
or its financial position.

Fiscal Year

On May 1, 1998, the Company's Board of Directo@ngfed Level 3's fiscal year end from the last Satyiin December to a calendar year
end. The results of operations for the additioned flays in the 1998 fiscal year are reflectechn@ompany's Form 1KR-for the period ende
December 31, 1998 and were not material to thealv@sults of operations and cash flows. Thereevb& weeks in fiscal years 1997 and
1996.

Reclassifications
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassifiegbbform to the current year presentation.
(3) Discontinued Energy Operations

On January 2, 1998, the Company completed theo$itte energy assets to MidAmerican. These aseetsded approximately 20.2 million
shares of MidAmerican common stock (assuming tleeatse of 1 million options held by Level 3), Lex83% 30% interest in CE Electric and
Level 3's investments in international power prtgeo Indonesia and the Philippines ("Energy PrsjgcLevel 3 recognized an after-tax gain
on the disposition of $324 million and the aftex-fmoceeds of approximately $967 million from thensaction are being used in part to fund
the Business Plan. Results of operations for thiegehrough January 2, 1998 were not considerguif&géant and the gain on disposition was
calculated using the carrying amount of the enaspets as of December 27, 1997.
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The following is summarized financial informaticor fdiscontinued energy operations for the fiscalrgeended December 27, 1997 and
December 28, 1996 and as of December 27, 1997:

Income from Discontinued Operations

1997 1996
(in millions)
Operations
Equity in:
MidAmerican earnings, Net........ccccceeeeeeeeee. e $ 16 $ 20
CE Electric earnings, Net......cccccceveveeeees L. 17 (2)
International energy projects earnings, net...... ... 5 (5
Investment Income from MidAmerican................. . L. - 5
Income Tax EXPeNSe.....cccocovvvieieeiiiieeeennee e, 9 9
Income from operations.......ccccccvveevevenee. L 29 9
MidAmerican Stock Transactions
Gain on Investee Stock Activity......cccoceeeee. L 68 -
Income Tax EXPenSe....cccocvcvveveveeeeeieieneeee s (24)
Gain on MidAmerican stock activity............... ... 44 -
Extraordinary Loss--Windfall Tax
Level 3's Share from MidAmerican.........cccc...... . . (39)
Level 3's Share from CE Electric................... . . (58)
Income Tax Benefit.....ccccoevvvveeniicces 34 -
Extraordinary 10SS......ccccccovvvveeenicceeees (63)
Income from Discontinued Energy Operations......... ... $ 10% 9

In order to fund the purchase of Level 3's enespets, MidAmerican sold, in 1997 approximately Ifillion shares of its common stock :
price of $37.875 per share. This sale reduced L&sawnership in MidAmerican to approximately 2B6% increased its proportionate share
of MidAmerican's equity. Level 3 recognized an aftex gain of approximately $44 million from MidAmiean transactions in 1997.

of the difference between the value of Northerrctie, plc at the time of privatization and thelititls current value based on profits over a
period of up to four years. CE Electric recordedeammaordinary charge of approximately $194 millishen the tax was enacted in 1997. The
total impact to Level 3 directly through its investnt in CE Electric and indirectly through its irgst in MidAmerican, was $63 million.

Investments in Discontinued Operations

1997
(in millions)

Investment in MidAmerican........cccocvvccccceeeees e $ 337

Investment in CE ElectriC.....ccccovvveveeeeeeee. s 135

Investment in International Energy Projects........ L 186
Restricted SecuritieS.....cccccccvveeeeieveeeeeee e 2

Deferred Income Tax Liability..........cccoceeeeeee. a7

Total oo e, $643
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The following is summarized financial informatiohMidAmerican, CE Electric, and the Energy Projects

Operations
1997 1996
(in millions)
Revenue
MidAMErican......ccooviiiieiiii e e, $2,271 $576
CE EIECHC. v 1,564 37
Net Earnings (Loss)
MidAMEriCan......ccoovviiiieiiieieeeeeeee e $ (84)$ 92
CE EIECHC. v (136) --
Energy Projects.......ccccvvvvvvvviciccne 2 (12)
Financial Position at December 27, 1997
Energy
MidAm erican CE Electric Projects
(in millions)
Current ASSEtS......ccovvieiieeiiiieainnn. $2 ,063  $ 419 $ 530
Other ASSets......ccccceevvvveeeeiiineenne 5 ,435 2,519 811
Total assets......c.cocveeeeiiciiieennne 7 ,488 2,938 1,341
Current Liabilities...........ccccovuveeeen. 1 ,440 1,166 172
Other Liabilities...........cccceeveeenne. 4 ,494 1,265 737
Minority Interest...........ccccvvveevennns 134 56 --
Total liabilities............ccccveeenne 6 ,068 2,487 909
Net ASSELS....ccevreererreeiieneerieenne $1 420  $ 451 $ 432

(4) Earnings Per Share

The Company had a loss from continuing operationshfe year ended December 31, 1998, thereforpptemtial common shares related to
Company stock options and other dilutive securiti@ge been included in the computation of the diwgarnings per share because the
resulting computation would be anti-dilutive. Fbettwo years ending December 27, 1997, potentililyive stock options are calculated in
accordance with the treasury stock method whichraes that proceeds from exercise of all optionsiaeg to repurchase common stock at
the average market value. The number of sharesmargafter the proceeds are exhausted represemdtentially dilutive effect of the
options.

The Company had 23,147,051 potentially dilutiveusigies outstanding that were not included in tbenputation of diluted earnings per sh
because to do so would have been anti-dilutivétferyear ended December 31, 1998.
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The following details the earnings (loss) per slealeulations for Level 3 Common Stock. A calcudatbf the earnings per share for the C
C Stock in 1996 and 1997 can be found in Notethéaconsolidated financial statements.

Year Ended

1998 1997 1996

Earnings (Loss) from Continuing Operations (in

MIllONS)....ccoviiiiieccie e, $ (128)$ 83% 104
Earnings from Discontinued Energy Operations...... 324 10 9
Gain on Separation of Construction Operations..... 608 -

Net Earnings Excluding Discontinued Construction
OPEerations..........cceevueeaiieeiieeeieaanns $ 804 $ 93% 113

Total Number of Weighted Average Shares
Outstanding used to Compute Basic Earnings Per

Share (in thousands)..........cccceevuvieeenns 301,976 249,293 232,012
Additional Dilutive Stock Options................. - 1,079 622
Total Number of Shares used to Compute Dilutive
Earnings Per Share............cccocoeeennnnn. 301,976 250,372 232,634
Earnings (Loss) Per Share (Basic and Diluted):
Continuing operations................cco....... $ (43)$ 33% .45
Discontinued energy operations.................. $ 1.07$ .04% .03

Gain on split-off of discontinued construction
OPEratioNS........cceeeveeereeereeireeereennn. $ 2028 --% -

Net earnings excluding discontinued construction
OPErations.......cccccevveeevuieeiieeiieeenns $ 266 37% .48

Net earnings excluding gain on split-off of
construction operations........................ $ 643% 37% .48

(5) Acquisitions

On April 23, 1998, the Company acquired XCOM Tedbgs, Inc. ("XCOM"), a privately held company theas developed technology
which the Company believes will provide certain keynponents necessary for the Company to develapenface between its Internet
Protocol based network and the existing publicavét telephone network. The Company issued appedglygn5.3 million shares of Level 3
Common Stock and 0.7 million options and warraatsurchase Level 3 Common Stock in exchange fdhalktock, options and warrants of
XCOM.

The Company accounted for this transaction, vaatetl 54 million, as a purchase. Of the total puseharice, $115 million was originally
allocated to in-process research and developmehivas taken as a nondeductible charge to earninipeisecond quarter of 1998. The
purchase price exceeded the fair value of the sesta acquired by $30 million which was recognagdoodwill.

In October 1998, the Securities and Exchange Cogiomig"SEC") issued new guidelines for valuing dcepliresearch and development
which are applied retroactively. The Company belgeits accounting for the acquisition was madecocoedance with generally accepted
accounting principles and established appraisatioes at the time of the acquisition. However, tuthe significance of the charge relative
to the total value of the acquisition, the Compeawiewed the facts and assumptions with the SE@s€gquently, using the revised guideli
and assumptions, the Company reduced the charge- forocess research and development from $1$3@amillion, and increased the
related goodwill by $85 million. The goodwill asgated with the XCOM transaction is being amortipegr a five year period.
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XCOM's in-process research and development valoerigprised primarily of one project to develop areiface between an Internet Protocol
based network and the existing public switchedctatemunications network. Remaining development &ffur this project include various
phases of design, development and testing. Theipated completion date for the project in progiessxpected to be over the next 12
months, at which time the Company expects to bggirerating the full economic benefits from the texdbgy. Funding for this project is
expected to be obtained from internally generatenlces.

The value of the in-process research and developrapresents the estimated fair value based oradgksted cash flows related to the
incomplete project. At the date of acquisition, tlewvelopment of this project had not yet reachetrtelogical feasibility and the research :
development ("R&D") in progress had no alternafiveire uses. Accordingly, these costs were expeased the acquisition date.

The Company used independent third-party appraieeassess and allocate the value to the in-praessarch and development. The value
assigned to the asset was determined, using tbenmepproach, by identifying significant researatjgrts for which technological feasibil
had not been established.

The nature of the efforts to develop the acquiredrbcess technology into commercially viable prdwand services principally relate to the
completion of all planning, designing, prototypitnggh-volume verification, and testing activitidst are necessary to establish that the
proposed technologies meet their design specificatincluding functional, technical, and economecf@rmance requirements.

The value assigned to purchased in-process teaiyalas determined by estimating the contributiothefpurchased in-process technology
to developing a commercially viable product, estingthe resulting net cash flows from the expegatiuct sales over a 15 year period,
discounting the net cash flows to their presenteaising a risk-adjusted discount rate of 30%,aatjdsting it for the estimated stage of
completion.

The Company believes that the foregoing assumptised in the forecasts were reasonable at thedtiniee acquisition. No assurance can be
given, however, that the underlying assumptionsl tieestimate expected project sales, developnuets or profitability, or the events
associated with such projects, will transpire dgreded. For these reasons, actual results mayfi@ry the projected results.

Management expects to continue their support sfaffort and believes the Company has a reasochblece of successfully completing the
R&D project. However, there is risk associated whith completion of the project and there is no msste that it will meet with either
technological or commercial success. If the XCOMjget is not successful, the Company would notizeats investment in XCOM and
would be required to modify its business plan ibzeat alternative technologies which may incredse d¢ost of its network.

The Company believes that its resulting chargeéguired research and development conforms toE@EsSexpressed guidelines and
methodologies. However, no assurances can be thaethe SEC will not require additional adjustnsent

On September 30, 1998, Level 3 acquired GeoNet Qamuations, Inc. ("GeoNet"), a regional Internatvgge provider located in Northern
California. The Company issued approximately O.Biomi shares and options in exchange for GeoNapstal stock, which valued the
transaction at approximately $19 million. Acquitabilities exceeded assets, and goodwill of $2[lioni was recognized from this
transaction which is being amortized over five gear

XCOM's and GeoNet's 1997 and 1998 operating reptilts to the acquisitions were not significanttele to the Company's results.
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For the Company's acquisitions, the excess purgbraseover the fair market value of the underlyasgets was allocated to goodwill and
other intangible assets and property based updiminary estimates of fair value. The Company doesbelieve that the final purchase price
allocation will vary significantly from the prelimary estimates.

(6) Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial lnstents
The following methods and assumptions were usetermine classification and fair values of finah@nstruments:
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents generally consist of funds inwkestédnighly liquid instruments purchased with afgoral maturity of three months or less.
The securities are stated at cost, which approxsfair value.

Marketable and Restricted Securities

Level 3 has classified all marketable and restiistecurities as available-feale. Restricted securities primarily include irta@nts in mutue
funds that are restricted to fund certain reclaomaliabilities of its coal mining ventures. The atimed cost of the securities used in
computing unrealized and realized gains and losséstermined by specific identification. Fair vieduare estimated based on quoted market
prices for the securities on hand or for similareistments. Net unrealized holding gains and loasefmcluded in accumulated other
comprehensive income within stockholders' equigt,af tax.
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At December 31, 1998 and December 27, 1997 theta@adrcost, unrealized holding gains and lossed eatimated fair values of marketa

and restricted securities were as follows:

Unrea
Amortized Hold
Cost  Gai

1998

Marketable Securities:
U.S. Treasury securities......... $2,147
U.S. Government Agency
SECUNtIeS.....vcevvirrerenne
Equity securities
Other securities.................

Restricted Securities:
Wilmington Trust:
Intermediate term bond fund.... $ 13
Equity fund.................... 10

1997
Marketable Securities:
Kiewit Mutual Fund:

Short-term government.......... $ 234
Intermediate term bond......... 195
Tax exempt......cccceeeeennn. 154
EqQUItY....coooeieieiiiieee, 7
Equity securities................ 48
Other securities................. 20
$ 658 $

Restricted Securities:
Kiewit Mutual Fund:
Intermediate term bond......... $ 10

lized Unrealized
ing Holding Fair
ns Losses Value

rs in millions)

8 $-- $2155

1 - 640
- (3 51
- 3 17

- $- %10
S 12
- $- 0§ 22

For debt securities, amortized costs do not vagiicantly from principal amounts. Realized gaaml losses on sales of marketable and
equity securities were $10 million and $1 million1998, $9 million and $-million in 1997, and $3llimh and $- million in 1996,

respectively.
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At December 31, 1998, the contractual maturitiehefdebt securities are as follows:

Amortized Fair
Cost  Value

(dollars in
millions)
U.S. Treasury Securities:
Lessthan lyear.....cccovoiiivvascneneees $2,147 $ 2,155
U.S. Government Agency Securities:
Lessthan lyear.....ccccooovevvvvevvneneees $ 639 $ 640
Other Securities:
10+ YEAIS. oot $ 20% 17

Maturities for the equity and restricted securiti@se not been presented as they do not have le siagurity date.
Long-Term Debt
The fair value of long-term debt was estimated gishe Company's incremental borrowing rates fot débkimilar maturities.

The carrying amount and estimated fair values o€L8's financial instruments are as follows:

1 998 1997
Carryi ng Fair Carrying Fair
Amoun t Value Amount Value
(d ollars in millions)
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 6).......... $ 84 8 $ 848 $87 $87
Marketable Securities (Note 6).............. 2,86 3 2,863 678 678
Restricted Securities (Note 6).............. 2 6 26 22 22
Investment in C-TEC Entities (Note 8)....... 30 0 818 335 776

Investments in Discontinued Energy
Operations (Note 3).........ccccvvvvrenns --
Long-term Debt (Note 10)...........c.cveeee 2,64

(7) Property, Plant and Equipment

Construction in Progress

- 643 854
6 2,613 140 140

The Company is currently constructing its commuiiices network. Costs associated directly with theampleted network and interest
expense incurred during construction are capitdli@sed on the weighted average accumulated cotistrexpenditures and the interest
rates related to borrowings associated with thetroation. These costs are not yet being depretiatethe assets have not yet been placed ir
service. As segments of the network become opedtithe assets will be depreciated over theiruideks.

The Company is currently developing business sumystems required for its Business Plan. The patatirect costs of software, materials
and services, payroll and payroll related expefmesmployees directly associated with the proget interest costs incurred when
developing the business support systems are dapdalJpon completion of the projects, the totataf the business support systems will be

amortized over its useful life of 3 years.
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Capitalized business support systems and netwarktieaction costs that have not been placed in gehave been classified as construction-
in- progress within Property, Plant & Equipmentdvel

Accumulated Book
Cost Depreciation Value

(dollars in millions)

1998
Land and Mineral Properties...............cc....... .$ 32 $(11) $ 21
Facility and Leasehold Improvements
CommMUNICALIONS......ocuvieeeiiiiee e . 80 (2) 79
Information Services.............ocevevvinnnne . 24 2) 22
Coal Mining......cccccvveviiiiiieiieeeeeeeeene .18 (15) 3
CPTC.iiiie e .91 (5) 86
Operating Equipment
CommUNICAtIONS.......vvveeeieeeeeeeieiiieiee . 245 (18) 227
Information Services.............oeeeevvvnnnne . 53 (30 23
Coal Mining.......ccueeeiiiiiieeeiiiieeees . 180 (155) 25
CPTC. i .17 (4) 13
Network Construction Equipment..................... . 46 Q) 45
Furniture and Office Equipment..................... . 67 (10 57
Other...ccoiiiiie e .32 2 30
Construction-in-Progress..........ccccccceevveeen. . 430 - 430
$1,315 $(254) $1,061
1997

.$ 15 $(11) $ 4

Land and Mineral Properties................cc.....
Facility and Leasehold Improvements

Communications

Operating Equipm
Communications

ent

12 "(2) 10
19  (15) 4
91 (4 87

42 (23) 19
190 (159) 31
17 (3 14
1 (5) 6
14 (6) 8

$ 412 $(228) $ 184

Depreciation expense was $48 million in 1998, $20an in 1997 and $124 million in 1996.

(8) Investments

In 1997, C-TEC announced that its Board of Dirextoad approved the planned restructuring of C-TiE€three publicly traded companies
effective September 30, 1997. Under the termseféistructuring C-TEC stockholders received stadké following companies:

Commonwealth Telephone Enterprises, Inc ("Commotttvdalephone™) containing the local telephone grand related engineering

business.
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RCN Corporation ("RCN") which consists of RCN Telet Services; C-TEC, existing cable systems in thgt@-Washington D.C. corridor;
and the investment in Megacable S.A. de C.V., dcaperator in Mexico. RCN Telecom Services is@vjater of packaged local and long
distance telephone, video and internet accesscesrprovided over fiber optic networks to residardustomers.

Cable Michigan, Inc. ("Cable Michigan") containitite cable television operation.

As a result of the restructuring, Level 3 owned l#®n 50% of each of the outstanding shares atiigviaghts of each entity, and therefore
began accounting for each entity using the equithmd as of the beginning of 1997.

The following is summarized financial informatiofitbe Company had C-TEC been accounted for utiizire equity method for the fiscal
year ended December 28, 1996. Fiscal years 1998%8idinclude +TEC accounted for utilizing the equity method amd presented here
for comparative purposes only.

1998 1997 1996

(dollars in
millions)

REVENUE......eiiiiiieiieeee e $392 $332 $285
Costs and Expenses:

Operating eXpensSesS.....eveeeeeeeeeieeeeeeee (199) (163) (125)

Depreciation and amortization.........ccccccceee. . L (66) (20) (18)

General and administrative expenses............... ... (332) (106) (86)
Write-off of in process research and development. ... 30) - -

Total costs and expenses........ccccoceeeeeeee L (627) (289) (229)

Earnings (Loss) from Operations...........ceeeeee.. L (235) 43 56
Other Income (Expense):

Interest income.....ccccoeeviciieeiiiieeeeeeee 173 33 36

Interest eXpense.......ccocvveeevicveeenneeee (132) (15) (5)

EQUity I0SSES...ccoiviviieeeeeeeee L (132) (43) (13)

Gain on investee stock transactions............. . ... 62 - -

Gain on disposal of assets........cccceeeveeeeeee. L 107 10 10

Other, Net.....ooeviiiiiiiieeeeeee 4 7 9

Total other income (expense)......ccocecveeeee L. 82 (8) 37

Earnings (Loss) before Income Taxes and Discontinue d
OperationS......cccovvvvvieiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeee (153) 35 93
Income Tax Benefit......cccccvvvvvevvcves L 25 48 11
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations........... ... (128) 83 104
Income from Discontinued Operations........cccoe... ... 932 165 117
Net EarningS....ccccovveveviiveniieeiieeseeeeee $804 $248 $221

On June 4, 1998, Cable Michigan announced th&dtsd of Directors had reached a definitive agredrtesell the company to Avalon
Cable of Michigan, Inc. for $40.50 per share iraatefor-stock transaction. Level 3 received appnately $129 million when the transaction
closed on November 6, 1998 and recognized a prggamxof approximately $90 million in the fourthayter. The $90 million gain was
calculated using the Company's carrying value &egtember 30, 1998, as Cable Michigan's resultgefations for the period October 1,
1998 through November 6, 1998 were not considdaggdficant relative to the Company's results.
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On September 25, 1998, Commonwealth Telephone aceduhat it was commencing a rights offering @fmillion shares of its common
stock. Under the terms of the offering, each stotddr received one right for every five shares ofrtthonwealth Telephone Common Stock
or Commonwealth Telephone Class B Common Stock Adld rights enabled the holder to purchase Comraatiiv Telephone Common
Stock at a subscription price of $21.25 per sHaaeh right also carried the right to oversubscabthe subscription price for the offered
shares not purchased pursuant to the initial esemi rights.

Level 3, which owned approximately 48% of Commonive@elephone prior to the rights offering, exeedsts 1.8 million rights it received
with respect to the shares it held for $38 milliss.a result of subscriptions made by other stoltdrs, Level 3 maintained its 48%
ownership interest in Commonwealth Telephone dffterights offering.

The following is summarized financial informatiofithe three entities created as a result of thEEC- restructuring for each of the three y«
ended December 31, 1998 and as of December 31,ar8PBecember 27, 1997 (in millions):

Operations
Year Ended
1998 1997 1996
Commonwealth Telephone Enterprises, Inc.:
REVENUE.....cviiiiiiiiieiie e $ 226 $197 $186
Net income available to common shareholders...... ... 8 20 20
Level 3's Share:
NetinComMe.....ccovvviiiiiiiiiie e 4 10 10
Goodwill amortization...........coovccvcceeeee. L 2 @ @
Equity in netincome........ccccoeocveveeeee. L $2%$9%9
RCN Corporation:
REVENUE....cviiieie i, $211 $127 $105
Net loss available to common shareholders........ ... (205) (52) (6)

Level 3's Share:
NEtIOSS..ccoiveeiicie e, (91) (26) (3)
1) - (3

Goodwill amortization........cccccoevvcvveeeenee (1) 3)
Equity in netlosS.....cccccevvvevvvveeceens $(92) $(26) $ (6)
Cable Michigan, Inc.*:
REVENUE.....cviiiiiiiiieie e $ 66 $81 $76
Net loss available to common shareholders........ ... 9 @ @
Level 3's Share*:
NEtIOSS. .o 4 2 @
Goodwill amortization...........coovcccccceeeee. L B @ &
Equity in netl0SS.....cccvvvevevcieacee $ (7)$(6)$(8)

* 1998 revenue and net loss amounts are througte®éer 30, 1998.
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Financial Position

Commonwealth Cable
Telephone RCN  Michigan,
Enterprises, Inc. Cor poration Inc.
1998 1997 199 8 1997 1997
Current Assets.............. $ 79% 71%$1,0 92% 703 $23
Other Assets................ 354 303 8 16 448 120
Total assets.............. 433 374 1,9 08 1,151 143
Current Liabilities......... 85 76 1 78 70 16
Other Liabilities........... 223 260 1,2 82 708 166
Minority Interest........... -- - 77 16 15
Total liabilities......... 308 336 1,5 37 794 197
Net assets
(liabilities).......... $ 125% 38% 3 71%$ 357 $(54)

Level 3's Share:
Equity in net assets

(labilities)............ $ 60% 18% 1 50$ 173 $(26)
GOOAWill..errvereee.... 56 57 34 41 72
$116$ 75% 1 84$ 214 $46

The Company recognizes gains from the sale, isguand repurchase of stock by its subsidiaries godyemethod investees in its stateme
of earnings. During 1998, RCN issued stock in dipwudifering and for certain acquisitions whichwutiéd the Company's ownership of RCN
from 48% at December 27, 1997 to 41% at Decembet 8. The increase in the Company's proportiosiadee of RCN's net assets as a
result of these transactions resulted in a pregganx of $62 million for the Company in 1998.

The market value of the Company's investment in @omvealth Telephone and RCN on December 31, 1988 3852 million, and $466
million, respectively, based on the closing stodkeof each company on December 31, 1998.

Investments also include $23 million for the Comygainvestment in an office building in Aurora, Gmdo.
(9) Other Assets

At December 31, 1998 and December 27, 1997 otlsetsisonsisted of the following:

1998 1997
(in
millions)
Goodwill:
XCOM, net of accumulated amortization of $15..... ... $ 100 $--
GeoNet, net of accumulated amortization of $1.... ... 20 --
Other, net of accumulated amortization of $1..... ... 21 -
Deferred Debt Issuance COStS.......cccccvvvvveeee s 67 --
Deferred Development and Financing Costs............ .. 15 21
Unrecovered Mine Development CoStS.......cccccceeee. i 15 16
LEASES. oot s 9 11
Timberlands.......cccoovvvviiiiiiee. 6 7
(1 T 11 11
Total other assets......ccccceeevvvveeeeeeveeees e $ 264 $ 66
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Goodwill amortization expense, excluding amortizatexpense attributable to equity method investgas,$18 million in 1998 and $- in
1997 and 1996.

(10) Long-Term Debt

At December 31, 1998 and December 27, 1997, lomg-tkebt was as follows:

1998 1997
(dollars in
millions)
Senior Notes
(9.125% due 2008)......ccccvvvieviiiiieeinieeee e, $2,000 $--
Senior Discount Notes
(10.5% due 2008)......ccevviriieeiiiiiaeeeeeee e 504 --
CPTC Long-term Debt (with recourse only to CPTC):
Bank Note
(7.6% due 2008)......c.ceeeeiiiiiiiaiiiiiieeeeee e 64 65
Institutional Notes
(9.45% due 2017)..ccevveeiiiiieiiiieeeeeeeee 35 35
OCTA Debt
(9.0% due 2004)......oovveiiiiiiiieiiieieeeeee e 9 8
Subordinated Debt
(9.3-9.5% NO MAtUrity)....ccoouveeveveeeeeeenes . 8 6
116 114
Other:
Pavilion Towers Debt (8.4% due 2007).....ccccc.... v 15 15
Capitalized Leases.......cccccoeevvvvevccenceee . 8 6
Other. i e 3 5
26 26
Less current portion........cocveeevcveeeenneeees e, 2,646 140
5) G
$2,641 $137

9 1/8% Senior Notes

On April 28, 1998, the Company received $1.94 dillof net proceeds from an offering of $2 billiaygeegate principal amount 9 1/8%
Senior Notes Due 2008 ("Senior Notes"). Interesthennotes accrues at 9 1/8% per annum and wjlklyable in cash semiannually in
arrears.

The Senior Notes are subject to redemption at piero of the Company, in whole or in part, at ainyet or from time to time on or after May
1, 2003, plus accrued and unpaid interest ther@dimetredemption date, if redeemed during the tevatenths beginning May 1, of the years
indicated below:

Year Redemption Price
2003, 104.563%
2004 103.042%
2005, 101.521%
2006 and thereafter......cccccooveevicveeeenaeees L 100.000%
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In addition, at any time or from time to time priorMay 1, 2001, the Company may redeem up to 3b&beooriginal aggregate principal
amount of the Senior Notes at a redemption priceleip 109.125% of the principal amount of the Sehlotes so redeemed, plus accrued
and unpaid interest thereon to the redemption déie.Senior Notes are senior, unsecured obligatbttse Company, ranking pari passu v
all existing and future senior unsecured indebtsslind the Company. The Senior Notes contain cecanenants, which among other things,
limit consolidated debt, dividend payments, andseations with affiliates. The Company is usingrnképroceeds of the Senior Notes
offering in connection with the implementation tff Business Plan to increase substantially itsimé&ion services business and to expani
range of services it offers by building an advandeigrnational, facilities-based communicationsnoek based on Internet Protocol
technology.

Debt issuance costs of $65 million were capitaliaed are being amortized over the term of the $évives.
10 1/2% Senior Discount Notes

On December 2, 1998, the Company sold $834 mipiamcipal amount of 10 1/2% Senior Discount Notes[2008 ("Senior Discount
Notes"). The sales proceeds of $500 million, exdgdiebt issuance costs, were recorded as longdebm Interest on Senior Discount Na
will accrete at a rate of 10 1/2% per annum, comged semiannually, to an aggregate principal amoL$834 million by December 1,
2003. Cash interest will not accrue on the Senisc@unt Notes prior to December 1, 2003; howeVver Gompany may elect to commence
the accrual of cash interest on all outstandingd@@ddiscount Notes on or after December 1, 2001yhich case the outstanding principal
amount at maturity of each Senior Discount Noté evilthe elected commencement date be reducee tactreted value of the Senior
Discount Note as of that date and cash interedtish@ayable on that Note on June 1 and Decembiegréafter. Commencing June 1, 2004,
interest on the Senior Discount Notes will accrutha rate of 10 1/2% per annum and will be payableash semiannually in arrears.

The Senior Discount Notes will be subject to redgompat the option of the Company, in whole or artpat any time or from time to time on
or after December 1, 2003 at the following redemptirices (expressed as percentages of accreteel) yalis accrued and unpaid interest
thereon to the redemption date, if redeemed duhiegwelve months beginning December 1, of thesg/egaticated below:

Year Redemption Price
2003, 105.25%
2004 103.50%
2005, 101.75%
2006 and thereafter .........coceveevvcvveveneeeee L 100.00%

In addition, at any time or from time to time priorDecember 1, 2001, the Company may redeem 8p%oof the original aggregate
principal amount at maturity of the Notes at a raggon price equal to 110.50% of the accreted vafube notes so redeemed, plus accrued
and unpaid interest thereon to the redemption déese notes are senior unsecured obligationsedCtmpany, ranking pari passu with all
existing and future senior unsecured indebtedneteedCompany. The Senior Discount Notes contaitagecovenants which, among other
things, restrict the Company's ability to incur éiddial debt, make certain restricted payments, gigigends, enter into sale and leaseback
transactions, enter into transactions with afidgatand sell assets or merge with another company.

The net proceeds of $486 million are intended tad®d to accelerate the implementation of its BassirPlan, primarily the funding for the
increase in committed number of route miles of@oenpany's U.S. intercity network.
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Debt issuance costs of $14 million have been dap@thand are being amortized over the term ofS@rior Discount Notes.

The Company capitalized $15 million of interest empe and amortized debt issuance costs relatexti@rk construction and business
systems development projects for the year endeéreer 31, 1998.

CPTC:

In August 1996, California Private Transportatioon@pany, L.P. (“CPTC") converted its constructiaraficing note into a term note with a
consortium of banks ("Bank Note"). The intereseramn the Bank Note is based on LIBOR plus a varyétg with interest payable quarterly.
Upon completion of the SR91 toll road, CPTC enténéal an interest rate swap agreement with the gzartéees. The swap agreement expires
in January 2004 and fixes the interest rate orBtek Debt from 9.21% to 9.71% during the term &f $vap agreement.

The institutional notes are held by Connecticut &ehLife Insurance Company, a subsidiary of CIGBérporation and Lincoln National
Life Insurance Company. The note converted tora tean upon completion of the SR91 toll road.

Substantially all the assets of CPTC and the pegtequity interest in CPTC secure the term debt.

Orange County Transportation Authority ("OCTA") t8l$9 million of subordinated debt which is du&amying amounts through 2004.
Interest accrues at 9% and is payable quarterlinbery when CPTC generates sufficient cash flowsoieer operating expenses and other
debt requirements.

In July 1996, CPTC borrowed from the partners $Banito facilitate the completion of the projetit. 1998 and 1997, CPTC borrowed an
additional $2 million and $4 million, respectivefypm the partners in order to comply with equitgintenance provisions of the contracts
with the State of California and its lenders. Tlebtds generally subordinated to all other delEBT C. Interest on the subordinated debt

compounds annually at 9.3-9.5% and is payable aslZPTC generates excess cash flows.

In 1996, CPTC capitalized $5 million of interesioptto completing construction of the SR91 tollroad

Other:

In June 1997, a mortgage loan was obtained fronmdyetitan Life. The Pavilion Towers building in Aana, Colorado collateralizes this de
Scheduled maturities of long-term debt are as##I@n millions): 1999-- $5; 2000--$6; 2001--$6;020-$9; 2003--$9 and $2,611 thereafter.
(11) Employee Benefit Plans

The Company adopted the recognition provisionsFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock Based Compenaset{"SFAS No. 123") in 1998.
Under SFAS No. 123, the fair value of an optiondasputed in accordance with accepted option viamahodels) on the date of grant is
amortized over the vesting periods of the optienadcordance with FASB Interpretation No. 28 "Aauiing for Stock Appreciation Rights
and Other Variable Stock Option or Award Plans"RE28"). The recognition provisions of SFAS No. 1&® applied prospectively upon
adoption. As a result, the recognition provisiores applied to all stock awards granted in the yéadoption and are not applied to awards
granted in previous years unless those awards adéied or settled in cash after adoption of theogmnition provisions.
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The Company believes that the fair value methoalcebunting more appropriately reflects the substarfiche transaction between an entity
that issues stock options, or other stock-basddimgnts, and its employees and consultants; shanientity has granted something of value
to an employee and consultants (the stock optiamtrar instrument) generally in return for theinioued employment and services. The
Company believes that the value of the instrumesmitgd to employees and consultants should be memmyin financial statements because
nonrecoghnition implies that either the instrumérasge no value or that they are free to employedscansultants, neither of which is an
accurate reflection of the substance of the traisacAlthough the recognition of the value of thetruments results in compensation or
professional expenses in an entity's financiakstants, the expense differs from other compensatidrprofessional expenses in that these
charges will not be settled in cash, but rathenegally, through issuance of common stock.

The Company believes that the adoption of SFASI28.will result in material non-cash charges torapens in 1999 and thereafter. The
amount of the non-cash charge will be dependent apmumber of factors, including the number of ¢gamd the fair value of each grant
estimated at the time of its award. On a pro fobasis, adopting SFAS No. 123 would not have hadtenal effect on the results of
operations for the years ended December 27, 199 Danember 28, 1996.

Non-qualified Stock Options and Warrants

In December 1997, stockholders approved amendnethe 1995 Level 3 Stock Plan ("the Plan™). Theeaded plan, among other things,
increases the number of shares reserved for issugran the exercise of stock based awards to 7@000increases the maximum numbe
options granted to any one participant to 10,00m,p0ovides for the acceleration of vesting in élvent of a change in control; allows for the
grant of stock based awards to directors of Levaah@ other persons providing services to Leveh8;alows for the grant of nonqualified
stock options ("NQSO") with an exercise price lgem the fair market value of Common Stock. In Deloer 1997, Level 3 converted both
option and stock appreciation rights plans of ssgiiary, to the Plan. This conversion resultechimissuance of 7.4 million options to
purchase Common Stock at $4.50 per share. Leva®@nized an expense and a corresponding incre&sglity as a result of the transact
The increase in equity and the conversion of tbeksappreciation rights liability to equity arelesfted as option activity in the Statement of
Changes in Stockholders' Equity. The options vest three or five years with a five or ten yeae lif

In addition to 7,466,247 NQSOs granted in 199898,836 warrants were granted to third parties tpuae shares of Common Stock at
exercise prices ranging from $18.50--$20.00 perestiehe warrants vest quarterly through June 30120

The expense recognized in accordance with SFASR®for NQSOs and warrants in 1998 was $6 milliod 5 million, respectively. In
addition to the expense recognized, the Companyatizpd $2 million of non-cash compensation castated to NQSOs for employees
directly involved in the construction of the IntetrProtocol network and the development of therimss support systems.

The fair value of NQSOs and warrants granted whsilzded using the Black- Scholes method with la fiise interest rate of 5.5% and
expected life of 75% of the total life of the NQS&w warrants. The Company used an expected wylatite of 25%, except for when the
minimum volatility of .001% was used by the Compamipr to becoming publicly traded in April 1998hé fair value of the NQSO and
warrants granted in 1998, in accordance with SFAS123 was $28 million.

The Company exchanged approximately 700,000 optadsl1 00,000 options, ranging in prices from $@dl®1.76 and primarily from $0.90
to $1.79 for the XCOM and GeoNet acquisitions, eetpely.
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Transactions involving stock options granted urtderNQSO plan are summarized as follows:

Weighted
Exercise Price Average
Shares Per Share Exercise Price

Balance December 30, 1995............. 2,680,000 $ 4.04 $4.04
Options granted..................... 1,790,000 495 4.95
Options cancelled.. ... (30,000) 404 4.04
Options exercised........ . -- -- --

Balance December 28, 1996............. 4,440,000 $4.04 --$4.95 $4.40
Options granted..... .. 14,990,930 $4.50--$5.42 $4.96
Options cancelled.. ..... (106,000) 495 495
Options exercised........ .... (4,636,930) 4.04-- 495 4.46

Balance December 27, 1997............. 14,688,000 $4.04--$5.42 $4.95
Options granted..................... 7,466,247 $0.12--$41.25 $8.67
Options cancelled................... (668,849) 0.12--34.69 5.52
Options exercised................... (2,506,079) 0.12--34.69 4.22

Balance December 31, 1998 .. 18,979,319 $0.12--$41.25 $6.50

Options exercisable
December 28, 1996................... 530,000 $ 4.04 $4.04
December 27, 1997... $4.04--$ 495 $4.35
December 31, 1998................... 5,456,640 $0.12--$41.25 $4.67

The weighted average remaining contractual lifettier18,979,319 options outstanding on Decembet 348 is 8.47 years.

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Weighte d
Number Average  Averag e Number  Weighted
Range of  Outstanding Remaining Exercis e Exercisable Average
Exercise as of Life Price asof  Exercise
Prices 12/31/98  (years) Outstand ing 12/31/98  Price
$0.12--$0.12 187,036 9.04 $0.12 39,558 $0.12
0.90-- 0.90 34,764  6.26 0.90 21,230 0.90
1.76-- 1.79 78,010 8.50 1.77 19,060 1.79
4.04-- 5.43 12,965,014 8.51 5.04 5,331,448 4.71
6.20-- 8.50 4,875,600 9.06 6.98 45,100 6.82
17.50-- 25.03 272,374 4.62 19.42 - -
26.80--39.13 500,521 4.48 31.37 244  34.69

40.38-- 41.25 66,000 4.62 40.59 -- --

18,979,319  8.47 $6.50 5,456,640 $4.67

Outperform Stock Option Plan

In April 1998, the Company adopted an outperforatisioption ("OSQO") program that was designed sbttieCompany's stockholders
would receive a market return on their investmezioite OSO holders receive any return on their ogtidhe Company believes that the C
program aligns directly management's and stockinglld@erests by basing stock option value on the@any's ability to outperform the
market in
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general, as measured by the Standard & Poor's ("S8® Index. Participants in the OSO program dorealize any value from awards
unless the Common Stock price outperforms the S818dex. When the stock price gain is greater tharcorresponding gain on the S&P
500 Index, the value received for awards unde@8@ plan is based on a formula involving a mukiplelated to the level by which the
Common Stock outperforms the S&P 500 Index. Toetktent that the Common Stock outperforms the S&P, 8t value of OSOs to a
holder may exceed the value of non-qualified stmutons.

OSO grants are made quarterly to participants eyeglon the date of the grant. Each award vestgualegjuarterly installments over two
years and has a fc-year life. Each award has a two-year moratoriunexercising. Once a participant is 100% vestedtwlueyear
moratorium is lifted. Therefore, each grant hagxercise window of two years.

The fair value and expense recognized under SFASRBfor OSOs granted to employees and consultangervices performed in 1998
was $64 million and $24 million, respectively. lddition, $3 million was capitalized for employeearedtly involved in the construction of t
Internet Protocol network and development of bussreipport systems.

The fair value of the options granted was calcudldg applying the Black- Scholes method with an &8B expected dividend yield rate of
1.8% and an expected life of 2.5 years. The Compaery a blended volatility rate of 24% between3B#& 500 expected volatility rate of
16% and the Level 3 Common Stock expected volatitite of 25%. The expected correlation factor.dfWlas used to measure the moven
of Level 3 stock relative to the S&P 500.

Transactions involving stock awards granted in 1988er the OSO plan are summarized below:

Weighted
Average
Option Price Option
Shares Per Share  Price
Options granted............ccccceeveveennne 2,139,0 75 $29.78--$37.13 $34.28
Options cancelled.............cccccee..... (46,5 62) 29.78-- 37.13 35.53
Options exercised........cccccceeevvrrnne - - - -
Balance December 31, 1998................ 2,092,5 13 $29.78--$37.13 $34.25
Options vested but not exercisable as of
December 31, 1998..........ccoeeiirenne 2343 05 $29.78--$37.13 $34.85

The weighted average remaining contractual lifetlier2,092,513 outperform options outstanding oodbeber 31, 1998 is 3.6 years.
Restricted Stock

In 1998, 177,183 shares of restricted stock wesatgd to employees. The restricted stock sharegranted to employees at no cost. The
shares vest immediately; however, the employeereatected from selling these shares for 3 yehe. fair value of restricted stock of $6
million was calculated using the value of the Comr&dock the day prior to the grant. The expensegm®ized in 1998 under SFAS No. 123
for restricted stock grants was $3 million.

Shareworks--Level 3 has designed its compensatimgrams with particular emphasis on equity-bassutjdterm incentive programs. The
Company has developed two plans under its Sharenmdgram: the Match Plan and the Grant Plan.
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Match Plan--The Match Plan allows eligible emplaytedefer between 1% and 7% of their eligible cengation to purchase Common
Stock at the average stock price for the quartey. #ull time employee is considered eligible on tinst day of the calendar quarter after their
hire. The Company matches the shares purchasda:niployee on a one-for-one basis. Stock purchagkgayroll deductions is fully
vested. Stock purchased with the Company's mataungributions vests three years after the ent@fjuarter in which it was made.

The Company's quarterly matching contribution i©gimed over 36 months. In 1998, the Company's higccontribution was $2 million
under the Match Plan. The compensation expensgmes in 1998 under this plan was less than $liamil

Grant Plan--The Grant Plan enables the Companyatat ghares of Common Stock to eligible employes®8 upon a percentage of that
employee's eligible salary up to a maximum of 3%vel 3 employees on December 31 of each year, whage 21 or older with a minimum
of 1,000 hours credited service are consideredb&igThe shares granted are valued at the faik@aalue as of the last business day of the
calendar year. All prior and future grants vest iediiately upon the employees' third anniversarpiiifg the Shareworks Plan.

The annual grant is expensed in the year of thetg&ompensation expense recorded for the Sharev@rént Plan for 1998 was
approximately $1 million. In addition to the compation expense recognized, the Company capitaizsdhan $1 million of non-cash
compensation costs related to the Shareworks Rdamsnployees directly involved in the constructfrthe Internet Protocol network and
the development of the business support systems.

401(k) Plan

The Company and its subsidiaries offer its qualiéenployees the opportunity to participate in argef contribution retirement plan
qualifying under the provisions of Section 401(k}tee Internal Revenue Code. Each employee wabkitp contribute, on a tax deferred
basis, a portion of annual earnings not to excd®ji®0 in 1998. The Company does not match emplogetibutions and therefore does
incur any expense related to the 401(k) plan.

(12) Income Taxes

An analysis of the income tax (provision) benefitibutable to earnings
(loss) from continuing operations before incomestafor the three years ended December 31, 1938\l

1998 1997 1996

(dollars in
millions)
Current:
US.federal...ccooooioiiiiiiiiieiiceeee $ (15) $ (54) $ (61)
FOr@igN. .. - - 4
SEALE..oovie e (10) (@) (®)

$25% 48 $ (3)

F-55



LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(Contin ued)
The United States and foreign components of easnflogs) from continuing operations before incomess follows:

1998 1997 1996

(dollars in
millions)
United States.......cccceveveevveeeieeeieeeeeee . $(142) $ 35 $106
FOr@ign. ..o 11) - 1

A reconciliation of the actual income tax (provisjdoenefit and the tax computed by applying the. te8eral rate (35%) to the earnings (I«
from continuing operations, before income taxesdtierthree years ended December 31, 1998 follows:

1998 1997 1996

(dollars in

millions)
Computed Tax at Statutory Rate........cccceeeeeeee. Ll $53 $(12) $(37)
State Income TaxesS......ccocvevvviveeeniicieees @ @O (3
Write-off of In Process Research & Development..... ... 1) -- -
Coal Depletion......cccoovvvivciiiiiiiiiieeeeeeee 2 3 3
Goodwill Amortization.......ccccceevvcvveeveeeeee B) - (3
Tax Exempt Interest................ e - 2 2
Prior Year Tax Adjustments.......cccccccceveeeee. . - 62 44
Compensation Expense Attributable to Options....... ... - (M -
Taxes on Unutilized Losses of Foreign Operations... ... @4 - (@
Other. i @ 1

During the two years ended December 27, 1997, trepgany settled a number of disputed tax issueterkta prior years that have been
included in prior year tax adjustments.

The components of the net deferred tax liabiliteeghe years ended December 31, 1998 and Dece2ihd©97 were as follows:

1998 1997
(dollars
in millions)
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Investments in securities........................ $ 2% 7
Investments in joint ventures................... 27 33
Asset bases--accumulated depreciation............ 83 53
Coal sales 32 41
Other. i 20 16
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities........cccccoeeeeee. 164 150
Deferred Tax Assets:
Compensation--and related benefits............... 35 25
Investment in subsidiaries....................... 14 8
Provision for estimated expenses................. 14 7
Foreign and general business tax credits......... - 3
Othel i, 13 9
Total Deferred Tax ASSetS.....ccovvvvvvveevenes . 76 52
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities.........ccooeeeeeeeeee. Ll $ 88% 98
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(13) Stockholders' Equity

Issuances of Common Stock, for sales, conversapt®mn exercises and acquisitions, and repurchatsesmmon shares for the three years
ended December 31, 1998 are shown below. Pridret&plit-off, the Company was obligated to repuseh@lass D shares from stockholders.
The Level 3 Stock Plan permits option holders taler shares to the Company to cover income taxe®dwption exercises.

December 30, 1995........vviiiiiiiiiiiies s 230,249,740
Shares ISSUE......uvvvveeveeeeeeiieiiiccieeee e, --
Shares Repurchased.........ccccccovvveeeneeee. (2,552,160)
Issuances for Class C Stock Conversions........... e 4,104,850

December 28, 1996........ccccvvveeevviiieeeeiieees i, 231,802,430
Shares ISSUEd......uvvvveeieeeeeeiieiiiecieeee e, 21,589,100
Shares Repurchased..........ccoovvvvvvveeeees (29,610)
Issuances for Class C Stock Conversions........... e 13,035,430
OptioN ACHIVILY.....ceveiiiiiiieiiiieeeeeeeee e 4,636,930

December 27, 1997.......cvvivviiiiiiiiieeees s 271,034,280
Shares ISSUBd.....uuvvvvveveieeieiiiiiiieeee e, 2,240,467
Shares Repurchased.........ccccccovvveeeneee. (30,506)
Issuances for Class C Stock Conversions........... e 20,934,244
Issuances for Class R Stock Conversions........... e 5,084,568
Option ACtIVItY ... e, 2,506,079
Shares Issued for Acquisitions........cccoeeeeee. L 6,105,574

December 31, 1998........ccovviiviiiiiiiiieees s 307,874,706

(14) Industry and Geographic Data

In the fourth quarter of 1998, the Company ado@EAS No. 131 "Disclosures about Segments of anrfnise and Related Information™.
SFAS No. 131 establishes standards for reportifagrimation about operating segments in annual firzustatements and requires selected
information about operating segments in interinaficial reports issued to stockholders. It alsobdistzes standards for disclosures about
products and services and geographic areas. QmesEgments are components of an enterprise fatvagiparate financial information is
available and which is evaluated regularly by tleen@any's chief operating decision maker, or degisiaking group, in deciding how to
allocate resources and assess performance. Ogesatiments are managed separately and represgagi&tihbusiness units that offer
different products and serve different markets.

The Company's reportable segments include: commatioits and information services (including commatians, computer outsourcing and
systems integration segments), and coal miningeQghimarily includes CPTC, the C- TEC investmeartd other corporate investments and
overhead not attributable to a specific segment.

Industry and geographic data for the Company'sodistued construction and energy operations aréncbided.

EBITDA, as defined by the Company, consists of e@% (loss) before interest, income taxes, deptiecigamortization, non-cash operating
expenses (including stock-based compensation and
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in-process research and development charges) badmin-operating income or expense. The Compatiy@ss non-cash compensation due
to its adoption of the expense recognition provisiof SFAS No. 123. EBITDA is commonly used in toenmunications industry to analyze
companies on the basis of operating performancé&€l BB is not intended to represent cash flow for gegiods.

In 1998, 1997, and 1996 Commonwealth Edison Compangal mining customer, accounted for 34%, 433d,28% of Level 3's revenues.

Industry segment financial information follows. @en prior year information has been reclassifeeddnform with the 1998 presentation.

Communications & Info
Computer
Communications Outsourcing

1998

Revenue................. $ 24 $63
EBITDA.....ccceeveeee (139) 14
Identifiable Assets..... 999 59
Capital Expenditures.... 818 25
Depreciation and

Amortization........... 37 8
1997

Revenue................. $-- $50
EBITDA.....ccceeveeee - 13
Identifiable Assets..... - 42
Capital Expenditures.... -- 9
Depreciation and

Amortization........... - 6
1996

Revenue................. $-- $41
EBITDA.....ccceeveeee - 12
Capital Expenditures.... -- 8
Depreciation and

Amortization........... - 5

rmation Services
Systems Coal
Integration ~ Mining Other Total

(dollars in millions)

$57 $228 $ 20 $ 392
(23) 92 (44) (100)
42 429 3,996 5,525
4 2 61 910
3 5 13 66
$ 45 $222 $ 15 $ 332
1 88 (18) 84
19 499 924 1,484
5 3 9 26
2 5 7 20
$1 $234 $ 376 $ 652
(5) 103 101 211
3 2 104 117
2 9 108 124
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The following table presents a geographic breakmutevenue, EBITDA, and identifiable assets:

Communications & Informati on Services
Computer Systems Coal
Communications Outsourcing Integration Mining Other Total
(do llars in millions)

1998
Revenue:
United States......... $ 23 $62 $56 $228 $ 20 $ 389
Other....cveee.... 1 1 1 -- -- 3

$ 24 $63 $57 $228 $ 20 $ 392
EBITDA:
United States......... $(128) $14 $(23) $92 $ (44) % (89)
Other................. (11) - - - - (11

$ (139) $14 $(23) $92 $ (44) $ (100)
Identifiable Assets:
United States......... $ 886 $ 59 $42  $429 $3,996 $5,412
Other................. 113 - - - - 113

$ 999 $59 $42  $429 $3,996 $5,525
1997
Revenue:
United States......... $ -- $50 $45 $222 $ 15 $ 332
Other................. -- - - - - -

$ -- $ 50 $45 $222 $ 15 $ 332
EBITDA:
United States......... $ - $13 $1 $88%(18)% 84
Other................. -- - - - - -

$ - $13 $1 $88%(18)% 84
Identifiable Assets:
United States......... $ -- $42 $19 $499 $ 924 $1,484
Other................. -- - - - - -

$ -- $42 $19 $499 $ 924 $1,484
1996
Revenue:
United States......... $ -- $41 $1 $234 $ 376 $ 652
Other................. -- - - - - -

$ - $41 $1 $234 $ 376 $ 652
EBITDA:
United States......... $ - $12 $(5) $103 $ 101 $ 211
Other................. -- - - - - -

$ -- $12 $(5) $103 $ 101 $ 211
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The following information provides a reconciliatiohEBITDA to income from continuing operations fiwe three years ended December 31,
1998:

1998 1997 1996

(in millions)

EBITDA ..ot $(100) $84 $211
Depreciation and Amortization Expense.............. (66) (20) (124)
Non-Cash Compensation EXpense............ccccuc.... (39) (22) --
Write-off of In Process Research and Development... 30 - --

Earnings (Loss) from Operations.................. (235) 43 87
Other Income (EXPense).......ccccvveveeeereeeennnn. 82 (8) 20
Income Tax Benefit (Provision)..................... 25 48 3)
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations........... $(128) $83 $104

(15) Commitments and Contingencies

On March 23, 1998, the Company and Frontier Comoatiuins International, Inc. ("Frontier") enteretbilmn agreement ("Frontier
Agreement”) enabling the Company to lease for agesf up to five years approximately 8,300 milésetwork capacity on Frontier's new
13,000 mile fiber optic, Internet Protocol capafétwork, currently under construction. The leasetvork will initially connect 15 of the
larger cities across the United States. While mygiian aggregate minimum payment of $165 millieerats five-year term, the Frontier
Agreement does not impose monthly minimum conswngiquirements on the Company, allowing the Comparrder, alter or terminate
circuits as it deems appropriate. The Company m@zed $4 million of operating expenses in the sdduaif of 1998 as portions of the
network became operational.

On April 2, 1998, the Company announced it hadhred@ definitive agreement with Union Pacific Rald Company ("Union Pacific")
granting the Company rights-efay along Union Pacific's rail routes for constroictof the Company's North American intercity netkdr he
Company expects that the Union Pacific agreemdhsatisfy substantially all of its anticipated higof- way requirements west of the
Mississippi River and approximately 50% of the tigfiway requirements for its North American iniéyaetwork. The agreement provides
for initial fixed payments of up to $8 million torlibn Pacific upon execution of the agreement anoligihout the construction period, and
recurring payments in the form of cash, communicegicapacity, and other communications servicestas the number of conduits that are
operational and certain construction obligationthefCompany to provide fiber or conduit connedifor Union Pacific at the Company's
incremental cost of construction. In 1998, the Camprecorded $9 million of payments made underdbgigement in network construction-
in-progress.

On June 18, 1998, Level 3 selected Peter KiewisSdme. ("Kiewit") to build the majority of its rely 16,000 mile U.S. intercity
communications network. The overall cost of thggubis estimated at $2 billion. Construction of thetwork began in the third quarter of
1998 and is expected to be completed during tedirarter of 2001. The contract provides that Kievill be reimbursed for its costs relati
to all direct and indirect project level costsaldition, Kiewit will have the opportunity to eaan award fee that will be based on cost and
speed of construction, quality, safety and progneamagement. The award fee will be determined byl 8¢ assessment of Kiewit's
performance in each of these areas.

On June 23, 1998, the Company signed a master easagreement with Burlington Northern and Sant&&évay Company ("BNSF").
The agreement grants Level 3 right-of-way acce®&NSF rail routes in as many as 28 states, oveclwta build its network. Under the
easement agreement, Level 3 will make annual
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payments to BNSF and provide communications cap&xiBNSF for its internal requirements. The amaafithe annual payments is
dependent upon the number of conduits installedntimber of conduits with fiber, and the numbemdés of conduit installed along BNSI
route.

On July 20, 1998, Level 3 entered into a netwomkstaction cost-sharing agreement with INTERNEXT(, a subsidiary of NEXTLINK
Communications, Inc. valued at $700 million. Theeggnent provides for INTERNEXT to acquire the rightise conduits, fibers and certain
associated facilities installed along the entingtemf Level 3's nearly 16,000 mile intercity fibmgtic network in the United States.
INTERNEXT paid Level 3 $26 million in 1998 which waeferred and included in other liabilities aDetember 31, 1998 and will pay the
remaining balance as segments of the intercity otare completed. The Company will recognize ine@s the segments of the network
completed and accepted.

The network as provided to INTERNEXT will not inde the necessary electronics that allow the fib@atry communications transmissic
INTERNEXT will be restricted from selling or leagitiiber to unaffiliated companies for four yearidwing the date of the agreement. Also,
under the terms of the agreement, INTERNEXT hasitfte to an additional conduit for its exclusiveeuand to share costs and capacity in
certain future fiber cable installations in Levet@duits.

On August 3, 1998, Level 3 and a group of othebgldéelecommunications companies entered into aseagent to construct an undersea
cable system connecting Japan and the United Sigtesd-year 2000. The parties to this agreemeaniraresting in excess of $1 billion to
build the network, of which Level 3 expects to eintte approximately $130 million. Each party wilkve joint responsibility for the cost of
network oversight, maintenance and administraffidre Company has recorded $24 million of costs aatstwith this project in network
construction-in-progress at December 31, 1998.

On October 14, 1998, Level 3 announced it signedgreement with Global Crossing Ltd. ("Global") forans-oceanic capacity on Global
Crossing's fiber optic cable network. The agreepmamtering 25 years and valued at approximately\8$hdlion, will provide Level 3 with as-
needed dedicated capacity across the Atlantic Odedditionally, Level 3 will have the option of liging capacity on other segments of
Global's worldwide network. In 1998, the Compangoreled as network construction-in-progress, $3Hanibf costs associated with this
agreement.

On December 18, 1998 Level 3 announced an agreeminiXC Communications, Inc. ("IXC") to lease @agity on IXC's network. The
dedicated network will enhance the Company's ghititoffer a wide array of data and voice servioea greater number of customers in key
U.S. markets. The arrangement is unique in thatWilCreserve the network for the exclusive use.efel 3, which expects to begin running
traffic across the network beginning in Spring 1988e Company paid IXC $40 million under this agneat in 1998 and recorded this
amount in property, plant and equipment.

Operating Leases

The Company is leasing rights of way, communicatioapacity and premises under various operatirsggeahich, in addition to rental
payments, require payments for insurance, maintangmoperty taxes and other executory costs rbtatéhe lease. Certain leases provide
adjustments in lease cost based upon adjustmetits tbnsumer price index and increases in thddedid management costs. The lease
agreements have various expiration dates throug.20

F-61



LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(Contin ued)

In addition to the items described above, futureimum payments for the next five years, under thre-cancelable operating leases with
initial or remaining terms of one year or more, sishof the following at December 31, 1998 (in ioilis):

1999 ——— e $35
2000 i e 34
2001 e e, 31
2002 e, 24
2003 i ———— e 24
Thereafter.....ooovvvveeeeeee e, 182
$330

Rent expense under lease agreements was $18 nnilli®08, $1 million in 1997 and $3 million in 1996
(16) Related Party Transactions

Peter Kiewit Sons', Inc. acted as the general aottdr on several projects for the Company in 199®se projects include the intercity
network, local loops and gateway sites, the Comigamsw corporate headquarters in Colorado and adagavcenter in Tempe, Arizona.
Kiewit provided approximately $130 million of consttion services related to these projects in 1998.

In 1999, the Company entered into an agreementR@N whereby RCN will lease cross country capagity_evel 3's nationwide network.
Also in 1999, the Company and RCN announced thHatdtreached joint construction agreements in abRREN markets, through which the
companies will share the cost of constructing thespective fiber optic networks.

Level 3 also receives certain mine managementcasfrom Peter Kiewit Sons', Inc. The expenseHes¢ services was $34 million for 19
$32 million for 1997, and $37 million for 1996, aisrecorded in general and administrative experides revenue earned by Peter Kiewit
Sons', Inc. in 1997 and 1996 is included in discared operations.

(17) Other Matters

Prior to the Split-off, as of January 1 of eachrybalders of Class C Stock had the right to con@aiss C Stock into Class D Stock, subject
to certain conditions. In January 1998, holder€laks C Stock converted 2.3 million shares, witademption value of $122 million, into 21
million shares of Class D Stock (now known as Comt8tock).

The Company is involved in various lawsuits, claensl regulatory proceedings incidental to its besin Management believes that any
resulting liability for legal proceedings beyondtiprovided should not materially affect the Compafinancial position, future results of
operations or future cash flows.

It is customary in Level 3's industries to use @asi financial instruments in the normal courseudibess. These instruments include items
such as letters of credit. Letters of credit aneditional commitments issued on behalf of Leveh Ziccordance with specified terms and
conditions. As of December 31, 1998, Level 3 hatanding letters of credit of approximately $22liom. The Company does not believe it
is practicable to estimate the fair value of thtels of credit and does not believe exposureds is likely.
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(18) Subsequent Events

On January 5, 1999 Level 3 acquired BusinessNeitédna leading London- based Internet service igdenn a largely stock-for-stock
transaction. The Company granted approximatelyG@ishares of Common Stock and paid $1 millioreishcin exchange for BusinessNet's
capital stock. The transaction was valued at apprately $18 million and will be accounted for apuachase.

Level 3 filed a "universal" shelf registration stiatent covering up to $3.5 billion of common stquieferred stock, debt securities and
depositary shares that became effective Februgr§9®. On March 9, 1999 the Company sold 28.78anishares through a primary

offering. The net proceeds from the offering of ryximately $1.5 billion will be used for working pial, capital expenditures, acquisitions
and other general corporate purposes in connegfithithe implementation of the Company's Busindas P

On February 25, 1999 the Board approved an inclieabe number of authorized shares outstanding 60 million to 1 billion. This is
subject to approval of the shareholders which mélivoted on at the Company's 1999 Annual Meeting.

(19) Unaudited Quarterly Financial Data

March June September December
1998 1997 1998 1997 1998 1997 1998 1997
(inm illions except per share data)
Revenue................. $ 87 $80% 103 $ 8l$ 106 $ 81 3% 96 $90
Earnings (Loss) from
Operations............. 9) 20 (41) 16 (52) 13 (133) (6)
Net Earnings (L0SS)..... 926 35 (34) 56 (49) (10) (39) 167

Earnings (Loss) per
Share (Basic and
Diluted):
Continuing
Operations........... $(.02)$.06%$(.11)$ . 06% (16)$ .03 $ (.13)%.18
Discontinued
Operations Excluding
Construction

Operations........... 3.19 .02 -- . 03 -- (.21) - .18
Net Earnings Excluding

Construction

Operations............. 3.17 .08 (.11) . 09 (.16) (.18) (.13) .36

Net Earnings Excluding
Gains On Split-Off of
Construction Group..... 1.09 .08 (.11) . 09 (.16) (.18) (.13) .36

Earnings (loss) per share was calculated for daeletmonth period on a stand-alone basis. As dt i@fsall the stock transactions, the sum of
the earnings (loss) per share for the four quadeesich year may not equal the earnings (loss¥ipene for the twelve month periods.

The earnings (loss) per share amounts above ase tifd.evel 3 Common Stock.

On January 2, 1998 the Company completed the §étkeenergy assets to MidAmerican, as discusseédbie 3, and recognized an after-tax
gain on the disposition of $324 million.

On March 31, 1998, as a result of the Split-offlesussed in Note 1, the Company recognized aaf&#608 million equal to the difference
between the carrying value of the Construction @rand its fair value in accordance with Financiatdunting Standards Board Emerging

Issues Task Force Issue 96-4. No taxes were prididehis gain due to the tax-free nature of thi-8ff. The Company reflected the fair
value of the Construction Group as a distributimithie Class C stockholders.
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As described in Note 5, the Company reduced itsgehor acquired inprocess research and development related toqtssigon of XCOM,
which was originally recorded in the second quasfer998, from $115 million to $30 million, and ie@ased the related goodwill $85 million.
The unaudited quarterly financial data above ré&dlétat revision as if it occurred in the secondrtgr of 1998. As a result, the amounts
presented above differ from those reported in thm@any's 1998 Forms 1Q-for the second and third quarters. Loss from atpars, net los
and losses per share as reported in the secontégiiarm 10-Q were $123 million, $116 million an@l 30 per share, respectively, a change
of $82 million, $82 million and $0.28 per sharespectively, from the information presented above tiuthe reduced charge for in-process
research and development and an increase in gda@alrtization. Loss from operations, net loss msdes per share as reported in the third
quarter Form 10-Q were $48 million, $45 million a#@l15 per share, respectively, a change of $4amjl4 million and $0.01 per share,
respectively, from the information presented abdwe to an increase in goodwill amortization.
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Debt Securities
Preferred Stock
Depositary Shares
Common Stock

We will provide specific terms of these securitsl their offering prices in supplements to thisspectus.

In the case of debt securities, these terms willithe, as applicable, the specific designationreggte principal amount, maturity, rate or
formula of interest, premium, terms for redemptibnthe case of shares of preferred stock, thesestwill include, as applicable, the specific
titte and stated value, any dividend, liquidatimdemption, conversion, voting and other rightshk case of depositary shares, these terms
will include the fractional share of preferred #t@epresented by each depositary share. In theofasemmon stock, these terms will include
the aggregate number of shares offered.

We may sell any combination of these securitiesn@ or more offerings up to a total dollar amour2500,000,000.

Our common stock is quoted on the Nasdaq Natioraak®t under the symbol LVLT. The closing price af common stock on the Nasdagq
National Market was $67.063 per share on DecembEd®9. None of the other securities are currgmilylicly traded

You should read this prospectus and any prospsciysiement carefully before you invest.

See "Risk Factors" on page 1 for a discussion dfersathat you should consider before investinthé@se securities.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commissiorangistate securities commission has approved appisved of these securities or pas
upon the adequacy or accuracy of this prospectog.répresentation to the contrary is a crimina¢offe.

The date of this prospectus is December 10, 1
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About This Prospectus

This prospectus is part of two registration stateimi¢hat we filed with the SEC utilizing a shel§jigtration process. Under this shelf process,
we may, over the next two years, sell any combamatif the securities described in this prospectumie or more offerings up to a total dollar
amount of $3,500,000,000 or the equivalent denorathim foreign currencies or units of two or maveeign currencies. This prospectus
provides you with a general description of the siéies we may offer. Each time we sell securitigs,will provide a prospectus supplement
that will contain specific information about thertes of that offering. The prospectus supplement elsy add, update or change information
contained in this prospectus. You should read Hoghprospectus and any prospectus supplementergeith additional information
described under the heading "Where You Can FindeNtuformation."

Where You Can Find More Information

We file annual, quarterly and special reports, pretatements and other information with the SEQ. S&IC filings are available to the public
over the Internet at the SEC's web site at httpaivsec.gov. You may also read and copy any documeriile at the SEC's public reference
room at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C529. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 fohduiinformation on the public
reference room. Our SEC filings are also availalbline offices of the Nasdaq National Market, insiWagton, D.C.

The SEC allows us to incorporate by referencerfaination we file with them, which means that ves disclose important information to
you by referring you to those documents. The infition incorporated by reference is an important pathis prospectus, and informati
that we file later with the SEC will automaticalipdate and supersede this information. We incotpdrareference our documents listed
below and any future filings we make with the SE@er Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14, or 15(d) of theuBes Exchange Act until we sell all of
the securities.

. Annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal yeaded December 31, 1998
. Quarterly reports on Form 10-Q for the quarterdesl March 31, 1999, June 30, 1999 and Septemhé&©99

. Current reports on Form 8-K, filed February 2499, March 5, 1999, May 18, 1999, June 3, 1999%sutember 20, 1999 and on Form 8-
K/A filed February 17, 1999 and November 9, 1999

. Registration statements on Forms 8-A/A filed MaBd, 1998 and June 10, 1998
You may request a copy of these filings at no dmstyriting or telephoning us at the following adsds:

Vice President, Investor Relations Level 3 Commations, Inc.
1025 Eldorado Boulevard

Broomfield, Colorado 80021

(720) 888-1000

You should rely only on the information incorpomtey reference or provided in this prospectus grospectus supplement. We have not
authorized anyone else to provide you with difféiaformation. We are not making an offer of theseurities in any state where the offer is
not permitted. You should not assume that the médion in this prospectus or any prospectus supghéms accurate as of any date other !
the date on the front of those documents.

Risk Factors

Before you invest in our securities, you shouldce@aly consider the risks involved. These riskdide, but are not limited to:
. the risks described in our current report on FBrRYA filed with the SEC on November 9, 1999, whis incorporated by reference in this
prospectus; and

. any risks that may be described in other filingsmake with the SEC or in the prospectus supplésrefating to specific offerings of
securities.



The Company

We engage in the communications, information ses/&nd coal mining businesses through ownership@fating subsidiaries and
substantial equity positions in public companiedate 1997, we announced a business plan to isegbstantially our information services
business and to expand the range of services we #ffe are implementing our business plan by buiidin advanced communications
network based on internet protocol technology.

Since late 1997, we have substantially increaseehphasis we place on and the resources devoted twmmunications and information
services business. Since that time we have becdawliies-based provider of a broad range ofgnééed communications services. A
facilities-based provider is one that owns or Isassubstantial portion of the plant, property aqdipment necessary to provide its services.
We have expanded substantially the business aduhsidiary, PKS Information Services, Inc. andasating, through a combination of
construction, purchase and leasing of facilitied ather assets, an advanced, international fasilthsed communications network. We
designed our network based on internet protoctirtelogy in order to leverage the efficiencies as$ tiechnology to provide lower cost
communications services.

Our network will combine both local and long distametworks and will connect customers end-to-@ndss the U.S. and in Europe and
Asia. We expect to complete the U.S. intercity ioorbf the network during the first quarter of 2001 the meantime, we have leased a
national network over which we began to offer seesiin the third quarter of 1998. We intend to pdea full range of communications
services--including local, long distance, interoaél and internet services.

Our principal executive offices are located at 1&*torado Boulevard, Broomfield, Colorado 80021 andtelephone number is (720) 888-
1000.

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Preferred $ick Dividends
The ratio of earnings to fixed charges for eacthefperiods indicated is as follows:

Nine Months Ended
September 30, Fiscal Year Ended

1999 1998 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994

- -- 5.733.87 - --

For this ratio, earnings consist of earnings (I&&fpre income taxes, minority interest and disomgd operations plus fixed charges
excluding capitalized interest. Fixed charges irediinterest expensed and capitalized, plus ¢nggm of rent expense under operating
leases deemed by us to be representative of thiegttfactor, plus, prior to September 30, 1998fepred stock dividends on preferred stock
of its former subsidiary, MFS Communications Compdnc. We had deficiencies of earnings to fixedrgfes of $421 million for the nine
months ended September 30, 1999, $106 millionHfemine months ended September 30, 1998, $36 mftin1998, $32 million for 1995
and $42 million for 1994.

Application of Proceeds

Unless the applicable prospectus supplement sitieswise, the net proceeds from the sale of tfexedd securities will be used for working
capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions aneiotgeneral corporate purposes. Until we use thenmoeeeds in this manner, we may
temporarily use them to make short-term investmentsduce short-term borrowings.
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Description of Debt Securities

This section describes the general terms and pomé®f the debt securities. The applicable prospesupplement will describe the specific
terms of the debt securities offered through thaspectus supplement as well as any general tegstsitded in this section that will not apply
to those debt securities.

The debt securities will be our direct unsecurenkgal obligations and may include debentures, notmsds and/or other evidences of
indebtedness. The debt securities will be eitheioselebt securities or subordinated debt secarifibe debt securities will be issued under
one or more separate indentures between us and/higéhall Bank & Trust Company, as trustee. Sedlrt securities will be issued under a
senior indenture, and subordinated debt securitiébe issued under a subordinated indenture. Tregethe senior indentures and the
subordinated indentures are called indentures.

We have summarized selected provisions of the ides below. The summary is not complete. We hi&s@fded the forms of the indentu
as exhibits to the registration statement. You khoead the indentures for provisions that mayrbgdrtant to you before you buy any debt
securities.

General terms of debt securities

The debt securities issued under each indenturebmaégsued without limit as to aggregate princgrabunt, in one or more series. Each
indenture provides that there may be more thartroiséee under the indenture, each with respeabéoon more series of debt securities. Any
trustee under either indenture may resign or bevexh with respect to one or more series of dehirgés issued under that indenture, and a
successor trustee may be appointed to act witteces$p that series.

If two or more persons are acting as trustee vagipect to different series of debt securities dsiwreer the same indenture, each of those
trustees will be a trustee of a trust under thdéitiure separate and apart from the trust admiadtey any other trustee. In that case, except
as otherwise indicated in this prospectus, anypadgescribed in this prospectus to be taken byrttstee may be taken by each of those
trustees only with respect to the one or more safielebt securities for which it is trustee.

A prospectus supplement relating to a series of sleturities being offered will include specifiertes relating to the offering and that series.
These terms will contain some or all of the follogi

. the title of the debt securities;
. any limit on the aggregate principal amount &f thebt securities;
. the purchase price of the debt securities, esprkas a percentage of the principal amount;

. the date or dates on which the principal of amg@remium on the debt securities will be payalléhe method for determining the date or
dates;

. if the debt securities will bear interest, theemest rate or rates or the method by which thee gatates will be determined;

. if the debt securities will bear interest, théedar dates from which any interest will accrue ithterest payment dates on which any interest
will be payable, the record dates for those intgpagment dates and the basis upon which inteheditise calculated if other than that of a
day year of twelve 30-day months;

. the place or places where payments on the debtiges will be made and the debt securities magulorendered for registration of transfer
or exchange;



. if we will have the option to redeem all or argriion of the debt securities, the terms and camaitupon which the debt securities may be
redeemed;

. the terms and conditions of any sinking fund thieo similar provisions obligating us or permittiadiolder to require us to redeem or
purchase all or any portion of the debt securitigsr to final maturity;

. the currency or currencies in which the debt sées are denominated and payable if other thad dollars;

. whether the amount of any payments on the delbtrisies may be determined with reference to aexndormula or other method and the
manner in which such amounts are to be determined;

. any additions or changes to the events of defladfte respective indentures;

. any additions or changes with respect to theratbeenants in the respective indentures;

. the terms and conditions, if any, upon whichdbbt securities may be convertible into commonkstryqreferred stock;
. whether the debt securities will be issued intitesited or book-entry form;

. whether the debt securities will be in registesethearer form and, if in registered form, the @lamations of the debt securities if other than
$1,000 and multiples of $1,000;

. the applicability of the defeasance and covedafg¢gasance provisions of the applicable indenand;
. any other terms of the debt securities consistéhtthe provisions of the applicable indenture.

Debt securities may be issued under the indenag@siginal issue discount securities to be offemed sold at a substantial discount from
their stated principal amount. Special U.S. federame tax, accounting and other consideratioptiGgble to original issue discount
securities will be described in the applicable pexgus supplement.

Unless otherwise provided with respect to a serieebt securities, the debt securities will beiégsonly in registered form, without coupo
in denominations of $1,000 and multiples of $1,000.

Certificated securities

Except as otherwise stated in the applicable paigpesupplement, debt securities will not be issnaxkrtificated form. If, however, debt
securities are to be issued in certificated formservice charge will be made for any transfenamhange of any of those debt securities. We
may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover @x or other governmental charge payable in cotime with the transfer or exchange of
those debt securities.

Book-entry debt securities

The debt securities of a series may be issued @alendr in part in the form of one or more globatwéties that will be deposited with the
depositary identified in the applicable prospecugplement. Unless it is exchanged in whole orairt for debt securities in definitive form, a
global security may not be transferred. Howeveandfers of the whole security between the depgsitarthat global security and its nominee
or their respective successors are permitted.



Unless otherwise stated, The Depository Trust Campidew York, New York will act as depositary faadah series of global securities.
Beneficial interests in global securities will beosn on, and transfers of global securities wilktfiected only through, records maintained by
DTC and its participants.

DTC has provided the following information to usTOis a:

. limited-purpose trust company organized undeiNae York Banking Law;

. a banking organization within the meaning of e York Banking Law;

. a member of the U.S. Federal Reserve System;

. a clearing corporation within the meaning of Mew York Uniform Commercial Code; and

. a clearing agency registered under the provisidi&ection 17A of the Securities Exchange Act.

DTC holds securities that its direct participarepalsit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the settletn@mong direct participants of securities
transactions, in deposited securities through et computerized book- entry changes in the dlipacticipant's accounts. This eliminates
the need for physical movement of securities dedtiés. Direct participants include securities lerskand dealers, banks, trust companies,
clearing corporations and certain other organinati®@TC is owned by a number of its direct partiois and by the New York Stock
Exchange, Inc., the American Stock Exchange, Ind.the National Association of Securities Dealbrs, Access to DTC's book-entry
system is also available to indirect participanishsas securities brokers and dealers, banks asidcmmpanies that clear through or maintain
a custodial relationship with a direct participarie rules applicable to DTC and its direct andregat participants are on file with the SEC.

Principal and interest payments on global secgriggistered in the name of DTC's nominee will lm@enin immediately available funds to
DTC's nominee as the registered owner of the glsbalrities. We and the trustee will treat DTC'siimeee as the owner of the global
securities for all other purposes as well. Accagtlinwe, the trustee and any paying agent will hawelirect responsibility or liability to pay
amounts due on the global securities to ownergnéficial interests in the global securities. IDIEC's current practice, upon receipt of any
payment of principal or interest, to credit dirpatticipants' accounts on the payment date acaptditheir respective holdings of beneficial
interests in the global securities. These paymeiltbe the responsibility of the direct and inditgarticipants and not of DTC, the trustee or
us.

Debt securities represented by a global securitybwiexchangeable for debt securities in defimifiorm of like amount and terms in
authorized denominations only if:

. DTC notifies us that it is unwilling or unable ¢ontinue as depositary;

. DTC ceases to be a registered clearing agencg andcessor depositary is not appointed by usmb days; or

. we determine not to require all of the debt sitiesrof a series to be represented by a globairgga@nd notify the trustee of our decision.
Merger

We generally may consolidate with, or sell, leaseamvey all or substantially all of our assetsaiomerge with or into, any other corporation
if:

. we are the continuing corporation; or

. we are not the continuing corporation, the susmesorporation, expressly assumes all paymengdl dine debt securities and the
performance and observance of all the covenantsamditions of the applicable indenture; and
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. neither we nor the successor corporation is faudeimmediately after the transaction under thpli@able indenture.

Events of default, notice and waiver

Senior indenture. The senior indenture providesttimfollowing are events of default with resptcany series of senior debt securities:
. default for 30 days in the payment of any inteagsany debt security of that series;

. default in the payment of the principal of ormpiam, if any, on any debt security of that seriesamaturity;

. default in making a sinking fund payment requif@dany debt security of that series;

. default in the performance of any of our otherazmants in the senior indenture that continue$@odays after written notice, other than
default in a covenant included in the senior indensolely for the benefit of another series ofigedebt securities;

. the acceleration of the maturity of more than,$26,000 in the aggregate of any of our other itehiess, where that indebtedness is not
discharged or that acceleration is not rescindexhaoulled,;

. certain events of bankruptcy, insolvency or raoigation of us or our property; and
. any other event of default provided with respgec particular series of debt securities.

The senior trustee generally may withhold noticthtoholders of any series of debt securities gfadefault with respect to that series if it
considers the withholding to be in the interesthafse holders. However, the senior trustee mayvithhold notice of any default in the
payment of the principal of, or premium, if any,ioterest on any debt security of that series dhénpayment of any sinking fund installment
in respect of any debt security of that series.

If an event of default with respect to any seriesemior debt securities occurs and is continuting,senior trustee or the holders of not less
than 25% in principal amount of the outstandingtadeleurities of that series may declare the prada@mount of all of the debt securities of
that series immediately due and payable. Subjem¢iain conditions, the holders of a majority fmpipal amount of outstanding debt
securities of that series may rescind and anntilabeeleration. However, they may only do so ifeaknts of default, other than the non-
payment of accelerated principal or specified portf accelerated principal, with respect to delousities of that series have been cured or
waived.

Holders of a majority in principal amount of anyise of outstanding senior debt securities mayjestitbo some limitations, waive any past
default with respect to that series and the coresseps of the default. The prospectus supplemeatirrglto any series of senior debt secur
which are original issue discount securities wisdribe the particular provisions relating to aecsion of a portion of the principal amoun
those original issue discount securities upon twaiwence and continuation of an event of defaMithin 120 days after the close of each
fiscal year, we must file with the senior trustegtatement, signed by specified of our officeratisty whether those officers have knowledge
of any default under the senior indenture.

Except with respect to its duties in case of defdlaé senior trustee is not obligated to exeraisgeof its rights or powers at the request or
direction of any holders of any series of outstagdienior debt securities, unless those holders bfigred the senior trustee reasonable
security or indemnity. Subject to those indemntiima provisions and limitations contained in thaise indenture, the holders of a majority
principal amount of any series of the outstandialgtéecurities issued thereunder may direct anggeding for any remedy available to the
senior trustee, or the exercising of any of themdnustee's trusts or powers.
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Subordinated indenture. The subordinated indemroeides that the following are events of defauthwespect to any series of subordinated
debt securities:

. default for 30 days in the payment of any inteagsany debt security of that series;
. default in the payment of the principal of ormpiam, if any, on any debt security of that seriesamaturity;
. default in making a sinking fund payment requif@dany debt security of that series;

. any default in the performance of any of our ottevenants in the subordinated indenture thatiwoes for 60 days after written notice,
other than default in a covenant included in tHwosdinated indenture solely for the benefit of &eotseries of subordinated debt securities;

. the acceleration of more than $25,000,000, witereindebtedness is not discharged or that a@t&laris not rescinded or annulled;
. certain events relating to the bankruptcy, ineoby or reorganization of us or our property; and
. any other event of default provided with respgec particular series of debt securities.

The subordinated trustee generally may withholicedb the holders of any series of subordinatdat decurities of any default with respect
to that series if it considers the withholding ®ib the interest of the holders. However, the silibated trustee may not withhold notice of
any default in the payment of the principal of eempium, if any or interest on any debt securityhait series or in the payment of any sinking
fund installment in respect of any debt securityhat series.

If an event of default with respect to any seriesubordinated debt securities occurs and is cointf) the subordinated trustee or the holders
of not less than 25% in principal amount of thestariding debt securities of that series may deti@r@rincipal amount of all of the debt
securities of that series immediately due and pay&ubject to certain conditions, the holders ofaority in principal amount of outstandi
debt securities of that series may rescind andlahatiacceleration. However, they may only dofsdlievents of default with respect to debt
securities of that series have been cured or wakielitlers of a majority in principal amount of asgries of the outstanding subordinated
securities may, subject to some limitations, waing past default with respect to that series aadtimsequences of the default. The
prospectus supplement relating to any series ajrsliflated debt securities which are original isdiseount securities will describe the
particular provisions relating to acceleration gfaation of the principal amount of those origirssue discount securities upon the occurrence
and continuation of an event of default. Within &ys after the close of each fiscal year, we Hilestvith the subordinated trustee a
statement, signed by specified officers of usjregavhether such officers have knowledge of anydkifunder the subordinated indenture.

Except with respect to its duties in case of deéfalaé subordinated trustee is not obligated toaige any of its rights or powers at the request
or direction of any holders of any series of outdtag subordinated debt securities, unless thokketwhave offered the subordinated trustee
reasonable security or indemnity. Subject to thndemnification provisions and limitations containea the subordinated indenture, the
holders of a majority in principal amount of anyisse of the outstanding subordinated debt secanitiay direct any proceeding for any
remedy available to the subordinated trustee,@exercising of any of the subordinated trustea&tg or powers.

Modification of the indentures

Senior indenture. Modifications and amendmentéefsenior indenture may be made only, subjectritesexceptions, with the consent of
holders of a majority in aggregate principal amaafrdll outstanding debt securities under the geinidenture which are affected by the
modification or amendment. However, the



holder of each affected senior debt security massent to any modification or amendment of the@enidenture that:
. changes the stated maturity of the principabothe premium, if any, or any installment of irtstron, that debt security;
. reduces the principal amount of, or the ratenooant of interest on, or any premium payable ommggtion of, that debt security;

. reduces the amount of principal of an originalies discount security that would be due and paygibe declaration of acceleration of its
maturity or would be provable in bankruptcy;

. adversely affects any right of repayment of thklér of that debt security;
. changes the place of payment where, or the acyrienwhich, any payment on that debt securityaggble;
. impairs the right to institute suit to enforceygmrayment on or with respect to that debt secuoiy;

. reduces the percentage of outstanding debt siesuof any series necessary to modify or amendéne@r indenture or to waive compliance
with some of its provisions or defaults and theingequences.

We and the senior trustee may amend the seniontadewithout the consent of the holders of anyaeattebt securities in certain limited
circumstances, such as:

. to evidence the succession of another entitystand the assumption by the successor of our cat@nantained in the senior indenture;
. to secure the securities; and

. to cure any ambiguity, to correct or supplemenyt grovision in the senior indenture which may mheonsistent with any other provision of
the senior indenture.

Subordinated indenture. Modifications and amendmgnthe subordinated indenture may be made oubjest to some exceptions, with the
consent of the holders of a majority in aggregaitecipal amount of all outstanding debt securitiesler the subordinated indenture which are
affected by the modification or amendment. Howetleg,holder of each affected subordinated debtrggenust consent to any modification
or amendment of the subordinated indenture that:

. changes the stated maturity of the principabothe premium, if any, or any installment of irggtron, that debt security;
. reduces the principal amount of, or the ratenooant of interest on, or any premium payable ommggtion of, that debt security;

. reduces the amount of principal of an originaliss discount security that would be due and paygide declaration of acceleration of its
maturity or would be provable in bankruptcy;

. adversely affects any right of the repaymenteftiolder of that debt security;
. changes the place of payment where, or the acyrienwhich, any payment on that debt securityaggble;
. impairs the right to institute suit to enforceygmrayment on or with respect to that debt security;

. reduces the percentage of outstanding debt siesuof any series necessary to modify or amenduberdinated indenture or to waive
compliance with some of its provisions or defaaltsl their consequences; or

. subordinates the indebtedness evidenced by #itsécurity to any of our indebtedness other Heamior indebtedness.
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We and the subordinated trustee also may amergbtiwdinated indenture without the consent of tiddrs of any subordinated securities
in certain limited circumstances, such as:

. to evidence the succession of another entitystand the assumption by the successor of our catenantained in the subordinated
indenture;

. to secure the securities; and

. to cure any ambiguity, to correct or supplemaenyt rovision in the subordinated indenture whiclyrba inconsistent with any other
provision of the subordinated indenture.

Defeasance and covenant defeasance

When we establish a series of debt securities, ey provide that that series is subject to the defieee and discharge provisions of the
applicable indenture. If those provisions are meujgicable, we may elect either:

. to defease and be discharged from, subject t@ dionitations, all of our obligations with respéectthose debt securities; or

. to be released from our obligations to complyhvgipecified covenants relating to those debt seesiias described in the applicable
prospectus supplement.

To effect that defeasance or covenant defeasamceust irrevocably deposit in trust with the rel@vaustee an amount in any combination
of funds or government obligations, which, throdlgé payment of principal and interest in accordamitie their terms, will provide money
sufficient to make payments on those debt secsréiel any mandatory sinking fund or analogous paysmen those debt securities.

On such a defeasance, we will not be released dtgations:

. to pay additional amounts, if any, upon the orenre of some events;
. to register the transfer or exchange of thosé sieturities;

. to replace some of those debt securities;

. to maintain an office relating to those debt sities;

. to hold moneys for payment in trust will not bheatharged.

To establish such a trust we must, among othegshideliver to the relevant trustee an opinionafrsel to the effect that the holders of tr
debt securities:

. will not recognize income, gain or loss for Uf&leral income tax purposes as a result of theadafece or covenant defeasance; and

. will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on $hene amounts, in the same manner and at the sagseas would have been the case if the
defeasance or covenant defeasance had not occlrtbe. case of defeasance, the opinion of counsst be based upon a ruling of the IRS
or a change in applicable U.S. federal incomedaxdccurring after the date of the applicable irden

Government obligations mean generally securitieghvare:

. direct obligations of the U.S. or of the govermtnehich issued the foreign currency in which tlebtdsecurities of a particular series are
payable, in each case, where the issuer has pléged faith and credit to pay the obligations;

. Obligations of an agency or instrumentality of th.S. or of the government which issued the foreigrrency in which the debt securities of
that series are payable, the payment of which é®nditionally guaranteed as a full faith and crediigation by the U.S. or that other
government.



In any case, the issuer of government obligati@mnot have the option to call or redeem the olitigat In addition, government obligations
include, subject to certain qualifications, a defoog receipt issued by a bank or trust compangussodian with respect to any government
obligation or a specific payment of interest orponcipal of any such government obligation helchy custodian for the account of a
depository receipt holder.

If we effect covenant defeasance with respect yodmit securities, the amount on deposit with éeviant trustee will be sufficient to pay
amounts due on the debt securities at the timkeif stated maturity. However, those debt secuariti@y become due and payable prior to
their stated maturity if there is an event of défauth respect to a covenant from which we havebeen released. In that event, the amount
on deposit may not be sufficient to pay all amouhts on the debt securities at the time of thelacation.

The applicable prospectus supplement may furtheeriee the provisions, if any, permitting defeagaaccovenant defeasance, including
modifications to the provisions described above.

Senior debt securities

Senior debt securities are to be issued undemEthersindenture. Each series of senior debt seesinitill constitute senior indebtedness and
will rank equally with each other series of serdebt securities and other senior indebtednessublbrdinated debt, including, but not limi
to, all subordinated securities, will be suborditkio the senior debt securities and other send®htedness.

Subordination of subordinated securities

Subordinated indenture. Payments on the subordirsateurities will be subordinated to our senioeintg@dness, whether outstanding on the
date of the subordinated indenture or incurred #fie date. At September 30, 1999, our aggregatiwisindebtedness was approximately
$3.019 hillion. The applicable prospectus supplenf@meach issuance of subordinated securitiesspiicify the aggregate amount of our
outstanding indebtedness as of the most recentigable date that would rank senior to and equaith the offered subordinated securities.

Ranking. No class of subordinated securities i®alibated to any other class of subordinated detirities. See "Subordination provisions
below.

Subordination provisions. If any of certain spesdfievents occur, the holders of senior indebtedmeiss receive payment of the full amount
due on the senior indebtedness, or that paymentimeusuly provided for, before we may make paymentthe subordinated securities.
These events are:

. any distribution of our assets upon our liquidafireorganization or other similar transactioneptdor a distribution in connection with a
merger or other transaction complying with the carg described above under "Merger";

. the occurrence and continuation of a paymentulteéa any senior indebtedness; or

. a declaration of the principal of any serieshaf subordinated securities, or, in the case ofr@igssue discount securities, the portion of the
principal amount specified under their terms, as d@lnd payable, that has not been rescinded andlethnu

However, if the event is the acceleration of anmyeseof subordinated securities, only the holdérsenior indebtedness outstanding at the
of the acceleration of those subordinated secsritig in the case of
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original issue discount securities, that portiorthaf principal amount specified under their termast receive payment of the full amount due
on that senior indebtedness, or such payment neudiily provided for, before we make payments orstitrdinated securities.

As a result of the subordination provisions, sormeus general creditors, including holders of semalebtedness, may recover more, ratably,
than the holders of the subordinated securitigeérevent of insolvency.

Definition of senior indebtedness

Senior indebtedness means the following indebtedoesbligations:

. the principal of and premium, if any, and unpaigrest on indebtedness for money borrowed;
. purchase money and similar obligations;

. Obligations under capital leases;

. guarantees, assumptions or purchase commitmeatmg to, or other transactions as a result dEwlwve are responsible for the payment
the indebtedness of others;

. renewals, extensions and refunding of that inetdiss;
. interest or obligations in respect of the inddhtss accruing after the commencement of any iarolvor bankruptcy proceedings; and
. Obligations associated with derivative products.

However, indebtedness or obligations are not sénd@btedness if the instrument by which we becobigated for that indebtedness or
those obligations expressly provides that thathiteliness or those obligations are junior in righdgayment to any other of our indebtedness
or obligations.

Convertible debt securities

Unless otherwise provided in the applicable prosmesupplement, the following provisions will appdydebt securities that will be
convertible into common stock or preferred stock.

Conversion. The holder of unredeemed convertible securities may, at any time during the perioec#jed in the applicable prospectus
supplement, convert those convertible debt seesritito shares of common stock or preferred sfble&.conversion price or rate for each
$1,000 principal amount of convertible debt se@sitvill be specified in the applicable prospectupplement. The holder of a convertible
debt security may convert a portion of the contégtdebt security which is $1,000 principal amoomany multiple of $1,000. In the case of
convertible debt securities called for redemptmomversion rights will expire at the close of besis on the date fixed for the redemption.
However, in the case of repayment at the opticth@fapplicable holder, conversion rights will tematie upon receipt of written notice of the
holder's exercise of that option.

In certain events, the conversion price or ratélv@lsubject to adjustment as specified in theiegple indenture. For debt securities
convertible into common stock, those events include

. the issuance of shares of common stock as aedfigid
. subdivisions and combinations of common stock;

. the issuance to all holders of common stockgifta or warrants entitling such holders for a mtnot exceeding 45 days to subscribe for or
purchase shares of common stock at a price pee &8 than its current per share market price; and
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. the distribution to all holders of common sto¢k o

(1) shares of our capital stock, other than comstook;

(2) evidences of our indebtedness or assets exgudish dividends or distributions paid from odaireed earnings; or
(3) subscription rights or warrants other than ¢hiferred to above.

No adjustment of the conversion price or rate balrequired in any of these cases unless an adjnstnould require a cumulative increas
decrease of at least 1% in that price or rate.tienrzal shares of common stock will not be issuedruponversion. In place of fractional sha
we will pay a cash adjustment. Unless otherwiseifipd in the applicable prospectus supplementyedible debt securities convertible into
common stock surrendered for conversion betweenesord date for an interest payment and the iblaterest payment date must be
accompanied by payment of an amount equal to tkeegist payment on the surrendered convertible sihirity. However, that payment does
not have to accompany convertible debt securitieerdered for conversion if those convertible deuiurities have been called for
redemption during that period.

The adjustment provisions for debt securities caibe into shares of preferred stock will be detired at the time of an issuance of debt
securities and will be described in the applicaistespectus supplement.

Description of Preferred Stock

This section describes the general terms and pomg&®of our preferred stock. The applicable prospesupplement will describe the specific
terms of the preferred stock offered through tliaspectus supplement as well as any general tegswitded in this section that will not
apply to those shares of preferred stock.

We have summarized certain selected terms of #feed stock in this section. The summary is notglete. You should read our restated
certificate of incorporation that is an exhibitdor annual report on Form 10-K and the certifiagtdesignation relating to the applicable
series of the preferred stock that we will filelwihe SEC for additional information before you tany preferred stock.

General

Our restated certificate of incorporation and DelesvGeneral Corporation Law give our board of doecthe authority, without further
stockholder action, to issue a maximum of 10,000 gltares of preferred stock. The board of diredtassthe authority to fix the following
terms with respect to shares of any series of pesfestock:

. the designation of the series;

. the number of shares to comprise the series;

. the dividend rate or rates payable with respethé¢ shares of the series;

. the redemption price or prices, if any, and #rens and conditions of any redemption;

. the voting rights;

. any sinking fund provisions for the redemptiorparchase of the shares of the series;

. the terms and conditions upon which the sharesamvertible or exchangeable, if they are conlvlerior exchangeable; and
. any other relative rights, preferences and lititites pertaining to the series.
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The preferred stock will have the rights descrilvethis section unless the applicable prospectpplsment provides otherwise. You should
read the prospectus supplement relating to thécpkat series of the preferred stock it offers$pecific terms, including:

. the designation, stated value and liquidatiorigremce of that series of the preferred stock aechumber of shares offered;
. the initial public offering price at which theasies will be issued,

. the dividend rate or rates or method of calcatabf dividends, the dividend periods, the datdates on which dividends will be payable
whether such dividends will be cumulative or nonalative and, if cumulative, the dates from whichidénds shall commence to cumulate;

. any redemption or sinking fund provisions;

. any conversion or exchange provisions;

. the procedures for any auction and remarketfrany, of that series of preferred stock;

. whether interests in that series of preferredkstaill be represented by our depositary shared; an

. any additional dividend, liquidation, redemptiemking fund and other rights, preferences, peiyds, limitations and restrictions of that
series of preferred stock.

When we issue shares of preferred stock againsagatyfor the shares, they will be fully paid anchassessable. This means that the full
purchase price for those shares will have beengraddhe holders of those shares will not be asdemsy additional monies for those shares.
Holders of preferred stock will have no preemptigits to subscribe for any additional securitiest tve may issue.

Because we are a holding company, our rights amdights of holders of our securities, including tiolders of preferred stock, to participate
in the distribution of assets of any subsidiaryefs upon its liquidation or recapitalization vk subject to the prior claims of its creditors
and preferred stockholders. We will not be struadtyrsubordinated to the extent we are a credititin vecognized claims against the
subsidiary or are a holder of preferred stock efghbsidiary.

Dividends

The holders of the preferred stock will be entitledeceive dividends, if declared by our boardlioéctors out of our assets that we can
legally use to pay dividends. The prospectus sup@ie relating to a particular series of preferratls will describe the dividend rates and
dates on which dividends will be payable. The ratay be fixed or variable or both. If the dividemde is variable, the applicable prospectus
supplement will describe the formula used for dateing the dividend rate for each dividend perid¢e will pay dividends to the holders of
record as they appear on our stock books on tleedetates fixed by our board of directors. The @aple prospectus supplement will spei
whether dividends will be paid in the form of cagleferred stock or common stock.

The applicable prospectus supplement will alsestdtether dividends on any series of preferredksaoe cumulative or noncumulative. If
our board of directors does not declare a divideahble on a dividend payment date on any noncuiwelseries of preferred stock, then the
holders of that series will not be entitled to iigee dividend for that dividend period. In thoseemstances, we will not be obligated to pay
the dividend accrued for that period, whether drdieidends on such preferred stock are declargzhimt on any future dividend payment
dates.

Our board of directors may not declare and payeind on any of our stock ranking, as to divideratgial with or junior to any series of
preferred stock unless full dividends on that sehiave been declared and
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paid, or declared and sufficient money is set akidpayment. Until either full dividends are paitt,are declared and payment is set aside, or
preferred stock ranking equal as to dividends,:then

. we will declare any dividends pro rata amongpteferred stock of each series and any prefermak sanking equal to the preferred stocl
to dividends; in other words, the dividends we dezper share on each series of such preferrekl wihdear the same relationship to each
other that the full accrued dividends per shareach such series of the preferred stock bear to @her;

. other than such pro rata dividends, we will netldre or pay any dividends or declare or makedistyibutions upon any security ranking
junior to or equal with the preferred stock asitadinds or upon liquidation, except dividends mtributions paid for with securities rankii
junior to the preferred stock as to dividends apdruliquidation; ant

. we will not redeem, purchase or otherwise acquirget aside money for a sinking fund for any siées ranking junior to or equal with the
preferred stock as to dividends or upon liquidat&nept by conversion into or exchange for stockguto the preferred stock as to dividends
and upon liquidation.

We will not owe any interest, or any money in latinterest, on any dividend payment(s) on anyeseoi the preferred stock which may be
past due.

Redemption

Preferred stock may be redeemable, in whole oarfy pt our option, and may be subject to mandateagmption through a sinking fund or
otherwise, as described in the applicable prospestipplement. Redeemed preferred stock will becntteorized but unissued shares of
preferred stock that we may issue in the future.

If a series of preferred stock is subject to mamgatedemption, the applicable prospectus supplémiinspecify the number of shares that
we will redeem each year and the redemption pliqeeferred stock is redeemed, we will pay allraed and unpaid dividends on those
shares to, but excluding, the redemption dateéhérchse of any noncumulative series of prefermeksaccrued and unpaid dividends will not
include any accumulation of dividends for prioridend periods. The applicable prospectus supplemiralso specify whether we will pay
the redemption price in cash or other propertyhéfredemption price for preferred stock of anyeseis payable only from the net proceed
the issuance of our capital stock, the terms df gheferred stock may provide for its automatic\a@nsion upon the occurrence of certain
events. These events include if no capital stoskideen issued or if the net proceeds from any igguare insufficient to pay in full the
aggregate redemption price then due.

If fewer than all of the outstanding shares of aagies of the preferred stock are to be redeemedyaard of directors will determine the
number of shares to be redeemed. We may redeeshdnes pro rata from the holders of record in priiggoto the number of shares held by
them, with adjustments to avoid redemption of iawl shares, or by lot in a manner determinedumboard of directors.

Even though the terms of a series of preferreckstuay permit redemption of shares of preferredistoavhole or in part, if any dividends,
including accumulated dividends, on that seriespast due:

. we will not redeem any preferred stock of thateseunless we simultaneously redeem all outstanstires of preferred stock of that series;
and

. we will not purchase or otherwise acquire anygired stock of that series.

The prohibition discussed in the prior sentencéwat prohibit us from purchasing or acquiring greéd stock of that series through a
purchase or exchange offer if we make the offethensame terms to all holders of that series.
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Unless the applicable prospectus supplement speatherwise, we will give notice of a redemptignmtiling a notice to each record holder
of the shares to be redeemed, between 30 to 60pdimygo the date fixed for redemption. We will irthe notices to the holders' addresses as
they appear on our stock records. Each noticestate:

. the redemption date;

. the number of shares and the series of the peefstock to be redeemed;

. the redemption price;

. the place or places where holders can surrehderdrtificates for the preferred stock for paynudrthe redemption price;
. that dividends on the shares to be redeemedealie to accrue on the redemption date; and

. the date when the holders' conversion righ@nyf, will terminate.

If we redeem fewer than all shares of any serigh@preferred stock held by any holder, we wilbaspecify the number of shares to be
redeemed from the holder in the notice.

If we have given notice of the redemption and hanawided the funds for the payment of the redenmpgidce, then beginning on the
redemption date:

. the dividends on the preferred stock called éatlemption will no longer accrue;
. such shares will no longer be considered outatgndnd
. the holders will no longer have any rights aslsbolders except to receive the redemption price.

When the holders of these shares surrender thiiaags representing these shares, in accordaithdlve notice, the redemption price
described above will be paid out of the funds wavjate. If fewer than all the shares representedryycertificate are redeemed, a new
certificate will be issued representing the unreaee shares without cost to the holder of thoseeshar

Conversion or exchange rights

The prospectus supplement relating to a seriesedéped stock that is convertible or exchangealilestate the terms on which shares of 1
series are convertible or exchangeable into comstmek, another series of preferred stock or dehiritées.

Rights upon liquidation

Unless the applicable prospectus supplement sittieswise, if we liquidate, dissolve or wind up dusiness, the holders of shares of each
series of the preferred stock will be entitleddoeive:

. liguidation distributions in the amount statedtie applicable prospectus supplement; and
. all accrued and unpaid dividends whether or aoted or declared.

We will pay these amounts to the holders of shafesch series of the preferred stock, and all artsoowing on any preferred stock ranking
equally with that series of preferred stock asguitlating distributions, out of our assets avdédior distribution to stockholders. These
payments will be made before any distribution islento holders of any securities ranking juniortte series of preferred stock upon
liquidation.

If we liquidate, dissolve or wind up our businers ¢he assets available for distribution to thelbod of the preferred stock of any series and
any other shares of our stock ranking equal witlh $ieries as to liquidating distributions are ifisiént to pay all amounts to which the
holders are entitled, then we will only
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make pro rata distributions to the holders of afires ranking equal as to liquidating distributiofisis means that the distributions we pay to
these holders will bear the same relationship th @dher that the full distributable amounts forieththese holders are respectively entitled
upon liquidation of our business bear to each other

After we pay the full amount of the liquidation tlibution to which the holders of a series of theferred stock are entitled, those holders
have no right or claim to any of our remaining #&sse

Voting rights

Except as indicated below or in the applicable pectus supplement, or except as expressly regojregplicable law, the holders of
preferred stock will not be entitled to vote.

If we fail to pay dividends on any shares of pnefdrstock for six consecutive quarterly periods, liblders of those shares of preferred stock,
voting separately as a class with all other seriggeferred stock upon which the same voting edtave been conferred and are exercisable,
will be entitled to vote for the election of twoditional directors to the board of directors. Tiriay be done at a special meeting called by the
holders of record of at least 10% of those shai@saferred stock or the next annual meeting ofldtolders and at each subsequent meeting
until:

. in the case of a series of preferred stock witimaative dividends, all dividends accumulated twat series of preferred stock for the past
dividend periods and the then current dividendqaehiave been fully paid or declared and a sumgsefft for the payment of these dividends
has been set aside for payment; or

. in the case of a series of noncumulative prefiesteck, four consecutive quarterly dividends aat #eries of noncumulative preferred stock
have been fully paid or declared and a sum sufftdier the payment of these dividends has beeasiée for payment.

In this case, the entire board of directors willifereased by two directors.

So long as any shares of preferred stock remastanding, unless we receive the consent of theemlof any outstanding series of preferred
stock as specified below, we will not:

. authorize, issue or increase the authorized atafuany capital stock ranking prior to the outstang series of preferred stock as to
dividends or liquidating distributions;

. reclassify any capital stock into any shares Witk kind of prior ranking;
. authorize or issue any obligation or securityt tepresents the right to purchase any capitakstgih this kind of prior ranking; or

. amend or alter the provisions of our restatetfixte of incorporation, so as to materially audlersely affect any right, preference,
privilege or voting power of that series of preéatistock or the holders of that series of prefestedk.

This consent must be given by the holders of &t leo-thirds of each series of all outstandingemred stock described in the preceding
sentence, voting separately as a class. We wilbaoequired to obtain this consent with respetiéoactions relating to changes to our
restated certificate of incorporation, howeveryd only:

. increase the amount of the authorized prefert@zkr any outstanding series of preferred stackny of our other capital stock; or
. create and issue another series of preferre# stogny other capital stock; and
. in either case, this preferred stock ranks ewital or junior to the outstanding preferred stosk@dividends and liquidating distributions.
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Description of Depositary Shares

This section describes the general terms and pomg®of shares of preferred stock represented pggitary shares. The applicable prospe
supplement will describe the specific terms ofdbeositary shares offered through that prospectpglement and any general terms outlined
in this section that will not apply to those depasi shares.

We have summarized in this section certain terndspaavisions of the deposit agreement, the depysitaares and the receipts representing
depositary shares. The summary is not complete.stiould read the forms of deposit agreement andsiteyy receipt that we have filed
with the SEC for additional information before yiouy any depositary shares that represent prefetoett of that series.

General

We may issue depositary receipts evidencing thesigpy shares. Each depositary share will reptesémaction of a share of preferred stc
Shares of preferred stock of each class or sexesented by depositary shares will be depositddna separate deposit agreement among
us, the preferred stock depositary and the holoffettse depositary receipts. Subject to the ternth@fdeposit agreement, each owner of a
depositary receipt will be entitled, in proportitnthe fraction of a share of preferred stock repmed by the depositary shares evidenced by
that depositary receipt, to all the rights and @reffices of the preferred stock represented by thepsesitary shares. Those rights include any
dividend, voting, conversion, redemption and ligidn rights. Immediately following our issuancelatelivery of the preferred stock to the
preferred stock depositary, we will cause the pretestock depositary to issue the depositary pte®@in our behalf.

Dividends and other distributions

The preferred stock depositary will distributedillidends or other cash distributions receivedespect of the preferred stock to the record
holders of depositary receipts in proportion tokienber of depositary receipts owned by those hslde

If there is a distribution other than in cash, pheferred stock depositary will distribute propéttseceives to the entitled record holders of
depositary receipts. However, if the preferredlsiepositary determines that it is not feasiblentike that distribution, the preferred stock
depositary may, with our approval, sell the propartd distribute the net proceeds from this satbedcholders of depositary shares.

Withdrawal of stock

If a holder of depositary receipts surrenders #ygogitary receipts at the corporate trust officthefpreferred stock depositary, the holder will
be entitled to receive the number of shares optkéerred stock and any money or other propertyessmted by those depositary shares.
However, the holder will not be entitled to receiliese shares and related assets if the relateditiey shares have previously been called
for redemption or converted or exchanged into osieeurities of our company. Holders of depositageipts will be entitled to receive whole
or fractional shares of the preferred stock onbidigs of the proportion of preferred stock represgby each depositary share specified in the
applicable prospectus supplement. Holders of stdrpeeferred stock received in exchange for deposshares will no longer be entitled to
receive depositary shares in exchange for sharpsetdrred stock. If the holder delivers depositageipts evidencing a number of deposi
shares that is more than the number of depositeses representing the number of shares of prefstoek to be withdrawn, the preferred
stock depositary will issue the holder a new depogireceipt evidencing this excess number of déggsshares at the same time.

Redemption of depositary shares

Whenever we redeem shares of preferred stock lyeldeopreferred stock depositary, the preferredkstiepositary will redeem as of that
redemption date the number of depositary sharessepting shares of the
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preferred stock so redeemed. However, we must paigein full the redemption price of the preferstdck to be redeemed plus any accrued
and unpaid dividends on the preferred stock tptleéerred stock depositary.

The redemption price per depositary share will dpgakto the redemption price and any other amopetshare payable with respect to the
preferred stock. If fewer than all the depositdrsires are to be redeemed, the depositary shabesrealeemed will be selected by the
preferred stock depositary pro rata or by lot asthar equitable method. In each case, we will d@tex the method for selecting the
depositary shares.

After the date fixed for redemption, the depositsitares called for redemption will no longer bestariding. When the depositary shares are
no longer outstanding, all rights of the holdershef related depositary receipts will cease, extteptight to receive money or other property
that the holders of the depositary receipts wetileh to receive upon such redemption. These paysneill be made when the holders
surrender their depositary receipts to the prefiesteck depositary.

Voting the preferred stock

Upon receipt of notice of any meeting at which ltloéders of the preferred stock are entitled to vtite preferred stock depositary will mail
information about the meeting contained in theaw®td the record holders of the depositary sham@esenting such preferred stock. Each
record holder of depositary shares on the recotelwd#dl be entitled to instruct the preferred statdpositary as to how the preferred stock
underlying the holder's depositary shares will bted. The record date for the depositary sharddwithe same as the record date for the
preferred stock.

The preferred stock depositary will vote the amamfrgreferred stock represented by the deposifaayes according to these instructions. We
will agree to take all reasonable action deemeéssary by the preferred stock depositary in orlentble the preferred stock depositary to
vote the preferred stock in that manner. The prefestock depositary will not vote shares of prefgistock for which it does not receive
specific instructions from the holders of depogitstnares representing that preferred stock. Thiemes stock depositary will not be
responsible for any failure to carry out any votingtruction, or for the manner or effect of anyejas long as its action or inaction is in good
faith and does not result from its negligence difudimisconduct.

Exchange of preferred stock

Whenever we exchange all of the shares of prefestizk held by the preferred stock depositary &btdecurities or common stock, the
preferred stock depositary will exchange as of é€xahange date all depositary shares represeritiofjthe shares of the preferred stock
exchanged for debt securities or common stock. Weweave must have issued and deposited with themee stock depositary debt
securities or common stock for all of the sharethefpreferred stock to be exchanged.

The exchange rate per depositary share will beléqule exchange rate per share of preferred stoakiplied by the fraction of a share of
preferred stock represented by one depositary splugall money and other property, if any, repreésd by such depositary shares, including
all accrued and unpaid dividends on the sharesaféped stock.

Conversion of preferred stock

The depositary shares, as such, are not conveaditdgchangeable into common stock or any of olersecurities or property. Nevertheless,
the prospectus supplement relating to an offerfrdppositary shares may provide that the holdedepbsitary receipts may surrender their
depositary receipts to the preferred stock depgsitéth written instructions to the preferred staddpositary to instruct us to cause the
conversion or exchange of the preferred stock sgmted by these depositary shares. We have advatedipon receipt of
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these instructions and any related amounts payableill cause the requested conversion or exchdhgee depositary shares are to be
converted or exchanged in part only, a new depysiteipt or receipts will be issued for any défawg shares not to be converted or
exchanged.

Amendment and termination of the deposit agreement

The form of depositary receipt evidencing the déposshares and any provision of the deposit agezg may be amended by agreement
between us and the preferred stock depositary. Memvany amendment that materially and adversédysathe rights of the holders of
depositary shares or that would be materially ahaesely inconsistent with the rights granted ®hiblders of the related preferred stock
requires the approval of the holders of at leastttvirds of the depositary shares then outstanding.

We may terminate the deposit agreement upon nethes 60 days' notice if holders of a majorityhef depository shares then outstanding
consent. If we terminate the deposit agreementptbferred stock depositary will deliver or makeaiable to each holder of depositary
receipts that surrenders the depositary receipisldts, the number of whole or fractional sharepreferred stock represented by the
depositary shares evidenced by these depositagiptec

In addition, the deposit agreement will automatjcerminate if:
. all outstanding depositary shares are redeenoedected or exchanged; or

. there is a final distribution in respect of tledated preferred stock in connection with any lifgion of our business and the distribution has
been distributed to the holders of the related ditgguy receipts.

Charges of preferred stock depositary

We will pay all transfer and other taxes and gowegntal charges arising solely from the existenah@fdeposit agreement. In addition, we
will pay the fees and expenses of the preferrecksiepositary in connection with the performancéséiuties under the deposit agreement.
Holders of depositary receipts will pay transfed ather taxes and governmental charges and any aiheges that are stated to be their
responsibility in the deposit agreement.

Resignation and removal of depositary

The preferred stock depositary may resign at ang tiy delivering notice to us. We also may remdnepreferred stock depositary at any
time. Resignations or removals will take effect mploe appointment of a successor preferred stop&siary. This successor must be
appointed within 60 days after delivery of the netof resignation or removal and must be a bartkust company having its principal office
in the United States and having a combined cagitdlsurplus of at least $50,000,000.

Miscellaneous

The preferred stock depositary will forward to hevisl of depositary receipts any reports and commatioits that we send to the preferred
stock depositary with respect to the related pretestock.

Neither we nor the preferred stock depositary ballliable if it is prevented or delayed, by laweoly circumstances beyond its contro
performing its obligations under the deposit agreemOur obligations and the preferred stock deposs obligations under the deposit
agreement will be limited to performance in goothfand without negligence or willful misconducttbe duties described in the deposit
agreement. Neither we nor the preferred stock diggswill be obligated to prosecute or defend &gal proceeding relating to any
depositary receipts, depositary shares or sharpeetdrred stock unless satisfactory indemnityrsished. We and the preferred stock
depositary may rely on written advice of counsehorountants, or information
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provided by persons presenting shares of prefesteak for deposit, holders of depositary receiptstber persons believed to be competent
and authorized to this information and on documabatived to be genuine.

If the preferred stock depositary receives confiigtlaims, requests or instructions from any hadde depositary receipts, on the one hand,
and us, on the other hand, the preferred stocksitapp will be entitled to act on the claims, resjiseor instructions received from us.

Description of Common Stock

We may issue, either separately or together witlerasecurities, shares of our common stock. Underastated certificate of incorporation,
we are authorized to issue up to 1,500,000,00@shzfrour common stock. A prospectus supplemeatimgl to an offering of common stock,
or other securities convertible or exchangeabledoexercisable into, common stock, will desctite relevant terms, including the numbe
shares offered, any initial offering price, and keduprice and dividend information, as well aspplicable, information on other related
securities. See "Description of Outstanding Cajstack" below.

Description of Outstanding Capital Stock

We have summarized some of the terms and provisibasr outstanding capital stock in this sectibhe summary is not complete. We have
also filed our restated certificate of incorporatiour by-laws and the certificate of designatielating to the Series A preferred stock as
exhibits to our annual report on Form 10-K. Youuddaead our restated certificate of incorporama our by-laws and the certificate of
designation relating to the Series A preferredistoc additional information before you purchasg afour capital stock.

As of October 29, 1999, our authorized capital lstwas 1,518,500,000 shares. Those shares coneisted
. 1,500,000,000 shares of common stock, par valle §er share;

. 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par valdie ger share; and

. 8,500,000 shares of Class R convertible commakspar value $.01 per share.

As of October 29, 1999 there were 341,076,021 shafreommon stock, no shares of preferred stocknanghares of Class R convertible
common stock outstanding.

Common stock

Subject to the senior rights of preferred stockolihinay from time to time be outstanding, holders@fhimon stock are entitled to receive
dividends declared by the board of directors odtintls legally available for their payment. Uporatilution and liquidation of our business,
holders of common stock are entitled to a ratabéeesof our net assets remaining after paymeitedolders of the preferred stock of the
preferential amounts they are entitled to. All ¢artgling shares of common stock are fully paid aombssessable.

The holders of common stock are entitled to one per share for the election of directors and bather matters submitted to a vote of
stockholders. Holders of common stock are notledtio cumulative voting for the election of dire. They are not entitled to preemptive
rights.

The transfer agent and registrar for the commocksgNorwest Bank Minnesota, N.A.
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Preferred stock

The preferred stock has priority over the commalstvith respect to dividends and to other distidns, including the distribution of assets
upon liquidation. The board of directors is authed to fix and determine the terms, limitations agldtive rights and preferences of the
preferred stock, to establish series of prefertedksand to fix and determine the variations asrgreeries. The board of directors without
stockholder approval could issue preferred sto¢k witing and conversion rights which could advisrséfect the voting power of the
holders of common stock. The board of directorsdesignated 500,000 shares of Series A juniorgipating preferred stock. Series A jun
participating preferred stock will be issued intardonsisting of one one-thousandth of a shareenéS A junior participating preferred stock.
Series A junior participating preferred stock isaparity with the common stock with respect taabwds and to other distributions, includ
the distribution of assets on liquidation. Quast@ividends per unit equal the amount of the quigrdividend paid per share of common
stock, when, as and if declared by the board @fotlirs. The holders of units are entitled to orte yer unit, voting together with the comn
stock on all matters submitted to the stockhold&ssof the date of this prospectus, there are ristanding shares of preferred stock.

Anti-takeover provisions

We currently have provisions in our restated degte of incorporation and by-laws that could hameanti-takeover effect. The provisions in
the restated certificate of incorporation include:

. a classified board of directors;
. a prohibition on our stockholders taking actignaritten consent;
. the requirement that special meetings of stoaldrslbe called only by the board of directors erchairman of the board; and

. the requirement of the affirmative vote of atske@6-2/3% of our outstanding shares of stockleditiio vote thereon to adopt, repeal, alter,
amend or rescind our by-laws.

The by-laws contain specific procedural requireradat the nomination of directors and the introdtutof business by a stockholder of
record at an annual meeting of stockholders whaeh business is not specified in the notice of ingedr brought by or at the discretion of
the board of directors. In addition to these priovis, the board of directors has adopted a stodkinsl rights plan, under which rights were
distributed in a dividend. These rights entitle fiodder to acquire units of Series A junior papating preferred stock, which is exercisable
upon the occurrence of certain events, includirgatquisition by a person or group of a specified@ntage of the common stock.

Plan of Distribution
We may sell the offered securities as follows:
. through agents;
. through underwriters;
. to dealers; or
. directly to one or more purchasers.
By agents

Offered securities may be sold through agents dagigl by us. Unless otherwise indicated in a prisgesupplement, the agents will use
their best efforts to solicit purchases for theiqubof their appointment.

21



By underwriters

If underwriters are used in the sale, the offeligties will be acquired by the underwritersttogir own account. The underwriters may
resell the securities in one or more transactiomtd,ding negotiated transactions, at a fixed pubffering price or at varying prices
determined at the time of sale. The obligationthefunderwriters to purchase the securities wilklgiect to certain conditions. The
underwriters will be obligated to purchase all $eeurities of the series offered if any of the siéieis are purchased. Any initial public
offering price and any discounts or concessiormat or re-allowed or paid to dealers may be chéfigen time to time.

To dealers

If a dealer is used in the sale, we will sell tfileied securities to the dealer, as principal. @ealer may then resell those securities to the
public at varying prices to be determined by thaleleat the time of resale.

Direct sales

We may also sell offered securities directly tditnsional investors or others. These sales malgdeones made under arrangements witl
investors under which we have the right to reqthieeinvestors to purchase the offered securit@® fus from time to time at prices tied to
market price for those securities.

Delayed delivery contracts

We may authorize underwriters, dealers and agerdslicit offers by certain institutional investdospurchase offered securities under
contracts providing for payment and delivery owitufe date specified in the prospectus supplenidrt prospectus supplement will also
describe the public offering price for the secastand the commission payable for solicitatiorheke delayed delivery contracts. Delayed
delivery contracts will contain definite fixed pei@nd quantity terms. The obligations of a purchasder these delayed delivery contracts
will be subject to only two conditions:

. that the institution's purchase of the securdiethe time of delivery of the securities is noilpbited under the law of any jurisdiction to
which the institution is subject; and

. that we shall have sold to the underwriters thal principal amount of the offered securitiessl¢he principal amount covered by the
delayed delivery contracts.

General information

Underwriters, dealers, agents and direct purchalatarticipate in the distribution of the offdreecurities may be underwriters as define
the Securities Act and any discounts or commissilbeg receive from us and any profit on the resékhe offered securities by them may be
treated as underwriting discounts and commissiodeiuthe Securities Act. Any underwriters, deateragents will be identified and their
compensation described in a prospectus supplement.

We may have agreements with the underwriters, dealed agents to indemnify them against certaiih l@bilities, including liabilities unde
the Securities Act, or to contribute with respecpayments which the underwriters, dealers or agealy be required to make.

Underwriters, dealers and agents may engage isacéinns with, or perform services for, us or aurssdiaries in the ordinary course of their
businesses.

The place, time of delivery and other terms ofghlke of the offered securities will be describethimprospectus supplement.
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Legal Matters

Willkie Farr & Gallagher will issue an opinion fas about the legality of the offered securitiesy Anderwriters will be advised about other
issues relating to any offering by their own legalinsel.

Experts

The consolidated financial statements of Level &n@mnications, Inc. as of December 31, 1998 anth®ear then ended, incorporated by
reference in this registration statement have laeelited by Arthur Andersen LLP, independent puaticountants, as indicated in their report
with respect thereto, and have been incorporateglrhin reliance upon the authority of said firmeaperts in giving said report.

The consolidated balance sheet of Level 3 Commtiaits Inc. as of December 27, 1997, and the mtlsti@tements of earnings, cash flows,
comprehensive income, and changes in stockholelgudty for each of the two years in the period eéhbBecember 27, 1997, as well as the
consolidated balance sheets of RCN CorporationSatsidiaries as of December 31, 1997 and 1998hencktated statements of operations,
cash flows, comprehensive income, and changesdkisblders' equity, for each of the three yeathéperiod ended December 31, 1998,
incorporated by reference in this registrationestegnt, have been incorporated herein in reliandb®mneports of PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP, independent accountants, given on the authofithat firm as experts in accounting and auditin
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[ARTWORK APPEARING ON INSIDE BACK COVER OF PROSPECT US SUPPLEMENT]
LEVEL 3 NETWORK

Level 3 Communications is building the first intational end-to-end communications network baseidedynon Internet Protocol (IP)
technology. To implement this new technology, Leé¥@lans to offer services in 56 markets acrosdihiéed States and 21 European and
Pacific Rim markets, all connected by intercityvnatks.

[MAP SHOWING LEVEL 3 NETWORK PLANNED OR IN DEVELOPM ENT]
UPGRADEABLE NETWORK
[PICTURES SHOWING INSTALLATION OF CONDUITS]
[DIAGRAM SHOWING MULTIPLE CONDUITS IN PLACE]

Level 3 is installing multiple conduits 42" belowognd in its continuously upgradeable network. Tetwelve 1 1/4" conduits are grouped
together. Fiber will initially be drawn through grdne of the conduits, leaving the others for fatexpansion as technology changes, to meet
customer demand and to provide Level 3 the fleybib offer conduit to others.

[LOGO OF LEVEL 3]



15,000,000 Shares
Level 3 Communications, Inc.
Common Stock

[LOGO OF LEVEL(3)/SM/ COMMUNICATIONS]
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